Legal and Governance

I\/\iddles@cﬁjgh

moving forward

EXECUTIVE

Date: Tuesday 18th October, 2022
Time: 11.00 am
Venue: Mandela Room

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

3. Minutes - Executive - 6 September 2022

EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES
4. 50 Futures Expansion

EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT

5. Poole Hospital Definitive Map Modification Order
EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND GOVERNANCE
6. Financial Recovery Plan 2022-23

THE MAYOR

7. Town Centre Strategy

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD

8. Final Report of the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel -
Tough Enough? Enforcement in Middlesbrough and its Impact

on Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour - Service Response
EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR REGENERATION

9. Designation of the Newport 2 Ward Area for a Selective

Page 1

15-34

35-116

117 -134

135 -150

151 -182

183 - 290



10.

11.

12.

Landlord Licensing Scheme

Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may
be considered.

Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider passing a Resolution Pursuant to Section 100A
(4) Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 excluding the
press and public from the meeting during consideration of the
following items on the grounds that if present there would be
disclosure to them of exempt information falling within
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and the
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the
public interest in disclosing the information.

Exempt - Dealing with Major Vacant Town Centre 291 - 310
Properties

Charlotte Benjamin
Director of Legal and Governance Services

Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Monday 10 October 2022

MEMBERSHIP

Mayor A Preston (Chair) and Councillors, B Cooper, D Coupe, TA Grainge, S Hill,
L Mason, E Polano, M Smiles and S Walker

Assistance in accessing information

Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information

please contact Chris Lunn / Scott Bonner, 01642 729742 / 01642 729708,
chris_lunn@middlesbrough.gov.uk / scott_bonner@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 2



Agenda Item 1

EXECUTIVE

Date: 18 October 2022
Time: 11.00 a.m.
Venue: Mandela Room

MEMBER

IN ATTENDANCE

Mayor A Preston

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor B Cooper

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor D Coupe

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor T Grainge

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor S Hill

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor L Mason

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor E Polano

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor M Smiles

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor S Walker

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

MEMBER

IN ATTENDANCE

Councillor M Saunders
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny
Board

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor C Mcintyre
Chair of the Culture and Communities
Scrutiny Panel

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

OFFICER IN ATTENDANCE
NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING
M Adams
L NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING
C Benjamin
NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING
R Brown
NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING
S Butcher
. NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING
G Field
. NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING
R Horniman

T Parkinson

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING

S Reynolds

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING
E Scollay

NO APOLOGIES PRIOR TO MEETING
S Seechurn

Page 3




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

EXECUTIVE

Declarations of Interest

Date: 18 October 2022
Time: 11.00 a.m.
Venue: Mandela Room

MEMBER

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Mayor A Preston

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor B Cooper

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor D Coupe

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor T Grainge

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor S Hill

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor L Mason

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor E Polano

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor M Smiles

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor S Walker

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

MEMBER

IN ATTENDANCE

Councillor M Saunders
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny
Board

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Councillor C Mcintyre
Chair of the Culture and Communities
Scrutiny Panel

NONE MADE PRIOR TO MEETING

Page 5




This page is intentionally left blank



Executive

Agenda Item 3

06 September 2022

EXECUTIVE

A meeting of the Executive was held on Tuesday 6 September 2022.

PRESENT: Mayor A Preston (Chair), B Cooper, D Coupe, TA Grainge, S Hill, L Mason,
E Polano, M Smiles and S Walker.

PRESENT BY Councillors D Davison, D McCabe and M Saunders

INVITATION:

OFFICERS: S Bonner, C Benjamin, S Butcher, R Horniman and T Parkinson

22/26 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

22127

22/28

Name of Member Type of Interest Item/ Nature of Interest
Councillor M Smiles Prejudicial Agenda Item 6 — Proposal to
progress the development of
Nunthorpe Community Centre.
Member Nunthorpe Parish Council
and involved in previous decisions.
Councillor M Smiles Non-Pecuniary Agenda Item 8 —Nunthorpe
Neighbourhood Area Application.
Ward Councillor for Nunthorpe.

MINUTES - EXECUTIVE - 3 AUGUST 2022

The Minutes of the Executive meeting held on 3 August 2022 were submitted and approved
as a correct record.

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UPDATE: QUARTER ONE 2022/23

The Executive Member for Finance and Governance and Director of Finance submitted a
report for the Executive’s consideration. The report advised the Executive of corporate
performance at the end of Quarter One 2022/23 and where appropriate sought approval of
any changes, where these lie within the authority of the Executive.

The Council’'s Scheme of Delegation gave the Executive collective responsibility for corporate
strategic performance, together with associated action.

The report provided the necessary information to enable the Executive to discharge its
performance management responsibilities, setting out progress against Executive action, the
Strategic Plan and other key associated items, together with actions to be taken to address
any issued identified.

The projected 2022/23 financial outturns were presented separately to Executive, and so not
repeated here. Where performance had a significant impact on finances this was highlighted
within the body of the report.

As part of continuous improvement in performance and risk management, the Council’s
Leadership Management Team (LMT) had implemented monthly reviews of corporate
performance utilising a Directorate Performance dashboard, drawing data from a range of
performance systems.

The output from these sessions was reflected through quarterly updates to the Executive and
Overview and Scrutiny Board and covered in addition, progress in delivering actions agreed
by the Executive, key Directorate performance issues and other performance-related matters.

OPTIONS

No other options were considered as part of the report.

Page T



22/29

06 September 2022

ORDERED

1. That Executive approve the proposed amendments to Executive actions
outlined at Appendix 1.

2. That Executive notes achievement progress of the Strategic Plan 2022-24 at
Quarter One 2022/23, detailed in Appendix 2.

3. That Executive notes the Council’s updated position in relation to Strategic
Risk, at Quarter One 2022/23.

4. That Executive notes progress of the 2022/23 Directorate Priorities at Quarter
One 2022/23, detailed in Appendix 3.

REASON

To enable the effective management of performance and risk in line with the Council’s
Local Code of Corporate Governance.

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET - PROJECTED OUTTURN POSITION AS AT
QUARTER ONE 2022/23

The Executive Member for Finance and Governance and the Director of Finance submitted a
report for the Executive’s consideration. The report advised the Executive of the Council's
financial position as at Quarter One 2022/23.

The Council’'s Scheme of Delegation provides the Executive collective responsibility for
corporate strategic performance and financial management / monitoring, together with
associated action. Standing Orders and Financial Procedures required Executive’s approval
for major virements between revenue budgets, and in-year changes to the Council’s capital
Investment Strategy.

The report provided the necessary information to enable the Executive to discharge its
financial management responsibilities, setting out:
e projected revenue and capital budget year-end outturns as at Quarter One 2022/23;
e position statements in relation to the Council’'s borrowing and prudential indicators,
and its reserves and provisions; and
e actions that the Council had taken and plans to address the issues raised.

Standing Orders and Financial Procedures and Regulations required the Executive’s approval
of the proposed revenue budget virements over £150,000 (Appendix 1)

A revised Investment Strategy for the period to 2024/25 was attached at Appendix 2 for the
Executive’s consideration and approval.

OPTIONS
No other options were considered as part of the report.
ORDERED

1. That Executive approve the transfer of £5.665m of additional temporary budget
to Children’s Care in 2022/23 only to correspond with the current MTFP 3-year
plan, funded by £3.702m from centrally held contingency budgets and £1.963m
from the Social Care Transformation Reserve.

2. That Executive notes that following the approval of the above proposed
transfer, there is a projected 2022/23 revenue budget year-end outturn as at
Quarter One of a £9.012m overspend.

3. That Executive notes the management action being taken to address the
shortfall and recover the position to a balanced budget.

4. That Executive notes the proposed potential implementation of a Flexible Use of
Capital Receipts Strategy for 2022/23 to fund transformation costs, in particular
in Children’s Services, which will be submitted for approval by Full Council on 7
September 2022.

5. That Executive notes that the current projected outturn will have a negative
impact on the Council’s current Medium Term Financial Plan and that the

Page &



22/30

06 September 2022

ongoing financial challenges will continue into 2023/24 and future years. The
position is currently being assessed and will be reported to Members in due
course as part of future Medium Term Financial Plan updates and as part of the
budget strategy for 2023/24 to Executive and Council. It should be noted that
there is currently a great deal of uncertainty in forecasting created by the pay
award, inflationary pressures and the impact on demand for services.

6. That Executive approve the proposed revenue budget virements over £150,000
as detailed in Appendix 1.

7. That Executive notes the 2022/23 capital budget predicted year-end outturn of
£90.614m as at Quarter One against a revised capital budget of £104.675m, and
approves the revised Investment Strategy to 2024/25 at Appendix 2.

OPTIONS
No other options were considered as part of the report.
REASON

To enable the effective management of finances, in line with the Council’s Local Code
of Corporate Governance, the Scheme of Delegation and agreed corporate financial
regulations.

PROPOSAL TO PROGRESS THE DEVELOPMENT OF NUNTHORPE COMMUNITY
CENTRE

The Executive Member for Finance and Governance and Director of Finance submitted a
report for the Executive’s consideration. The report sought approval for the proposals to
progress the development of the community centre provision within Nunthorpe ward.

Middlesbrough Council had committed to funding the development of a community centre
within Nunthorpe Ward and had identified £900k from the Towns Fund to support the
development of the

The Council received interest from separate organisations proposing a community centre at
two separate locations. Location 1 being next to the new medical centre, and location 2 being
at Nunthorpe & Marton Playing Field Association.

A bidding process was developed in Autumn 2021 in order to identify the most appropriate
organisation to design, build and manage the community centre. The process was a two stage
bidding process in which initial expressions of interest were submitted, with further refinement
at stage 2. The deadline for submissions at stage 2 was 17th December 2021.

The bidding process was independently evaluated by external stakeholders, along with
Middlesbrough Council staff, and a conclusion was reached regarding a successful bidder.
This however was challenged and further scrutiny was undertaken concerning the building
cost detail. As a result the successful bid was subject to scrutiny from the Council’'s Quantity
surveyor and it was determined there were issues with the build costs. The same scrutiny was
provided to the second bid which was deemed acceptable.

On review of the process undertaken the Councils section 151 officer concluded that whilst
the process had sought to be as flexible as possible it had not been clear from the outset in
regard to key parameters. The process had focussed primarily on building management,
rather than design and build, and as such the scrutiny on design and build was undertaken
towards the latter part of the evaluation and was not articulated at the outset. This was
therefore challengeable.

As a result of the section 151 officer review it was concluded the process be paused and
reconsidered in terms of approach.

A revised approach has now been identified which removes a central bidding process and
seeks to resolve the key issue of location, by engagement with the community. The revised
process will also involve the council managing the build phase, and during the build phase a
process will be undertaken to appoint an organisation to run the community facility once built.

Page 9



22/31

06 September 2022
OPTIONS

The alternative course of action was to re-run the bidding exercise with clearly defined
parameters from the outset, however this was not recommended for the following
reasons:

e Community organisations have already expended significant time and resource
in the bidding exercise

e The expectation for a community organisation to manage a £1million build is
significant, the risk is high for the Town fund resource and as such it is
appropriate for the council to manage the construction to mitigate risks in this
area.

e Tension within the community and within community groups would be
heightened through running this exercise, the council has a responsibility to
assist with community relations and following discussion at Nunthorpe Parish
council, community views have been taken on board.

ORDERED

1. That Executive agree to the following proposed plan to develop the Community
centre at Nunthorpe Consult the community on which of the two available
locations that is the site 3 next to the GP surgery or the current site of the
NMPFA building the community would prefer a community centre to be located.
The residents of Nunthorpe will be engaged specifically on their preference
regarding the location of the community centre and not the historic supporters
or proposed management options associated currently associated with those
sites. The consultation exercise will be managed by the council and will outline
two locations from which ward residents will select a preference.

2. That Executive agree the Consultation process will run for a fixed period of 6
weeks

3. That Executive agree that following the outcome of the consultation the council
will manage the community centre development at the preferred site

4. That Executive agree that during the build a process will be progressed to
select a community organisation to manage the new community asset.

5. That executive approve an additional £100k from council capital resources due
to increased construction costs, once all other grant funds are exhausted.

REASONS

Within this project, location is the key factor. Once the location has been determined
and agreed, the build and management of the centre can follow due process. The
community should be involved and consulted on the location as the community would
utilise the centre. Once the location is determined the council will oversee the
development phase, during which a process can be twin tracked to agree an
appropriate organisation to manage the facility in the long term. This option should
minimise demands on community organisations, and ensure the outcome delivered is
the one the majority of ward residents support.

INCREASING ENFORCEMENT AGAINST PROBLEM PROPERTIES

The Executive Member for Regeneration and the Director for Regeneration and Culture
submitted a report for the Executive’s consideration to seek approval of the proposed delivery
approach for increased enforcement against problem properties, including the introduction of
the role of Investigations and Enforcement Manager.

The report outlined the impact of empty and problem properties, streets and gardens in
disrepair in Middlesbrough and proposes the delivery approach for increased enforcement
against them. The measures included production of an Empty Homes Strategy, a cross-
directorate Problem Properties Action Plan and the introduction of a new role of Investigations
and Enforcement Manager which was designed to govern the activities necessary to respond
to these issues.

OPTIONS

PBggeld



22/32

06 September 2022

No other potential decisions were recommended as the approach was in response to
directed actions with the Council’s Strategic Plan workplan as approved by Executive
on 5 April 2022.

ORDERED

1. That Executive approves the delivery approach for increased enforcement
against problem properties.

2. That Executive approves the introduction of a permanent role of Investigations
and Enforcement Manager.

REASONS

Approval was granted on 5 April 2022 for the refreshed Strategic Plan workplan 2022-
24, including utilisation of £40K per annum to increase enforcement activity against
problem properties, streets and gardens in disrepair, subject to a further individual
Executive report seeking approval on the approach to delivery.

The approval of the proposed approach, including a new role of Investigations and
Enforcement Manager, will aid with the implementation of the Empty Homes Strategy
and Problem Properties Action Plan to identify, address and reduce the impact of these
properties in Middlesbrough.

NUNTHORPE NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA APPLICATION

The Executive Member for Regeneration and the Director of Regeneration and Culture
submitted a report for Executive’s consideration to seek a determination on an application
submitted by Nunthorpe Parish Council for Neighbourhood Area status, in order to prepare a
Neighbourhood Plan.

Under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011),
applications can be made to local planning authorities to designate Neighbourhood Areas, in
order to facilitate the preparation of Neighbourhood Plans.

The designation of a Neighbourhood Area enables the relevant body to establish a vision and
general planning policies for the development, and use of land in their designated
neighbourhood. This takes the form of a Neighbourhood Plan, which the relevant body
prepares. Neighbourhood Plans form part of the Statutory Development Plan for the area.

When deciding on a Neighbourhood Area boundary the Government has provided guidance
on what to take into account:
e village or settlement boundaries, which could reflect areas of planned expansion;
e a catchment area for walking to local services such as shops, primary schools,
doctors’ surgery, parks or other facilities;
e an area where formal or informal networks of community based groups operate;
e the physical appearance or characteristics of the neighbourhood, for example
buildings may be of a consistent scale or style;
e whether the area forms all or part of a coherent estate either for businesses or
residents;
whether the area is wholly or predominantly a business area;
whether infrastructure or physical features define a natural boundary, for example a
major road or railway line or waterway;
e the natural setting or features in an area; and the size of the population (living and
working) in the area.
A Neighbourhood Area boundary can also be based on an administrative boundary such as
an electoral Ward or postal district.

On 25th March 2022, Nunthorpe Parish Council submitted an application to designate a
Neighbourhood Area to the Council. As the proposed area also covers land outside our
borough, a similar application was also made to Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council.

The proposed Neighbourhood Area is somewhat unusual in that it includes both parished and
non-parished parts of our borough, incorporating all or part of two Middlesbrough Ward
boundaries, as well as extending into a neighbouring local authority administrative area (see

Page 21



22/33

06 September 2022
Appendix 1).

Prior to submitting the application, a significant amount of consultation took place between
Nunthorpe Parish Council, and Middlesbrough and Redcar & Cleveland Borough Councils.
Due to the complexities associated with multiple administrative authorities, Locality (provides
advice and financial support to local communities wishing to undertake Neighbourhood
Planning) also provided support to the Parish Council. During these discussions, it was
agreed that Middlesbrough Council would be the lead local planning authority, although all
matters relating to the Redcar & Cleveland part of the application would remain the legal
responsibility of Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council.

OPTIONS

The Council was required under the legislation to make a determination within
prescribed timescales, and a determination was therefore necessary. If it did not, then
the Council must have designated the whole area as per the original application.

The alternative options that have also been considered were as follows:

e To determine the Neighbourhood Area as proposed. It is not considered
appropriate to designate the area as proposed as it is out of alignment with the
proposed Ward and Parish Boundaries.

e To approve an alternative modified area (that is not the Ward boundary). Only
one alternative boundary has been put forward, and rejected for the reasons set
out above.

ORDERED

Subject to approval of the Council’s Community Governance Review, due to be
considered by full Council on 7 September 2022;

Executive approves the request to designate the Neighbourhood Area application, as
submitted (see Appendix 1) in accordance with the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011), and the Neighbourhood Planning
(General) Regulations 2012.

REASONS

The rationale for the above recommendations was that Neighbourhood Areas should be
based (where possible) on existing boundary lines and/or distinctive characteristics
and features, as outlined above in paragraphs 4 & 5. As the existing administrative
boundaries for Nunthorpe Ward and Parish were subject to imminent review, it is
considered that the proposed Neighbourhood Area boundary should be aligned with
the proposed boundary.

FINAL REPORT OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S LEARNING SCRUTINY
PANEL - SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES (SEND) - SERVICE
RESPONSE

The Children and Young People’s Learning Scrutiny Panel had undertaken a review of
Special Educational Needs (SEND). A copy of the full report was attached.

The Scrutiny Panel had made 10 recommendations upon which a response was sought from
the relevant service area. The deputy Mayor and Executive Member for Children’s Services
and the Director of Children’s Services submitted a service response to the recommendations
of the Children and Young People’s Learning Scrutiny Panel. A copy of the action plan was
attached.

The Chair of the Children and Young People’s Learning Scrutiny Panel presented to the final
report to the Executive. The Deputy Mayor and Executive Member for Children’s Services
presented the service response.

ORDERED

1. That the content of the Children and Young People's Learning Scrutiny Panel’s

PBggela



22/34

22/35

06 September 2022

final report on Special Educational Needs (Appendix 1), be noted.
2. That the action plan (Appendix 2), developed in response to the scrutiny panel’s
recommendations, be approved.

REASON

It was a requirement that Executive formally considered the scrutiny panel’s report and
confirmed the service area’s response to the accompanying plan.

FINAL REPORT OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SOCIAL CARE AND
SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL - LOCALITY WORKING FROM A CHILDREN'S SERVICES
PERSPECTIVE - SERVICE RESPONSE

The Children and Young People’s Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel had undertaken a
review of Locality Working from a Children’s Services perspective. A copy of the full report
was attached.

The Scrutiny Panel had made 10 recommendations upon which a response was sought from
the relevant service area. The Deputy Mayor and Executive Member for Children’s Services
and the Director of Children’s Services submitted a service response to the recommendations
of the Children and Young People’s Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel. A copy of the
action plan was attached.

The Chair of the Children and Young People’s Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel
presented to the final report to the Executive. The Deputy Mayor and Executive Member for
Children’s Services presented the service response.

ORDERED

1. That the content of the Children and Young People's Social Care and Services
Scrutiny Panel’s final report on Locality Working from a Children's Services
Perspective (Appendix 1), be noted.

2. That the action plan (Appendix 2), developed in response to the scrutiny panel’s
recommendations, be approved.

REASON

It was a requirement that Executive formally considered the scrutiny panel’s report and
confirmed the service area’s response to the accompanying plan.

FINAL REPORT OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SOCIAL CARE AND
SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL - SUFFICIENCY AND PERMANENCY (PERCEPTIONS OF
CHILDREN IN CARE)

The Children and Young People’s Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel had undertaken a
review of Sufficiency and Permanency (perceptions of Children in Care. A copy of the full
report was attached.

The Scrutiny Panel had made 16 recommendations upon which a response was sought from
the relevant service area. The Deputy Mayor and Executive Member for Children’s Services
and the Director of Children’s Services submitted a service response to the recommendations
of the Children and Young People’s Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel. A copy of the
action plan was attached.

The Chair of the Children and Young People’s Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel
presented to the final report to the Executive. The Deputy Mayor and Executive Member for
Children’s Services presented the service response.

ORDERED

1. That the content of the Children and Young People's Social Care and Services
Scrutiny Panel’s final report on Sufficiency and Permanency (Perceptions of
Children in Care) (Appendix 1), be noted.

2. That the action plan (Appendix 2), developed in response to the scrutiny panel’s

Page I3



06 September 2022
recommendations, be approved.

REASON

It was a requirement that Executive formally considered the scrutiny panel’s report and
confirmed the service area’s response to the accompanying plan.

The decision(s) will come info force after five working days following the day the decision(s) was
published unless the decision becomes subject to the call in procedures.

PRggel8



Agenda ltem 4

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL /\/\iddlesbi rioi Eugh

moving forward

Report of:

Director of Regeneration
Executive Member of Culture and Communities

Submitted to:

Executive

Date: 18 October 2022

Title: 50 Futures Expansion and update
Report for: Information

Status: Public

Strategic priority: Vulnerability

Key decision: No

Why:

Not Applicable

Urgent:

No

Why:

Not Applicable

Executive summary

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the progress of the 50 Futures Work
experience programme and to inform of future developments to expand the programme

and engage external partners to provide opportunities to Middlesbrough residents.

Page 15




Purpose

1.

To inform members of the progress of the 50 Futures Work Experience Project and
provide an overview of the plans to expand the project externally with local employers.

Background and relevant information

2. 50 Futures was developed as part of the Opportunity Middlesbrough strategy to support
residents across the town to experience high quality work placements across a range of
departments internally within the Council. The programme began in April 2019, with a
target to engage 100 residents by March 2020.

3. The work placements were designed to help individuals to develop the knowledge, skills
and behaviours required in the workplace, enhancing CV content, improving interview
prospects and to develop a new network of contacts.

4. The programme was specifically targeted at Middlesbrough residents who found it most
difficult to gain employment. 50 Futures focused on those:

e Living in Middlesbrough
e 16 orover
e Not already accessing education, training or employment. (NEET)

5. Target groups include unemployed people (long and short term), NEET and those with
significant barriers to work, long term health issues, registered SEND, care leavers, ex-
offenders, those recovering from substance misuse, mental or physical health issues or
those for whom previous education hasn’t worked.

6. Since the start of the project, 316 Middlesbrough residents have engaged with the
project, 23.4% of residents have moved into Employment/Apprenticeships and 76.6% of
residents have made positive progress supporting them to move closer to the labour
market.

7. Annual Breakdown since start of the programme in April 2019:

Year (April 1st - Engagement No: residents making No: of residents  Employed with Employed
March 31st) positive progress towards  Employed council Externally
employment * (Including
Apprenticeships)

*19/20 97 76 21 11 10
**20/21 36 21 15 12 3

21/22 121 94 27 9 18

22/23 62 51 11 5 6

Total 316 242 74 37 37

*Positive Progress is where a positive impact has been identified on personal development and employability skills but
further development is needed to move into employment

*Suspension of the programme from March 2020 due to COViD 19 Pandemic

8.

In March 2020, the Project was paused due to the COVID 19 Pandemic, which led to
reduced engagement and limited access to internal placements as the whole country
was placed in Lockdown.

Page 16 2



9. During this period, Middlesbrough Council's Community Learning service, worked
closely with Property Services within the Council to support the recruitment of cleaning
staff due to the increase in need linked to the pandemic.

10. 50 Futures Placement opportunities were set up within Property services, which gave
residents the opportunity to gain work experience as a cleaner, develop skills and
knowledge and an understanding of the role. Those who were successful within their
placement were offered a guaranteed interview for the latest cleaning vacancies and 17
residents secured employment within the service and further 2 secured employment with
external businesses.

11.Internal placements during 20/21 continued to be suspended due to staff not being in
buildings and unable to provide a suitable work experience placement.

12.From April 2021, and the easing of some restrictions, internal placements were reviewed
and findings showed that many Service areas were still unable to provide opportunities
which would lead to a meaningful opportunity for residents.

13. During this period, in order for engagement with residents to continue, a pilot was carried
out to engage a number of small Employers who could support 50 Futures Candidates
and provide opportunities outside of the Council. The pilot engaged 10 small Employers
and provided 24 placement opportunities. To date, 37 residents have moved into work
with external companies.

Key changes to the programme and actions

14.From April 2021, the programme and our approach has evolved considerably. Since April
2018, 50 Futures was coordinated and managed by the Community Learning Services,
Routes to Work Programme which was a project funded by TVCA and DWP. This ended
in March 2022. Since the 1st April 2022, the Council has recruited a Development Officer
to continue to drive the project. The successful candidate was previously a 50 Future
Participant and recently featured in the Love Middlesbrough Magazine (Appendix 1)
promoting the project and sharing his own story about his journey.

15.We have continued to work with Directorates to ensure opportunities were available and
that they were fit for purpose. Currently internally we have 19 live vacancies within the
Council, a large proportion of those are within Environment.

Number of available MBC placements by Directorate

Adults Social Care.

Regeneration Cult..

Growth and Place

Page 17 3



16.

17.

All roles internally within the Council have been fully reviewed and are advertised on
Middlesbrough Council’'s website. A Marketing strategy was developed to engage
internal and external partners and to engage with 50 Futures, this included new logo and
branding, social media campaign and showcasing of success stories in the Love
Middlesbrough Magazine. (Appendix 2)

Strong links have been made with Children’s services to support young people to make
informed choices about their next steps. A representative from MCL attends the monthly
Task and Finish group to promote current 50 Futures opportunities, but also to
understand the needs of the young people and source appropriate opportunities linked
to the needs of the young person. A scoping exercise has taken place linked to our
Looked after teams which has identified the career paths young people are wanting to
engage with. We will use this information to create bespoke work experience placements
both internally and externally to meet the needs of our young people.

18.The project was due to be externally launched in March 2022, however due to the poor

uptake from external businesses, and engagement with larger organisations, a decision
was made to postpone and explore further options to increase Employer involvement. It
was suggested that the Middlesbrough Mayor launch the project, dates and venue, and
forum still to be agreed.

19.We are currently working with 18 small local businesses which are providing work

experience placements. The feedback from the businesses has been very positive and
as a result of 50 Futures placements, 37 participants have been employed by external
businesses. An employer section on the website is currently being developed which will
allow Employers to express an interest in the programme and find out how to get
involved. In addition a journey has been mapped out for candidates and providers that
will be made available online and will simplify the on boarding process. (see Appendix
3)

20. Teesside University is currently working with the team to explore placement opportunities

21.

22.

for current and past students who are struggling to find employment and/or work
experience. We are hoping this will lead to more graduates finding employment and
staying within the town. The University has a limited number of paid internships each
year and the intention is to offer 50 Future placements to those applicants that do not
start an internship.

50 Futures is working in collaboration with Everyone Active to develop a unique program
that incorporates work experience and training. At the end of which successful
candidates will be provided the opportunity to interview for Leisure attendant roles. In
addition they have agreed to promote the 50 Futures programme to companies that
sublet premises in their various locations.

Joint working with Middlesbrough Council’s procurement team is currently being
explored to engage with businesses who are providing services on behalf of the council.
We will encourage businesses as part of the procurement process to sign up to 50
Futures and provide work experience to local residents.

Page 18 4



23. A steering group will be developed once the external launch has taken place to drive
the expansion of the project and to monitor performance. The steering group will include
Employer, Education and Voluntary section representation and chaired by
Middlesbrough Council’s Chief Executive Officer. A number of key organisations have
already expressed an interest and would like to be involved, Teesside University,
Everyone Active and Middlesbrough College.

What decision(s) are being recommended?

No decision, report is to inform members on progress and future actions.

Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

N/A

Other potential decision(s) and why these have not been recommended

N/A

Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)

Legal

There are no legal issues to consider.

Strategic priorities and risks

24.Vul 01 — Deliver and expand the 50 Futures Work Experience Programme

Human Rights, Equality and Data Protection

25.The programme positively benefits the hardest to help, most needy and minority groups

across the town

Financial
26. No financial implication

Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

Action Responsible Officer Deadline

Claire Kemp/Douglas Hewitson Dec 2022

Page 19 5



Appendices

1 50 Futures Success Stories

2 50 Futures Marketing Campaign and Branding Sample

3 Participant and Partner Journey map

Background papers

Body Report title Date

Contact: Claire Kemp
Email: Claire_kemp@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 20



Appendix 1 —Success stories

How the council’s 50
Futures programme got
Doug back on track

hen Doug Hewitson tried
Lo return 10 the workplace
after four yaars caring for
hes mum Linda, it didn't oo as
straightfoewardly as he'd hopad
Armed with degroes from Toess
University and a wealth of expernkancs in his
asen fiekd, Mddiesbrough
Dowg Telt confident his CV would attract an
offar of work
But after six months, nathing - only
for an appontmant at the Jobcentre to
change his life
ted a black and white fiyes
for Middesbeough Council's 50 Futures
programme - a schems providing high
quality work exparkance ol ments
trugging 1o find employment

He sp

with the cits Routes to
gramme He completad and
% - to the extant that afteewards
he volunteared to heip pecgie on tha 50
Futures scheme mprove theair IT skilks
But it also hel land hien & jok
Routa to Work key worker. And now he's
been apponted davelopmeant officer for
50 Futures - the very schame which sat
him &
But Doug, 44, admits 1
spotted that fiyer for 50 Futures, things
could have worked out a lot differontly
He told Love M "Whan
my mam became L I n

on the rcad to

0 SLeO away from work because I'd
mulated SOome saviry 1 had the

flexibiity to be able to do 1t

| figurad that whan | started kooking for
wark agaim, it would be OK - unfortunatatly,
| was wrong

“I hadd iy quakfications and a lot of
axperience i difforant areas, but as many
othar peopie dscover, It wasn't that gasy

t 50 Futwres | made the ¢all and
2 g, all suited and booted, to the
Grove Hil Community Hub for an iInterviaw

Orm-and-bred

New ke - Dowg now
works for 50 Futiers

- although it was much less formal than that!
adl up working at Rol .

and now I'm with 50 Futures, so
full crcle ™

S0 Futuros placements aro for
memployed peopie aged 16 and over who
bvo In Middiesbrough.

Offering work experiencs in & red
working envircnment, it alows particpa
to meat new pecple, strongthen their CV,
get support from trainng advisors and
quaithed statf, and be noticed by employers
for future paid roles

Originally they were solialy for roles within
Middiestvough Council. but the range has
expanded racently and Douwg hopes to get

Page 21

CAREEORS

Life-chunging - S0 Fulures has
opened doors for Doug Hewlson.

Heo said: "A lof
are at a farly basc lovel, at
often that's just what 5 neadad to qat
conften
ot tuming up fo

“But as 1the council opens up mare post
Covid, 4 n being more sklkod rokes, and
more emmployers, Into the picture

w sean the positive benedits

1ack and gt that expenence

tures can have, both from an
loyment and a ntal health point of
view, and I'd [ike 10 500 more peoplks take
advantaga of that~
The 50 Futures message = bong
publcised on po n central
Midkdles ugh. via social media and at
community venues arcund town

aCause, N short, it Can change
wes
Ha said

go It's o
N the dog
and getting n the back of an empl
mindd. And F've seon &t from
the tabla

ve gone ful arcle but f | hadn soen

50 Futures fiyer, It might not have

*I've =een what 50 Futures can
XL getting your feet

8 POsitive mpre

*It's hadd a mass
Iwant to snsure t

@ iImpact on my Iife and
wips other pooplo t

To view current 50 Futures
placements visit
middlesbrough.gov.uk/S0futures

lovermvcdeshrough mogazne 3%




Care leaver eyes dream career after exam success

A dream career beckons for a
Middlesbrough student celebrating
her exam success.

Marnie Rauf achieved an A* and
two A grades at A-Level last week,
and has been offered a place at
Durham University to study English
Literature.

The 19-year-old hopes to embark on
a career in writing after her studies,
and has now started a placement
with Middlesbrough Council’s
communications team, as part of the
authority’s 50 Futures programme.

Marnie said: “When I received my
results | was elated, and completely
shocked.

“And then to immediately receive an email from Durham University that had confirmed my place made the
experience even more surreal.

“I’m incredibly excited for university life, and all the fantastic opportunities that I know will come with it.

“However, I must acknowledge the role that Middlesbrough Council, Children's Services, and Pathways have
played in my recent academic success, as they have continued to actively support me.”

The council’s 50 Futures programme provides a variety of high quality work experience placements, with
Middlesbrough Council and our trusted partners, for people who struggle to find employment.

“Over the summer holidays I've taken part in the 50 futures work experience programme provided by
Middlesbrough Council,” continued Marnie.

“This has given me the opportunity to write some pieces for Middlesbrough Council, meet people in the field
I’m interested in, and build upon my CV, all while being supported by qualified staft.”

Marnie has already been recognised by judges of the prestigious Orwell Youth Prize for her hard-hitting, honest
story, A New Direction: Starting Small.

It was based on her own experiences of turning her life around, after straying down the wrong path when she
left her family home at 16 following a difficult childhood.

Marnie moved into supported lodgings with the help of Middlesbrough Council's Children's Services team,
allowing her to concentrate on her studies at Trinity Catholic College in Saltersgill, Middlesbrough.

Supported Lodgings provides a stepping stone to independence for young people leaving care.

Sue Butcher, Executive Director of Children’s Services at Middlesbrough Council, said: “Congratulations to
Marnie on her exceptional exam results, I’'m sure she’ll be fantastic at Durham and excel in whichever career
she chooses.

“Middlesbrough children matter, and Marnie’s success is a wonderful example that our young people can
achieve their dreams.”

Page 22 8



“The 50 Futures placement was a great experience and all
the staff were very supportive. The placement was a massive
boost to my confidence and this helped me greatly when

Fu t u re S applying for my apprenticeship. | am pleased to say | was

successful and I am due to start my apprenticeship in the
near future.”

After completing a kickstart placement that allowed Katie to work in the community and help
other people she knew this was the type of work she wanted to do. She started looking for an
apprenticeship and this is when she first learned about 50 Futures.

Katie met with 50 Futures and discussed the type of work she would like to do and what she
hoped for in the future. Katie also has a young daughter so this was taken into consideration
when identifying a suitable placement. We found a work experience placement in a Community
Hub that was local to where Katie lives. Katie was looking for a work experience placement
because she was concerned that childcare and her dyslexia might prove to be a barrier too far
and she wanted the opportunity to show that she was very capable and keen to move into
employment.

While on the placement she found the staff to be very friendly and supportive and any concerns
she had were soon put to rest. Over a period of 8 weeks her confidence continued to grow and
she was developing skills she knew would be invaluable when it came time to start submitting
apprenticeship applications.

While on the placement she became very familiar with many of the day-to-day tasks in the
Community hub such as interacting with members of the public on reception, answering phones,
organising books and much more.

Her manager while on placement said “Katie attended a 4 week 50 futures placement in
Easterside hub. The placement gave Katie a chance to experience first-hand what a community
hub and Library means to the local community and the diverse customers we serve. She gained
knowledge and skills throughout her time on the 50 futures placement which gave her the
confidence to apply for the apprentice post available. Katie is now looking forward to starting a
full time customer service apprenticeship in September and a bright future with MBC.

Katie is in no doubt that the 50 Futures placement contributed to her success. She was able to
submit an application that illustrated she had experience in all the areas identified in the Job
Description. She also went into the interview confident as she was already aware what the job
involved and had practical experience she could call upon.

The support didn’t end there. Katie required her Level 2 in English and Maths and she has
enrolled on the course through Middlesbrough Community Learning.

Page 23 9



Appendix 2 Marketing Campaign samples

“ The 50 Futures work
experience programme gave
me the opportunity to bridge
agap in my CV and
Doug is an invaluable asset to demonstrate my skill sat.,’

Middlesbrough’s local job clubs and Doug, Job Club Suppart

continues to show commitment

and passion to local people who

are seeking employment.

Toy Anie I nore vis| middlesbrough.gov.uk/50-futures Middlesh
s

12l 50futures@maes.ac.uk or 01642 811 400.

“ Tracy has become a
valued member of our team
within the store and her hard
work has had a positive impact
on the local community.
Michelle, Manager - EMEC

My 50 Futures placement
allowed me to help disadvantaged
people in my local community
using my existing retail skills.

t middlesbrough.gov.uk/50-futures
50futures@maes.ac.uk 01642 811 400.

“The 50 Futures placement
has given me a sense of pride
in my work, where | am learning
something new every day.,,
Jake, Digital Media Officer

Jake has introduced some

and has enabled us to work more
collaboratively with different
departments within the council.

Apprenticeship in his role as a Digital Media Officer

; Jake is now completing an Operational Delivery
at Middlesbrough Council.

the 50 Futures team can help v

5 Are Gt mere visi: middlesbrough.gov.uk/50-futures
rmail 50futures@maes.ac.uk o 01642 811 400.

The 50 Futures work experience
placement allowed me to indulge
in my passion of local history and
interact with lots of new people.

“ John's knowledge of local history
has enabled our delivery of interactive
Ibitions to 3 B hout th

Covid-19 pandemic to truly enhance
the visitor axaarienoe.,,

Darren, Visitor Experience Team Leader
at Middlesbrough Council

+ middlesbrough.gov.uk/50-futures Middles
50futures@maes.ac.uk 01642 811 400.

Page 24

10



Appendix 3 Participant / Provider Journey

Referral

l 50 Futures Candidate Journey

Self Support Local
Referral Agency Authority

Closer to Employment

Apprenticeships
Key Worker

@ ﬂ Education
Personal Assessment Volunteering Opportunities

1-to-1

®
}g; See Positive Improvements Next steps .. -
50 Futures Signposting ar
I dP Start Placement Complete Placement

-

s & ; ; ; : ;
Identify Placement Q IST?J Build Confidence Develop Skills  Exit Interview

and Experience
Informal Interview

Register Interest

l 50 Futures

Phone Website  Email Employer Process

End of Placement
Provide Reference Upon request

Exit Interview
R e Practical Work Experience

. Shadowing

50 Futures Overview Induction

Meet With provider Placement
What 50 Future is
What's Expected as a provider Sekiadile Confisation
Candidate

Placement Outline Candidate assessment  1-to-1 Interviews

Recruitment Placement Agreement
Job Description

Risk Assessment Short listing

Page 25 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 — Success stories

How the council's 50

Futures programme got
Doug back on track

hen Doog Hewitson tried
o refurn 1o ke workplace
AfTRE ol waArs Caring 1o
T Linda, it aidn't goas
straigntforwardly 25 hed hopsd
Armed with deqress from Teessida
Unbmrsity and a wealth of expananca m his
chosan Teid Middlest gl s - and-bead]
Doy Teli confident s CW woukd atirsct an
offar of work
But atier she months, nathirg - only
for an appontbmant at the fobcentrs 1o
chaings his lifs
He epattesd & bilack and whife flyis
for Middesbvough Councils 50 Futunes
Programene - & schamsa providing high
qualty work exporiancs placaments for
preCple sirugghing 1o Prd employment
Dhowsg nguine a0l wins geven @
placemient with the council's Roules fa
Work programma. He completad and
anjoyed £ - lo the sxtant thal alterwards,
b voluntesred 1o hielp people on the G0
Fulures schame mprose theair IT skilks
it alpo heked land him a gk as &
Route to Work key worker And now he's
been appomted devslopmant oificar for
S Futuras — the very schame which sat
Foirnh Bk o thee el 1 i
Bul Doig, 44, pdmils 1hat had he ot
spotied that Myer Por 50 Fuluies: thing:
could have worked cut a ot diferandby
He told Love Middtesbrowgh: “Whan
A bescams il | macs 1 dediion
I Ghe asay B waork D s s b
& 3] BT
flexibiity 1o be abls fo do it
| igured that whan | starled looking 1o
work again, |t wolld be OK - unforiunataly
| was w il
| et iy quaBSicatiens arek A kot ol
axperience in differant areas but as many
othar people discovar, it waw't that gasy
ju=k o ged back info a pob
“When | was al the Joboentne, | 589 a
Hyer about 50 Futuess | made 11 It anad
wail akong, all sited snd Boctad, toife
Grove Hil Commurity Huts for sn interviaw

ard

- although it was much e formal than that!

1 endiad up working at Routes To \Wiork
andd fo 1wt S0 Fuiines, S0 ve oomes
il & 5

B0 Fubwres placemants ara for
imemployed people aged 16 and over who
Iva in Middizsbrough

P g work experhence oG el
working enwlionment, o abows pariopants
to maat new people, strengthen thair O,
et suppart from training advisors and
quadifiea staH, and be noticed by amploysrs
P Tigtuie paid rkes

Crignally they were 60 v redkes within
Miclieste ough Counc IE the raree hias
erpanded racanily and Dowg hopes to get

Page 27

e mare emphoders o baard

Ha said: "4 ol of the work dacements
are at & farly basc kavel, athough
ofton that's st what B neaded to got
conifatenc s back s get thal sspanaiics
@l L Tl Wik

“Bait a5 1he Council Dpsens. o p mone post
Covid, wa can oring more sdikad rokes, and
mora employvers, IMto tha picture

21'wid saaan e positve beredis
S0 Futures can Tws, botl) e an
emplxymeant and a mental healrh gomne af
vigw, and id & 1o ses mare people taka
advantags of that™

Thia B0 Futures massage = beng
prilrbcisad on posters.in cential
Migkiecbrough, via social media and al
cormmunity venues around fown

But Doug - & fonmsr Kmgs Manor
Schood, Kirby Colleqe and Middesbrough
Colege student - pedeves I1's 4 message
ad sl b b spread as i
s aitlie e =, v shart, i can changs
ves

He smid: *I've seen what 50 Futu
a0 s often juss abel getting o
i Eha dhoos, making &
andd gt i fhe hack of
mirst &nd Fve sean f from both sides o
the tablka

“I've pone full circlz Bt if | hadn® seen
Hhad S0 Fiauies By b mght notb hawve
hagpaned

“It's had a masses impact on my like and
I wani bo snsure it helps ot peopie too ™

it

To view current 50 Futures
plocements visit
middiesbrough.gov.uk/S0futures

lowerrivkllastnough mogaznm 18




Care leaver eyes dream career after exam success

A dream career beckons for a
Middlesbrough student celebrating
her exam success.

Marnie Rauf achieved an A* and
two A grades at A-Level last week,
and has been offered a place at
Durham University to study English
Literature.

The 19-year-old hopes to embark on
a career in writing after her studies,
and has now started a placement
with Middlesbrough Council’s
communications team, as part of the
authority’s 50 Futures programme.

Marnie said: “When I received my
results [ was elated, and completely
shocked.

“And then to immediately receive an email from Durham University that had confirmed my place made the
experience even more surreal.

“I’m incredibly excited for university life, and all the fantastic opportunities that I know will come with it.

“However, | must acknowledge the role that Middlesbrough Council, Children's Services, and Pathways have
played in my recent academic success, as they have continued to actively support me.”

The council’s 50 Futures programme provides a variety of high quality work experience placements, with
Middlesbrough Council and our trusted partners, for people who struggle to find employment.

“Over the summer holidays I've taken part in the 50 futures work experience programme provided by
Middlesbrough Council,” continued Marnie.

“This has given me the opportunity to write some pieces for Middlesbrough Council, meet people in the field
I’m interested in, and build upon my CV, all while being supported by qualified staff.”

Marnie has already been recognised by judges of the prestigious Orwell Youth Prize for her hard-hitting, honest
story, A New Direction: Starting Small.

It was based on her own experiences of turning her life around, after straying down the wrong path when she
left her family home at 16 following a difficult childhood.

Marnie moved into supported lodgings with the help of Middlesbrough Council's Children's Services team,
allowing her to concentrate on her studies at Trinity Catholic College in Saltersgill, Middlesbrough.

Supported Lodgings provides a stepping stone to independence for young people leaving care.

Sue Butcher, Executive Director of Children’s Services at Middlesbrough Council, said: “Congratulations to
Marnie on her exceptional exam results, I’'m sure she’ll be fantastic at Durham and excel in whichever career
she chooses.

“Middlesbrough children matter, and Marnie’s success is a wonderful example that our young people can
achieve their dreams.”

Page 28 8



“The 50 Futures placement was a great experience and all
the staff were very supportive. The placement was a massive
boost to my confidence and this helped me greatly when

I: U t u re S applying for my apprenticeship. | am pleased to say | was

successful and I am due to start my apprenticeship in the
near future.”

After completing a kickstart placement that allowed Katie to work in the community and help
other people she knew this was the type of work she wanted to do. She started looking for an
apprenticeship and this is when she first learned about 50 Futures.

Katie met with 50 Futures and discussed the type of work she would like to do and what she
hoped for in the future. Katie also has a young daughter so this was taken into consideration
when identifying a suitable placement. We found a work experience placement in a Community
Hub that was local to where Katie lives. Katie was looking for a work experience placement
because she was concerned that childcare and her dyslexia might prove to be a barrier too far
and she wanted the opportunity to show that she was very capable and keen to move into
employment.

While on the placement she found the staff to be very friendly and supportive and any concerns
she had were soon put to rest. Over a period of 8 weeks her confidence continued to grow and
she was developing skills she knew would be invaluable when it came time to start submitting
apprenticeship applications.

While on the placement she became very familiar with many of the day-to-day tasks in the
Community hub such as interacting with members of the public on reception, answering phones,
organising books and much more.

Her manager while on placement said “Katie attended a 4 week 50 futures placement in
Easterside hub. The placement gave Katie a chance to experience first-hand what a community
hub and Library means to the local community and the diverse customers we serve. She gained
knowledge and skills throughout her time on the 50 futures placement which gave her the
confidence to apply for the apprentice post available. Katie is now looking forward to starting a
full time customer service apprenticeship in September and a bright future with MBC.

Katie is in no doubt that the 50 Futures placement contributed to her success. She was able to
submit an application that illustrated she had experience in all the areas identified in the Job
Description. She also went into the interview confident as she was already aware what the job
involved and had practical experience she could call upon.

The support didn’t end there. Katie required her Level 2 in English and Maths and she has
enrolled on the course through Middlesbrough Community Learning.

Page 29 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 Marketing Campaign samples

“ The 50 Futures work
experience programme gave
me the opportunity to bridge
a gap in my CV and
demonstrate my skill set.”
Doisg, dob Club Suppart

Doug is an invaluable asset to
Middlesbrough’s local joh clubs and
continues to show commitment
and passion to local people who.
are seeking employment.

50 Futures
Too el st i1 middleshrough. gov.uk/50-futures

50futures@maes.ac.ul 101642 811 400.

“ Tracy has become a
valued member of our team
within the store and her hard
work has had a positive impact
on the local community.,’
Michelle, Manager - EMEC

My 50 Futures placement
allowed me to help disadvantaged
people in my local community
using my existing retail skills.

Tracy now has a permanent retail position at EMEC,
where the managers continue to be extremely impressed

with her performance.

If you have been out of work and training
for a while and would like real workplace ex
the 50 Futures team can help you.

To find out more visit middlesbrough.gov.uk/50-futures
email 50futures@maes.ac.uk or 101642 811 400.

Middleslﬁgﬁgh
‘maving forward

“Tha 50 Futures placement
has given me a sense of pride

in my work, where | am learning
something new every day. 9%
Jakie, Digital Media Officer

Jake has introduced some
additional creativity into cur team
and has enabled us to work more
collaboratively with different
departmants within the council.

Apprenticeshin in his role a5 2 Digital Mediz Officer

; Jake is now completing an Operational Delivery
at Middlesbrough Council.

& AR G mer i- middlesbrough.gov.uk/50-futures

rrail 50futures@maes.ac.ul o 01642 811 400.

The 50 Futures work experience
placement allowed me to indulge
in my passion of local history and
interact with lots of new people.

“John’s knowledge of local history

has enabled our delivery of interactive
ibitions to i hroughout the

Covid-19 pandemic to truly enhance

the visitor experience.§)§

Darren, Visitor Experience Team Leader

at Middlesbrough Council

A

John is continuing to volunteer his servic
both in pers

If you have been out of work and training
for a while and would li olac
the 50 Futures team can help you.

out ¢ visit middlesbrough.gov.uk/50-futures
i 50futures@maes.ac.uk or call 01642 811 400.

N\lddlesgmlgh

Page 31

10



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 Participant / Provider Journey

Referral

l 50 Futures Candidate Journey

Self Support Local
Referral Agency Authority

Closer to Employment

Apprenticeships
Key Worker

% @ Education
dh g

Volunteering Opportunities

&
}g; See Positive Improvements Next steps .. >
50 Futures Signposting o =

$ Start Placement Complete Placement

Personal Assessment
1-to-1

Build Confidence Develop Skills  Exit Interview

< L
Identify Placement Q |§Téj and Experience

Informal Interview

Register Interest

l 50 Futures

Phone: Wehsite: Bl Employer Process

End of Placement
Provide Reference Upon requesti

Exit Interview

Practical Work Experience

50 Futures Overview

Meet With provider Placement
What 50 Future is
What's Expected as a provider Sehadile Confiration
Candidate
t

Shadowing

Induction

Placement Outline Candidate assessment  1-to-1 Interviews

Recruitment Placement Agreemen
Job Description

Risk Assessment Short listing

Page 33 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

viyly

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL Middlesbrough

moving forward

Report of: Executive Member for Environment
Director of Environment and Community Services
Submitted to: Executive
Date: 18 October 2022
Title: Poole Hospital Definitive Map Modification Order
Report for: Decision
Status: Public
Strategic priority: Physical environment
Key decision: No
Why: Decision does not reach the threshold to be a key decision
Urgent: No
Why: Not Applicable

Executive summary

The Council has a statutory duty to promote the modification of the Definitive Map and
Statement, by way of a Definitive Map Modification Order if evidence is discovered which
suggests that public rights subsist or are reasonably alleged to subsist along the line of
the route.

The Councils Public Rights of Way Officer has looked into the history of the route and has
searched for any available evidence which would demonstrate that public rights have been
shown to exist under Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980; and at Common Law by
showing that the landowner at some time in the past dedicated the way to the public either
expressly, the evidence of the dedication having been lost, or by implication making no
objection to use by the public of the way.

Having considered all of the available evidence, the officer is satisfied that the evidence
is sufficient to satisfy the requirement under Section 53 (3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981.

Page 35 1




Purpose

1.

To consider whether evidence discovered shows on the balance of probability that public
rights of way exist under Section 53 (3) (c) (i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

Also to seek approval to make a Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMQO) to modify
the Definitive Map and Statement by the addition of a Footpath from Brideway
Middlesbrough No 56 to Old Stokesley Road. The route is shown as A-B-C-D-E-F on
the report plan (see appendix 1).

Background and relevant information

3.

In 1931 Alderman T.Gibson Poole offered to buy ‘Grey Towers’ estate and presented it
to the town as a site for a TB sanatorium. The former home and grounds started life as
a hospital in 1932 following some modification and was called ‘Poole Hospital'.

Following a north east conference in 1933 into the availability of facilities to tackle TB, a
special committee was set up which recommended the establishment of a Poole Joint
Sanatorium Committee in early 1936 which became a board by the end of 1936 by virtue
of The Public Health Act 1936. This committee also recommended the acquisition of
Grey Towers and its estate from the Council’s Health Authority and the building of a 315
bed sanatorium.

Following the establishment of the NHS in 1948, the Hospital and Estate became NHS
Assets. The Hospital continued to be used for the treatment of TB and later as a general
hospital until the mid-1990’s. During the life of the hospital staff, pacients, visitors and
the local community would use the grounds for relaxation and to aid recuperation.

Following the closure of the hospital and the decline of the buildings, the estate was
promoted in 1999 as a Development Opportunity by the NHS. The land was purchased
in the early part of 2000’s by a housing developer who made an application for the
development of a residential estate on the former hospital site.

Development proposals were guided by a draft s.106 Agreement which included a
number of requirements in particular “The continuation of the Green link Network by the
creation of a suitable route in a landscaped setting linking the bridleway to the north of
the site with Nunthorpe village road’. This specifically required a Public Footpath to be
provided as part of the s106 Agreement which was signed by the developer and shown
on the plan attached to the Agreement as the ‘Green link'.

The route of the Green link was agreed with the Council during planning and the
infrastructure put in place on the ground in 2004 which the public then started to use and
the Council maintained. The process for creating a Public Footpath, as required by the
s.106 Agreement, is by way of a Creation Agreement under s25 Highways Act 1980.

Page 36 2



9. A Creation Agreement was drafted and signed by the then landowner but for some
reason was not completed by the Council. Despite this the path was made available on
the ground and the path was used by the wider public as had been the intention and a
requirement of the planning approval.

10.As part of the planning permission, it was a requirement that a Management Company
be set up to manage the landscaping on the housing development and the wider estate
which included the woodland, lake and the surrounding farm land. The management
company ‘Grey Towers Park Limited’ (GTP) is made up of a number of directors who are
elected from residences of the housing estate. The landownership has changed hands
over the years and it was not until recently that the management company became the
landowner.

11. The Council has looked into the different options available to enable the route to be
recorded on the definitive map, this has included the entering into a Creation Agreement.
The management company as landowner has been asked on several occasions if they
would agree to a creation agreement.

12.The Council has not received confirmation from GTP that they would agree to this, which
has meant that the Council has been unable to add the footpath to the Definitive Map
and this has resulted in conflict between the public and residents of the new estate. This
intern has led to uncertainty for the public and resulted in members of the public walking
onto private land.

13.The Council and the GTP have had a number of meetings over the years to discuss the
legalities of the route and the Councils position has never changed. In recent years the
GTP have requested the legal diversion of the route, which would indicate an acceptance
of its legal status.

14.The Councils position has always been clear that the entire route would need to be
diverted to enable it to be recorded on the definitive map if confirmed. However, as this
is unlikely to happen without objections then the route must first be recorded on the
definitive map.

What decision(s) are being recommended?

15.That the Executive:

a) Authorises the Head of Legal Services to make an order under Section 53 of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to modify the Definitive Map and Statement by
adding a footpath at the Poole Hospital estate in the parish of Nunthorpe.

b) That the Order be confirmed by Middlesbrough Council as an unopposed Order if no
objections or representations are received to the Order within the statutory
timescales; or, if objections or representations to the Order are received that they be
submitted by Middlesbrough Council to the Secretary of State with a request that the
Order be confirmed.

Page 37 3



Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

16.In most cases, it is usual for the Council to receive a claim to modify the definitive map
from a member of the public, organisation or landowner but in some instances, the
council will also look to modify the definitive map where it finds evidence.

17.Section 53 (3)(c)(i) is relevant in circumstances where the discovery by the authority
(including through a third-party application), of evidence which shows that a right of way,
which is not shown in the map and statement, subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist
over land.

18.Thus, if a way is not shown on the definitive map but documentary evidence shows that
a public right of way exists, or is reasonably alleged to exist, an application may be made
under this section for the path to be added to the definitive map and statement.

19.The s106 agreement and the Creation Agreement are supporting evidence to the
question of whether the claimed route has been dedicated as a highway at common law.
It is therefore considered that the documentary evidence indicates that it is reasonably
alleged the whole of the route (A-B-C-D-E-F) on the report map was dedicated as a
public footpath.

20.Having considered all of the available evidence, the officer is satisfied that the evidence
is sufficient to satisfy the requirement under Section 53 (3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981.

21.1t is therefore considered that the Council should make a Definitive Map Modification
Order to add the route A-B-C-D-E-F to the definitive map and statement as a Footpath.
It is considered that if the Order made by the Council is unopposed, it should be
confirmed by the Council and if the Order is opposed, it should be forwarded to the
Secretary of State with a request that it be confirmed.

Other potential decision(s) and why these have not been recommended
22.The Council has considered all available legal options to be able to record the route on
the definitive map (see Appendix 1) and has concluded that the most appropriate legal

option would be a Modification Order under Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside
Act 1981.

Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)

Legal

23.The making of the DMMO requires a two stage process (making and confirmation) which
is governed by Schedules 14 and 15 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. The first

stage involves the Council (as surveying authority) making and publishing the order
which will trigger a six week period to invite objections.

Page 38 4



24.The second stage requires the order to be confirmed. The Council may itself confirm the
order, if no objections are made or if any such objections are withdrawn. Otherwise, the
order must be submitted to the Secretary of State for confirmation. The Secretary of
State will usually proceed to hear all representations by way of a public inquiry (or on
occasion by written representations) before making a decision as to whether an order
should be confirmed.

25. Any confirmed order may be subject to legal challenge in the High Court for a further six
week period on narrow legal grounds (namely that the Council or the Secretary of State
has erred inn law, the Order is not within the statutory powers or the statutory process
has not been followed).

26.Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 places a duty upon the Local
Authority to keep their Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way under
continuous review, and to make such changes as become apparent, upon the discovery
of evidence which suggests, when all other available evidence has been taken into
account that the Definitive Map and Statement require modification.

27.In particular Section 53(3)(c)(i) places the Authority under a duty to promote a
modification of the Definitive Map and Statement, by way of a Definitive Map Modification
Order if evidence is discovered which suggests that public rights subsist or are
reasonably alleged to subsist.

Strategic priorities and risks

28.The Council’s Strategic Plan has nine priorities; one of which is Physical Environment.
Progression of this work is key to achieving one of the underpinning initiatives within that
priority.

Human Rights, Equality and Data Protection

29.There are no concerns that the planned approach could have an adverse impact on
individuals or groups as a result of holding one or more of the characteristics protected
by the Equality Act 2010, therefore a Level 1 screening equality impact assessment is
not required.

Financial

30.The costs associated with making and confirming a Definitive map modification order
have to be met by the Council.

31.If objections are received, which cannot be resolved and no contrary evidence is
produced to change the Council’s view, the DMMO will be determined by the Secretary
of State, which may involve the holding of a public inquiry. Parties are expected to meet
their own expenses although the Council will be responsible for making the inquiry
arrangements.

32. An application for costs may be made against either party only where they are shown to
have acted unreasonably.

Page 39 5



Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

Advertised

Action Responsible Officer Deadline
Instructions sent to Legal Public Rights of Way Officer 10/10/2022
Services

Notification Severed on the Legal Solicitor 10/11/2022
Owner of the land and all

relevant parties

Legal Order made and Legal Solicitor 1/12/2022

Appendices

1 Report Plan

2 Legal Options

3 Evidence Bundle

e Evidence of Green Link

e Section 106 Agreement Poole Hospital
e Section 106 Plan 1

e Section 106 Plan 2

o Letter from GTP Requesting a Diversion of the Green Link 29.9.18

Background papers

Body

Report title

Date

Contact: Chris Bates

Email: chris_bates@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 40




T obed

Appendix 1: Order Plan

Poole Hospital Report Map

.

Middlesgmlgh

moving forward

Middlesbrough Council
Civic Centre, Middlesbrough, TS1 2RH

Tel: 01642 726001
€Crown Copyright and database rights 2020. Ordnance Survey LA10023413

Scale: 1:2,500

0 0035  0.07 lan
| IS

Ebasenght 2022 O5 100030984,




This page is intentionally left blank



¢ obed

Appendix 2: Legal Options

Creation Order
(Highways Act 1980

has been identified.

Options Details Process Impact
Creating a Right of | Section 26, Highways Act 1980 is appropriate in Such process involves the making of a formal Order, which is open to objection | Landowner is likely to
Way through a circumstances where significant public need for a path and makes provision for compensation to be paid to the landowner. object.

It is good practice to consult with other likely interested parties so as to be
informed as to the support or concern that may exist within the local community.
Careful consideration will be given to all responses received.

Section 26)

Creating a Right of | Section 25 of the Highways Act 1980 makes provision for | The process requires a signed declaration by the landowner(s) to the effect that | Landowner is unlikely to
Way through a the creation of a new public path by agreement between | they are dedicating a footpath or bridleway (as agreed by the relevant authority). | agree to enter into the
Creation Agreement | the landowner and the highway authority. agreement.

(Highways Act 1980 Once the agreement is made, the fact has to be advertised through publication

Section 25) of a notice in at least one local newspaper.

Diverting a Right of
Way through a
Diversion Order
(Highways Act 1980
Section 119)

Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 makes provision
for the diversion of a footpath or bridleway if it can be
shown that by doing so it is beneficial to the landowner,
lessee or occupier of the land crossed by the right of way
and the public.

This would require an acceptance by the Landowner that the path exists. The
entire route would need to be part of the diversion to enable the entire route to
be recorded. Order is open to objection.

Landowner and public likely
to object.

Modification order to
add a way to the
definitive map:

Before making an order the surveying authority must
have discovered evidence which (when considered with
all other relevant evidence available to the authority)

A surveying authority can make a modification order without receiving an
application. Alternatively anyone can apply to a surveying authority for a
modification order to be made

Orders can be objected to.
If objections not removed,
orders are referred to the

timescale specified within the legal agreement), there are
options available:

section 53(3)(c)(i) shows that the right of way exists, or has been « An application is sent to the surveying authority. S0S. Decisions made by
reasonably alleged to exist. « Notice must be sent to every landowner or occupier affected by the written representation or a
application. public inquiry.
« Certificate of service of notice is served on the Surveying authority to say
that notice has been sent to all landowners
« The application must be investigated and the authority must decide
whether to make the order (within 12 months)
» [f the authority decides not to make an order the applicant can object
(within 28 days)
« If the authority makes an order then objections must be made within 42
days
Legal Action If the Council decides that there is a breach of a planning | The Council can apply to the Court for an injunction to force the obligation(s) to | The Legal Action would be
Noncompliance with | obligation (e.g. a financial contribution has not been paid | be complied with. Failure to comply with an injunction can lead to an unlimited against the landowner (now
s106 Agreement or required works have not been carried out within the fine and/or imprisonment; residents) and not against

the developer. (Reputation
Impact)




This page is intentionally left blank



i

27 reb 101 Gladedale

23 February 2007

th Creation Agreement

nclosed the public path creation agreement in relation
to the aforementioned duly

| would be grateful if you could m by return safe receipt and also send a completed

agreement copy when appropria

Yours sincerely

Regional Land Manager

y

cc: File/Grey Towers/Legals

I rrlFORT AlESIoN
ERVICES

—

COLLLY)

liladedale (Yorkshire) Ltd
Formerly C&M Northern Ltd
Unit 8, Temple Point,
Finch Drive, Colton,
Leeds LS15 9]JQ

o
Tel: 0113 2044250
Registered In England & Wales No. 2816015 Page 45 Fax: 0113 2044251
Registered Office: Ashley House, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey KT18 5AZ www.gladedale.com

GDYO/000001



Form no. 15100 (10/04)

9% BANK OF SCOTLAND 3" Floor

21-23 Hill Street
CORPORATE Mayfair
London
W1J SJW
Direct Line: 020 7290 4034
Direct Fax: 0845 6046474
E-mail: amberkundraw@bankofscotiand.co.uk

orough Council of Middlesborough
all

Our Ref: AK

Your Ref:

14 February 2007

Dear Sirs,

PUBLIC PATH CREAT
NUNTHORPE FOOTPAT
Agreement”) between The
Metropolitan Homes (Norther

MENSE, SECTION 25 OF THE HIGHWAYS ACT 1980,
2006 (“the Public Path Creation

ugh Council of Middlesborough (1) Country &
i ) and Mr Willson (3).

We refer to the Legal Charge by
Governor and Company of the Ba
registered at HM Land Registry on 29 Junes

Metropolitan (Northern) Limited in favouedfthe

the Company Register on 11 May 2005 and confirm:

etropolitan (Northern) Limited in favour of The
ad ("the Bank") dated 15 June 2005 and
and the Floating Charge by Country &
k dated 28 April 2005 and registered at

1, The Governor and Company of the Bank ofésCotland<€the Bank") of Level 3, 21-23

Hill Street, Mayfair London, W1J 5JW consents toountry & Mgiropolitan Homes (Northern)
Limited entering into the Public Path Creation Agr ent, but aly on the following terms :-

(a) The Bank shall only be liable for any breachiBfthepigvisions of the Public Path

Creation Agreement during such times (if any) as th&Bank@becomes mortgagee in

possession of the property and then only to the extent thaffhe Banl€has caused such breach

to be occasioned.

(b)  The Bank shall not in any event be liable for any breachs8fthe Public Path Creation
|} of the Property

(

Agreement arising before it becomes the mortgagee in poss€ssien
regardless of whether or not such pre-existing breach shail Conti
the Bank is a mortgagee in possession of the property.

if a
5 period when

2. Subject to paragraph 1 above the Bank agrees that its F& referred to

above will be subject to the Public Path Creation Agreement.

LACH LCOAGonunen Muwe U1 - bamdon\CustanenA ) L Gladedate GrouptCarmespondence) Sobiotor Leners Counmry & Merapahtan\Plot SalesiSecnon 23 Public Path Creatron
Agreament {Ghafudale Groap CM NG L2070
‘lulhunlul wd Reylared By alse Favsnenl Servwes Wutlony Pari of the HBOS Group.
The Governot and Company of the Bank of Scolland,
P 46 conslituled by 8o Acl of Parksment (695
ag e Hoad Olfice: The Mound Edinburgh EHT 1YZ.

www.bankofscotland.co.uk/corporate Authrisod and regutated by the Financisl Services Authority



Yours faithfully,

he Governor and Company of the Bank
in the presence of -

of Middlesborough Acknowledge receipt of consent in the above
terms and confr= nce of the same.

d8kno s.receipt of consent in the above terms and

confirms acceptance of the same

Dated 2007

We at Country & Metropolitan (Northern) Limited acknowliedge g8Ceipt of consent in the

above terms and confirm our acceptance of the same.

of BathLimited C-LUNTEL! 4~ UECOALA e
Dated |<S¥_Fgqy— 2007 (Nvt?ﬂwxa,\. ) o

1AGE LN Comment 3paceiCB - aandiariCostomr | LAGKdbil GuamComespondence\Sokenor Eeaers \Cauntry & Merropohtan\lor Sales\Secnan 25 Public Path Creation
Agrecment Gabtudbade Groop F&M Mp 1102 074
Authonsed amd Repalaied by thie Fisaaecnd Sevices Nahuisty

Page 47



Letter of Nomination by Divisional Chief Executive

O: WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

30" November, 2005

rge E Mitchell, Divisional Chief Executive of Bank of Scotland Corporate and a Director of
EFBOS plc, and The Governor and Company of the Bank of Scotland confirm that each of
Regional Director(s), Senior Director(s), Area Director(s), Director(s) and
iate Brector(s) of Bank of Scotland Corporate, is an authorised signatory of The
ands€ompany of the Bank of Scotland to sign the deeds and documents specified

way connected with the banking facilities to be made avallable in
etter and Loan Agreement;

nts, Shareholder Agreements, Subscription Agreements, Investor
amekany other agreements, letters, deeds or documents in any way
ent funding to be made available;

Deeds of Priority, Subordination Agreements and other

(®)

connected witl

(c) Ranking Agr
inter-creditor

{d) Collatera! Warra ution Agreements;

(e) egal Charges;

(f)  Deeds of Restriction / nt / Release or any other partial discharge of a
security over land/buildi

(g) Memoranda of Sattsfactlon% o Charge;

(h)  Letters of Non-Crystallisation fg#Bonds and Floating Charge/Debenture;

(i)  Performance Bonds, Letters of Credit and Guarantees;

(j)  Transfer Certificates and Risk Participation .

(k) Leasing and Lease Purchase transacti
limitation finance leasing, operating
transactions;

Q) Sale and Purchase Agreements, Warran
related documentation relative to the Ban
investments (including warrants, options, ordinafy and pr
convertible loans);

(m) Any other relevant documents, excluding the g
non-Bank employees

, such expiessions to include without

ing, hire grchase and lease purchase

Guarantee Agreements and other
al exit from its equity
rred shareholdings and

er of Attorney to

This authorisation will continue until 30" June 2007, but will apply should the

signatory cease to occupy any of the roles identified above.

Divisional Chief Executive, Bank of Scotland Corporate
Director, HBOS plc

Page 48



PARTICULARS OF EXECUTION BY ATTORNEY

iese presents are subscribed at Level 3, 21-23 Hill Street, Mayfair, London W1J 5JW on 14
vary 2007 by David O'Sullivan, Associate Director Real Estate, London, beforc this
s:

rporate, Level 3, 21-23 Hill Street, Mayfair, London W1J 5JW

Page 49



PUBLIC PATH CREATION AGREEMENT
HIGHWAYS ACT 1980

DDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

0.3 CREATION AGREEMENT 2006

Page 50



PUBLIC PATH CREATION AGREEMENT

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

NUNTHORPE FOOTPATH NO. 3 CREATION AGREEMENT 2006

is Tegllic Path Creation Agreement is made on the «Date» day of «<Moath» 2006

the %rough Council of Middlesbrough (“the Authority”) of the first part and

The owner Es&iseddh fee simple in possession free from encumbrances and

registered with an absolute freehold title of land situate adjacent
to Old Stokssiey Woag=and shown edged red on the plan annexed hereto
(“the land”).

2. The Occupier is resid

3. It is intended to Qedic

4 The Council in whose area t
to Section 25(3) of the nghway§ 19807

5. The Council has given due consideration tod
forestry and to the desirability of conserv §hra fa@na and geological and

NOW IT IS HEREBY AGREED, pursuant to po
Act 1980, as follows:-

1. The Landowner agrees to and hereby dedicate
purpose of a public footpath, the strip of land shown =
running from A — B as marked on the plan annexed hereto a
described in Schedule 1 hereto (the “Dedication”)

the public for the
defdshed line and

2. The Occupier consents to the Dedication

3 The—Landowner agrees to pay the sum—of £750.004to
consideration of the Council:

a) making the Dedication; - and
b) carrying out the works set out in Schedule 3 hereby

Page 51



4. The Council is the highway authority for the area in which the Land is situate
and is willing to undertake the maintenance of the footpath.

The dedication of the right of way is made pursuant to Section 25 of the
Highways Act 1980 and in consideration of the Council undertaking the
maintenance of the footpath.

=The Landowner shall (if called upon by the Council) prove its title to the said
“trip of land as beneficial owner of the Land in fee simple.

S ydfereof the parties hereto have executed this Deed in the manner

d it has been delivered by them the day and year first before written

SCHEDULE 1

i0 with Nunthorpe footpath No.8 It proceeds in a
approximately 64 metres to a fence where it
etres to a stile. The path then proceeds
along a fence on the left for 324 metres.

8 metres then proceeds in a north-
gt of the stoned section. The path

The path then skirts round th&se
westerly direction across the field@&o the sia
proceeds along the stone track 2 mélres and then turns left just before the
pumping station. The path then p h the woadland in a north-westerly
direction to a board walk in the centre gfsrhedged circle. The path crosses the
board walk then continues north-westeTly to a gate and the junction with bridieway
No. 5.

SCHEDULEZ"

LIMITATIONS AND CONDITIONS™
)

The following are lawful limitations under subsection (4)4§ 19 of the
Highways Act 1980 to the public’s rights over the new @ght of way being created
by the agreement.

> Stile at Grid Reference NZ 453941 / 513368~

> Gate at Grid Reference NZ 453273 / 513593

Representation must be made to the Highway Authority for the area under section
147 of the Highways Act 1980 if further lawful limitations to the public’'s rights over
the right of way are required.

Page 52



SIGNED AS A DEED by affixing
THE COMMON SEAL of
MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

On

In the presence of:-

---------

Head of Legal Services

» Way Mark Post
» Way Mark Post

» Way Mark Post -

R P P PR T PR TR )

SCHEDULE 3

HEDULE OF WORKS TO BE CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNCIL TO BRING

THE STRIP OF LAND INTO A FIT CONDITION FOR USE BY THE PUBLIC
AS A FOOTPATH

Grid Reference NZ 453941 / 513361

®
1

Grid Reference NZ 453273 / 513593
Grid Reference NZ 453947 / 513456
Grid Reference NZ 453791 / 513300
Grid Reference NZ 453611 / 513301
Grid Reference NZ 453523 / 513354
rid Reference NZ 453555 /513416

eference NZ 453483 / 513462

erence NZ 453437 / 513465

day of 2006

Page 53



SIGNED AS A DEED by
EOUNTRY & METROPOLITAN
H@MES (NORTHERN) LIMITED

.........................

Director /

Page 54



NOTICE OF MAKING OF A PUBLIC PATH AGREEMENT

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

NUNTHORPE FOOTPATH NO. 3 CREATION AGREEMENT 2006

On™ «Da ly of «Month» 2006 the Council of Middiesbrough and Country &
Metrofiolitan Mames (Northern) Limited completed an agreement made under

25 offfhe Highways Act 1980.

SectiGh

agséement is to create a Footpath maintainable at public expense
etres in width commencing at Junction with Nunthorpe FP No.
949 / 513458 and proceeding South westerly then
nction with Nunthorpe BW No. 5, Grid References NZ

The effect gEthe
of between

8, Grid Refer
Westerly to its fini
453273 /1 513593

A copy of the Agreem ® Agreement map have been placed and may be
hours at Vancouver House, until «Date» day
of «Month» 2006. Copies of th er and map may be purchased from the Head of
Legal Services, P.O. Box 99A& o

cost.

Dated «date»

Head of Legal Services
P.O. Box 99A

Town Hall
Middlesbrough

TSI 2QQ

Page 55



9g abed

Middlesbrough Council

NUNTHORPE FOOTPATH No.3 CREATION AGEEE

f
| KEY: path to be Extinguished:

Path to be Added:
| Qther Paths or Ways:

Type of Order Made: Creation Agreement
Drawn By [

Scale: [1:2000

BT | Highways Act 1880, Section 25
imEmEm®m

| Date:[19th Jusc2006 £

Middles%gh
moving forward

| Reference: [ Grey Towers
D ¥ o .

Contact No. (01842 728163

OS Sheet:




GTPAOO1
Y © copyight.

Drawing No.

Havolved

ot ] o e
»
be

Freehold Title Plan Of Land

gh

Middles%
moving forward

Council

Middlesbrough




MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL LI

Head of Transport & Design Services

PO. Box 63%ncouver House, Central Mews, Gurney Street, Middlesbrough. TSI 1QP
! .middlesbrough.gov.uk

Direct Line:  (01642) 728153
Switchboard: (01642) 245432
Fax: (01642) 728964
DX60532

7" Ogipber 2003

Our Ref: HW11/3
Your Ref:

When telephoning please ask for

Dear Sir,
Creation of Footpath at Grey
I write further to your recent telep rsation with my Public Rights of Wa ¢¥ Officer, -

I =2nd his site meeting with _ of Friday 26" September
regarding the above matter.
| understand that the following items wersg

1) An amendment to the original route iforder to reduce any potential impact on the

agricultural tenants and to minimise public contact with livestock.

odland with the precise line and

2) The route to follow existing tracks through the re
d in cong@itation with T

nature of the surfaces being left to your discretio

3) - to supply suitable gates, stiles and way-mar

4) I o speak to I of Nunthorpe Hall Farm td

affect him.

Given that the landscaping works on the site will continue thro

that public access before then will not be possible then clearlysthe rgéncy in supplying

the required materials. | will ask lan to liase with you in order to mgke the necessary

arrangements at the appropriate time.

being concerned at the possibility of increased disturbance to his sheep, has
subsequently expressed a strong preference for maintaining only one access point from the
Nunthorpe Viliage road. He would ideally like the new route to connect with the existing public
footpath but would be prepared to discuss relocation of the entrance point were this felt to be

Page 58



necessary. For your assistance | therefore enclose a plan indicating what | believe would be
the most agreeable route.

is information is of assistance. Should you require any further information or advice
hesitate to contac-at the above office.

LT ENVIRONMENT

Page 59



09 abed

Middlesbrough
Council

pproximate route (following existing tracks) through
theswsaodiand area and connection with the

HIDDL:SERQUGH

Connection with the existing public footpath

Approximate Tegie——

DaTh 8 Ot 2009
Oy Sy He

Transport & Design

Trva mag 6 AEFCACM virn CodrEnce Survey meters with T permessen of Oriaarcs Survey o0 behrt of Ihe Contsom of Moy Maysely's Simtonery Ofice © copyright
Aptngh g 2 S0 W —

- "
—



(\{ NS TES ARES oY SR (o o

Re: InformationdFom meeting dated 26/9/3

ige Site Layout RL1041/05] lng revised
, requested that

woodland area were kept to a minimum, and the

footpath constructio
specification will read

1) Footpaths through the apgdsarea to be cleared approximately 1 metre wide. =
2) NO mulch / bark (left as is ). - ~ Q@ (

3) Wet / muddy areas to have Ways installed (areas to be identified).-—> W, el
4) Footpath routes to be signpost th 158x 150 timber posts with directional » k( ~
arrows formed in the top. _ Hedsuel o
AEXTemTen |

We are in receipt of a lett I (Group Leader Built Environment)

Ref: HW11/3 Dated 7* October 2003 addressed to our Site Manager || i» the

letter there is a request from |l Nunthorpe
from the Nunthorpe Village road this request has b

have only one access point_-
hESA Incorpogated on the attached drawing.
Footpaths as discussed will not be formé&d until the bysiding works are nearer

completion, which will be around summer 2004, an meet %m nearer to this time to
arrange stile delivery’s etc. .~

Hope all of the above meets with your approval,

Yours faithfult

Contracts Manager A N i T

i .
! ‘:’2.0 1'-"

BEAING & AT M Pl mr=pcron
Page 61 = cewece 7 sree

[}



Middlesbrough Council

www.middlesbrough.gov.uk

Middles%gh

moving forward
Direct Line: (01642) 728153 |
Switchboard: (01642) 245432
Fax: {01642) 728961
DX60532

Our Ref: HW11/18

Your Ref:
When telephoning please ask for:

Re: Dedicationsefa p

Grey Towers Park, Nunthorpe

and my collage | INEGEGEGEEN -5o0.t the

After previous discussions betweef youfFsela
path that is to be dedicated through the grounds of Grey Towers Park, Nunthorpe.
Please find attached a map showing the and the furniture to be installed along it.

The cost of installing the furniture will be gg@Froximately £750.00 and the associated costs
for the dedication order and advertisemenf will be approximately £1,000.00.

n as you agree in writing

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you need to tter further

Yours Sincerely

Group Leader
Built Environment

Page 62



COUNTRY & METROPOLITAN HOMES (NORTHERN)

Grange Park, Boston Road, Wetherby, West Yorkshire, LS22 5DY
Tel: 01937 583306 » Fax: 01937 584660

E-mail: northernregioni@candmhomes,.com
wwi.candmhomes.com

26 May 2005

Park, Nunthorpe

M3y 20088e hereby confirm our acceptance of your fee

Yours sincerely

Land Manager

Pa

REGISTERED OFFICE HAREFIELD HOUSE, HIGH STREET, HAREFIELD, MIDDLESLX Lli“gﬂ REGIY IN ENGLAND NO». 2381473, A (]‘lOU.\TRY & MITROPOLITAN GROLP COMPANY N:*Bc
mrmr—

ANY DFFER MADE OR INPLIED IN THIS LETTER IS SUBJECT TO FORMAL CONTRACT

By



ite with the contractors this morning looking at some of the problems at Poole Hospital. One
i amount of flytipping and dumping of rubbish and general anti-social behaviour in the
d the development. People are bringing vehicles down the bridleway which is a iarge

top unauthorised vehicle use down the bridleway_ If you want to have a look

ting but Il still available to discuss Lingfield and walk the paths you
ng as ROW. -will be your contact when | leave for all things ROW and
g Gro eetings.

are interest&sin d

will attend the Ste

| went out on site wi
stuff you identified will be g
Timberland Trail (with thesBe
to the lake and access in
case of engineering work togesil
about that please contact her nofjllill O
tender we will let you know wh
want with the budget we have.

drawing up the specification for Fairy Dell footpaths. Some of the
upEn the work . We are concentrating on the footpath that is the

left hand side} up to the first bridge and then the circular loop up
and up to Dell Close. We will not be doing work around the lake in
is dealing with Fairy Dell, so any queries

the specs have been drawn up and has gone out to
tarting work as we may not be able to do everything we

Thanks and | will speak to you next wek

Page 64



23/03/2006 12:05

TOWERS CREATION AGGREMENT

everything is going 0.k

| have rec ontacted by Country & Metropolitan Homes and a number of members of the

public ask ut thesSedication of a path at Grey Towers. | am aware that | have sent an e-mail

to you in ##&pas t this but can't remeber if i have sent you all of the information required.

Please find belo of the Land owner, the Definitive Statment for the path and also the

Path Creation Agreess®en

Land Owner:-
olitan Homes (Northern)

Grange Park,
Boston Roa
Wetherby
West Yorkshire
LS22 5DY

Tel:- 01937 583306

584660

Definitive Statment:{  Nunthorpe FP No.3 defina

w

Creation Aggrement:- PUBLIC PATH CREATION AGREE

Please could you check the documents and if all is correcE€an it be sigh€d and sealed then
forwarded to Country & Metropolitan Homes for their signiteze.

Kind Regards

Page 65



Ml -2

g

Middlesbrough
TS7 4l
27th April 2006

Head of l&gal emocratlc Services
MiddlesbrougiiCounciigh
Town Hall

Middlesbrough

Dear Sir

NEW RIGHT OF W NDS OF THE OLD POOLE HOSPITAL

As you will know, the develope ospital site offered to dedicate a new Right

of Way within the grounds.
| have a letter to this effect from|jj IR " the Transport and Design department,
dated April 4th 2002. A route was uffBy. the then Rights of Way officer, Il
which was amended slightig@fter @fscussion with the developers and the
Rambers' Association. i

As far as | know the developers have never been
yet over four years later the footpath is still not a g@ality.
| understand that the only remaining obstacle is @ legal one g@nd that all the necessary
paper work has been within your department for §gme time.”

| would be very grateful if you would give me some ofdaew long it will be before the
necessary legal work is complete and the footpath can § f8g used.

route finally chosen and

Yours faithfully ORT & DESIGN |

R\/ICES

I B iy =
Ramblers' Association Footpath Secretary - Middiesbrough ,. = 1 :
i rer. SWNA22L........
PRAW .

Page 66



Middlesbrough Council

www.middlesbrough.gov.uk

Richard Long
Di of Legal & Democratic Services

A, Town Hall, Middlesbrough TS1 2QQ M I d d I eS b rO U g h

moving forward

Moranaum

Extension: 729738 Our Ref: BR/Misc
Date Your Ref:
Re:

ciation — New RoW at the Oid Poole Hospital

| understand frorr-hat you are dealing with the dedication agreement for
the above. :

Please find attached a c@py Gk adletter_to the Ramblers’ Association, for your file.
Should you require any f

n, please do not hesitate to let me know.

Kind regards

Page 67



Middlesbrough Council

www.middlesbrough.gov.uk

Richard Long
Director of&2gal & Democratic Services

Middlesbrough

moving forward

DX:| 60532 Middlesbrough
Direct Line:  (01642) 729738

Switchboard:  (01642) 245432

Ramblers’ ASsociation Footpath Secretary Fax: (01642) 729877
Our Ref:

Your Ref:
When telephoning please ask for:

DS OF THE OLD POOLE HOSPITAL

NEW RIGHT OF WAY IN

nd 25 May 2006 addressed to the Head of
15 June 2006 addressed to the Mayor of
er. Please accept my profuse apologies for

| refer to your letters dated 2%April 20f
Legal Services, and to your lefter,
Middlesbrough, in relation to the
the delay in responding.

| have made enquiries about the prog hissmatter, and | understand that the draft
adoption agreement has been prepared aid semt to the landowner, Country and
Metropolitan Homes Limited, and we are presently awaiting comments from the
landowner on that document.

This matter is presently being dealt with directly b_of the Council's

Transportation and Design Service. Should you wish to discuss this matter directly with

_, his direct dial telephone number is 01642728153.

| trust the above is useful to you. Once again, please agg@ept myEprofuse apologies for

the delay in responding to you.

Yours sincerely
Solicitor !

Cc: Mayor of Middlesbrough
Rights of Way Officer

Page 68



Middlesbrough Council

www.middlesbrough.gov.uk

er House, Gurney Street, M i d d l eS b ro u g h

movi ng forward
7 Direct Line: (01642) 728153
——"Switchboard: (01642) 245432
Fax: (01642) 728961
DX60532
Our Ref: HW11/8
Your Ref:

When telephoning please ask for:

otpath is taking so long and has still not been completed.

{ am disappointed that the dedica
S, lncludlng the Ramblers Association who where

We are now receiving pressure fr
promised this Footpath as part of th

t back in April 2002 when the Ramblers
permission proposals.

~in July 2003 informing Country & Metropolitan

® The creation of the footpath was fi
Association made comments on the

® A etter was sent to-
Homes that a creation agreement would

and Country & Metropolitan Homes.

® We received a letter from* the 27" M ing Country & Metropolitan
Homes acceptance of payment of all costs associa on of the footpath at Grey
Towers.

® The creation agreement was sent to-
°

A copy of the revised creation agreement was sent back to
2006 and also to your solicitors for signing.

® A letter was last sent to your self on the 27™ November 2006 as - ate on the progress
of the creation agreement.

We would appreciate if you could inform my colleagu_ /ggnumber, as to a
date we can expect to receive the signed and sealed Creation Agreeme e

started.
crucial link up

Group Leader
Built Environment

Page 69



Grey Towers Park Ltd Nunthorpe

Grii Towers Miniiimint i iiiiirnce

18" July 2008

der Built Environment Solutions Group.

FResponse to Public Path creation Agreement (PH/CA/2008)

heyprgposed additional Public Path Creation Agreement

formal ObjeCtIOf'l
PH/CA/2008.

Grey Towers Park is pri
residents that live within'te ¢

litter deposits.

The resident experience of pub
prevented many from enjoying a re:

Further deterioration in the quality of lifgff6m Mereasing public access to this
private estate is unwelcome. On the basis of experience continuing since the
developments inception, GTP Ltd on behalf of the Lg ts oppose public
access to the Park and therefore cannot supp
access.

lgéthey pay a high price to support.

The grounds for objections are as follows:

There is already one long standing path No 8 that pagSes thrgligh the the

development and links to a bridleway No 5 that extendg.aloagrthe.north side of

gcess to the
e excéllent access

the estate. These already give public visitors more than adex
woodland and open countryside for walking and riding angs
to the footpaths on the south and west side of the estatﬁn%sgﬁo%h open
fields and give perfectly adequate long-range views of Grey Tower l.

There is no dedicated parking area allocated or possible at t
Grey Towers Park for the majority of members of the public visiting by car and

Page 70



2

__the footpath have mostly disappeared as a resulof the

-n behaif of the directors of Grey Towers Park Ltd

intent on walking the site. The Public do not enter the site at the intended entry Al { N / e
and exit points of the existing footpath and proposed footpath but park on the site | i, "

+ -

_Aarokclose to the Hall and join the footpaths at a number intermediate points. As P
cofigequence the public park their cars on private land or in residents private *77 " 1 T /
This causes nuisance and damage to the land subsequently incurring 1 e peth s

repair. This is an unacceptable and surely an unintended consequence. {fccr €7 117"

P YRR
‘o/,‘g ";:7/'

d and landscape are subject to a 106 agreement and a 10-year§J il sy

nt plan funded by residents and contributions from the developers. 1= !"“'
ess |s causmg these costs to rise because of the additional I|ab|||ty lo6 7 recyhae

g Grey Towers, dump rubbish, poach, shoot at wildlife and have ,
shoot apthe residents. Public Dog Walkers allow their dogs to foul ;- 5'[
on't plck up Some pick up then discard the plastic bag or b '- ;(, F»f.f,;ﬂ,

ublic access is encouraging, camping, nigh ! :gﬁ";,__:_“
parties with music,&n I behawour BMX biking, horse riding. Continuin gf e ‘( e
resident complaintsshavessignificantly increased the workload for the Iocal policef ..

havewy T
au/“

240!
Council Officers and Poli shocked by the extent of damage caused ~(( - 1/, /..,
by the Public to the woodian

b TG A7 AN
ess of building a BMX cycle and motor
cycle track. TUTNONo where pcar
U At teeces,S

been kAown
the footpaths<andg
hang it on a bésh g

ult ofithe Giant Hogweed and other

There are risks to the public a &
Hogweed species. Attempts to wain the pliblic of the risks with posters have all™\ Tz e
" thétape to cordon and protect the

l‘/ﬂ\(“ g WL /

/\C-/ o W/ /
Permend atis s
gugh Council to mark o “”“‘*l/ﬂé:

JiS lic ripping them from
the ground and burning them or using them for@hooting pratice.

gared access is diminishing

Yours sincerely

Page 71



I,
cc

21/07/2008 12:32

bece

Subject Public Footpath creation (PH/CA/2008) (HW 11/0)

path Creation Agreement PH/CA/2008 Your Ref: HW 11/0

number of comments by members of Nunthorpe Parish Council. NPC now has a
summer re and=von’t meet as a Council until September therefore there has not been time to
discuss thé&&matter aZa whole body. In view of the fact that a 21 day response is required — the letter
July 2008, | forward the comments so that there is indeed some

NEBESNn the matter

as inf&8eur of the new Public Right of Way number 30 across the Grey Towers
fact the estate is already suffering massive ASB problems and that

PRAW (which is as rare as hen's teeth in Middlesbrough) would not
this situation and would definitely be for the greater good of

introduction €&a n
necessarity changgo
Nunthorpe resides
2. [ thoroughly unde

@nd_sympathise with residents’ concerns about anti-social behaviour
and on those grou naEagree with the proposal, however, I am also supportive of
enhancing opportunitie riders and the general public having increased access to
the area to enjoy Nunth&kpe Bundings.

ncontactable for the summer period, I would ask
bove, but would summarise that in general, NPC

Given that many Councillors are
that you take into account the co
are in support of the footpath crea

I would very much appreciate these co eiggforwarded, and hope they are in time given

that the letter was received on 2" July.
Thank you in advance.

Yours sincerely

Clerk to Nunthorpe Parish Council

Page 72



>

Gladedale

lesbrough Council
=and Design Services

29 July 2008

Public Path Creation
Grey Towers Park

t CPH/CA/2008

24 July 2008 reference HW 11/0 regarding the

the route of the proposed public path and we
ers dictate that a new public path must be created. It
hat they have had objections to the proposed

acknowledge that indeed planning o8
has been brought to our attention & re

route in the interests of privacy and safety.

Can | therefore state it be a condition=s

bedFappdval that the proposed route of the public
path has the support of the residents of Grey

Il and the Walled Gardens.

n this matter in accordance with
ble by ourselves.

We also acknowledge that we have paid all monies du
the section 106 Agreement and that no further monies

Yours faithfully

Land Director

Gom Gladedale (Yorkshire) Ltd
) Formerly C&M Northern Lid
Unit 8, Temple Point,
Finch Drive, Colton,
Leeds LS15 9JQ
—
Tel: 0113 2044250

Registered in England & Wales No. 2816015 [ Page 73 s
Registered Office: Ashley House, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey KT18 SAZ www.gladedale.com

GDYO DaHN



AGENDA

Poole Hospital Access Meeting

10" December 2008, 10:30am
Vancouver House
3" Floor Conference Room

Page 74



POOLE HOSPITAL ACCESS MEETING

10 December 2008
ATREENDANCE SHEET

e add your name to the list

SIGNATURE ORGANISATION

1 RC

Page 75




TRANSPORT AND DESIGN

POOLE HOSPITAL ACCESS MEETING
NOTES OF MEETING HELD ON 10 DECEMBER 2008
AT VANCOUVER HOUSE

Public Rights of Way Officer

Highways Manager

Principal Engineer

Legal Executive

Principal Solicitor

Director of Grey Towers Management Company

1. Introduction andiHiste
. gave a brief histo elopment and i} gave a brief history of the Green
Link.

2. The ‘Green Link’
Ml expressed his concern £l yath which runs through the wildflower and
woodland area and that discussions with the Council over many issues he feels are
associated with this path have bé& G n for sometime now and he would like
to bring things to an end.

I aiso wanted to know what authority the Cou d to create a path through the
area to the south of the estate and in his vieywéptemattgely installed and created the
path. [} wanted to know why there is a negd for the path when there is already one

through the centre of the site from Stok%ey Road%o the brldleway He also
stressed his view that they had been sold !

B e with B view and also stressed that Be
what he had been told by the developer. Il passed¥& IEOC
given by the developer, which talked about a secluded” estate
Middiesbrough with access to a lake within wooded grgings.

bou@ht his house because of

g#nd_adBtochure he had been
on the edge of

Bl stressed that the Council have not created any pubhc rights of way at this
location. When planning-permission was first obtained—for thi etopment, the
developer (Country and Metropolitan Homes Ltd) was plaeéd under a number of
planning obligations and this was done by way of a Section 106 Agreement. This
Agreement provided for access to a number of footpaths on the site including the
Green Link footpath. [l passed round a copy of the S106 Agreement map showing
the route of the ‘Green Link’.

Page 76



Il pointed out that it states in the S106 Agreement (at paragraph 2.1.10) that the
Council (or where a management company exists, the management company), must
_agree any change to the route of the ‘Green Link'. Il aiso stated that the new
owner, Gladedale had signed a Creation Agreement with the Council in 2007.

asked if the residents of the estate had been consulted by the Council on the
tion of the Green Link and if not why this was as they believed this was a legal
requirement and surely the Council had a duty of care to consider the effects the
wauld have on the residents.

th Gladedale in which they agreed to dedicate a Public Right of Way
d in accordance to the S106 Agreement. [l explained the difference

n the two in respect to public consultation. When paths are created
emént with the landowner, there is no statutory requirement on the Council to

@blic nor any obligation to consider their objections. On the other
hand, when il creates a path by an order it is statutorily bound to consuit
with the public er their objections, and where any such objection is not
withdrawn, the st be referred to the Secretary of State who then has
powers to call a pg i

Il <xplained that therotte Rad already been changed slightly from that shown on
the $S106 Agreement A a request by the tenant landowner
and it being agreed by . *This is the route that was part of the S25 Creation
Agreement between Glade | M

lesbrough Council.

Il cxplained that as part ofithe Agfeement Gladedale had agreed to pay il
towards the furniture along the™ ndéthat the furniture was to be put in and the
path cut once the building work e hall had been completed and the
wildflower meadow had been lands€aped.

BB explained the legal position of the Grﬁ In particular, he noted that
Gladedale had signed a Creation Agreemient, the f@btpath had been physically
created on the ground, the Council had aggepted theffootpath, and the public had
accepted it by using the footpath. There w%refore a strong argument that the
footpath had already been created in law, and=as sy e legal process would be

required to extinguish the public’s right of access

Access to woodland & Lake / Antisocial Beha

MR expressed his concerns about the vandalism toshg publi

paths within the woodland area. [l gave a number of &

ootpath and other
dbcluding a recent

Middlesbrough Council did not take down the gate to ih

Il went on to discuss other forms of vandalism and antisocial behaviour, of which
he handed out pictures showing examples, including describing instances of threats
he had received. [l asked if both Il and Hll thought that either the footpath
caused the antisocial behaviour or was affected by it in a substantial way. [l aiso

Page 77



asked if they thought that by either removing the footpath or diverting it the vandalism
would stop.

said that he felt that the accessibility to the site and the public’s right to use the
ade it impossible to stop the antisocial behaviour. lll asked the group why is
ute so important to implement.

cerns about losing the access they had enjoyed to the lake, woodland and
meadow. This is why the ‘Green Link’ was proposed in the first place.

ht to be on any part of the site as it had been given to the people
ough. HM asked if this was true and, if so, could he see the

docugients g6°prove it. IMsaid that he was unaware of any legal documents and
confirmed t@at he digFnot think this was the case as it is private land..

Il and Il eSted that the footpath is a cause of the antisocial behaviour
and Il asked - if Yaefootpath was set in concrete. B reiterated his previous
view that, as Gladedale® ccepted and signed the Creation Agreement, and the
public has used the p as such, there is a strong argument that it is now a

public right of way.

Il informed A and IR
other land. Il stated that h
no success. M@ asked if the goute
suggested that the Council would req
Council would be happy with cha

IR agreed and asked what the way

lic has a right to be on the path but not on the
remove the public off the land but has had
Id be changed to help in any way. Il
a route but to help resolve the problem the
oute so that it would benefit everyone.
rd Would be.

Il referred to paragraph 2.2.10 of the S106 ent which provides that the
route of the footpath can be changed, as longg@s the Council or as the case is now,
the Grey Towers Management Company @grees. I informed everyone that
following talks with ISR it had been agreed th@t it would®e advantageous if the path
could be moved further away from the hall, t aute shown on the attached plan

\\W‘W\u\m

ts pasition on the route, the

Following a short break for the Council to revi S|
meeting reconvened. MM began by noting that, in thg Coun@fl’s view, it was essential

that there be a right of way created across the land"™=HewexEr, Il suggested that
the line of the footpath (Green Link) could be moved to folii 0%

indicated to P and Il that the proposed route coul
round the wildflower meadow but suggested that, as t
woodland (the south-east of the Grey Towers estate) is not part'
vandalism, the route in this area would be left up to 8 an
confirmed with gip, ®8, Sl and [l that they had no ob
course of action.

thesite boundary. I

hroughg woodiand and

ns to this proposed

R and [ had no objection and thought that this would be a good idea. I
suggested that a site visit with Il should be arranged to take place later that
afternoon to walk the proposed site. Illlagreed.

Page 78



To

cC

17/03/2009 15:49
bece

Subject [Fwd: Re Meeting on Grey Towers PRW]

\
copy of the email that "1 sent after our walk round the route

the route that starts at the bottom
of the ad and crosses
the wil dow.

Regards

The meeting which— and myselfSattended with yourselves in

Vancouver House yesterday was a most productive meeting. We felt that
all present were sympathetic and understandings
that we face at Grey Towers Park. We welcomef&sour
decision to alter the whaole of the pathway
very real possibility of conflict and injurgZ that ha
over a period of time. Indeed we could not<Bave expecd
and were very relieved and pleased with the f
demonstrating the flexibility that can exist in
this route. When the meeting closed yesterday we
your understanding and deliberation was a huge s
in determining the future safety for the resident

radicate the
teadily worsened

uineX believed that
d

Our understanding from the meeting was that the footpatd 1 losely
follow the red line on the map that you showed us.

time afterwards,
the pathway that
different to the one | had in mind, there is i
variation to the original route and all of the problems

and parking that we informed you about.

frontation

Would you be so kind to discuss this further with _ in order
to determine whether he has misunderstood the new proposed direction of

the path set down by you.

Page 79



We will gladly meet with you again in order to resolve what I hope is an
unfortunate misunderstanding.

E=T=ec interim I have discussed the matter with Gladedale who would

i ly like to have a copy of the proposed route to see if there was
y 1m§§ct on their existing tenancy agreement with the farmer but were
i about a re-routing away from the estate grounds if it addressed
Ltd concerns.

= woudskbe grateful i1f you would acknowledge my email and send on the
of the meeting when they become available.

on Beﬁa@? Ltd

Page 80



esbrough Borough Council
EL& Design Services

Further to your recerige
proposed Public Footgat

path abo
Company that a revised=out g

Yours sincerely

Registered in England & Wales No. 01043597
Registered Office: Ashley House, Ashley Road, Epsom, Surrey KT18 5AZ

GDSY onm 7

Gladedale

Middlesbrough.

-egarding the Creation Agreement for the

ve we understand from the residents/ Management

APR ZOUS

\a s L
edale (South Yorkshire) Ltd
[ Formerly Ben Bailey Homes
Hwillo vl First Floor, ICON,
GLp First Point,
PROW Balby Carr Bank,
Doncaster DN4 5JQ
Tel: 01302 314200
Page 81 Fax: 01302 314258

www.gladedale.com



Middiesbrough Council

www.middlesbrough.gov.uk

DitefEsT of ¥2gal & Democratic Services

n Hall, Middlesbrough T$12QQ M | d d les b rO u g h

moving forward

DX: 60532 Middlesbrough
Direct Line: [01642) 729738

Switchboard: (01642) 245432
Fax (01642) 729877
Our Ref:

Your Ref

When telephoning please ask for:
Mr Bryn Roberts

GREY TOWERS PARK, NUNT

2009 in relation to the above, the contents of
i deal with a number of your specific questions in
of the position may be useful as a starting

| refer to your e-mails of 8, 1
which | have considered. Whilst
due course, | feel that a generalis&d st
point.

General Isssues

Subject to: -

(i) the fact that the estate roads have been ad are consequently public

highway;,

(i)  the existing route of the green link (which, asswas indicated at our meeting on 10
December, the Council would be prepared t deediverting, subject to the

provision of a suitable alternative route); and

(iii)y  the existing public footpath and bridleway,

maintenance
(Eountry and

the remainder of the estate is, and has always been, private
is, and has been, the responsibility and prerogative of ti€ land
Metropolitan, and then Gladedale or the management company¥=Fr
landowner takes no action to unlawfully interfere with the above menti
acts in accordance-with planning-control, the-€Council-has no role:i

maintenance or stewardship of the estate. In this regard, it #&s never been the
responsibility of the Council to notify the public at large that the estate is, generally,

P}
(2 4
(ve 3
I v
b A
,
W ¥4

Bt Lexcel
Page 82




private (any more than it is the responsibility of the Council to notify the public at large
r front or rear gardens are private).

Asyyou y@urself note in closing your second e-mail, ‘many of you believe that you were
rough misrepresentation of fact’ in relation to the particulars of sale prepared
gthe developer. That being the case, you may with to consult your legal advisors in
hether or not you have any remedy against the developers in this matter.
| am sure you will appreciate, the Council was not party to such advertising,
le in the description of the site. Consequently, the Council cannot accept
ity or liability for decisions made by the developer.

| note your concern over continued public use of the roads within
Unfortunately, as the estate roads are all public highways, the
public havgsthe & to use them, and this right will continue unless and until the
highways™ are §fopped-up. The process for such a stopping-up would involve an
application to t : es Court, on the grounds that the highways are not necessary
(an argument whigk o justmed) together with the placing of advertisements in
both the local press @Bdethe ondon Gazette. In order for any such application to be
successful, as a baregmi would need the agreement of all affected households.

In the extremely untik ihal the highway was stopped-up, it would be necessary

Finally, | would like to address the

ue of the Section 106 agreement. | note
that your second e-mail opens as foll B

“l am writing to you all in the fiope that a resolution can be reached with
regard to the open access of the entire site of Grey Towers Park in
Nunthorpe, which is most satisfactory t t the residents who live
here. | believe that this policy was a delifierate ac%corporated into the 106
Agreement which set out the Terms andCondition§ of conformity, to which
the Developer, ‘Country and Metropolitamihad to agree in order to satisfy the
requirements of MBC.”

t consider the impact
f the Local Plan.
be unacceptable,

of the proposed development on the area, in light of fle co
Where there is conflict with the Local Plan, or where the impact wek
the developer and the Council may consider ways to ameliorat€the

which would render the development acceptable. In this £88e thos uirements are
set out in the section 106 agreement referred to above. =the case that
the developer ‘has to agree’ to anything that the Council suggests in er to gain its
planning permission; rather, the requirements set out in a sectign 1 gesiRent must

comply with the legislation, the guidance and established c3 relating to the
acceptability and validity of planning obligations (“the conditions”). In the event that the
developer, or their legal representatives _in this case), consider that the

2 TNy
3
v X
£ 4
N o
7/
~

e Lexcel
Page 83

2£5
N
Doy

Fs



requirements of the section 106 agreement are outwith the conditions, they may choose
nter into the agreement, and appeal against any subsequent refusal of consent.
ase, both the developers and |l clearly accepted that the obligations
aine®hin the section 106 agreement were both valid and essential to mitigate the
e development. As such, the implication from your above opening paragraph,

f the above, the section 106 agreement is valid, was executed by all
s, and is therefore effective and consequently should be complied with.

application for a Definitive Map Modification Order (“DMMQ")
the north of the Grey Towers Park;

e potentially diverted green link; and

ng to restrict access to parts of the Park.

The prospecti
C) The delay in e

the last 10 days Legal Services have received
MO, and the preparation of the relevant
e DMMO is prepared and sealed, the Council
a@nandividually notify all affected landowners of the
g MusSte an objection period of six weeks from the
objections being received within the six-
the order and will place a second
advertisement, indicating the date 2the new path will come into being.
However, in the (more likely) event that=b re received and not withdrawn, the
Council will then refer the order to the Pi@mning Inspectorate, who will arrange for the
determination of the order. This determination will _take place either by written
representations, a local hearing or (as is likely in this g8 public inquiry. In the event
that the order is confirmed by the Secretary of Statgithe Courtell will then proceed to the
second advertisement noted above. As such, thetimescale f8r the introduction of the
claimed path is uncertain, however | understand fr@i the Planning Inspectorate that the
average time (between them receiving an order & tart of a public inquiry) is
approximately six months. It is, therefore, not unlikely tha e in excess of twelve
months before the path is available (assuming that th&DMMQEis confirmed by the
Secretary of State). ,

With regard to the first is
instructions to proceed

documentation is now in pr
must advertise in a local new.
fact that it has made the order, a
date of the advertisement. In th
week period, the Council will t

In relation to the second issue, | have been sent a plan sho
route of the diverted right of way. My understanding of the i y-

with the eastern commencement point of the route (commencing, would; at the point
at which the access road to the Manor House ceases to be adopted highw#&y). However,
| also-note-that this-commencement point is both adopted highway, ig=tig=point at
which the existing public right of way (running approximately outh) changes
direction and turns in a more easterly direction. As such, | do not see that this access
point is unreasonable, and, without further explanation from you as to why it “is totally

Pagias' !
Y L)
v Y]
o v
¥ ':’
h) i 4

SRR Lexcel
Page 84

Hrrent proposed
s that4®u are unhappy




unacgeptable from the residents point of view", | must conclude that it is a reasonable
at a compromise. As noted above, in the event that a suitable alternative route
not'@e agreed, the Council will not be in a position to proceed with the diversion, and
have to rely upon the existing green link footpath to fulfil the requirements of
106 agreement. The lawful creation of that link was covered in our meeting in
ember, and | do not propose to cover the point again. With this in mind, | would be
would expand on the residents’ objections to this access point.

he final issue, | trust that, in the general issues section of this letter, | have
‘paesition in relation to the majority of the land. 1 am not in a position to
héther or not fencing should have been erected sooner, but would note
that, in arlg eventdiie decision to erect such fencing, and the responsibility for its erection
and mainte & hasaalways rested with the landowner rather than the Council.

issues raised in your e-mails.

F
3 b
e A
I 13
Y
A D

W Vad

Lexcel
Page 85



POOLE HOSPITAL RIGHTS OF WAY MEETING

6 Auqust 2009

AGENDA

Introductions

's Comments

6. Tenant Farmer’s

7. Councillors’ Comme

Page 86



TRANSPORT AND DESIGN

Grey Towers Park Public Rights of Way
otes of meeting held on 6 August 2009 at Middiesbrough Town Hall

Grey Towers Management Company

Grey Towers Management Company

Tenant Farmer

Middlesbrough Council Transport and Design
Middlesbrough Council Transport and Design
Middlesbrough Council Legal Services
Middlesbrough Council Legal Services

Gladedale
Gladedale

atives from Gladedale had telephoned to submit their
mmoned to an urgent meeting.

Bl stated that [l and
the responsibilities with
Management Company.

iously talked to Gladedale, who had delegated
&P route of the Green Link path to the

Il agreed that this was accept Council on the understanding that the
decision of this meeting would be biding ygon Gladedale.

Current Legal Position

[l stated his understanding that at thermeeting of 10" December 2008 all parties
had agreed that the Green Link path was a public gy, albeit one which was
yet to be recorded on the Definitive Map

I initially indicated that he did not believe that tRjs was the case.

Il clarified the position by stating that the Green Link pé h%een provided for by
a 5106 planning agreement, and as the route had subsgguentlyEbeen created on the

ground and the public had used it, the route was in fact a

ightfof way.

All consequently agreed on this position.

Council’s Suggested Solution

BB confirmed that it had been decided at the meeting in r 2008 that,
subject to identifying a suitable diversion route for the Green Link path (which would
be to a route which followed the site boundary), the Council would be prepared to
consider diverting the Green Link path. The suggested diversionary route, which
was agreed by all at the 2008 meeting, followed the western and southern
boundaries of the land. ] indicated that he had believed (incorrectly as it

Page 87



transpired) that the route of the diversion at its easternmost end would not be
controversial, and consequently the determination of that element of the route was

F10.Jlll and [l to agree at a subsequent site visit.

saidh that he thought this not to be the case and that the full length of the
route had been decided upon at the December meeting. Il confirmed
this was not the case and stated that I did have a meeting on site after
n December and that Hl had been shown the Council's proposed
te, including that for the easterly section.

one the Council's proposed diversion route and explained that in
the Cour§s opglon it balanced the needs of ail parties present, and represented

n that members of the public were parking along the
sed termination point of the diverted route. IR stated
Management Company could put up gates to
be fenced. [l stated that there was no
ment for the Council to fence the Green
ay for, or fence off, the diversion route.

R back in December of 2008 he had
pany wish to secure the private road
ates and fencing, but these would
nce would be the responsibility of

Il stated that during his meeting
indicated that, should the Mana
and wildflower meadow then they
not be paid for by the Council, and th
the Management Company.

Il also stated that the reason for diverting the K path to the line shown
was to try and resolve the issues that lll had #ith two p@iblic rights of way being

across the field he farms and also two other desitre lines w§h the public use to cut
across field corners.

he Council or if the
er m&adow at the eastern

route of the path could run around the edge of the wild
end instead of going directly across the field. Wl st hatdflis would not be
practical, as members of the public would use the lineg®f ledst resistance,
irrespective of whether this was fenced and/or signed, at Id be directly
across the field.

Il asked if the diversion route had to follow the line sdewn

E

I stated that if the route ran around the edge then there wou
public entering the field farmed by Il and following desire nrg greed with
this.

Il then asked if the long standing public right of way across the middle of I
field could be removed. The Green Link path at this eastern end could then be
diverted across Il field towards old Nunthorpe Road.

Page 88



Bl stated that he would not be happy with this proposal, even though there would
one public right of way across the field, because the desire lines would still
d. Il also objected to this proposal as he felt that this would be strongly
dpposehby the user groups and that it still would not resolve |} concerns.

S at d that, in his view, the only dlversmn route which is likely to be acceptable IS

e would be close to the fence. [lllstated that the path would be
dgould be about 0.6 metres off the current fence line. [l also
stated t§h§ h would be kept as close to the current fence line wherever

sgfnay change as a number of trees are close to the current

B stated that the Manag
as possible and asked wh
the representative of the Ra
ask that they then refer the ma

pany would like to resolve the matter as quickly

§gBe would be. il stated that he would invite

s%omatnon to a site visit next week and would
iemonthly regional meeting for comment.

Bl commented that Gladedale hadire
alternative route ran. [JJJjj agreed™
details of this new tenant.

Il advised that this new tenant would have to becansulted with regard to the
proposed route for the diversion, and any object; [
Council could proceed.

Il stated that subject to no objections being regeived t en instructions would be
sent to legal to make a diversion order.

Page 89



‘Middlesbrough Council

www.middlesbrough.gov.uk

Transporté Design Services

Middles%gh

moving forward
Direct Line (01642) 728153
Switchboard; (01642) 245432
Fax (01642) 728964
DX60532

Our Ref: HW 11/0

Your Ref:
When telephoning please ask for:

RE: Proposedsghangeéito Poole Hospital Estate Footpath

return in the prepaid envelope pr
indicating which route you would pre

Alternatively if you wish to contact my collggftie

e current footpath, which crosses the Poole
d to Nunthorpe Bridleway 5, passing through the
ing considered and would ask if you could
mments you would like to make clearly

on the above number

he would be happy to discuses your commeénts and the matter further.

Yours faithfully

BUILT ENVIRONMENT SOLUTIONS GROUP

ey
ﬁ@g} 90

-

INVENTOR IN PEOPLE




Mlddlestmgh

moving forward

posed route A through the Pook

ok of s

drea:  Transport & Dwgn Services

E 1:4000 .

et 0000 P omimeons s

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Middiesbrough Council, LA 100023413, 2009, |




e s | 4NN [ProposedroucB trough the Pooktfbefla Ese |
A /|| MiddlesBioughE—mmm__—
C /i S S e moving forward Createdby:

A/ NS == |

A / P © Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Middlesbrough Council, LA 100023413, 2009. |




~
cc
bce

19/06/2009 20:43

The existing original footpath, A-B on the attached map,
e to our grazing sheep and over the years we have been
the way we use this field to accommodate the footpath i.e.
he field for ewes with newborn lambs and we have to hold
ields, until they are old enough to cope with

s in higher stocking densities in other fields than

B-C-D on the attached map, has been used the
= == reater, and last year the sheep would not graze

the northern end ofZ=&= fT2ld. Walkers and joggers are not keeping to the
defined routes and walk from A to C, and D to E with obvious
consequences.

The 'kissing gates' =
often trapped between tha
helpful residents of NurZEh
to us.

Yours faithfully,

ng==L and D are not suitable because sheep are
= and have to be released by us, and other
& llage. Stiles are a much preferred option

*** gSafe scanned this email for malicious
*** IMPORTANT: Do not open attachments from

Proposed route B.doc

nized senders ***

Page 93



- )

30/06/2009 14:24 ce

bce

Subject green link

have just read the proposal from _regarding the 'Green

to say that [ am overwhelmed by Lhe sheer contempt that is held
r this estate. On numerous occasions there has been a lodging of the
residents @ispl for the route of this path to begin at the foot of the Private Road
leading to HgMangggouse. This has obviously had not impacted on M and his
departm%§:aa §§ppeara to be impervious to our concerns, which are fact not fiction.
How is il then tiat it s®d have imposed, without due care and consideration, a
pathway that impH %e Tenant Farmer. and his Lambing Sheep,
should this too have into consideration before assigning a pathway with all
the impedimenta and curred before implementation. Obvmusly not, therefore
the lesser of two evils upon the line of least resistance which is
considered to be the remder;é
[n the very negg
possibly belong to the residerNusiea
further conflict with the public alg
Park and Leisure Facility, then [ g
to this proposal, not to mention th
To I -nd (o NN g ould'urge you to go back to the
Minutes of the meeting attended by myself N as well as the relevant
members of the Council last December. T @0utstanding factor of that meeting was a
considered route, satisfactory to all concerned, proposed by MM vhich was at
that time wholly endorsed by all concerned. This wagg@®eriurngd by ? in just a couple

Link vem
for the re§nts

H\H\H\W\H\N

ershlp of the surrounding land will quite
Grey Towers Park Ltd. If we are to avoid

treat this estate of ours as a Public Car
Il of the residents to unite and say no

of hours after a meeting later thal day between | 2

The existing right of way through theR@entre of (& estate is and always
has been transitory, not a starting point. What we e naw is starting point with
parking facilities, giving access to all of the Wildflower Yoodland beyond.
There is no privacy o the Manor House, which has becomg@part offhe grand tour, a
place of public interest, Bring a dog and crap everywhere

The council in its infinite wisdom seems to as it pleases, |
believe that it takes the word ‘Authority’ totally out of context i

have tried to be accomodating throughout, we ha§ SecteddHis 4

with due consideration to the residents concerns. This seems to ha¥e=tal
ground. 'There are none so deaf as those who choose not to hear’. Ther
dlctatmo from any quarter as to where this path must go. Mutual ¢
of the day

Page 94



18/08/2009 12:38 bce

Subject Poole Hospital Diversion Proposals [09.08.18]

h the line described in Schedule 1 (Description of strip of land subject to the
nfrom the creation agreement given to me yesterday, with its line on the plan
) attached to the council's consultation (message of 12/8/09).

2 This wa e consultation plan did not agree with the creation agreement plan. A
CUrsory exagna nough to show the differences between points D and F on the plans
(using the¥etteriggon the plan [ faxed to the council earlier today).

3 This affects the
the erroneous map, need§oee
lengths between the roug@s

the circular routes.

ee any alternative route. Our measurements, being based on
easured. Prima facie it is obvious that the difference in
increased; as will also the differences in lengths between

=3

Regards

Begin forwarded message:

From:
Date: 17 August 2009 21:58:08 BD

Subject: Poole Hospital Diversion Propos

1 We thank the council for informally consulting the
of the path shown in the attachment.

2 _ yourself and myself walked the present an

the proposed route today (17/8/09) - new barbed wire fenci

places. I will send you a marked up map by fax to explaifftheag
following paragraphs if you provide me with telephone number.

in many
dsed in the

3 The present path (A-B-C-D-E-F-G-H) ‘

3.1 General. The present path was dedicated by the owners of the land in 2007 by
means of a creation agreement. Parts of the path, and other ways besides, were already
rights of way by unhindered use by the public before the owners took possession of
the land. We note that the width of the path in the agreement is stated to be between

Page 95



1.5 m and 5 m but, apart from the stated limits, no indication is given of the width of
any particular part of the path. The ambiguity of the information could be a rich
source of legal fees should the owners decide to enclose the way in a futile attempt to
iscourage wrongdoers and ordinary well behaved members of the public who have
d the woods and the paths in them as of right for generations.

3.2 The path from A to near F is almost entirely over grass and is not well marked on
iground. For considerable distances the used line is well away from the definitive
ut@ where the surface is irregular and dangerous (Note B! when met a deep
n the definitive line. The only limitations are two gates at B. They make a

er for stock containment.

H the path passes through woodland where care has to be taken to avoid
1ith.@kant Hogweed; we did not use the section G to H because it was

=

wiswith plants mcludmg Giant Hogweed. We followed a well used informal

distant hills frém sec

D§-LMNOPQ

10 g line we used an informal path, say about 20 -
30 m or so to the east of the p undary. Barbed wire prevented us from

following anywhere near the

bank of the lake and informal paths¢@%0in the definitive path between G and F and on
to F. Again barbed wire prevented us from following the new line but it was clear

from L-K

4.2 Our view was that even if we had been abig to follow the present line we would
not be able to recommend acceptance to our coligagses, in fact our recommendation
would be outright opposition. We judged, using the t fed to diversion

proposals, (a) the new point of termination would s@bstitute Elonger circular walk

for a shorter; the diversion was less convenient bem%ﬂhﬁ s and downs with
one sharp change of direction after another with no recognitioafofdesire lines; the
new path would have more stiles and inferior views. The gf ge we could see
was the absence of Giant Hogweed on the proposed pafl; bat.this i€really a reflection
on inadequate maintenance - the council should put more effortmto i
control/eradication near the path. You may remember that Darling
pay compensation following the injury to a user following ¢
MBC is in hazard on this point in this locality and it might be more economical to
tackle the hazard than wait for their lordships to dun the council

~were told to

4.3 T haven't been able to express the distances in metres as there in no scale on the
map - I think it might be near to 1:4000; would you please let me know?

Page 96



03/03/2010 14:01

Subject Re: GREY TOWERS PARKL]

o§meeting in December 2008 is incorrect. At no time did [ propose an alternative
tside the boundary of the site, as | had no authority or ability to deliver such

ownership or control of those present in the room). Rather, what was

the site, allowing the landowne! ing, to prevent access, which would be effective in preventing
unauthorised access to private la

"Following a short break for the Cou its position on the route, the meeting reconvened. [}
began by noting that, in the Council’ ntial that there be a right of way created across the
land. However, lll suggested that the¥@eof sotpath (Green Link) could be moved to follow the site
boundary. Il indicated to 2t oposed route could run through the woodland and round
the wildflower meadow ..."
In relation to your query as to the legality of the GEgen Linkgath, the notes from that meeting state:

- xplained the legal position of the Green Link. In , he noted that Gladedale had signed a
Creation Agreement, the footpath had been physicallEereatedon the ground, the Council had accepted the
footpath, and the public had accepted it by using thé footpath. There was, therefore, a strong argument that
the footpath had already been created in law. This had not, how n tested, and consequently the
status of the path had yet to be finally determined."

Subsequent to that meeting, all concerned have been working, a
an alternative route for the Green Link. However, given that the |
Council has accepted it, the public has used it, and GTP Limited ha
the path is a public right of way, | am somewhat puzzled by your cont

re continu o work, towards the possibility of
owner hasexpressly dedicated the footpath, the
pted (at a meeting on 6 August 2009) that
that this may not be the case.

So far as the Council is concerned, the issue of whether or not the path is
public right of way. The Council has, however, been more than willing to !
which is acceptable to all concerned (the landowner; the management compa
groups) which would allow this public right of way to be diverted to a route whic
public, and which allows the management company to prevent unauthorised
right of way. [n the event that the management company no longer wishes
should inform the Council of that change of position, and the Council will proceed
the public right of way on the Definitive Map and Statement.

ublic right of way is now closed; itis a

a pessible alternative route
rmers; and the user
commodious for the
which is not a public
this alternative, [JJJjj
an order to record

Yours sincerely

Page 97



Stewart Muir Williams

From:
Sent:
To:

Thursday, 04 March 2010 10:02

Fw: GREY TOWERS PARK

ne call with - | would refer you to the following comment - made regarding the Green
namely:

‘So far as the Co
public right of wa

il is corEerned, the issue of whether or not the path is a public right of way is now closed, it is a

In your responset&=he e

, you might wish to add a littie of the history concerning this path just to put the whole

view from Mon Grey Towers (and can get a quick response from
enquiry have [ erly-

thing in context. ~

If you propose also to seek
him) you might wish to hold rfes

Kind regards

03/03/2010 14:04

Subject

This may be a case where we ask_o review our conclusions, fogsglependgnt
we are forced to deal with the matter at a public inquiry, this will be useful eviden
matter carefully and came to the right decision.

iew. In the event that
ncil considered the

Kind regards

Page 98



To
cc
bce

02/08/2012 09:38 Subject Informal Consultation on the Poole Hospital Diversior
Proposais

e at Point G and H

en F and { will be fenced on wide side (the right of the path F to
G)

- A Kissing
- The Council
- A small amount

pay for a fence between Point D and E
be required from point | heading west for 50m (on the

- A number of way mar e required to direct the public in the right direction
ter date

away from the boardwalk area n
site vist required to decided on bes
- The managment company intened
existing knee rail,

- Would the managment company like to pasgthe Council the money up front (once the
legal order is confirmed) and then for the Council to organise all the work with the
contractor we have?

2 knee rail between point D and the

Please can you let me have your thoughts and if youfiave any q
ASAP so we can finalise the detail so that you can i
your AGM

ions please call me
f the members before

vea vee Yaa

182012Plan Cpdf 18.2012FPlanApdf 1.8.2012 Plan B pdf

Kind Regards

Public Rights of Way Officer
Transport & Design Services
PO Box-65

Vancouver House

Central Mews

Gurney Street
Middlesbrough

TS11QP

Tel: (01642) 728153
Fax: {01642) 728964

Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Reasons:

The path through the woods leads to antisocial activity. Police have been called numerous
imes to address fire lighting, protected trees being damaged, drug taking, poaching and

blic nuisance. Only last week there was a case of theft from the fishing syndicate with the
=wheel barrows, security cameras and equipment being damaged. Closing this path through

improve we are sug
giving unprecedented
There are new public fo
solving the existing problems.

choice of circular walks / rides around and through our land.
ered as well which retain the current levels of access whilst

There is some level of detail t
alongside field boundaries, the
and surface of the bridlepaths, mai
approach once general acceptance

ture discussions in terms of exact routing eg
sods where the culvert will need crossing, the width
t we can address these with a common sense

We would like therefore for you to consigar th
involved to see whether this improved layo

hanges and consult with the appropriate parties

Yours sincerely
Director
GTP Ltd

21/9/18

Page 116



Agenda Item 6

viyly

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL Middlesbrough

moving forward

Report of: Executive Member for Finance and Governance
Director of Finance (S151 Officer)

Submitted to: Executive

Date: 18 October 2022

Title: Financial Recovery Plan 2022/23
Report for: Decision

Status: Public

Strategic priority: All

Key decision: Yes

Why: Decision(s) will incur expenditure or savings above £150,000
Urgent: No

Why: Not Applicable

Executive summary

This report sets out arrangements by each Directorate to support the Council’s financial
recovery plan for 2022/23.

The Quarter One budget monitoring report to Executive on 6 September 2022 reported a
forecast overspend of approximately £9m for 2022/23. This was mainly due to
pressures relating to additional inflation, the increased pay award, and increased
demand, placement and agency costs within Children’s Services, all of which were
unknown at the start of the financial year and are national issues. Following that report,
each Executive Member and Director has reviewed discretionary spending plans in their
area for the remainder of the financial year. An overview is contained in this report and
indicates the forecast overspend can be substantially reduced to approximately £1.6m.
Work will continue throughout the remainder of the year to improve this position further,
wherever possible, in order to mitigate the risk on reserves.

Executive are asked to note the progress made and approve the recovery plan as
outlined in this report.

Page 117




Purpose

1. The purpose of the report is for Executive to approve the financial recovery plan for
2022/23, and note the impact on each Directorate’s forecast position.

Background and relevant information

2. The Council's scheme of delegation gives the Executive collective responsibility for

financial management and budget monitoring with budgets delegated to Directors for
operational and strategic decision making.

Executive will recall the first quarter’s monitoring position reported in September 2022
identified a forecast overspend for 2022/23 of approximately £9m. This was mainly due
to pressures relating to additional inflation, the increased pay award, and increased
demand, placement and agency costs within Children’s Services, all of which were
unknown at the start of the financial year and are national issues. As a result, a number
of actions were approved to recover the position:

a. Each Directorate was requested to identify where discretionary expenditure could
be curtailed, stopping short of an in year spending freeze.
b. Additional controls around the recruitment to vacant posts and procurement of

agency staff.

c. Member led focus meetings on the challenges facing Children’s Services with an
objective to mitigate demand and workforce challenges, concurrently assisting
both the financial position and improvement journey.

d. The subsequent approval of the adoption of a Flexible Use of Capital Receipts
Strategy for 2022/23 at Full Council in September 2022 to support transformation.

4. The table below shows by Directorate the results of the discretionary spend review and
fees and charges implementation, and shows a revised forecast spend position for
2022/23.

Directorate 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23

Full Year Q1 Forecast | Recovery Plan | Fees & charges | Revised Forecast

Budget Variance increases from 1 Variance

November 2022

£000s £000s £000s £'000s £000s
Regeneration and Culture 3,474 (529) 648 129 (1,306)
Environment and Community Services 19,608 395 419 132 (156)
Adult Social Care and Public Health 40,454 1,053 1,394 52 (393)
Children's Services 45,102 6,857 811 30 6,016
Legal and Governance Services 9,604 37 156 23 (142)
Finance 200 (1,176) 225 97 (1,498)
Central Budgets * (113) 2,375 3,240 0 (865)
TOTAL 118,329 9,012 6,893 463 1,656
NOTE

* Recovery Plan for Central Budgets includes £2.7m for adoption of the Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy and £0.5m for vacancy and agency control which
are currently shown centrally within Central Budgets, however these may at year-end be shown within Directorate budgets.

Page 118




In-year recovery plan and impact on directorates

Regeneration and Culture (£648,000)

In-year savings identified from Regeneration budgets include ceasing any new activity in

the town centre that requires revenue pump priming, and the reduction of activities to
further develop the museums and attractions managed within Culture. A number of other
opportunities will be taken to charge planned revenue expenditure to capital grants as a
one-off measure.

Environment and Community Services (£419,000)

6. The Environment and Community Services recovery plan includes the following
elements :

Delay the introduction of household pest control - this will have the effect of the
Council not being able to offer a subsidised pest control service to Middlesbrough
residents

The enhanced tree maintenance programme will be delayed in its implementation,
and this will mean less tree work will be able to be undertaken than anticipated in
2022/23

The allocation of funds to community groups through the environment community
pot will be stopped

Temporary stop to book purchases, which will mean a delay in the purchase of new
book issues and replacement books. This may mean people have to wait longer
than normal

The Council will stop purchase of new eBooks until the end of 2022/23. This means
that new titles will not be available

Stop security in libraries and hubs, which we will be covered thorough the use of
wardens and other staff

The contribution to community events will be reduced, and this will require
organisers to seek funding from elsewhere

Recruitment to 5 vacant street warden posts will be frozen. This will reduce the level
of activity undertaken by street wardens

Recruitment to a vacant highways supervisor post to be frozen, this will not have
any effect in the short term

Adult Social Care and Public Health (£1,394,000)

7. The measures proposed within Adult Social Care are made up of the following :

plans to increase contributions from the NHS in line with our own fee increases for
cases where there are shared responsibilities

transfer of all Tees Community Equipment Service costs from revenue to capital
funding from the Disabled Facilities Grant to surrender uncommitted resources from
a 2020/21 grant

to discontinue a small hospital discharge project, which has been “dormant” for
some three years

to suspend current plans to recruit a number of additional agency/temporary Social
Workers and to delay recruitment of two day care support workers (as the parent
day care unit is currently running at below maximum capacity)

Page 119



While none of these measures means a reduction in provision for existing service
users, the suspension of the plans to employ additional staff on a temporary basis
does make service improvement in advance of the commencement of inspections of
Adult Social Care by the Care Quality Commission (scheduled to commence nationally
in April 2023) a more challenging prospect.

8. The proposed in-year savings from Public Health will come from the overhead
contribution from the Health Determinant Research Collaboration (HDRC) external grant
funding that the Council have secured over the next 5 years. The remaining proposed
savings will come from deleting current vacancies from the structure, which will have an
impact on leadership and management and capacity within the service, particularly with
regards to Health Protection. Other savings have been identified from tariff based
services that are not back to their full capacity since Covid-19.

Children’s Services (£811,000)

9. Middlesbrough has the highest demand for social care in England. It continues to rise,
particularly due to the pandemic, and additional resources are required to manage this
pressure particularly due to the cost of agency social workers and the increased cost of
external residential placements for young people who are looked after by the authority
both of which are national issues. Due to the acute budget pressure, a freeze on all non-
essential vacancies will be applied. This will result in additional pressures on existing
team members to ensure that demand will be managed within existing resources, which
will potentially adversely impact on future performance.

10.The Family Group Conference team delivers family networking support to remain at
home or to be cared for within their extended family. The team of 5 FTE staff has three
vacancies which will not be filled, and the remaining workers will be absorbed into the
existing workforce. The element of statutory provision of Family Group Conferences will
be delivered from within the service. This will result in a saving of £49,000.

11.Funding for enhanced Youth Services of £150,000 was agreed at Council in February
2022, however the model has not yet been agreed and the service is not yet in place.
The enhanced services were intended to work with vulnerable children in Middlesbrough
impacted on by high levels of anti-social behaviour, which will not now take place.

12.The current Head of Strategic Services left the Council at the end of September and it is
proposed that the post is deleted. However, the post is central to delivering certain
aspects of the Children’s Services Improvement Plan and the Improvement Adviser
commissioned by the Department of Education is concerned about the impact on
Children’s Services improvement journey. Therefore, 2-3 days consultancy cover per
week will be commissioned until Ofsted have carried out their judgement inspection,
likely to be in February 2023. This would result in a saving of £20,000.

13.The proposal is to reduce the amount spent on external residential placements by a
further £300,000 by the end of 2022/23. This is a very challenging target as all possible
reductions in the number of external residential placements have already been factored
into the existing budget prior to this proposals being made. The reduction in the number
of such placements cannot be equated with a reduction in budget spend because of the
increased cost of placements. The decrease in the number of placements over the last
year has not resulted in a decrease in budget spend. All placement moves have to be
considered in the context of children and young people’s needs and the plans in place

Page 120



to support them. The rising costs of external residential placements is a national issue
and not particular to Middlesbrough or surrounding authorities.

14. The purpose of Section 17 budgets is to prevent children and young people being

received into care, by expenditure on items such as food and necessary clothing. The
proposal is to introduce a policy and framework of spend to introduce consistency and
standardisation of spend across Children’s Services. The arrangements will be managed
through the community support team in Residential and Business Support. A review of
welfare support will be undertaken by the Service and where appropriate to do so
alternative government funding will be used rather than Council funds. The review
including the introduction of a framework and policy will commence September 2022 and
be complete by the end of November 2022. The amount of savings will be determined
by the framework and policy. Currently it is estimated that there will be £100,000 of
savings due to this by the end of 2022/23.

15.There is also a proposal to reduce the number of agency staff by 12 by recruiting to the

same number of permanent social workers, which it is estimated will equate to a saving
of £125,000. This is a challenging target as for an example a continuous recruitment
campaign and a ‘Welcome Aboard’ payment of £5,000 has only attracted two permanent
workers. In addition, in the current climate permanent workers are leaving Middlesbrough
as well as other authorities to become agency workers to earn more money particularly
in managed teams. An enhanced recruitment drive, including the use of market
supplements, is to be implemented shortly. Ofsted have confirmed that we have a good
workforce development offer. The challenges of recruiting permanent, experienced
social workers is a national one and not particular to Middlesbrough or surrounding
authorities.

Legal and Governance (£156,000)

16.Savings of £126,000 will be made by keeping posts vacant within ICT and Democratic

17.

18.

Services, and a further £25,000 will be made by charging the cost of two posts to grant
funding within Adult Social Care to support project management of preparation for CQC
inspections and compliance with the Care Act. In addition, the ICT SLIDO survey system
will be cancelled.

Finance (£225,000)

Savings of £50,000 will be made by keeping posts vacant within Financial Planning &
Support and Finance and Investment, and a further £25,000 by reducing spend within
the centralised budget for Council stationery costs. Additional revenue of £150,000 will
be achieved by reviewing charging of overheads to grants, applying this wherever
possible, and by increasing support service charges to external bodies.

Central (£3,240,000)

Savings of £2.7m will be potentially achieved through the adoption of the Flexible Use of
Capital Receipts Strategy for 2022/23, which was approved by Council on 7 September
2022. A further saving will be made by leaving uncommitted the remaining £40,000 of
the Funding Available for Service Investment created at 2022/23 budget setting, which
had previously been earmarked towards Locality Working. A further £500,000 of savings
are expected to be achieved through enhanced vacancy management and agency
control across all Directorates, this has been accounted for as a central saving for the

Page 121



purpose of this recovery plan. More detail on this is contained in the following
paragraphs.

Progress on vacancy and agency control

19.Arrangements to progress the recruitment to vacant posts and the appointment of
agency staff now require collective LMT approval in advance. This arrangement has
been in place since August and is intended to bring about added scrutiny to the business
need of the Council. It is not a universal restriction on recruitment, but with a focus on
ensuring recruitment is conducted with a focus on critical posts. In effect, it is an
enhanced vacancy turnover (abatement) factor to those already in place across the
Council.

20.1t is anticipated that enhanced vacancy management will bring about a further £500,000
reduction in workforce costs over the remainder of the year and this is currently included
within the central budget line in the table in paragraph 4 above.

Children’s Focus Group

21.This group is member led. To date the discussion has largely focussed on workforce
development to consider how the council’s own workforce strategy can bring about an
improved recruitment and retention offer to stabilise the council’s own workforce and to
reduce the reliance on agency staff. This intent would benefit both the financial position
of the Council and also positively impact the Ofsted Improvement plan. This is planned
to provide some £125,000 additional savings in agency costs for the remainder of the
year. The revised plans around workforce are included within the Children’s recovery
plan above.

22.Further work is being developed to consider the future commissioning strategy and
market position, however this will impact longer-term financial health rather than provide
an immediate cash benefit.

23.Following the proposed recovery plan by Children’s Services there are still continuing
overspends forecast for the remainder of the year in Children’s Services of approximately
£6m, however as shown in the table in paragraph 4 these pressures have been
significantly offset by the actions of other Directorates.

Flexible Use of Capital Receipts

24.Full Council on 7 September 2022 approved the adoption of a Flexible Use of Capital
Receipts Strategy for 2022/23 in support of transformation activity. This flexibility has
currently been made available by central government and is in line with the legislation
and detailed guidance. The success of the Strategy is dependent on the availability of
capital receipts for investment and the demonstration that those transformation projects
are able to provide future ongoing revenue savings or reduce future demand for services.
Full Council has approved some £2.7m capital receipts as being available for potential
flexible use in 2022/23 and this is currently included within the central budget line in the
table in paragraph 4 above.

Page 122



Fees and Charges increases

25.Fees and Charges would usually be increased as part of the budget report in February
each year in line with the prevailing inflation rate at the time. However, in order to help
the financial position in 2022/23 and the increased rate of inflation that currently exists,
it is proposed that Fees and Charges are increased earlier than usual in line with inflation
from 1 November 2022, subject to any statutory requirements regarding notice and
consultation.

26.Details of the areas of Fees and Charges proposed to be increased from 1 November
2022 are included in Appendix 1. A cautious approach has been taken to estimate the
potential additional income that can be achieved in the remainder of 2022/23 taking into
account the achievability of each increase and the consultation required and any
statutory constraints, with £463,000 being estimated to be achieved by the end of
2022/23. The total per Directorate has been included in the table in paragraph 4.

27.An impact assessment has been completed to assess the proposed Fees and Charges
increases (appended to this report at Appendix 2). It found that there were no concerns
that these could result in disproportionate adverse impact on groups or individuals
because they hold one or more protected characteristics.

Reserves

28.The Social Care Transformation reserve which was created at the end of 2021/22 is held
to support the strategic development of Children’s and Adults’ Social Care services and
to mitigate risks of overspend arising from demand. This Reserve currently has a balance
of £56m remaining and it was initially intended to be used to support social care
improvement in 2023/24. However, it is now forecast that this Reserve will be required
to be reduced to approximately £3.4m if the overspend shown in table in paragraph 4 is
not recovered during the remainder of this financial year.

What decision(s) are being recommended?

That the Executive:

e Note the progress being made to recover the financial position in 2022/23 by each
Directorate

e Approve the recovery plan for 2022/23 as set out in the report

e Note the recovery plan will be used as a benchmark for reporting future budget
variations

Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

29.To enable the effective management of finances, in line with the Council’s Local Code

of Corporate Governance, the Scheme of Delegation and agreed corporate financial
regulations.

Page 123



Other potential decision(s) and why these have not been recommended

30.To not propose a recovery plan for 2022/23 will mean that the Council’s financial health
is severely and adversely impacted with a continuing overspend, and if not corrected
the Councils spending will be unsustainable.

Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)
Legal

31.The proposed recommendations are consistent with and will promote the achievement
of the Council’s legal duty to achieve Best Value.

Strategic priorities and risks

32.Without adequate financial control, there is a risk that resources will not be aligned to
corporate priorities.

33.External financial and economic uncertainty give rise to budget sensitivities and cost
fluctuations that might not currently be foreseen but arise during the remainder of this
year.

Human Rights, Equality and Data Protection

34.The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) (as set out in the Equality Act 2010) places a
statutory duty on the Council in exercising its functions, to have regard to the need to:

e eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

e advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it; and

o foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it.

35.Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having
due regard, in particular, to the need to:

e remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

e take stepsto meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; and

e encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.

36.The protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. Where proposed decisions
may be relevant to one or more of these protected characteristics, the Council is obliged
to assess the impact. If there is judged to be an adverse impact on these characteristics
that is relevant to the duty above steps are taken to consider whether it can be avoided
or mitigated. Where it cannot be avoided or mitigated, a decision can only be taken if it
can be justified.

Page 124



37.The financial recovery plan does not create policy change for service users, clients and
customers. The proposed Fees and Charges increases also do not result in
disproportionate adverse impact on groups or individuals because they hold one or more
protected characteristics.

Financial

38.Financial implications are included in the main body of this report, with a summary of the
effect being provided in the table in paragraph 4.

Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision

Action Responsible Officer Deadline
Implement proposals Each Director Immediately
Consider requests to appoint to vacancies | LMT Immediately

and procurement of agency staff

Implement changes to reduce numbers of | pirector of Children’s Immediately
agency staff services

Implement the proposed increases to fees | g5ch Director

and charges 1 November 2022

Effect changes to budget management

and control Director of Finance Immediately
Appendices

1 Detail of proposed Fees and Charges increases from 1 November 2022

2 Impact assessment of proposed Fees and Charges increases
Background papers

Body Report title Date

Council Revenue Budget, Council Tax, | 23/2/22

Medium Tem Financial Plan, and
Capital Strategy 2022/23

Executive Revenue and Capital Budget — | 6/9/22
Projected Outturn position as at
Quarter One 2022/23

Council Flexible Use of Capital Receipts | 7/9/22
Strategy 2022/23
Contact: Andrew Humble — Head of Financial Planning & Support
Email: Andrew_Humble@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Detail of proposed Fees and Charges increases from 1 November 2022

Directorate Brief Detail 2022/23
Additional
Income
£000
Increase in Fees and Charges to other organisations
Environment and Community Services Increase in Fees and Charges to other organisations (Health, LAs, schools etc.) in line with inflation 6.6
Adult Social Care and Public Health Increase in Fees and Charges to other organisations (Health, LAs, schools etc.) in line with inflation 35.2
Children's Services Increase in Fees and Charges to other organisations (Health, LAs, schools etc.) in line with inflation 17.0
Legal and Governance Services Increase in Fees and Charges to other organisations (Health, LAs, schools etc.) in line with inflation 4.2
Finance Increase in Fees and Charges to other organisations (Health, LAs, schools etc.) in line with inflation 1.5

Car Parking price increases

Regeneration and Culture 10% increase in all long and short stay parking charges (both on and off street), including permits & season tickets 62.5
(for example £2 long stay at Zetland Car Park increased to £2.30, and most popular short stay 2 hours increase from £1.30 to £1.50)
Increased charges to the public

E&onment and Community Services Bereavement Services - 10% increase in cremation fees (from £820 to £902) and burial fees (from £660 to £726) and memorial items 103.0
Fl&2nce 10% increase in Council Tax Collection (Court costs/Housing Benefit overpayments) 87.1
R&Deneration and Culture 10% increase in Culture fees and charges (including Town Hall, Theatre, Newham Grange Leisure Farm, Parks, Museums) 61.7
Aqult Social Care and Public Health Trading Standards / Environmental Protection - 10% increase in various application, licence, and permit fees 2.7
A\ Social Care and Public Health Connect Service - 10% increase in fees charged 141
Ermvidonment and Community Services 10% increase in various fees and charges for Highways, Building Maintenance and Running Costs 5.8
Environment and Community Services Area Care - 10% increase in allotment rents 2.6
Environment and Community Services My Place - 10% increase in rent and room hire charges 6.7
Environment and Community Services Libraries and Community Hubs - 10% increase in charges for fines, other charges, and room hires 7.6
Finance Valuation Services - 10% increase in fees for services provided 7.7
Finance Adult Social Care Payments and Charging Team - 10% increase in fees charged 0.9
Legal and Governance Services Legal Services - 10% increase in fees charged for services provided 8.6
Legal and Governance Services Registrars Service - 10% increase in fees for various services provided, e.g. weddings, birth/deaths, etc. (where not statutory controlled) 10.6
Children's Services Stainsby Nursery - 10% increase in fees charged 12.7
Regeneration and Culture Concessionary Fares - 10% increase in charge for passes 0.5
Regeneration and Culture Highways Service Management - 10% increase in various charges 3.7
Regeneration and Culture BOHO - 10% increase in charges to tenants for landlord charges 0.4
463.2
TOTAL PER DIRECTORATE
Regeneration and Culture 129
Environment and Community Services 132
Adult Social Care and Public Health 52
Children's Services 30
Legal and Governance Services 23
Finance 97
463




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 - Impact assessment of proposed Fees and Charges increases

Impact Assessment Level 1: Initial screening assessment

SBIEET O . To assess the proposal to apply a mid-year increase to a range of fees and charges levied by the Council
assessment:
Coverage: Cross cutting

[ Strategy ] Policy [ ] Service [] Function
Thisisa d'eCISIOH [] Process/procedure ] Programme L] Project X Review
relating to:

[] Organisational change [] Other (please state)
Itis a: New approach: Ol Revision of an existing approach: X
It is driven by: Legislation: ] Local or corporate requirements: X

6¢T abed




bed

De

0ET®

ription:

Key aims, objectives and activities

To assess the proposal to increase the range of fees and charges undertaken for the following services:

Increase in Fees and Charges to other organisations (Health, LAs, schools etc.)

10% increase in all long and short stay parking charges (both on and off street, including permits and season tickets (e.g. £2
long stay at Zetland increased to £2.30, and most popular short stay 2 hours increase from £1.30 to £1.50)

Bereavement Services - 10% increase in cremation fees (from £820 to £902) and burial fees (from £660 to £726) and memorial
items

Council Tax Collection (Court costs/Housing Benefit overpayments)

10% increase in Culture fees and charges(including Town Hall, Theatre, Newham Grange Leisure Farm, Parks, Museums)
Trading Standards / Environmental Protection - 10% increase in various application, licence, permit fees

ASC Connect Service - 10% increase in fees charged

ECS - 10% increase in various fees and charges for Highways, Building Maintenance and Running Costs

Area Care - 10% increase in allotment rents

My Place - 10% increase in rent and room hire charges

Libraries and Community Hubs - 10% increase in charges for fines, other charges, and room hires

Valuation Services - 10% increase in fees for services provided

ASC Payments and Charging Team - 10% increase in fees charged

Legal Services - 10% increase in fees charged for services provided

Registrars Service - 10% increase in fees charged for various services provided, e.g. weddings, birth/deaths, etc. (where not
statutory controlled)

Stainsby Nursery - 10% increase in fees charged

Concessionary Fares — 10% increase in charge for passes

Highways Service Management - 10% increase in various charges

BOHO - 10% increase in charges to tenants for landlord charges

Statutory drivers

Relevant legislation includes but is not restricted to Care Act 2014, Local Governance and Finance Act 1992, Public Libraries and Museum Act 1964,
Allotment and Small Holdings Act 1908, Cremation Act 1902.

Differences from any previous approach

The proposal is to raise charges for these services generally by 10% in line with the current rate of inflation or as indicated above.

Key stakeholders and intended beneficiaries (internal and external as appropriate)

Users of these services.

Intended outcomes.

That the services are able to continue to deliver services that meet customer needs with appropriate charges that reflect the increased cost of providing
these services.




Live date:

1 November 2022

Lifespan:

1 November 2022 — 31 March 2023

Date of next review:

February / March 2023

TET abed




ZsT obed

Response

Screening questions Evidence
No | Yes Uncertain
Human Rights . . .
Could the decision impact The proposal will not impact on human rights.
nggatwely on mgllwdgal Human X . [ Evidence to support this position includes, knowledge of the fees and charges made and protections in
ng_hts as erlshnned in UK place for those less able to pay where applicable.
legislation?
The Council has a duty to consider the impact of the proposal on relevant protected characteristics to
ensure it has due regard to the public sector equality duty. The duty means the Council must have due
regard when taking decisions to the need to:
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or
under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
E : and persons who do not share it;
quality - .
. . (c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons
Could the decision result in who do not share it
adverse dllffe(e'ntlal Impacts on In having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity, the Council must consider, as part
groups or individuals with of a single equality duty:
characteristics protected in UK X ] ] removin AR
) o . g or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
_equallty I_aw? Could the decision characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
Impact dlffer.ently on other > + taking steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic that are
Sommonly disadvantaged groups: different from the needs of people who do not share it; and
* encouraging people who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other
activity in which participation is low.
Because of the nature of the proposals, the proposal is relevant to the age protected characteristic.
However, there are no concerns that there could a disproportionate adverse impact on this group as a
result of changes to the charges as there are a range of mitigations in place for those less able to pay.
Evidence to support this position includes, knowledge of the market, and the protections in place for
those less able to pay.

* Consult the Impact Assessment further guidance appendix for details on the issues covered by each of these broad questions prior to completion.




ceT abed

Response
Screening questions Evidence

No Yes Uncertain

Community cohesion
Could the decision impact
negatively on relationships
between different groups, X ]
communities of interest or
neighbourhoods within the town?
*

Not directly relevant to decision. There are no concerns the proposals could impact on community
cohesion. The proposal will ensure the Council’s approach to provision of services continues to be
[ sustainable.

Evidence to support this position includes, knowledge of the market, and the protections in place for
those less able to pay.

Next steps:
< If the answer to all of the above screening questions is No then the process is completed.

< If the answer of any of the questions is Yes or Uncertain, then a Level 2 Full Impact Assessment must be completed.

This assessment has indicated that there is sufficient information to assess the impact and that there will be no disproportionate negative impact on a group or
individual because they hold a protected characteristic. In line with guidance, review proposals will now be subject to consultation. If these consultations identify
any unforeseen concerns about the possibility of a disproportionate impact, the impact assessment process will be revisited.

Assessment completed by: Andre_w Humble — Head of Financial Head of Service: N/A
Planning & Support
Date: 29/9/2022 Date: N/A




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

I\/\iddles%gh

moving forward

Report of:

The Mayor
Chief Executive

Submitted to:

Executive

Date: 18 October 2022

Title: Town Centre Strategy (targeted support)
Report for: Decision

Status: Public

Strategic priority: Town centre

Key decision: Yes

Why: Decision(s) will incur expenditure or savings above £150,000
Urgent: No

Why: Not Applicable

Executive summary

High streets and town centres have long been subject to a range of issues, such as the
2008 economic downturn, changes in consumer behaviour, and, more recently, the
Covid-19 pandemic. Across the country rises in anti-social behaviour, begging, street
crime and other nuisance are evident and as the most significant town centre in the
Tees Valley, Middlesbrough is not immune to these issues.

We have ambition to create a bright future for our town centre, transforming it by
providing more reasons for people to use the town centre to live, work, learn and enjoy
leisure. Alongside the many exciting developments that are underway to achieve this it
is vital that the town centre provides a clean and safe environment that encourages
people to return.

Perceptions of safety and crime rates significantly influence the vitality and viability of a
centre. Stable major brands and independent businesses are affected by these and if

Page 135




left unattended there is a risk that this will damage our progress in transforming,
adapting and recovering the high street economy.

It is therefore critical that these issues are addressed by introducing additional, co-
ordinated and dedicated resources under a single point of authority and responsibility.
Working with partners and utilising available Tees Valley resource, it is proposed that a
pilot programme is delivered at a cost of £1,120,000 over 2 years. Funding would be
derived through a combination of Shared Prosperity (£520,000) and Indigenous Growth
Funds (£600,000), with no call on core Council funds.

Page 136




Purpose

1.

The purpose of this paper is to seek Executive approval for a new partnership approach
to tackle town centre anti-social behaviour and crime to sustain and to protect the
transformation of Middlesbrough Town Centre. The report also seeks executive approval
to secure circa. £1.1 million from Tees Valley external funding resources to aid the
delivery of this ambition.

Background and relevant information

2.

Like many high streets across the country, Middlesbrough town centre is vulnerable.
The Covid 19 pandemic, coupled with deep-rooted consumer behavioural changes,
means that town centres must diversify their offer to remain relevant in the modern
world.

Middlesbrough has a strong strategic vision to transform the town centre economy
through a process of giving more reasons for people to use the town centre to live,
work, learn and enjoy leisure but we must get the basics right and tackling anti-social
behaviour (ASB) and crime is key.

National economic forces have contributed to some of the recent departures of major
brands from the high street, but we cannot hide behind this. Stable major brands and
independent businesses are questioning whether they continue to trade in
Middlesbrough and these economic issues are being exacerbated by very poor
perceptions of crime, nuisance and antisocial behaviour. Left unaddressed will be no
hope to transform, adapt and recover the high street economy.

Perceptions of safety and crime rates significantly influence the vitality and viability of a
centre. For example, high ASB and crime rates can not only impact on public health
and admissions to A&E, but lack of safety can also affect the economic health of a
centre as visitors may refrain from staying late or venturing to the centre at all.

Statistics help, but they only go so far. On paper, Middlesbrough Town Centre ASB and
crime rates have reduced in recent times, but this is absolutely irrelevant if visitors,
businesses and residents have a perception that crime and ASB is prevalent. A
number of meetings have taken place with a selection of town centre businesses and it
is clear that business confidence requires improving.

Current Town Centre ASB Resource

7.

Middlesbrough Council has not allowed this to happen without a response, but it is
clear that the approach needs to be radically changed to address current issues.

Page 137 3



8. Currently, Middlesbrough Council directly funds a dedicated resource of:

a) 4x Street Wardens
b) 2x Police Officers (Funded via IGF until March 2023)
c) Cleveland Police match this provision with 2 officers

9. Whilst this resource is directed to the town centre, it can be inconsistent. Similarly, the
Police Officers can be drawn out of the centre in response to urgent or major issues. It
is clear that a greater level of cover is required.

10.In addition, this resource is spread thinly over a significant area and largely covers
office hours. Of course, issues extend beyond daytime periods and this needs to be
properly reflected in any new planning.

Strategic Stakeholders

11. Whilst everyone looks to Middlesbrough Council to lead on the response to town
centre perceptions, it is the responsibility of all town centre stakeholders to play their
part. Working with strategic institutions and partners, we aim to deliver a coherent and
collaborative response. As a minimum, we need constant information and dialogue with
businesses so that all issues are reported and acknowledged.

12.To ensure there is dialogue between town centre businesses, partners and
Middlesbrough Council, quarterly crime and ASB meetings have been set up and a
monthly E-newsletter is now published.

13.In July 2022 Middlesbrough Council hosted an ASB and Crime Workshop with town
centre businesses to explore new approaches to tackling town centre issues. The
output is an action plan that seeks to divert, reduce and better enforce issues that
affect business confidence.

14.Together, these partners can align intelligence, resources, communications and assets
to tackle crime and ASB in Middlesbrough, through an agreed, and accountable, plan
of action.

Feedback and Action Plan

15.Having listened to strategic partners and stakeholders, the Council has developed a
coordinated action plan, based on the key issues, as identified by businesses and
partners. This forms the framework for US ALL to follow, not just for Middlesbrough
Council to deliver.

Page 138 4



16.This plan has been costed and will provide the basis for some dedicated investment in
dialogue with TVCA, to fund the required measures for a minimum of the next two
years. This period will allow the plans, priorities and actions to be refined and adapted
to ensure that they are as effective as possible. This will then provide the groundwork
for a more permanent response and solution.

Impact and evaluation

17.We need to agree on a set metrics to demonstrate performance and impact. These
need to benchmark current performance and perceptions prior to these interventions
and can be easily measured throughout the lifetime of the project.

18.The new working arrangements, if successful could provide a proof of concept for the
implementation of a Business Improvement District (BID), which would provide future
funding. To enable this we must ensure that measurable impacts that have a tangible
value for businesses and demonstrate real additionally are developed.

Proposed enhancements

19.Building on the outcomes and understanding of the dedicated focused operations in the
town centre, an enhanced enforcement model has been developed in order to enhance
responses to crime and ASB. This will be a mix of dedicated police resource and newly
created town centre enforcement staff who will have a greater range of powers than
those currently held by Street Wardens. The use of enhanced mobile CCTV will be
part of this approach.

20.The town centre has one of the highest rates of youth-related ASB in the borough and
as such, the plan includes the introduction of a floating youth service resource to work
with young people who are involved in inappropriate activity within the town centre.

21. The new approach will also see an increase in cleaning activity that will also include
deep cleans of the town centre. The cleaning team will be expanded to include
additional staff who will undertake “concierge” type activity and other functions such as
the jet washing of areas.

22.A range of cultural activities will be introduced into the town centre to encourage further
footfall; animate unused or unlit spaces and create vibrancy and interest.

23. A focused programme of marketing and communications as well as promotions that
build on successful events such as restaurant week will be developed to increase the
awareness of the offer of the town centre and encourage new visitors and increased
visits by those who already use the town centre.

24. A range of physical improvements to the town including enhanced lighting will be
explored.

Page 139 5



25. After this time, and having refined the operational model, these working arrangements
aim to demonstrate efficacy and value for money; with the further aim of demonstrating
the benefit of this approach to businesses and residents, as a potential basis of a BID.

26.A summary of the enhancements is provided below:

Resource Cost (over 2 years)

Reshaping the existing town centre team to | Any additional costs to be met by existing
include a Strategic Town Centre Manager Economic Growth and Infrastructure budget
role to steer town centre activity and
influence all town centre service delivery

3 extra PC'’s £340,000
Working:
Monday-Saturday: 8:00 am — 6:00 pm

Sunday: 10:00 am — 4:00 pm

4 new Town Centre Enforcement Officers £280,000
and re-designation of existing town centre
street wardens x 8

Working:
Monday-Saturday: 8:00 am — 6:00 pm

Sunday: 10:00 am — 4:00 pm

New Caretaking Team staff x 2 £128,000

Extend public spaces protection order £2,000
(PSPO) in town centre

Launch promotional campaign focused on £5,000
not to give money to beggars

Increase CCTV in the town centre £15,000

Marketing and Communications budget for | £20,000
dedicated town centre marketing and
communications

Implement floating youth support £60,000
Light key routes and arrival points £30,000
Small grants programme for business-led £20,000

initiatives to deal with causes of ASB

Page 140 6



Orange Pip and other market development | £50,000

Annual deep clean of town centre £40,000

Cover cost of Middlesbrough Retail Crime £20,000
Partnership (MRCP) Membership for 100
town centre businesses

Programme of initiatives offering £10,000
discounts/promotions i.e. Teesside
Restaurant Week

Implement culture and arts programme to £100,000
animate town centre and increase footfall

TOTAL £1,120,000

What decision(s) are being recommended?

That the Executive:

e endorse the approach of the pilot scheme over 2 years
e approve Middlesbrough Council being the accountable body for Tees Valley
external funding.

Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

27.Detailed engagement and consultation with town centre businesses, residents and
stakeholders have made it clear that perceptions of ASB and crime are considered a
significant barrier to existing businesses and inward investment. Left unaddressed will
mean no hope to transform, adapt and recover Middlesbrough’s Town Centre
economy.

Other potential decision(s) and why these have not been recommended

28.n/a

Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)

Legal

29. The only legal impact is the extension of the Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO)
in the TS1 area. Following consultation with businesses, residents and visitors, a

separate report will be taken to single member executive for decision in November
2022.

Page 141



Strategic priorities and risks

30.The aim of a co-ordinated town centre team is to provide additionality by establishing
new capacity and resources to deliver Middlesbrough’s strategic ambitions.

31.This approach underpins the emerging Mayoral Development Company (MDC), which
will open new funding opportunities to maintain regeneration momentum and make
central Middlesbrough a strategic priority for the entire Tees valley.

32.The MDC is anticipated to deliver major regeneration schemes only. Day to day
support and administration of the Town Centre is anticipated to stay with
Middlesbrough Council. Specialist capacity and resources will supplement the
regeneration service and its functions, with significant and major regeneration initiatives
continuing to be delivered in-house.

Human Rights, Equality and Data Protection

33.No Human Rights, Equality or Data Protection issues arise from this report. Any equality
impact assessment will be completed as part of the PSPO extension report.

Financial

34.The pilot will not impact on core Council budgets. £600,000 will be sourced from the
Indigenous Growth Fund provided by Tees Valley Combined Authority to aid economic
growth and a further £520,000 from the community allocation of the Tees Valley
Shared Prosperity Fund, which is specifically targeted at town centres.

Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

See appendix A

Appendices

1 Appendix A: Town Centre ASB and Crime Action Plan

2

3

Background papers

Body Report title Date
Contact:
Email: tony_parkinson@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 142 8



Middlesbrough Town Centre Crime and Anti Social Behaviour Action Plan

Ao1 Dedicated Town Centre Response Team to respond to crime and ASB demand Geoff Field £620,00016.09.22  |1.12.22

A02 Extend Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in TS1 area Marion Walker £2,000(23.09.22 [25.11.22
A03 Ensure consistent use of legal powers - Monitor use of Community Protection Notice (CPN), PSPO, PCN, Closure Orders, Civil Injunction and Criminal Behaviour Orders Geoff Field £0|On-going  [On-going
A0a Review MRCP / Shopwatch arrangements Michelle McPhee £20,00018.07.22  (31.12.22

801 Promotional campaign focused on not to give money to beggars Michelle McPhee £5,000(8.08.2022 (31.10.22
802 Review temporary accommodation provision for vulnerable individuals Erik Scollay £0(16.09.22 [31.10.23
803 Consider drop-in multi-disciplinary centres Erik Scollay £0[1.1022  [1.12.22

B804 Investigate limiting sale of cheap alcohol/reducing the strength campaign udith Hedgley £0(13.09.22 [18.12.22
B80S Directory of support services for all agencies Michelle McPhee £0(10.0822 [14.10.22
806 Increase CCTV in town centre Geoff Field £15,000(1.12.22  [31.03.24
807 Youth provision in town centre Sue Butcher £60,000(1.0822  (30.11.22
808 Town Centre Ambassadors - R&D Phase Only Gaye Kirby/Leanne Littlewood £0[3.1022 (311222
809 Light key routes and arrival points Geoff Field £30,000{1.10.22  (31.03.23
810 To liaise with the courts to re-establish the Court User Group. Charlotte Benjamin £0(13.09.22 {06.01.23
B11 Small grants programme for initiatives to deal with causes of ASB Michelle McPhee £20,000(5.09.22  [31.10.22
B12 Explore introducing a night time economy advisory role to support other licensed premises in the town centre Michelle McPhee £0[111.22  [16.01.23

co1 Work with RSLs and other landlords to improve information sharing, tenant action, persistent offender information Geoff Field £0(21.1022  [11.11.22
coz Ensure there is an appropriate communication plan in place between Middlesbrough Council and town centre businesses Michelle McPhee £0(08.06.22 |Complete
co3 Create town centre narrative by submissions to ASB mailbox Michelle McPhee £0(06.06.22 |On-going

Page 143

D01 Promote free car parking in town centre to businesses and visitors Richard Horniman £0(1.1022  [30.12.22
D02 Publicity / Marketing campaign and associated town centre branding Michelle McPhee £0(14.09.22 [14.02.23
D03 Programme of initiatives offering discounts/promotions i.e. Teesside Restaurant Week Michelle McPhee £10,000(5.09.22  (31.03.24
D04 Artin Shop Windows Gaye Kirby 31,000{31.10.22  (30.06.23
D05 Pilot Comms Programme - Young People Gaye Kirby 14,000(31.10.22  |31.03.23
D06 Programme of animation for key town centre locations Gaye Kirby 40,000{31.10.22  (28.02.24
D07 My Boro, My Shirt Gaye Kirby 15,000(30.09.22  |30.09.23
D08 Annual deep clean of town centre Geoff Field £40,000(1.11.22  (31.05.23
D09 Develop Orange Pip Market and introduce other markets to the town centre Michelle McPhee/Leanne Littlewood £50,000(1.11.22  (31.12.22
D10 Marketing and Communications budget for dedicated town centre marketing and communications Andrew Glover £20,000(1.11.22 31.12.22
D11 Evolve existing cleaning team into ambassadorial/caretaking team and increase from 6 to 8 members of staff Geoff Field £128,000(16.10.22 {31.03.23
£1,120,000



|

>

03

Ensure consistent use of legal powers - Monitor use of Community Protection Notice (CPN), PSPO, PCN,
Closure Orders, Civil and Criminal Beh Orders

A01 Dedicated Town Centre Response Team to respond to crime and ASB d ] £620,000
Milestone A01-01 |Produce proposal for new dedicated town centre response team (including roles and costs) Geoff/Marion 16/09/22 14/10/22
Milestone A01-02  [Produce job description and induction process for new street warden role and explore shadowing RCO role |Marion/Dale 16/09/22 28/10/22
Milestone A01-03 | Confirm configuration of new Town Centre response team including operating hours etc Geoff /Marion 24/10/22 18/10/22
Milestone A01-04 |Write Executive Report Geoff Field 27/09/22 05/10/22
Milestone A01-05 |Take to Exec for decision Geoff Field 18/10/22 18/10/22
Milestone A01-06 |Start process to implement the new model Marion/Dale 01/11/22 01/12/22
A02 Extend Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in TS1 area £2,000
Marion
Walker/Jane
Milestone A02-01 |Produce consultation questionnaire re extension of PSPO in TS1 Hill 23/09/22 27/09/22
Marion
Walker/Jane
Milestone A02-02 | Go live with consultation online Hill 28/09/22 26/10/22
Catherine
MilestoneA02- 03 | Draft extension to order Cunningham 15/09/22 27/09/22
Andrew
Issue press release and promote survey - distribute paper copies to Newport Hub and Central Library with |Glover/Marion
Milestone A02-04 |posters Walker 28/09/22 26/10/22
Elaine
Milestone A02-05 |Analyse survey response data Pattinson 26/10/22 31/10/22
Milestone A02-06 |Produce LMT report to present findings of consultation and make recommendations re PSPO extension Marion Walker 31/10/22 04/11/22
Milestone A02- 07 |Take report to LMT Geoff Field 10/11/22 10/11/22
Milestone A02-08 |Take report to Exec Member Geoff Field 11/11/22 11/11/22
Milestone A02-09 |Take Report to single Member Exec for decision Geoff Field 14/11/22 14/11/22
Milestone A02-10 |Implement PSPO Extension Marion Walker 25/11/22 25/11/25

£0

B06

Increased CCTV in town centre

Milestone A03-01 | Linked to AO1 - ensure this action is completed Marion Walker 16/09/22

Milestone A03-02  [Recruit if appropriate (depending on option) Dale Metcalfe 01/11/22(31/11/2022

Milestone A03-03 | Train staff Dale Metcalfe 01/12/22 23/12/22

Milestone A03-04 |Brand team Dale Metcalfe 01/12/22 23/12/22
Record data on CPN, PSPO, PCN, closure orders, civil injunctions and criminal behaviour orders used in the

Milestone A03-05 |town centre Dale Metcalfe |on-going on-going

Milestone A03-06 [ Monitor use of legal powers within team monthly Dale Metcalfe |on-going on-going

Milestone A03-07 |Report to monthly ASB and Crime working group (that Tony Chairs) Geoff Field 26.10.22 31.03.24

£15,000

Milestone B06 -01

CCTV provision is already wide spread across the town we will deploy rapid cameras where required

Geoff Field

01/12/22

ongoing

Milestone B06 -02

Identify locations for £15k budget based on police recorded data and working with businesses - Has to be a
legal basis for installing i.e. must be data driven

Dale Metcalfe

ongoing from time we
receive cameras

Milestone BO6 -03

Order cameras/poles

Dale Metcalfe

as and when required

Milestone BO6 -04

Install cameras

Dale Metcalfe

as and when required

Work with RSLs and other landlords to Improve information sharing, tenant action, persistent offender

B09 Light key routes and arrival points £30,000
Milestone 01 Initial concept design Geoff Field 1.10. 2022 Nov-22
Milestone 02 internal discussions re funding for additional animation November 2022 Geoff Field 1.11.23 Dec-22
Milestone 03 Subject to above we can define implementation plan Geoff Field 1.02.23 Mar-23

co1 information £0
Geoff/Marion/

Milestone 01 Initial meeting with Thirteen and other RSLs to look at consistent approach to enforcement Kay Glew 21/10/22 21/10/22

Milestone 02 Operational officer meeting to embed consistent approach following strategic meeting Dale/Jane 11/11/22 11/11/22

Milestone 03 Monitor monthly data via AIM and direct resources appropriately - Take action Geoff/Marion |Monthly Monthly

Milestone 04 Report to monthly ASB and Crime working group (that Tony Chairs) Geoff Field Monthly Monthly

D08 Annual deep clean of town centre £40,000
Milestone 01 Define deep clean plan Andrew Mace 01/11/22 Dec-22
Milestone 02 Undertake annual deep clean (including street washing) to commence after winter gritting etc has ended. 01/01/23 May-23

D11 Evolve existing cl team into Amk lorial/Caretaking team and increase from 6 to 8 members of
staff £128,000
Milestone 01 Take report to Executive Geoff Field 16/10/22 Nov-22
Milestone 02 Begin recruitment of staff (internal) Geoff Field 25/10/22 Dec-22
Milestone 03 Introduce new team approach Geoff Field 01/01/23 Jan-23
Milestone 04 Commence training of additional training needs Geoff Field 01/02/23 Mar-23

Page 144




Promotional campaign focused on not to give money to

A04 Review MRCP/Shop h ar £20,000
Milestone 01 Re-establish MRCP Michelle McPhee |18.07.22 12.08.22
Middlesbrough Council represented at MRCP steering group
Milestone 02 meetings Michelle McPhee [10.08.22 31.03.23
Inform town centre businesses about MRCP and how they can
Milestone 03 join Michelle McPhee [7.09.22 13.09.22
Cover subscription fee for up to 200 town centre businesses
Milestone 04 (over 2 years) Michelle McPhee [3.10.22 5.12.22

BO1 beggars £5,000
Milestone 01 Refresh previous campaign Michelle McPhee |[8.08.22 5.09.22

Milestone 02 Identify costs to relaunch and budget Michelle McPhee |12.09.22 16.09.22

Milestone 03 Launch campaign Michelle McPhee [3.10.22 14.10.22

Town Centre Ambassadors - R&D Phase Only

B05 Directory of support services for all agencies £0
Milestone 01 Collate information on to one document Julie Pearce 10.08.22 12.08.22
Milestone 02 List information on Middlesbrough Council Website Andrew Glover 16.09.22 30.09.22
Make businesses and residents aware of directory of support and
Milestone 03 how to access via communications and social media Michelle McPhee {3.10.22 14.10.22

R&D Phase to establish model and cost of
running this programme. NB No money

Small grants programme for initiatives to deal with causes of

B08 £0|required for this phase, just time.
Engage with potential community partners & stakeholders who [Leanne Littlewood

Milestone 01 are well-placed to support the programme / Gaye Kirby Oct-22 Oct-22
Develop and cost an operating model including how volunteers |Leanne Littlewood

Milestone 02 will be recruited, managed and supported / Gaye Kirby Nov-22 Dec-22

introduce advisory role

Ensure there is an appropriate communication plan in place

B11 ASB £20,000
Milestone 01 Identify budget (proposed grant pot £20,000) Michelle McPhee [5.09.22 19.09.22

Milestone 02 Produce grant criteria Michelle McPhee |26.09.22 03.10.22

Milestone 03 Produce grant documentation Sharon Barker 10.10.22 17.10.22

Milestone 04 Launch grant scheme as part of existing small grant scheme Sharon Barker 24.10.22 31.10.22

B12 Explore intr ucing aJnlght time ¢ y y role to £0

pport other p in the town centre
Milestone 1 Look at best practice in other towns and cities Michelle McPhee [1.11.22 1.12.22
Milestone 2 Liaise with Head of Public Protection and Licensing Manager to Michelle McPhee |1.12.22 16.01.23

€02 between Middlesbrough Council and town centre b £0
Quarterly ASB and Crime meetings with town centre businesses

Milestone 01 and Cleveland Police Michelle McPhee 08.06.22 31.03.23

Milestone 02 Create E-Newsletter to go to town centre businesses every 6 weell Andrew Glover 8.06.22 31.03.23

Promote free car parking in town centre to businesses and

C03 Create town centre narrative by submissi to ASB mailbox £0
Produce key contact list for town centre businesses to report

Milestone 01 crime and ASB Michelle McPhee [2.03.22 6.06.22
Make businesses aware of the ASB e-mail address and encourage

Milestone 02 them to inform Middlesbrough Council of ASB incidents Michelle McPhee |[6.06.22 8.06.22

Milestone 03 Monitor ASB inbox and collate town centre ASB incidents Dean Moore 8.06.22 31.03.23

Publicity/Marketing campaign and associated town centre

DO1 visitors £0
Promote existing free parking to residents to coincide with

Milestone 01 increase in fees publicity and the run-up to Christmas Andrew Glover 1.10.22 30.12.22
Promote to town centre businesses including informing them

Milestone 02 how residents are receiving the information Andrew Glover 1.10.22 30.12.22

Programme of initiatives offering discounts/promotions i.e.

D02 branding £0|*to be handed over TCVA as part of MDC
Milestone 01 Audit of town centre to identify available sites Michelle McPhee [14.09.22 14.09.22
Milestone 02 Cost campaign Andrew Glover 14.09.22 28.09.22
Milestone 03 Explore branding options Andrew Glover 3.10.22 31.03.22
Milestone 04 Get relevant permissions (if applicable) Michelle McPhee [7.11.22 28.11.22
Milestone 05 Launch campaign Andrew Glover 2.01.23 14.02.23

D03 T id. ant Week £10,000
Milestone 01 Launch first TSRW event in partnership with TSRW founders Michelle McPhee [5.09.22 9.09.22

Milestone 02 Launch further 3 TSRW events Michelle McPhee Nov-22 May-23

Milestone 03 Launch other initiatives offering discounts and promotions Michelle McPhee [1.01.23 31.03.24

Page 145



Art in Shop Windows

For 12 months of activity - opportunities
to display existing work as well as one or

D04 31,000.00 |two commissions.
Secure agreements from key property owners to use shop
windows, including MBC, HillStreet Centre, Stuart Monk and
Milestone 01 Alistair Powell Michelle McPhee |31.10.22 Nov-22
Establish a process of curating the spaces with the Cultural
Milestone 02 Partnership Gaye Kirby Oct-22 Oct-22
Create a programme for the first year, including progressing
conversations with Historic England about hosting their 'Picturing
Milestone 03 England's High Streets' window displays. Gaye Kirby Oct-22 Nov-22
Milestone 04 Launch the first phase of installations (mth 1-3) Gaye Kirby Jan-23 Mar-23
Milestone 05 Launch the second phase of installations (mth 4-6) Gaye Kirby Apr-23 Jun-23

£2k each for partners, plus £2k for

D05 Pilot Comms Programme - Young People 14,000.00 [marketing collateral
Milestone 01 Develop brief Andrew Glover Oct-22 Nov-22
Milestone 02 Engage delivery partners Andrew Glover Nov-22 Dec-22
Milestone 03 Launch pilot Andrew Glover Feb-23 Mar-23
Milestone 04 Evaluation of pilot Andrew Glover Apr-23 Apr-23

Programme of animation for key town centre locations 40,000.00 |For year 1 programme: 1 activity each
D06 month
Milestone 01 Engage with delivery partners Holly Glover Oct-22 Nov-22
Milestone 02 Curate year 1 programme Holly Glover Nov-22 Jan-23
Milestone 03 Deliver Year 1 programme Holly Glover Feb-23 Jan-24
Milestone 04 Evaluation of year 1 programme Holly Glover Feb-24 Feb-24

Marketing and Communications budget for dedicated town

D07 My Boro, My Shirt 15,000.00 [For phases 1 & 2
Agree partnership, including roles/responsibilities and any third
Milestone 01 party funding, with MFC, Rob Nichols, Borderlands and MBC Holly Glover Sep-22 Sep-22
Milestone 02 Scope Phase 1: Digital portraits Holly Glover Sep-22 Oct-22
Milestone 03 Deliver Phase 1: Digital portraits Holly Glover Oct-22 Dec-22
Milestone 04 Scope Phase 2: Temporary Installations Holly Glover Jan-23 Mar-23
Milestone 05 Deliver Phase 2: Temporary Installations Holly Glover Apr-23 Sep-23
e O O
) Develop Orange Pip Market and introduce other markets to the m::c::::/Leanne
town centre 3
Littlewood £50,000
Michelle
McPhee/Leanne
Milestone 01 Produce Orange Pip development plan for 2023 Littlewood 1.11.22 31.12.22
Michelle
Produce proposal and costings for introducing other markets in  |McPhee/Leanne
Milestone 02 the town centre Littlewood 1.11.22 31.12.22

D10 centre marketing and ication: £20,000
Milestone 01 Develop plan Andrew Glover Nov-22 Dec-22
Milestone 02 Introduce new materials based on openings and events Andrew Glover Ongoing Ongoing

Page 146



|

B02 Review temporary accommodation provision for vulnerable individuals

Milestone 01 Review Temp Accom Model Erik Scollay 16.09.22 31.03.23 £0
Milestone 02 Undertake Tender Process Erik Scollay 01.04.23 30.06.23 £0
Milestone 03 Implement new model Erik Scollay 01.07.23 31.10.23 £0
B0O3 Consider drop-in multi-disciplinary centres

Milestone 01 Establish project group and scope proposal Erik Scollay 01.10.22 01.12.22 £0
B04 Investigate limiting sale of cheap alcohol/red! the strength p

Milestone 01 Review the current records of survey work carried out of off licences in Central and Newport ward Judith Hedgley |13.09.22 23.09.22 £0
Milestone 02 Identify off licence premises in Central ward which require a survey visit and carry out visits (estimated 26 premises) Judith Hedgley |18.10.22 18.11.22 £0
Milestone 03 Identify off licence premises in Newport ward which require a survey and carry out visits (estimated 20 premises) Judith Hedgley |18.11.22 18.12.22 £0

Page 147




BO7 Youth provision in town centre
Milestone 01 Paper to Council Executive to agree [Sue Butcher Aug-22 03.10.2022 £60,000
proposal for enhanced youth
provision and for endorsement of
previously agreed funding

Milestone 02 Decide on % of funding to be Gail Earl. Sep-22 03.10.2022 £0
allocated to Town Centre Responsible HoS
Milestone 03 Contract Variation in place Claire Walker Oct-22 Oct-22 £0
Commissioning
Milestone 04 Provision in Place Gail Earl Dec-22 Nov-22 £0
Milestone 05 Review of Provision Sue Butcher Jun-22 Jul-24 £0

Page 148



B10 To liaise with the courts to re-establish the Court User Group

Milestone 01 Contact court Manager Andrew Perriman  [13.09.22 13.09.22 £0
Milestone 02 Discuss potential to re-introduce the court user group Andrew Perriman [13.09.22 13.10.22 £0
Milestone 03 If it is to be re-ignited, to seek interest from stakeholders to engage Andrew Perriman [14.10.22 10.11.22 £0
Milestone 04 if agreed, arrange first meeting Andrew Perriman [10.12.22 06.01.23 £0

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

Middles%gh

moving forward

Report of:

Executive Member for Neighbourhood Safety
Director of Environment and Community Services

Submitted to: Executive

Date: 18 October 2022

Title: Final Report of the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel -
Tough Enough? Enforcement in Middlesbrough and its Impact
on Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour - Service Response

Report for: Decision

Status: Public

Strategic priority:

Crime and anti-social behaviour

Key decision:

Yes

Why:

Decision(s) will have a significant impact in two or more wards

Urgent:

No

Why:

Not Applicable

Executive summary

That Executive agrees to:

Implement the action plan proposed by Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel.

Page 151




Purpose

1.

The purpose of this report is to consider recommendations by the Culture and
Communities Scrutiny Board following its meeting on 22" June 2022.

Background and relevant information

2.

At the panel’s first meeting, they agreed their work programme and raised increasing
concern regarding crime and anti-social behaviour within the town. Press reports had
drawn to issues within Hemlington and the Town Centre and therefore the panel wished
to gain a better understand of the Council’s approach to enforcement. The investigation
was named Tough enough? Enforcement in Middlesbrough and its impact on crime and
anti-social behaviour.

During the course of Scrutiny’s investigation, members were provided with information
relating to Middlesbrough’s approach to community safety, the overall structure of the
community safety partnership, provided with Police crime and ASB statistics as well as
an overview of locality working.

Following the BBC Panorama documentary featuring the Hemlington ward, the panel
also sought guidance from the National charity “ASB Help” who had also featured on the
programme talking about community triggers.

What decision(s) are being recommended?

That members consider recommendations by the Overview and Scrutiny Board which
are contained within the attached action plan as follows;

That a general awareness session be established for elected members to discuss the
Community Safety partnership, the roles of the community safety teams and how to raise
a community trigger.

. That further promotion of the community trigger process be shared with elected members

and the local communities, this could be done through, for example, ward council
meetings, love Middlesbrough magazine and community councils.

Given the recent concerns surrounding the number of police officers within the wards,
the panel ask that the Council continue discussions with Cleveland Police to ensure the
correct resources are allocated to Middlesbrough.

That Middlesbrough council work in partnership with ASB help to sign up to the ASB
pledge.

10.That the panel members receive 6 monthly updates from the locality wards regarding

crime/ anti-social behavior statistics.

11. That members receive further updates, as and when, to the rolling out of locality working

in other wards within the town.

Page 152 2



Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

12.Based on the evidence received, the Panel applauds the excellent work being
undertaken by the Community Safety Team and partners. Whilst there is excellent
work being undertaken, the panel feels councillors and the wider community need
further information on what the Council is doing in relation to crime and anti-social
behaviour.

13.The Panel are passionate to ensure Middlesbrough is a safe place to live and bring up
a family. Whilst it is pleasing to hear that asb levels were at their lowest, the panel is
concerned about the raising levels of criminal activity across certain areas of the town.
14.Whilst the panel recognises that the Council and Cleveland police work in partnership
to combat issues in our town, the levels of Cleveland police officers patrolling our

neighbourhoods is still lower than expected and the panel feel having more officers
would help to reduce some of the nuisance and crimes being displayed.

15.From evidence received, it is clear more information sharing on the community trigger
needs to be filtered to our communities. Whilst saying this, the panel cannot take away
the excellent work of our teams and feels that their hard work should be
acknowledged. Signing the ASB Pledge would further put Middlesbrough on the map
for putting victims at the heart of what we do.

16.From statistics and first hand evidence, it is clear that locality working does work,
especially in raising perceptions amongst our communities. The panel is delighted that
locality working will continue within Newport and North Ormesby and would be keen to
hear about any further roll out as well as receiving further information on how locality
working in the existing areas is impacting the levels of crime and asb.

Other potential decision(s) and why these have not been recommended

17.

Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)

Legal

18.There are no legal implications regarding the recommendations.

Strategic priorities and risks

19.The risk is that if the proposal is not accepted then we will continue to see crime, ASB
and environment crime increase throughout Middlesbrough.

Human Rights, Equality and Data Protection

20.An Impact Assessment will be carried out.

Page 153 3



Financial

21.There are no financial implications

Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

Action Responsible Officer Deadline
Appendices
1 1. Action Plan — Tough enough? Enforcement in Middlesbrough and its impact

on crime and anti-social behaviour.

Background papers

Body Report title Date

Contact: Marion Walker Head of Stronger Communities
Email: Marion_Walker@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 154 4



MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD
22 June 2022

FINAL REPORT OF THE CULTURE AND
COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL- TOUGH
ENOUGH? ENFORCEMENT IN MIDDLESBROUGH
AND ITS IMPACT ON CRIME AND ANTI-SOCIAL

BEHAVIOUR
Purpose of report Page 2
Aims of investigation Page 2
Council’s Three Core Objectives and Page 2
priorities
Terms of reference Page 2
Background information Page 3
Setting the Scene Page 3
Terms of reference A Page 3
Terms of reference B Page 7
Terms of reference C Page 12
Terms of reference D Page 17
Conclusions Page 23
Recommendations Page 24
Acknowledgements Page 25
Background papers Page 26

Page 155




PURPOSE OF REPORT

1. To present the final report of the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel following
its investigation into * Tough enough? Enforcement in Middlesbrough and its impact
on crime and anti-social behaviour’.

AIM OF INVESTIGATION

2. The aim of the panel’s investigation was to consider Middlesbrough Council’s
approach to enforcement in Middlesbrough and its impact on crime and anti-social
behaviour in the Town.

STRATEGIC PLAN 2021-24

3. The scrutiny of this topic aligns with the Council’s three core aims set out within the
Strategic plan 2021-24.

People- Working with communities and other public services in Middlesbrough to
improve the lives of local people

Place- Securing improvements in Middlesbrough’s housing, infrastructure and
attractiveness, improving the town’s reputation, creating opportunities for local people
and improving our finances.

Business- Middlesbrough’s economy and making sure we work as effectively as
possible to support our ambitions for People and Place.

4. The scrutiny topic further links with the below priority set out for the next three years:

Crime and anti- social behaviour- We will tackle crime and anti-social behaviour head
on, working with our partners to ensure local people feel safer.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

5. The terms of reference for the panel’s investigation were as follows:

e To examine the powers set out in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and how this
has shaped Middlesbrough’s partnership working to tackle crime and anti —social
behavior in the Town.

e To understand the nature and levels of anti-social behavior and crime across the
town. Has there been improvement or decline over the past 2 years?

¢ To understand perceptions and impacts of crime and anti-social behavior in the
town on residents.

e To gain an understanding of the locality model and understand the impact this
has made on residents and anti- social behaviour within these two areas and
merits of wider roll out.

Page 156



BACKGROUND

6.

At the panel’s first meeting, they agreed their work programme and raised increasing
concern regarding crime and anti-social behaviour within the town. Press reports had
drawn to issues within Hemlington and the Town Centre and therefore the panel
wished to gain a better understand of the Council’'s enforcement and its impact of
crime and anti-social behaviour.

SETTING THE SCENE

7.

10.

11.

12.

At the panel’s meeting on 21 July 2022, the Director of Environment and community
services provided an overview of the directorate, within this, he highlighted the work
of the community safety team and their work to reduce crime and anti-social
behaviour across the town.

The panel wish to convey their thanks to the teams within community safety, as since
the pandemic, the panel learnt that there has been increased crime across the town
and the team has shown true resilience and dedication, as well as partnership
working.

The information provided by the Director has been considered in respect of the terms
of reference, presented as follows.

Term of reference A:

To examine the powers set out in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and how
this has shaped Middlesbrough’s partnership working to tackle crime and
anti —social behavior in the Town.

Section 6 of the 1998 Act requires the responsible authorities (commonly referred to
collectively as a Community Safety Partnership (CSP)) in a local government area to
work together in formulating and implementing strategies to tackle local crime and
disorder in the area.

The panel gathered evidence from the Head of Stronger Communities in relation to
Middlesbrough’s approach to community safety and the overall structure of the
community safety partnership.

The panel learnt that Middlesbrough’s community safety team consists of the
following:

¢ Neighbourhood safety wardens

¢ Neighbourhood safety wardens (environmental)
¢ Neighbourhood safety officer

e Community safety partnership

e CCTV operations

¢ Community resilience, cohesion and migration

The role of each is presented below:

Page 157



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Neighbourhood Safety Wardens- 43 wardens who deal with a whole host of
activities, including for example; supporting vulnerable people i.e. refer to and link them
to specialist support services such as Homeless; Substance Misuse; Debt
Management; Domestic Abuse, Routes to Employment/Work; Health services;
Support victims of crime and antisocial behavior; Enforce parking contraventions
Parking Fines; Issue Fixed Penalty Notices for littering /dog fouling ; Enforce PSPO in
TS1; Carry Naloxone injections; wardens are trained in first aid and basic life support
(they can also administer CPR) and gather intelligence and information which is shared
with Police and other key partners.

Neighbourhood Safety Wardens (Environmental)- x 7 and Environmental
Operatives x 5 (Flying Squad) . The flying Squad were a newly formed Team
developed on 1 March 2021 who identify and search through fly tipping, collect and
remove all fly tipping from the particular site.

The Neighbourhood Safety Wardens further enforce fly tipping, via fines and if
necessary through the courts ; deal with stray dogs, deal with abandoned vehicles and
are trained to respond to wardens activities already mentioned.

The panel were pleased to hear that since the introduction of the team there have been
positive results across the Town.

Neighbourhood Safety Officers — 7 officers who deal with issues that require a multi-
agency approach, who work directly with elected members and try and solve problems
to community issues. These can be varied depending on the issue.

The officers utilise a range of legal and non-legal measures to resolve anti-social
behaviour, reduce crime and the fear of crime and bring respite to victims of crime and
anti-social behaviour.

The team Investigate complaints of nuisance, anti-social behaviour and hate crime,
working across all housing tenures, using advisory, counselling, negotiating /
persuasive skills to convince others to take particular courses of action, where
appropriate, this may result in for example, an anti-social behaviour contract

Where all other avenues fail, the officers will gather a portfolio of evidence and work
with key stakeholders to produce a prosecution pack for House Closure; Civil
Injunction, or Criminal Behaviour Order against persistent and unchanging offenders.
These have been carried out and the panel were provided with examples.

In addition to their work, the Neighbourhood Safety officers hold certain powers:

e They were awarded Cleveland Police accreditation in 2019- delegated from the
Chief Constable to officers within the team. This gives the officers power to ask
individuals for their name and address and if they fail to do so this is a criminal
offence. Low level anti-social behaviour
Public Space protection order — TS1 area

e Closure orders

Page 158



20.

21.

22.

e Civil injunctions

Acceptable behaviour campaign (ABC)- a really useful tool which is affective to

deal with certain individuals

Environmental powers

Parking enforcement

Power of persuasion

Partnership working — a key tool to the teams work. The team have daily

briefings with the police/ Selective landlord licensing team/ community safety

and the housing team to discuss key offenders and issues.

e Active intelligence mapping (AIM) which takes place every 3 weeks which
analyse data and creates action plans to tackle hot spots and there is also the
community safety partnership (statutory body)

In September 2021, the team had successfully completed the following:

Total number of service requests 13872
dealt with by the service April 2021-

20/10/2021

CCTV total number of cameras in
the local authority network

400+ and more installs planned

- Officers have actively
installed cctv across the town
and there are further plans to
install more and improve the
infrastructure within the
control room.

PSPO warning/positive interventions | 244

PSPO Fines

19

Environmental enforcement actions/
care files and fixed penalty notices
combined

145 (will increase significantly in the
coming months as investigations are
concluded)

Closure orders 9
Civil injunctions 7
Lives saved using Naloxone 2

The panel were pleased with the positive action and work that had been carried out
by the team and commended the excellent partnership working.

Areas of support of from the teams, have also been illustrated through the following
examples; referrals to social workers , temperature checks during Covid 19, wardens
engaging with LINX project, all of which have been excellent examples of support
within the community.

In terms of work with the community, the Community Cohesion, Resilience and

Migration Team add excellent community partnership to Middlesbrough, examples of
which have been talent shows; supporting Refugee week and positive work with

Page 159



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

various communities to increase cultural awareness. The team work across the whole
of Middlesbrough and at present are working with intergenerational work.

The panel were also made aware that within the warden service, a member of staff,
known as “Gentle George” speaks 5 different languages and is a great asset to the
team.

The team have also worked to develop amazing alleys (9 already completed and a
further 11 in progress) and bedding areas within community hubs.

Community Safety partnership

Community Safety Partnership (CSP) are a statutory partnership made up of key
‘Responsible Authorities’ who have equal responsibility for reducing crime and
antisocial behaviour under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (As amended by the
Antisocial Behaviour Act 2014 and the Policing and Crime Act 2017).

The responsible authorities for the CSP are as follows:
o Police

e Local Authority

e Fire and Rescue Authority

e Health

e Probation and

e Youth offending service

These agencies work in collaboration with other statutory and non-statutory
organisations as well as voluntary services and local people.

The CSP produces a Strategic Intelligence Assessment and a Community Safety
Plan every 2 years and will be reviewed in 2022.

The CSP is required to produce a Community Safety Plan, detailing how it intends to
tackle crime and disorder and develop strategies to tackle short, medium and long term
priorities.

Middlesbrough’s latest Community Safety Plan will run until the end of March 2022.
The plan will be reviewed in October 2022 and will be referred to Executive for
approval.

The priorities are as follows:

Priority 1- Perceptions and feeling Safe (e.g. Reducing crime and anti-social
behaviour)

Priority 2-Tacking the root causes (e.g. tacking adverse experiences)

Priority 3- Locality working, including the Town Centre (e.g. working with our
communities)

The panel also learnt that there is a 23 page delivery plan which looks at the

objectives; these are RAG rated and ensure each objective is on target and if failing,
actions will be put in place.

Page 160



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Success stories from the CSP

Pallister Park and Norfolk shops were targeted by groups of youths
throwing missiles and causing harassment, alarm and distress to
shoppers. Through multiagency working, partners raised £8K to
purchase, erect and monitor a rapid deployment camera. Partners

met on a weekly basis and addressed individuals causing the
nuisance and feedback to residents on a weekly basis ensuring they
were kept inform of all the work that was being done.

Term of reference B:

To understand the nature and levels of anti-social behavior and crime
across the town. Has there been improvement or decline over the past 2
years?

Whilst the panel heard about the excellent partnership work within town, they also
wished to examine the nature and levels of crime and anti-social behaviour in
Middlesbrough.

Statistics were presented by the Head of Stronger Communities who provided
overview of the crime and anti-social statistics.

The data was Cleveland Police data and showed crime and anti-social behaviour
rates for (the information is attached at appendix 1 of the report)

* Cleveland Local Authority rate comparisons
* Middlesbrough Wards total numbers
* Middlesbrough Wards rates

The first graph provided information for 100,000 population for Middlesbrough. The
statistics showed that Crime rates for Middlesbrough in 2019 and 2020 remained
close to the other local authorities, however looking at the start of 2021 the crime rate
had climbed further away from the other Local authorities as the year was
progressing. It was encouraging to see a reduction of crime and anti-social behavior
in October 2021/ November 2021, however the gap between local authorities was
significantly wide.

The Head of Stronger Communities advised that there was a change in recording for
crime and anti-social behavior in April 2021, which was highlighted due to the
significant drip in recording.

In terms of anti-social behavior, statistics show that although Middlesbrough has

higher anti-social behavior rates than other local authorities, it is encouraging that the
rates in Middlesbrough were at their lowest in 3 years.

Page 161



39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

CRIME IN MIDDLESBROUGH- analysis and rates

In terms of crime across Middlesbrough, the panel were provided with a ward by
ward analysis. At the time of the review, the 2021-22 data was incomplete as this ran
from 1 April 2021- 31 March 2022. Crime totals per ward shows that nearly all wards
(excluding Brambles & Thorntree, Park end & Beckfield, and Ayresome) saw a
decrease in crime from 2019-2020.

The statistics also showed some wards such as Hemlington, Ladgate, Kader, and
Central have already recorded more crimes, or were all nearly higher than 2020.

The highest crime rates still remain in Central ward, however this was not uncommon
to towns due to the town centre effect, as there was quite often an increase due to
shop lifting in prime issues within this area. North Ormesby was second and Newport
third.

In terms of crime rates, the 2021 figure was not fully complete so it was expected that
they would be lower.

A decrease from 2019 to 2020 was evident. However looking from 2018-2020 wards
such as Newport, Park End & Beckfield, Brambles & Thorntree, and Park either
increased or remained at a similar rate.

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR- analysis and rate

44,

45,

In terms of anti-social behavior analysis, the statistics showed an increased in 17 out
of 20 wards from 2019-2020. This was expected due to an increase in anti-social
behavior during COVID and the breach of lockdown rules. However the Head of
Service advised that anti-social behavior in all wards so far in 2021 has remained
lower than both 2019 and 2020.

In terms of rates, this does not change significantly except when looking at the anti-
social behavior rate, the only slight difference was that Park End & Beckfield comes
higher than Park ward. This was due to less anti-social behaviour occurring in the
ward and a smaller population.

Neighbourhood Policing- work within the community

46.

47.

48.

The panel, whilst receiving statistical data on crime and anti-social behaviour, were
keen to also understand the current situation with Cleveland Police, under the
Neighbourhood policing model.

The panel received information from Chief Inspection Tomlinson, who advised that
there had been significant changes in Neighborhood policing over the past 2 years (
as the covid-19 pandemic commenced).

The current Neighbourhood policing model at the time of the panel’s investigation
was devised as follows:

Page 162



Superintendent Marc Anderson (South Commander)

Chief Inspector Daryll Tomlinson
(dedicated to Neighbourhood policing in Middlesbrough)

Middlesbrough North Insp Darren Birkett Middlesbrough South T/Insp Chris Turner

Each have 3 teams each- consisting of Sargent’'s PC’s and PCSQO’s who cover all 20 wards
in Middlesbrough.

On top of neighbourhood policing, the below teams listed are in place to help the delivery of
Middlesbrough across Middlesbrough.

Response Teams 24/7

CID

Safeguarding Teams

Sex Offender Management
Complex Exploitation Team
Community Safety
Homicide and Major Enquiry Team
Cyber Crime

Fraud

Organised Crime Unit
Intelligence

49. The goal of the Neighbourhood Policing unit was as follows:

. 7N CLEVELAND
Towards 2025 - the road to improvement " POLICE

Proud to serve, proud to belong, proud to lead

Our strategic vision
What we aim to achieve

Delivering outstanding policing for our communities

Our priorities
What we will focus on

Our Communities Vulnerability Crime and ASB Our People

B | 0| B | €

Serving the public and Recognising and Preventing crime and Caring for and supporting
putting our communities at safeguarding vulnerable antisocial behaviour, and our people
the heart of all we do victims tackling criminality

Page 163



50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

The Panel were advised that the Neighbourhood Strategy operates and is in line with
the National Neighbourhood Strategy. The aim of Neighbourhood policing hits within
three headings; Engagement; Problem Solving and Targeted activity.

The Chief Inspector outlined some of the activities undertaken under the 3 headings:

Engagement Problem Solving Targeted activities
Community Engagement | Problem Solving OEL TCG Targets
Ward Pledge (Police)
Ward priorities, Ward Problem Solving Plans Who is causing our
Newsletters, Ward (Partnership Working) communities the issues.
meetings
Visibility — Right People, Repeat Callers, Repeat Week of action in North
Right Places, Right Times | Victims, Repeat Ormesby

Locations
Ring backs, Revisits — Week of action in
Victims Code of practice — Hemlington
meaningful
communication
Schools, Youth Clubs,
Youth provisions — Linx,
Youth Focus North East.

The panel were aware of the pressures on Cleveland Police and were concerned that
of the model was not running to full capacity.

The Chief Inspector stated that over the past 2 years, a resourcing model was
identified by the force as to what was required to operate Neighbourhood policing,
however to date they had not established the numbers that were envisaged.

The numbers anticipated were as follows:
34 police officers
30 PCSOs
6 Sergeants
2 Inspectors

At present, the numbers were in the high 20s, and along with sickness levels and
absence, plus other demands, reaching the desired number of officers has been
quite challenging.

However, the panel were reassured that new officers (4-5) would be joining the force
in early 2022 to increase the model and there was a feeling across the partnerships
that the model would be fulfilled effectively. The Chief Inspector admitted more could
be done, however without a full resource model this proved difficult.

It was anticipated that each ward should have one designated PC and PCSO to
discuss and raise issues with, however due to demand this quite often is not the
case. In an ideal world, the force would like 5 PCs and 5 PSCOs in one ward,
however at present this is unrealistic.

10

Page 164



58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

Cleveland Police are recruiting officers, however it takes time to come through the 3
year training programme, however it was hoped results would be made once officers
were in place.

In order to try and deal with the increasing levels of crime, the panel were pleased to
hear about the excellent partnership working being undertaken. Partners include,
Middlesbrough Council; Cleveland Fire Brigade; Thirteen Housing and
Neighbourhood Policing Middlesbrough. Cleveland Police have also started to reach
out to the community to help bridge the gap between the police and key groups.

Key meetings take place with these partners include:

daily partnership meeting where key partners will discuss key areas of concern
relating to crime and anti-social behaviour. This meeting looks at trends and patterns
to identify issues early.

monthly meetings to deal with long term issues e.g. currently operating Hemlington
Strategic Group.

monthly problem solving meetings- identify long term problems

4-6 weekly organised crime group meetings (prevent, pursue, protect and prepare)
active intelligence group (run by the local authority)

tasking and coordinating group for Middlesbrough — focusing on community work
community safety partnership

local police and delivery group within Cleveland Police- who hold Cleveland Police to
account.

There has further been key areas of Government investment through the Hard to
Hope — Middlesbrough who have invested as part of project adder (tacking drugs-
support individuals and treatment, investing in staff and working on reducing violence
and firefighting culture). There was also value in working with communities especially
with MFC, by organizing football with young people to bridge the gap (Hemlington
and park end). The Chief Inspector further outlined that regular updates are sent out
on performance, however there was a real push on an engagement framework to
understand the communities and their issues.

Visibility of police on our streets also raised concern for the panel, as they felt this
was not the case across Middlesbrough. The Chief Inspector agreed that having
police in cars may not appear as being visible, however it all falls to resources. Ward
walks are able to be carried out if required and there is strong visibility in terms of
partner organisations e.g. from street wardens and it was noted that Middlebrough is
the only local authority in the North East who have a dedicated policing team working
in the town centre, which was funded by partnership working. This is an excellent
resources to have in an area where there is the highest levels of crime and anti-
social behaviour.

Partnership activities are also displayed through the following:

House closures

Civil injunctions

Accredited powers designed by Cleveland Police

Public space protection order

Thirteen/ partnership

CCTV- In November 2021, Cleveland police reviewed 130 pieces of CCTV- 81 prices
of CCTV have been used to take forward for prosecutions

11

Page 165



64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

Whilst the panel were pleased with this partnership working, they still feel more
needs to be done to police our streets especially with the current issues within some
of the wards.

Terms of reference C;

To understand perceptions and impacts of crime and anti-social behavior in
the town on residents.

The panel are well aware of the impact that crime and anti-social behaviour can have
on individuals’ lives.

BBC Panorama documentary — Anti-social behaviour- afraid in my own home, had
recently been televised and spoke to the Mayor and local residents/ ward councillors
within the Hemlington Ward. Within the programme, the CEO of the charity anti-
social behaviour help (ASB help) spoke to the presenter regarding their support for
victims.

The panel were thrilled to receive information from Harvinda Saimbi, newly appointed
CEO of ASB Help and also Katy Anderson, Practitioner Support Manager.

The background and support provided by ASB Help was as follows:

ASB Help is a registered charity in England and Wales set up to provide advice and
support to victims of anti-social behaviour in 2013.
The Charity has a website that is dedicated to the memory of Fiona Pilkington from

Leicester who in 2007 killed herself and her 18 year old disabled daughter Francecca
after Leicester police failed to investigate her 33 complaints to them about harassment.
Purpose and aim is to work with victims of anti-social behaviour (ASB). The founder of
the Charity was adamant that what happened to Fiona should not happen again.
ASB Help aims to provide information and advice to interested parties and members
of the public involved with and suffering from anti-social behaviour.

Following such high-profile cases of vulnerable victims who did not receive any help
from the authorities, ASB help believe there is a clear need for coordinated information
and advice that is readily accessible to those who need it.

ASB Help primarily offer support through their informative website particularly focusing
on equipping victims of anti-social behaviour with the necessary tools to effectively
report it.

They provide one to one support and advice to practitioners on a wide range of ASB
areas, such as advice on cases, provide training, sit as independent chairs or panel
members for community trigger meetings, lead on developing local ASB conferences
or briefings to a range of audiences.

ASB Help was also in the in the process of developing a practitioner site which will
contain useful information, templates and best practice examples. They believe this is
important because ultimately victims of anti-social behaviour will receive a better
response where ASB practitioners are well-informed through sharing best practice,
updates in the sector and opportunities to be innovative to get results for victims.
ASB Help also plan to build up a database of information from visitors to the website
on how effective they have found their local authorities and police to be in responding
to reports of ASB, populated by our online survey.

ASB Help have particular interest in the Community Trigger (also known as the ASB
Case Review) introduced in the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 to
empower victims who feel they are being ignored by local agencies. They hope that

12

Page 166



69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

they can assist victims in accessing their local Community Trigger and as we gain more
knowledge and experience in this area, undertake political lobbying to ensure it is fit
for purpose.

ASB Help also encourage authorities to sign up to the Community Trigger ASB Help
PLEDGE

ASB Help Pledge was introduced in 2019, to get national consistency with the
community trigger. Guidance around community triggers can appear vague, and all
local authorities are set up differently, and this allows local authorities to fit the
community trigger round the key existing frameworks.

Whilst there are inconsistencies across local authorities, there was still a central aim —
having the victim at the heart of the process and ensuring the victims voice is heard.

The panel were advised that the trigger progress is not a complaints system or
accountability, rather a problem solving exercise to address ongoing asb.

ASB Help actively encourage local authorities to sign up to the ASB Help Pledge, by
ensuring that they:

Promote awareness: Actively encourage the use of the community trigger to residents
and partner agencies. One of the key things is that the community trigger is the voice
of victim and where the agencies collectively agree an action plan.

Legality: Confirm your organisation is legally compliant and embracing the spirit of the
community trigger. For example, having an independent chair and therefore ASB Help
encourage local authorities to work together so that the Chair is completely
independent from the area.

Ensure accessibility: Publicise the community trigger so the most vulnerable know
what it is and how to invoke it.

Develop your process: Embrace the full potential of the community trigger by
continually reviewing and learning from best practice.

Generate inclusivity: Use community trigger review meetings to work collaboratively
and strategically, formulating solutions to end the anti-social behaviour. The guidance
was updated in 2021 so that victims can now attend the community trigger review
meeting or produce a statement to have their voice heard at the beginning of the
meeting.

Establish a precedent of using the community trigger to put victims first and deter
perpetrators.

ASB Help welcome interested organisations to look at what the Pledge, as subscribing
to it will show commitment to victims of anti-social behaviour.

The outcomes of a community trigger meeting as successful and the Manager advised
that she has never attended a community trigger meeting where has been no actions
taken.

ASB help can work with local organisations to work on these processes. This also
shows that local authorties/ organisations have worked with them to sign the pledge.

The panel learnt that the Council have an anti-social behaviour policy (ASB Policy),

which is attached to the report as an appendix. This underpins everything that the

13

Page 167



7.

78.

79.

81.

82.

council does to support victims of crime and anti-social behaviour as well as
information on the community trigger process.

However, whilst information is available, the panel members stated that until the
documentary, they had never heard of a community trigger and therefore felt, this
needed to be better published and that the Council’'s approach should be explained
fuller.

Middlesbrough’s approach to victims and the community trigger process

Strategic Community Safety Manager, provided the panel with information on the
community trigger process. It must be noted that Middlesbrough Council have an
excellent team and victims of crime and asb are their upmost concern and at the
forefront of what the council do.

In terms of community triggers, as way of introduction:

The Community Trigger was introduced under the anti-social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Act 2014.

Purpose - To give victims and communities the right to request a review of their case
and bring agencies together to take a joined up, problem solving approach to find a
solution.

Vulnerable or repeat victims of ASB being missed due to agencies working in isolation
(Fiona Pilkington case)

Information regarding problems in an area not being shared between agencies

Poor coordination of problems and lack of problem solving or joint working between
agencies

. The following agencies are involved in the community trigger:

Middlesbrough Council

Cleveland Police

Tees Valley Commissioning Group (CCG) if required
Co-opted Housing Associations (Thirteen lead contact)

The community can ask for the community trigger to be activated when it hits the
following thresholds:

An individual, business or community group has made three or more reports regarding
the same problem in the past six months to Middlesbrough Council, Cleveland Police,
or their Housing Association Landlord, or

More than one individual, business or community group has made five or more reports
about the same problem in the past six months to Middlesbrough Council, Cleveland
Police, or their Housing Association Landlord.

The request for the community trigger to be activated when:

14

Page 168



Quialifying requests:

83.

Requests cannot be made more than 6 months after the problems to review have
occurred.

Requests cannot be made where the problems were not reported to official agencies
within 1 month of their occurrence.

Generally requests cannot be made about problems that occurred outside of
Middlesbrough.

The Community Trigger process is a request for a review. It is not a complaint
process.

The trigger process in Middlesbrough is as follows:

All requests must be made by telephone, email or letter to the Council’s
Neighbourhood Safety Team.

Acknowledgement letter sent.

Information request made to all ‘responsible’ agencies
Legal Services decide if threshold met

Case Review Panel meeting arranged

Applicant informed of outcome

84. If the thresholds are met, the review panel will consider the following:

1. Have the reports been acknowledged?

2. Was the victims vulnerability assessed? The Manager outlined that she carried out
some work with the Home Office to produce a matrix for Victims of anti-social
behaviour which was rolled out nationally.

3. Did any response consider the vulnerability of the victim?

4. Was there appropriate information sharing / problem solving / joint working?

5. Were procedures followed?

6. Was the victims vulnerability reduced to a satisfactory level?

7. Was the problem reduced to a level where the behaviour reported is no longer a cause
for concern?

8. Case review panel may make recommendations and/or produce an action plan

85. In terms of numbers of Community Triggers:

Community Triggers by Quarter — Financial Year 2021/22
Quarter Tota | Date Ward Met Appeals
I Received Threshol
d

Q1 (Apr- 2 Jun-21 North Ormesby Y N
Jun)

Jun-21 Coulby Newham N N

Jul-21 North Ormesby N Y

15

Page 169



Jul-21 Park End & N N
Beckfield
Q2 (Jul- 4
Sep) Aug-21 Brambles & Y N
Thorntree
Sep-21 Hemlington N N
Oct-21 Brambles & Y N
Thorntree
Q3 (Oct- 4
Dec) Dec-21 Berwick Hills & Y N
Pallister
Dec-21 Berwick Hills & Y N
Pallister
Dec-21 Berwick Hills & Y N
Pallister
Q4 (Jan- Not known at time
Mar) of meeting
86. There had been 10 community triggers to date, however in previous years there were

87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

92.

few community triggers. An all member briefing was held and as a consequence,
requests were made and therefore it shows that if you promote the trigger, they are
requested.

Taking onboard the reference made by panel members with respect to not being
aware of the community trigger, more work was required to promoting the community
trigger. Whilst done in the past, this clearly needs reviewing.

Information on the website further does not provide full details of the Trigger and this
has therefore been reviewed and new information will be uploaded.

Middlesbrough Council also share good practice and the Manager made reference to
Redcar and Cleveland who would be reviewing their process and proforma.

Following the information from ASB help, the Manager took on board the comment
regarding victims and their attendance at the case review meetings. In the past
Middlesbrough has not invited victims, however following on from the meeting the
procedures would be updated and all victims would be invited in the future. The panel
were extremely pleased with this outcome.

Middlesbrough work very hard with partners, however one aspect that they fail is
reporting back to the community e.g. days of action.

In terms of early intervention, the Council work tirelessly to do the following;

16

Page 170



93.

94.

95.

96.

Active Intelligence mapping (AIM) — multi agency problem solving approach (Chaired
by Geoff Field)

Operational task & finish groups
Set up location individual perpetrator records

Preventative measures/liaison with other agencies i.e. Police, Fire, Schools, Early
Help, YOS, Social Care

Evidence gathering — Diary sheets, CCTV, warden reports. We do struggle to gather
evidence as many young people still wear masks so it is difficult to identify the
perpetrators.

Supporting victims (residents & businesses) throughout process

Warning letters/home visits

Acceptable behaviour contracts

Joint patrols

Final warnings

Legal action (injunctions, house closures, Criminal Behaviour Orders, PSPO etc)

Whilst the community trigger is an effective tool, there are also other mechanisms (as
outlined above) to support the victims. With the overwhelming amount of anti-social
behavior issues which are reported to the Council, it is hoped that this can we dealt
with through the multi- agency approach.

Term of reference D:

To gain an understanding of the locality model and understand the impact
this has made on residents and anti- social behaviour within these two
areas and merits of wider roll out.

At the beginning of the review, the panel had shown interest in learning how the
Council’s locality model pilot and whether it was impacting on the lives of residents,
especially in relation to crime and ASB.

The panel received information from the Senior Neighbourhood Development
Manager as well as colleagues from the Council, Streets Ahead and Cleveland Police
to provide an overview of locality working and its impact on local communities.

The purpose of locality working is as follows:

Locality working involves a system change to the current operational delivery
model across Council services. It seeks to achieve joined-up systems and
reconfigure relationships between statutory organisations, partners and the
community. It will involve developing collaborative approaches to address the
underlying causes of community problems and build capacity within the

17
Page 171



97.

98.

99.

community in order for residents to take charge of their own future, to have a
strong voice and to build social capital and connections within the community.

It was agreed that Locality Working would commence with two pilots in North Ormesby
and Newport . The main aspects of locality working were to provide communities with
a strong voice and to allow joint working with a specific area to tackle issues. The two
pilot schemes commenced in April 2020 and would run for 2 years. A business case
was drawn up at the beginning of the pilot for each area and the Manager provided
information surrounding this:

Business Case - Newport Ward is the 5th most deprived ward in Middlesbrough
moving from the 123rd most deprived ward nationally in 2007 to the 38th most deprived
ward in 2015. The North Ormesby Ward is the most deprived ward in Middlesbrough
and the 2nd most deprived ward in England. Newport had the 3rd highest number of
recorded Racially Motivated crimes with only Central and North Ormesby having more.
With all three wards having more than double the Middlesbrough average per 1,000
population.

In addition, these wards had the highest level of antisocial behaviour per 1,000
population in 10 February 2022 2018/19. Newport Ward had the 2nd highest rate of
female victims of violent crime per 1,000 population in 2018/19 with only North
Ormesby having more. When looking at alcohol related hospital admissions to James
Cook University Hospital, Newport Ward had the 3rd highest number of admissions in
2018/19 and in the previous year it was 2nd highest. When looking at alcohol and
substance related ambulance pick-up data, Newport Ward had the 3rd highest level of
recorded pick-ups with only North Ormesby and Central having higher levels. When
looking at incidents reported to Middlesbrough Council in 2019, Newport Ward had the
highest number of low level antisocial behaviour and environmental crimes and 2nd
highest level of fly-tipping.

100. From consultation, and data, a number of high level objectives were put in place for

each area:

Healthier population

People feel safe

Increase satisfaction in environmental standards
Improve perception of community cohesion

Improve physical appearance of neighbourhood
Improve customer experience (Council and partners)
Build Community Capacity

Improve economic outcomes

Better outcomes for children

101. Each objective is tracked through 7 overarching action plans in each locality and has

an assigned officer. These action plans are reviewed monthly however they do a
monthly run through of actions to professionally monitor and work with partners to
address issues.

102. Through developing the model, and as community priorities become apparent, or

certain issues have been identified, sub groups and action plans have been developed

18
Page 172



to respond specifically to the ward level issues. In terms of benefits and outcomes, the
benefits from the pilot are as follows:

Benefit

Improved public perception
within the 2 localities

Improved outcomes for
Children and families
Improved physical

environment

Stronger communities

Improve user experience

Right service first time.

Having a multifaceted team
will encourage the sharing
of knowledge and skills and
result in an improved
customer experience

Utilise all services

Support  for

working

integrated

Description

Improved perception of: Crime, ASB, ability to
influence decision making, community cohesion,
ability of LA and partners to tackle local issues

Reduction in the number of LAC.

Reduction in the number of children subject to
sexual exploitation and criminal exploitation

Increased educational attainment

Cleaner environmental standards engaging with the
community to share responsibility.

Reduction in the number of people raising issues
that have been reported but not dealt with

Communities that engage and take shared ownership
of local issues.

A single point of contact within the community for the
public and professionals will remove time spent
navigating services improving user experience.

As the pilot areas will provide a single source for
coordinating referrals and signposting information.

The pilots will bring together staff from multiple
areas across the Council and partners agencies,
meaning more knowledge and information will be
available to inform decision making on referrals
which will lead to efficiency gains.

By having access to all services available including
voluntary sector, the load will be spread across a
wider range of providers easing pressures
particularly on social care.

The pilot will put into practice the key principles of
integrated working including relationship building,
improved communications, information sharing,
pooled budgets, joint planning and management of
resources. These will provide a governance
framework and working practices that can be re-used
by future integrated working initiatives

Page 173

19



103. The panel were provided with information on the staffing resource within the locality
areas, this was allocated at the beginning of the pilot, however since, the partners have
widened including housing solutions team, Project adder, Fire and Cleveland Police
and a stakeholder group has been developed (including the community , partners and
schools) will allows joint working.

104. Following the initial information regarding the model, the panel were provided with
information regarding work undertaken in the pilot areas to combat crime and anti-
social behaviour:

¢ Allocated resource for both Localities

o Working groups for specific issues and actions.

e Police led action plan around People feeling safe.

¢ Dedicated action plan for Drugs and drug related issues.

o Weeks of action and ward specific operations (last week of action completed in
January in Newport on speeding)

¢ Joint meetings with dedicated officers to assist with diversion, engagement and
assistance (youth provision, drug and alcohol)- moving forward that issues do not
occur.

¢ Community engagement- placing and residents and business owners at the heart of
the community.

e -« Regular drop in events for Police and Council teams to offer assistance and
opportunities for face to face reporting. 10 February 2022

e Regular community feedback.

e Increase in high level intervention — life of model, in Newport, there has been 9
successful house closures. These were all linked in some way to drug dealing and high
level anti-social behaviour. Property close for 3 months and no access is permitted
during this time.

e Increased community intelligence and officer knowledge due to wider team and joint
working

The panel were interested to learn whether crime and asb levels had reduced. In terms of
indicators used by the locality model, the latest data was as follows:

Incidents | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q221/22 | Q3
of ASB 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 21/22 21/22
Newport | 523 349 374 244 258 232 172
North 157 86 122 76 98 106 64
Ormesby

Incidents | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 21/22 | Q3
of Police | 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 21/22 21/22
reported

crime

20
Page 174



Newport 151 185 177 144 219 196 165

North 46 68 60 51 67 65 67
Ormesby

Incidents | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 21/22 | Q3
of Public | 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 21/22 21/22
reported

crime

Newport 595 694 672 588 685 672 632
North 192 214 215 232 244 297 247
Ormesby

105. The model has increased information sharing and helped to centre the approach to
dealing with high levels of anti-social behaviour, which has resulted in an increase in
high level interventions with 9 House Closures, 3 Civil Injunctions and 9 injunction
breaches taking place within Newport.

106. There has also been a noticeable decline in incidents of anti-social behaviour and
The incidents reported to the Police and incidents of public reported crime were
comparable to 2019/20 data and what can be seen is a spike in the data in Q2 20/21
when covid restrictions were eased.

107. In terms of perception data, key questions are asked every 6 months and from there
actions are put in place to ensure they are responded to.

Feeling that Crime and ASB is improving in Newport
* 0 of individuals indicating measure is avery or fairly big problem, desired outcome
percentage decrease.
April 2020 - 80.65% October 2021- 44.29

Improvement in perception of gang nuisance Newport * % of individuals indicating measure
is a very or fairly big problem, desired outcome percentage decrease.

April 2020- 64.51% October 2021-36.91%

Feeling that Crime and ASB is improving North Ormesby
April 2020- 71.74% October 2021- 77.14%

21

Page 175



108. Whilst the figures are promising, the Council is aware there is always room for
improvement.

109. Perception survey in both localities were completed in September 2020 a further
survey linked to indicators was completed in March 2021 and again in October 2021.
The survey was open to everyone who lives in in the pilot areas and covid significantly
affected the way the survey way carried out. At the last survey, there were around 200
respondent’s (approx. 2% of the ward) , and therefore whilst its pleasing , there was
further work to be done to capture perceptions. The panel were advised that in the next
round of surveys, they would be taken to community events to try and capture more
views.

110. In terms of perceptions, the below have been captured:

o Perceptions of feeling safe during the day in Newport have risen from 31.18% of
respondents feeling very safe or fairly safe in September 2020 to 35.49% in March
2021 to 68.65% in October 2021.

o Perceptions of feeling safe during the day in North Ormesby have risen from 32.61%
of respondents feeling very safe or fairly safe in September 2020 to 51.51% in March
2021 to 77.14% in October 2021.

o Perceptions of feeling safe after dark in Newport have risen from 9.68% of
respondents feeling very or fairly safe on an evening in September 2020 to 12.90% in
March 2021 to 48.98%.

e Perceptions of feeling safe after dark within North Ormesby have risen from 13.04%
of respondents feeling very or fairly safe on an evening in September 2020 to 21.21%
in March 2021 to 31.42%.

111. Some of the statistics raised alarm to the panel members, especially in relation to
feeling safe after dark. However as the perceptions have grown, there is strong
evidence that the model is working.

112. There was some concern that the pilot areas would cease to operate locality
working after April 2022 in Newport and North Ormsbey, however the panel have
been reassured by the Director of Environment and Community services that this will
not be the case and that locality working will continue within these areas. An
evaluation would be carried out of the two areas and other wards which would benefit
from the model would be explored.

113. As locality working is not town wide at present, and where there are high levels of
crime and ASB, the council and partners are working with residents to put in place
other preventative measures.

Councillor C Cooke- Ward Councillor for Newport

Locality working is the best thing that was introduced. People faith has increased and
have started to report things, however no one believed in the council to report these
(which is why the reporting has gone up), however now issues get resolved and we have
an all whole system approach e.g if an alley is trashed, we look at why ,and how this can
be prevented from happening again- this is a success”.

“locality working was needed in Newport and from the perceptions surveys, it shows that
the model works”.




Detective Steve Pattison, Cleveland Police

“ Locality working does work, and by talking to each other, we get results through
partnership working and breaking down barriers which were once there. The statistics
show that when you start making an impression in an area, crime reporting may
increase, because public perception has increased with the services that are being
delivered and you get more intelligence”.

“The police work closely with the local authority , for example, there are officers
currently working alongside trading standards and officers have helped the local
authority do untaxed vehicles “.

Kim May- streets ahead

“ Streets ahead has been here since 2006, we are a community and charity
organisation and we provide a one stop shop and we were at one point the only
one. The difference that locality working has made to the area has been amazing.
You used to have to go round the houses to find an officer to report a problem,
but we now go to Adam and his team and we know that things will be sorted.
Residents feel safer and | am really pleased that locality is continuing as without
it we would be lost and we are working smarter”

Melanie Boyce -Community Safety Officer for selective landlord
licensing.

“ from my perception locality working has helped me and enhanced what | can
do in the community. We work with other partners e.g. the police, but | know |
have that direct contact and if | have to go on visits | can go with them. | do foot
patrolled with PCSO’s and therefore residents get to know who | am, and what
I am trying to achieve. If there is an issue relating to anti-social behavior, | look
at a holistic approach and talk to other partners e.g. children’s services/ schools
to ascertain the problem and work out how we can address these”.

CONCLUSIONS

114. The scrutiny panel reached the following conclusions in respect of its
investigation:

TERM OF REFERENCE A —

115. Based on the evidence received, the Panel applauds the excellent work being
undertaken by the Community Safety Team and partners. Whilst there is excellent

23

Page 177



work being undertaken, the panel feels councillors and the wider community need
further information on what the Council is doing in relation to crime and asb.

TERM OF REFERENCE B -

116. The Panel are passionate to ensure Middlesbrough is a safe place to live and
bring up a family. Whilst it is pleasing to hear that asb levels were at their lowest,
the panel is concerned about the raising levels of criminal activity across certain
areas of the town.

117. Whilst the panel recognises that the Council and Cleveland police work in
partnership to combat issues in our town, the levels of Cleveland police officers
patrolling our neighbourhoods is still lower than expected and the panel feel
having more officers would help to reduce some of the nuisance and crimes being
displayed.

TERM OF REFERENCE C

118. From evidence received, it is clear more information sharing on the community
trigger needs to be filtered to our communities.

119. Whilst saying this, the panel cannot take away the excellent work of our teams
and feels that their hard work should be acknowledged. Signing the ASB Pledge
would further put Middlesbrough on the map for putting victims at the heart of what
we do.

TERM OF REFERENCE D

120. From statistics and first hand evidence, it is clear that locality working does work,
especially in raising perceptions amongst our communities.

121. The panel is delighted that locality working will continue within Newport and North
Ormesby and would be keen to hear about any further roll out as well as receiving
further information on how locality working in the existing areas is impacting the
levels of crime and asb.

RECOMMENDATIONS

122. Based on the evidence gathered during the investigation, and the conclusions
above, the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel makes the following
recommendations for consideration by the Executive:-

a) That a general awareness session be established for elected members to discuss the
Community Safety partnership, the roles of the community safety teams and how to
raise a community trigger.

b) That further promotion of the community trigger process be shared with elected
members and the local communities, this could be done through, for example, ward
council meetings, lovemiddlesbrough magazine and community councils.

24

Page 178



Given the recent concerns surrounding the number of police officers within the
wards, the panel ask that the Council continue discussions with Cleveland Police to
ensure the correct resources are allocated to Middlesbrough.

d) That Middlesbrough council work in partnership with ASB help to sign up to the ASB
pledge.
e) That the panel members receive 6 monthly updates from the locality wards regarding
crime/ anti-social behavior statistics.
f) That members receive further updates, as and when, to the rolling out of locality
working in other wards within the town.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

123. The Panel would like to thank the following officers for their assistance in their work:

Geoff Field, Director of Environment and Community Services

Marion Walker, Head of Stronger Communities

Jane Hill, Strategic Community Safety Manager

Adam Parkinson, Senior Neighbourhood Development Manager

Dale Metcalf, Operational Community Safety Manager

Daryll Tomlinson, Chief Inspector p0554, Middlesbrough Neighbourhood Policing-
Cleveland Police

Kim May- Streets Ahead

Melanie Boyce -Community Safety Officer for selective landlord licensing
Detective Steve Pattison, Cleveland Police

Councillor Chris Cooke- Ward Councillor for Newport

Harvinder Saimbhi, CEO- ASB help

Katy Anderson, Practitioner Support Manager- ASB Help

BACKGROUND PAPERS

124. The following sources were consulted or referred to in preparing this report:

Minutes of the Culture and Community Scrutiny Panel held on 15 July 2021, 21
October 2021, 16 December 2021, 10 February 2022 and 10 March 2022.
Middlesbrough Council’'s — Statement of Policy and Procedures for Anti-social
behaviour.

ASB Help

Cleveland Police website

Gazette Live

BBC Panorama documentary — Anti-social behaviour- afraid in my own home.

COUNCILLOR C MCINTYRE- - CHAIR OF CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY

PANEL

The membership of the scrutiny panel is as follows: Councillors C Mcintyre (Chair), G
Wilson (Vice-Chair), R Arundale, D McCabe, L Lewis, M Nugent, S Dean C Dodds and J
Rostron

25

Page 179



Contact Officer:

Susie Blood

Democratic Services Officer

Telephone: 01642 729645 (direct line)
Email: Susie blood@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 180

26


mailto:Susie_blood@middlesbrough.gov.uk

T8T abed

CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL
TOUGH ENOUGH? ENFORCEMENT IN MIDDLESBROUGH AND ITS IMPACT ON CRIME AND ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR -

ACTION PLAN

18 OCTOBER 2022 (EXECUTIVE DATE)

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION PROPOSED ACTION POST TITLE BUDGET TIMESCALE
COST
a) That a general awareness session be Full briefing session will be Head of Stronger N/A December
established for elected members to discuss | organised for all elected members. Communities 2022
the Community Safety partnership, the roles | Presentation will include a full
of the community safety teams and how to | Overview of community safety
raise a community trigger. fqnctlons (including community
trigger).
b) That further promotion of the community Community trigger process will be Strategic TBC October 2022
trigger process be shared with elected shared with elected members during Community
members and the local communities, this the briefing session. Safety Manager
could be done through, for example, ward o _ ) )
council meetings, love Middlesbrough Publicity campaign will take place in
magazine and community councils. conjunction W'Fh the pe“d”?g OPC.:C
Community Trigger campaign which
will run for 7 weeks.
c) Given the recent concerns surrounding the These discussions already take Head of Stronger 2?77 Ongoing

number of police officers within the wards,
the panel ask that the Council continue
discussions with Cleveland Police to ensure
the correct resources are allocated to
Middlesbrough.

place on a monthly basis during the
AIM (Active Intelligence Mapping)
process. Resources are deployed
accordingly dependent upon crime
& ASB statistics.

Discussions are also taking place
between Elected Mayor & Chief
Constable regarding no’s of NPT
Officers

Communities




28T abed

d) That Middlesbrough council work in Work is already underway with ASB Strategic N/A December
partnership with ASB help to sign up to the Help and the OPCC who is keen for Community 2022
ASB pledge. all Cleveland L/A’s to sign up to the Safety Manager

pledge. The Pledge questionnaire
has already been completed &
changes are taking place to improve
our approach.

e) That the panel members receive 6 monthly Members briefings will be Community N/A December
updates from the locality wards regarding introduced which will include crime Safety Manager 2022
crime/ anti-social behavior statistics. & ASB data as well as enforcement

actions.
f) That members receive further updates, as Members will be kept informed of Head of Stronger N/A Ongoing

and when, to the rolling out of locality
working in other wards within the town.

progress with regard to the roll out.

Communities




Agenda Item 9

viyly

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL Middlesbrough

moving forward

Report of: Executive Member for Regeneration
Director for Adult Social Care and Health Integration

Submitted to: Executive
Date: 18 October 2022
Title: Consultation on the Proposal to Designation the Newport 2 Area

for a Selective Landlord Licensing Scheme

Report for: Decision

Status: Public

Strategic priority: Physical environment
Key decision: No

Why: Not applicable
Urgent: No

Why: Not applicable

Executive summary

Local authorities have powers to introduce Selective Landlord Licensing (SLL) schemes
over a five year period in areas with a high number of private rented properties, low
housing demand, poor housing conditions, high levels of deprivation, crime and migration
and/or significant and persistent anti-social behaviour associated with the tenants of
private rented properties. The purpose of such a scheme is to improve standards of
property management in the private rented sector, and when combined with other
measures, this should lead to improved physical, social and economic conditions.

Two SLL schemes currently operate in Middlesbrough; one in North Ormesby and the
second in a selected area of the Newport ward (known as the Newport 1 scheme.)
Newport ward continues to experiences major challenges. A proposal document has been
drawn up (Appendix A) which presents the evidence to show that the remaining area of
the Newport ward (known as the Newport 2 scheme) meets the legal criteria to be
designated a SLL area.

Secretary of State approval is not required for SLL schemes which cover 20% or less of
its geographical area or privately rented properties, provided that the authority has

Page 183 1




consulted for at least 10 weeks on the proposed designation. The schemes in
Middlesbrough do not meet the threshold for Secretary of State approval. Executive
approval is being sought for a period of consultation to be undertaken on the Proposal
documents for a Selective Landlord Licensing Scheme in the Newport 2 area.

Executive approval is required as this scheme is delivered via a legislative framework that
requires organisational approval to start formal consultation on the Proposal for the
Newport 2 scheme prior to implementation.

Purpose

1. To seek approval for consultation on the proposal to designate the Newport 2 area as a
Selective Landlord Licensing scheme and the proposed licence fee of £760. The
proposal document for this designation is shown at Appendix A.

Background and relevant information

2. The Housing Act 2004, gives local authorities powers to introduce Selective Landlord
Licensing (over a five year period) for privately rented properties in areas experiencing
low housing demand and/or significant and persistent anti-social behaviour. The
purpose of such a scheme is to improve standards of property management in the
private rented sector, and when combined with other measures, should lead to improved
physical, social and economic conditions.

3. Under the Housing Act 2004, Part 3 (Selective Licensing of other Residential
Accommodation), all private landlords operating within the designated area are required
to obtain a licence from the Council for each rented property. The conditions of the
licence ensure that the property is managed effectively, and licence holders have to
demonstrate their compliance.

Existing designated SLL areas in Middlesbrough

4. On the 9" December 2014 Executive approved proposals for introducing Selective
Landlord Licensing in Middlesbrough and a further report to Executive on 14" July 2015
saw the implementation of the scheme in North Ormesby which commenced on 1%t
January 2016. Executive approval was granted for the introduction of part of Newport
ward on 13" June 2019 (Newport 1) and the re-designation of North Ormesby ward was
granted on 14" June 2021.

5. Both North Ormesby and Newport 1 areas were designated as a Selective Landlord
Licensing areas as they have a high proportion of private rented properties and are
suffering problems attributable to:

a) Low housing demand

b) A significant and persistent problem caused by anti-social behaviour related to
tenants of or visitors to rented properties which were not being controlled by
landlords;

6. In 2015 the criteria for designating Selective licensing schemes were widened to include
poor housing conditions and high levels of deprivation, crime and migration. The

Page 184 2



improvement of management standards in the private rented sector will help to combat
housing problems associated with deprivation.

The intended outcomes for all SLL schemes are to achieve:

e A reduction in the number of empty properties and low demand which will lead to
improvements in the social and economic conditions of the sector, which are
identifiable.

e A reduction in anti-social behaviour (caused by tenants in the private sector) in the
designated area.

e A general improvement of property conditions in the designated area within the
lifetime of the designation.

The performance of each SLL scheme is closely monitored. During the fourth year of
the first North Ormesby scheme an evaluation was undertaken to support the proposal
for a second scheme. This identified the following positive outcomes for the North
Ormesby Selective Landlord Licensing scheme :

e reducing anti-social behaviour attributable to the private rented sector;

improving management standards in the private rented sector;

increasing housing demand;

improving the environment; and

contributing to the effectiveness of partnership working to improve the quality of life.

The main findings of the North Ormesby Evaluation Report are summarised below:

e House prices in the area started to increase. In 2016 the average house price
plummeted to £36,000 and has since increased by 17% to £42,000.

e The turnover of tenants reduced by 50% resulting in a more static population.

e Whilst the overall number of empty properties fluctuated throughout the life of the
scheme, there was a considerable reduction in the number of long term empty
properties, often the more problematic for residents.

e The number of inspections of private rented properties increased and housing
conditions improved.

¢ Anti-social behaviour was tackled through a wide range of interventions by the SLL
team;

o 1249 early interventions. These are mainly referrals into other services for
support

o 2495 low Interventions. These include telephone call/e-mail, letter drop, diary
sheets received, initial warning letters, motorbike warning letter, site meetings
and joint patrols.

o 955 medium interventions. These include second warning letters, final
warnings, ABC issued, ABC breached, joint interviews and tenancy breach
interviews.

o 15 high level interventions. These include Criminal Behaviour Orders, Civil
Injunction, House Closures (all for high levels of persistent antisocial behaviour
and a last resort after all low and medium level interventions have been
exhausted).

e A 49% reduction in personal antisocial behaviour incidents

e An 11% reduction in nuisance antisocial behaviour incidents.

e 154 post tenancy visits were carried out to provide support to the tenant on a wide
range of issues including substance misuse, parenting skills, employment;

Page 185 3



The number of environmental antisocial behaviour incidents remained high,
however there was a reduction in the number of incidents with rubbish bins/refuse
left in alleyways and reports to the contact centre.
A wide range of support was provided for landlords including :
o Dedicated Neighbourhood Safety Officer;
Dedicated Tenancy Relations Officer;
Housing and tenancy support/advice;
Rent recovery in excess of £5,000;
Referencing;
Post tenancy visits for new and existing tenancies.

0O O O O O

10. Most landlords in the North Ormesby Scheme have been compliant with licensing their
properties. Eight landlords applied for their licences after receiving their court summons.
Legal proceedings have been taken against 4 landlords. The Evaluation Report
recognised that the Selective Landlord Licensing scheme had made a major contribution
to the achievements in North Ormesby working together with key partners.

11.

It is too early for a full evaluation of the Newport 1 scheme to be carried out, however
initial interim outcomes are summarised below:

House prices in the designated area have started to increase slightly with the overall
average price of £48,585 (89 sales) in 2019 and the overall average price of
£49,903K (115 sales) in 2021.

301 private rented properties have been inspected and housing conditions have

improved. 167 serious housing hazards were identified (category 1 & 2) in properties

and have been addressed to protect tenants. 50 properties were safe without any

Catl & Cat 2 Hazards. Smoke alarms checks have been carried out on all housing

inspections to ensure they are provided in properties.

410 reports received on environmental antisocial behaviour incidents with rubbish

bins/refuse left in alleyways.

69 post tenancy visits have been carried out to provide support to the tenant on a

wide range of issues including substance misuse, parenting skills, unemployment;

The scheme in Newport continues to support landlords as demonstrated in the North

Ormesby Scheme.

Anti-social behaviour has been tackled through a wide range of interventions:

o 3610 low Interventions. These include telephone call/e-mail, letter drop, diary
sheets received, site meetings, joint patrols and referrals into other services for
support

o 43 medium interventions. These include warning letters, final warnings, ABC
issued, ABC breached, joint interviews and tenancy breach interviews.

o 79 high level interventions. These include Criminal Behaviour Orders, Civil
Injunction, House Closures (all for high levels of persistent antisocial behaviour
and a last resort after all low and medium level interventions have been
exhausted).

o There has been a 64% reduction in personal & nuisance antisocial behaviour
incidents.

o Joint working with Cleveland Police has resulted in 10 Closure Orders for
residential premises and an increase in the execution of drug warrants across the
ward. We have also worked with landlords to serve section 8 & 21 notices for the
eviction of tenants.

o A resident’s survey completed in November 2021 showed an increase in the
percentage of residents who said they felt fairly or very safe in the ward. The figure
for residents who felt fairly or very safe during the day rose from 35.48% in March

Page 186 4



12.

13.

2021 to 68.65% in November 2021. Those who said they felt fairly or very safe on
an evening rose from 12.9% in March 2021 to 48.98% in November 2021.

The progress of the Newport 1 scheme is promising and demonstrate that the approach
is having a positive impact. However, there is further work to be done and SLL, working
together with other agencies through the Locality Working approach, can achieve
greater improvements.

The Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel reviewed the first North Ormesby scheme
in 2018. The Panel were extremely supportive of the scheme. Throughout the process,
the Panel made reference to the issues within Gresham and University wards and the
increasing number of private rented housing properties and hoped that any future
schemes would mirror the North Ormesby model.

The Proposed Newport 2 SLL scheme.

14.

15.

The proposed Newport 2 scheme aims to address:

e The problems associated with low demand for housing by imposing conditions
relating to the management of properties.

e The problems associated with anti-social behaviour by including conditions in
licences which required landlords to take action to deal with such behaviour, such
as tenancy referencing to ensure that properties are not let to persons with a known
record of anti-social behaviour and relating to the use of the property.

e The poor housing standards in the private rented sector by incorporating housing
inspections and enforcement action as a requirement of the scheme, as well as
ensuring that the properties are properly managed to prevent further deterioration.

The proposal document for the designation of the Newport 2 SLL scheme (Appendix 1)
provides the information and evidence to demonstrate how the proposed area meets
the legal criteria for designation and this is summarised below:

High level of deprivation

16.

The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) is used to provide a set of relative measures of
deprivation (ranks) for small geographical areas (Lower-layer Super Output Areas
(LSOA)). All seven LSOAs in Newport ward are within the most deprived 10% in
England. Three LSOAs in Newport have seen an improvement in their ranking since
IMD 2015, whilst the remaining four have worsened. Newport is the 26th most deprived
ward nationally at IMD 2019 and is ranked as the fourth most deprived ward in
Middlesbrough.

Low Housing demand

17.

40.7% of households in Newport are ‘private landlord or letting agency accommodation’,
compared with 15.1% for Middlesbrough as a whole, 23.7% for North East Region and
13.6% for the whole of England. In June 2022 there were 199 properties which had been
empty for greater than 6 months in Newport, which is 3.7% of the Newport housing
stock. There were 323 empty properties in total which is 5.9% of the ward’s stock.
Newport is the second highest ward in Middlesbrough behind North Ormesby and just
ahead of Brambles & Thorntree and Central.

Page 187 5



18. Long term empty properties in Newport account for 30.8% of the total long term empty
properties in Middlesbrough, and the total empty properties in Newport account for 18%
of the total number of empty properties in all of Middlesbrough.

19. The property values in Newport are lower than the Middlesbrough average and there is
a high turnover of properties.

20. Poor housing conditions including disrepair. Middlesbrough’s Private Sector Stock
Condition Survey (PSSCS) 2008 identified Newport as having the second highest
proportion of non-decent dwellings in Middlesbrough at 49.3%. Non-decent homes do
not meet current statutory minimum standards, are not in a reasonable state of repair,
do not have reasonably modern facilities and fail to provide a reasonable degree of
thermal comfort.

Crime

21. During the period 1st February 2018 to 31st January 2020, Newport ward had the
second highest rate of Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), racially motivated crime and other
crime in Middlesbrough. During this period there were 2,499 ASB reports, 123 racially
motivated crimes, 311 fires and a total of 5,906 crime reports.

Antisocial Behaviour

22. There were a total of 1334 complaints of anti-social behaviour received by the Council’s
Public Protection and Community Safety teams in 2018.There had been a slight
decrease in 2019, followed by a sizable increase in 2020 and 2021. For 2021 the total
number of complaints received were 28.6% higher than the reported levels in 2018.

23. The Newport 2 ward area will include 2,617 properties. The geographical area for the
proposed scheme is shown in Appendix 1 of the Proposal document.

Proposed licence fee

24. The calculation of the costs for delivering Newport 2 SLL scheme is consistent with both
current SLL schemes (with an inflationary rise) and taking into account the expected
number of properties which will require a licence. This proposed fee enables the scheme
to be self-financing, it is calculated on the staffing requirements for the administration
and regulation of the selective landlord licensing scheme.

25. It is proposed that the licence fee for the Newport 2 scheme should be £760 & £20 Fit
& Proper person fee for a 5 year licence, penalty fees of £100 would continue to apply
for late applications.

What decision(s) are being recommended?

26. That the Executive approve the Proposal document on the Newport 2 Selective Landlord
Licensing Scheme and the proposed fee of £760 to cover the cost of delivering the
scheme and that a period of consultation is undertaken relating to the designation of the
scheme.

27. The results of the consultation will be presented back to Executive for consideration
prior to implementation.

Page 188 6



Rationale for the recommended decision(s)

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

The SLL schemes in both North Ormesby and Newport 1 area have resulted in
improvements in the living and environmental conditions for those living in the area and
contributed to reductions in antisocial behaviour. The designation of the remaining area
of the Newport ward for Selective Landlord Licensing scheme would continue to ensure
that property standards are maintained, anti-social behaviour issues related to tenants
are reduced and managed and that landlords are held accountable for the costs of both
licensing and the property management improvements. The existing SLL designations
are self-financing and, in line with the recommended changes to the scheme, the new
designation would work in the same way.

The designation will require all privately rented properties within the identified
boundaries, subject to statutory exemptions, to apply to be licensed for up to five years
and comply with the licence conditions.

The proposed fee of £760 enables the Council to ensure the scheme is self-financing, it
is calculated on the staffing requirements for the administration and regulation of the
selective landlord licensing scheme.

The boundary for the SLL scheme is to ensure complete coverage of the area in relation
to improved housing standards, environmental conditions and reduction in crime and
anti-social behaviour.

Prior to designating an area, the Council is required to undertake a minimum 10 week
statutory consultation with local people, businesses, landlords and partners.

Other potential decision(s) and why these have not been recommended

Do not designate and continue with the existing arrangements

33.

Carry on with the existing arrangement using the current resources available without a
dedicated Selective licensing team. This would mean utilising the current staffing and
regulatory roles and managing the area through the existing arrangements. Without a
dedicated SLL team we would not have the legal controls to hold landlords accountable
for their tenant and property management, there would be no staffing resource to carry
out mandatory tenancy referencing, pro-active housing standards inspections, or to
respond to the antisocial behaviour. This will continue to have an in balance and
difference in the approach between the two areas of the Newport ward.

Do not designate the area and carry out alternative interventions.

34.

35.

Alternatives to Selective Licensing were considered for other wards prior to the
designation of the North Ormesby and Newport Selective Licensing areas. These
included voluntary registration and the use of traditional enforcement tools. These would
require significant additional investment by the Council to achieve any sustainable
change across the area.

Alternative interventions would still require a need to ensure that that proactive

assessment of properties and an increased focus on renting and management practices
is sustained. While selective landlord licensing is not intended to be indefinite, a shift to

Page 189 7



36.

37.

38.

an alternative non-regulatory approach or only relying on traditional reactive
enforcement tools is not considered appropriate to sustain or progress the
improvements achieved.

Traditional interventions do not provide the level of engagement with landlords
necessary for the desired improvements. Landlord take up of previous accreditation
schemes have been very low, they tended to only engage with responsible landlords
who saw a value in being part of a scheme. An example of a non-mandatory scheme is
the Stockton Pluss model which is run by landlords. Stockton Council figures show that
they had 80 members for this scheme with 539 properties and not all landlords who
opposed their SLL scheme joined the accredited scheme.

Short term proactive enforcement projects can have an impact but are not sustainable
without significant investment from existing revenue budgets or grant funding.

It is proposed that the recommended action is the most appropriate course to ensure a
sustainable and cost effective solution to improving management standards in the
private rented sector in the designated Newport 2 area and that a formal consultation is
commenced.

Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s)

39.

The recommended decision is to commence a period of consultation with local
landlords, the residents and partner agencies on the proposal to implement a SLL
scheme in Newport 2 area. This consultation will be used to inform a final
recommendation to be made to Executive on whether to designate the Selective
Landlord Licensing scheme in the Newport 2 area. The impact of such a scheme will
be determined through this consultation and detailed in the Executive Report.

Legal

40.

41.

42.

Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004 sets out the scheme for licensing private rented
properties in a local housing authority area. Under the Act a local housing authority can
designate the whole or any part or parts of its area as subject to selective licensing.
Where a selective licensing designation is made it applies to privately rented property in
the area.

A SLL designation may be made if the area to which it relates satisfies one or more of
the conditions listed. The local housing authority may only make a designation if the
area has a high proportion of property in the private rented sector. Nationally the private
rented sector currently makes up 19% of the total housing stock in England.

Before making a designation, a consultation is required and full consideration should be
given to any representations made during the process. Where the criteria are satisfied
and a selective licensing scheme is made, a designation may be made for up to 5 years.
The designation cannot come into force until 3 months after it is made. A notice of the
designation has to be published within seven days of the designation being confirmed.
All those consulted on the proposed designation should be notified within two weeks of
the designation being confirmed.

Strategic priorities and risks

Page 190 8



43.

44,

45.

46.

Approval for designations must be sought from the Secretary of State for Communities
and Local Government if more than 20% of the private rented housing or 20% of the
geographical area of the local authority are will be subject to licensing, The area
proposed, along with the recent designations for the Newport and North Ormesby SLL
areas do not cover more than 20% of the geographical area of the borough. This means
that the Council does not require Secretary of State Approval to make the designation
proposed in this report.

If the SLL scheme is not approved for designation there is a risk that this will have an
adverse effect on the Newport 1 area already designated for Selective Landlord
Licensing.

There is a risk of a shortfall in recovering the costs of the scheme if the scheme does
not receive applications and fees from the anticipated number of licensable premises.
This risk is mitigated by the preparatory work the Selective Licensing team has already
undertaken to map properties and landlords and their experience in regulatory action
where there is a failure to licence.

There is a risk of legal challenge in the form of a judicial review against the decision to
introduce or renew a Selective Landlord Licensing scheme. However the risk of such a
challenge will be less where the Authority ensures that the legislation is complied with.
A judicial review of the Newport 1 scheme was launched in August 2019 where one
landlord made an application to the High Court. This application was declined referral
for a full review on the basis that all five grounds submitted were not sufficient.

Human Rights, Equality and Data Protection

47.

There will be no negative, differential impact on diverse groups and communities
associated with this report. It has been demonstrated that the Selective Landlord
Licensing scheme provides significant benefit to vulnerable groups by improving living
standards and providing support in improving health, education and financial
management.

Financial

48.

49.

The SLL scheme is self-financing with all relevant costs recovered through the payment
of a fee by landlords to obtain their licence. The Council does not subsidise the scheme.
Any additional costs are recovered by fee increases whilst savings are passed back. A
guideline licence fee of £760 per property will allow the scheme to be delivered within
the existing financial envelope. This fee will be subject to consultation and detailed
financial consequences of the designated scheme will be detailed in the final report to
Executive.

Based on the costs of the previous consultation processes for Selective Licensing
designations, it is expected that the consultation process will cost approximately £8,500.
The costs will be managed within the existing Public Protection revenue budget as they
cannot be recovered through the licence fee.

Page 191 9



Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s)

Action

Responsible Officer

Deadline

Statutory 10 week
consultation prior to an
Executive decision on
whether to designate the
remainder of Newport ward
for Selective Licensing.

Judith Hedgley/Louise Kelly

Within 4 weeks of
Executive decision.

Following the consultation,
a further report will brought
to a further Executive
meeting, with the outcome
of the consultation and final
recommendations for the
next steps including any
adjustments that have
been considered following
any representations and
whether the area should be
designated.

Judith Hedgley/Louise Kelly

December/January 2022

Following this the full
outcome would be
published. In accordance
with legal requirements the
respondents to the
consultation would be
individually notified of the
outcome in addition to
being publicised through
newspapers, the Council’s
web site and press
releases.

Judith Hedgley/Louise Kelly

December/January 2022

Should a decision be taken
to designate the Selective
Licensing area, designation
would be within 3 months
from the date of the
Executive meeting.

Judith Hedgley/Louise Kelly

April 2023 scheme start
date

Appendices

1 Appendix A. Newport Proposal document

2 Appendix 1. Map of designated area and wider consultation area

3 Appendix 2. Fit & Proper Test

Page 192

10



4 Appendix 3. Licence Conditions

5 Appendix 4. Exemptions

6 Appendix 5. Fee Structure

7 Appendix 6. North Ormesby Evaluation

Background papers

Body

Report title

Date

MHCLG Selective Licensing in the

Private Rented Sector. A
Guide for Local Authorities.

March 2015

MBC

Newport Proposal
document for Selective
Landlord Licensing
Scheme.

July 2021

Contact:

Judith Hedgley Head of Public Protection. Louise Kelly, SLL Manager.

Email: Judith hedgley@middlesbrough.gov.uk,louise kelly@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 193

11



mailto:Judith_hedgley@middlesbrough.gov.uk
mailto:louise_kelly@middlesbrough.gov.uk
mailto:louise_kelly@middlesbrough.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Map

Archibald
Primary School

'.;Aﬂ.nuo’lj 3

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

FIT AND PROPER PERSON CHECKS

Middlesbrough Council, for the purposes of deciding whether to grant or refuse an application for
a licence under section 88(3) (a) or (c) of the Housing Act 2004, will (among other things) have
regard to the evidence that the person is a fit and proper person to be the licence holder or (as
the case may be) the manager of the house. Middlesbrough Council will evaluate and take into
account any evidence of:

(a) They have committed any offence involving fraud or other dishonesty, or violence or drugs,
or any offence listed in Schedule 3 to the Sexual Offences Act 2003 (c. 42) (offences attracting
notification requirements);

(b) Practised unlawful discrimination as defined in the Equality Act 2010 on the grounds of sex,
sexual orientation, gender reassignment, age, race, religion or belief, marital status,
pregnancy, maternity, or disability in, or in connection with, the carrying on of any business;
or

(c) Contravened any provision of the law relating to housing or landlord and tenant law.

A criminal conviction or evidence of unlawful discrimination or breaches of housing or landlord
and tenant law doesn't necessarily mean that a landlord won't pass the test. The Council will have
to look at every case individually and weigh up all the circumstances when making a decision.
For example, the Council will have to think about:

o What the conviction was for;

« The circumstances of the case;

« How long ago it was and whether it is spent or not;

« Whether or not it will affect the person's ability to be a good landlord;

« The risk of the same thing happening again and whether that would affect the person's
duties as a Licence Holder.

In addition Middlesbrough Council will also examine evidence:

(a) If it shows that any person associated or formerly associated with the landlord or managing
agent (whether on a personal, work or other basis) has done any of the things set out in
subsection (a) to (c) above, and

(b) It appears to the council that the evidence is relevant to the question whether the landlord is
a fit and proper person to be the licence holder or (as the case may be) the manager of the
house.

Middlesbrough Council will consider that a person is not a fit and proper person if a banning order
under section 16 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 is in force against the person.

For the purposes of the fit and proper test Middlesbrough Council will assume, unless the contrary
is shown, that the person having control of the house is a more appropriate person to be the
licence holder than a person not having control of it.

Page 197



Middlesbrough Council in deciding for the purposes of whether the proposed management
arrangements for the house are otherwise satisfactory, will have regard (among other things) to
the following considerations:

e Whether any person proposed to be involved in the management of the house has a
sufficient level of competence to be so involved;

e Whether any person proposed to be involved in the management of the house (other than
the manager) is a fit and proper person to be so involved; and

e Whether any proposed management structures and funding arrangements are suitable.

Page 2%98



Appendix 3

DRAFT LICENCE CONDITIONS M

Middlesbrough

moving forward

Middlesbrough Council
Newport Ward
Selective Landlord Licensing Conditions

(Housing Act 2004)

Page 199



Mandatory Conditions Schedule 4 Housing Act 2004

1. Gas

If gas is supplied to the house, the Licence holder shall provide to Middlesbrough Council
a Gas Safety Certificate issued within the previous 12 months at the time of the
application and thereafter annually.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004.

2. Electrical Installation

The Licence Holder is required to ensure that every electrical installation in the house is in
proper working order and safe for continued use; and to supply the authority, on demand,
with a declaration by him as to the safety of such installations.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004.

3. Electrical appliances

The Licence holder shall keep all electrical appliances and furniture supplied in a safe
condition and must provide a declaration as to their safety at the time of application and
thereafter on demand.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004.

4. Furniture and furnishings

The Licence holder shall ensure that furniture and furnishings supplied by them are
compliant with the Furniture and Furnishings (Fire) (Safety) Regulations 1988 (as
amended 1989 and 1993) and must provide a declaration as to their safety at the time of
application and thereafter on demand.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004.

5. Smoke alarms

The Licence Holder is required to ensure that a smoke alarm is installed on each storey of
the house on which there is a room used wholly or partly as living accommodation and to
keep any such alarm in proper working order.

The Licence Holder is required upon demand by Middlesbrough Council to supply a
declaration as to the condition and positioning of such alarms.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004,
The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations 2015 and to
comply with minimum fire safety standards LACORS.

6. Carbon Monoxide alarms

PageZ%OO



The Licence Holder is required to ensure that a carbon monoxide alarm is installed in any
room in the house which is used wholly or partly as living accommodation and contains a
solid fuel burning combustion appliance, and to keep any such alarm in proper working
order.

The licence holder is required upon demand by Middlesbrough Council to supply a
declaration as to the condition and positing of such alarms

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004,
The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations 2015 and to
comply with minimum fire safety standards LACORS.

7. Tenant references

The licence holder must demand and obtain references for all prospective occupiers of the
house to enable the licence holder to make an informed decision regarding occupancy of
the property.

All references shall be obtained by the licence holder via the FREE Middlesbrough Council,
tenant referencing service.

The licence holder must retain all references obtained for occupiers for the duration of
this licence and must provide Middlesbrough Council, upon demand and within 14 days of
that demand, a copy of pre-let reference checks along with full names and dates of birth
of each occupant.

NOTE: Details of how to contact Middlesbrough Council in respect of the tenant
referencing service can be found at: https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/planning-and-
housing/landlord-and-tenant-support/tenancy-referencing-service/tenancy-referencing-
service-further-information

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004

8. Terms of occupation

The Licence holder shall supply to the occupiers of the house a written statement of the
terms on which they occupy the property. A copy of the terms will be provided to the
Council on demand.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004
Additional Conditions of Licence imposed by Middlesbrough
Counacil

The Licence holder must ensure that the premises fully comply with the
conditions set out below unless notified otherwise
9. General/Property management

The Licence holder shall ensure that:

a) all repairs to the house or any installations, facilities or equipment within it are carried
out by competent and suitably qualified person(s), for example Gas Safe registered

Pag%e 201



operatives for gas appliances and an electrical contractor who is a member of an
approved scheme, such as NICEIC, BSI, NAPIT, ELECSA or BRE.

b) all occupants of the house receive written confirmation detailing arrangements in
place to deal with repairs and emergencies.

c) if the property is provided with electrical appliances, copies of user manuals will be
supplied to the tenant.

d) all occupiers are made aware of the licence and its conditions.

Reason: To safeguard the health, safety and well-being of occupants.

10. Security

The Licence holder shall ensure that:

a) where alley gates are installed to the rear of the licensed property, tenants are made
aware of how to obtain a key.

Reason: To safeguard the health, safety and well-being of occupants.

11. External areas, refuse and waste

The Licence holder shall ensure that:

a) the tenants are instructed in their responsibilities in respect of refuse storage and
disposal, to include details of what day refuse collections take place and what type of
receptacle to use for household waste and recycling;

Reason: To ensure that the domestic hygiene and condition of the licensed
property is maintained.

12. Training

The Licence holder and/or Manager shall undertake property management training
courses or information days, where required to do so by the Council.

Reason: To enable the Council to provide licence holders with the knowledge
and expertise to improve the management of their properties.

13. Management / Anti-social behaviour

The Licence holder shall take reasonable and practical steps to reduce or prevent anti-
social behaviour by persons occupying or visiting the house and the use of premises for
illegal purposes.

The Licence holder shall:

a) provide a written action plan to Middlesbrough Council outlining procedures for
dealing with anti-social behaviour at the time of application. This must be reviewed
annually, tenants made aware of it and submitted on request;

Page32102




b) provide the local authority, upon request, the full names and dates of birth of each
occupant of the property;

c) cooperate with Middlesbrough Council, Cleveland Police and other agencies in
resolving complaints of anti-social behaviour or criminal activity. The Licence holder
and/or their nominated Managing Agent must not ignore or fail to take action against
any complaints regarding their tenants. Written records of action taken, shall be
maintained and made available for inspection by an authorised officer of
Middlesbrough Council on request;

d) ensure that the appropriate authorities (namely Middlesbrough Council and Cleveland
Police) are informed, where they have reason to believe that their tenant's behaviour
involves criminal activity;

e) make regular (at least quarterly) inspections of the property to ensure that the
property is in a good state of repair and that the occupiers are not in breach of
tenancy terms and conditions. Written records of inspections made, conditions noted
and actions taken as a result shall be maintained and made available for inspection by
an authorised officer of Middlesbrough Council;

f) ensure that each tenant is made aware that they are responsible for their own
behaviour and the behaviour of other occupiers and visitors.

g) the name and contact details of the Licence holder and/or manager must be supplied
to each occupier and must also be on display in a prominent place.

h) produce on request liability insurance.

Reason: To safeguard the well-being of occupants, persons visiting the
premises and persons in the immediate locality.

14. Notification / consultation of changes

The Licence holder and Managing Agent shall consult with Middlesbrough Council before
making any material changes to the layout, amenity provision, fire precautions or
occupation of the house. They must also inform Middlesbrough Council of:

a) when you sell the property in order that your licence can be revoked.

b) details of any convictions not previously disclosed to the local authority that may be
relevant to the Licence holder and/or the property manager and their fit and proper
person status and in particular any such conviction in respect of any offence involving
fraud or dishonesty, or violence or drugs or any offence listed in Schedule 3 to the
Sexual Offences Act 2003;

¢) details of any finding by a court or tribunal, not previously disclosed, against the
Licence holder and /or the manager that he/she has on the grounds of sex, sexual
orientation, gender reassignment, age, race, religion or belief, marital status,
preghancy, maternity, or disability in, or in connection with, the carrying on of any
business;

Page 203




d) details of any contravention, not previously disclosed, on the part of the Licence
holder or manager of any provision of any enactment relating to housing, public
health, environmental health or landlord and tenant law which led to civil or criminal
proceedings resulting in a judgment or finding being made against him/her;

e) information about any property, not previously disclosed, the Licence holder or
manager owns or manages or has owned or managed for which a local housing
authority has refused to grant a licence under Part 2 or 3 of the Act, or has revoked a
licence in consequence of the Licence holder breaching the conditions of his/her
licence;

f) information about any property, not previously disclosed, the Licence holder or
manager owns or manages or has owned or managed that has been the subject of an
Interim or Final Management Order under the Housing Act 2004;

g) notification of repossession/foreclosure;
h) successful claims against the Licence holder for default of tenancy deposits;
i) change in managing agent or the instruction of a managing agent;

j) the undertaking of substantial works to the property, including conversions and
modernisations or emergency problems relating to fire, flood or disaster and the
tenants are made temporarily homeless.

Reason: To safeguard the health, safety and well-being of occupants in the
event of changes during the period of the Licence and to enable the Council to
decide whether the licence holder continues to be fit and proper to hold a
Selective Landlord Licence.

15. Absence

The Licence holder shall have in place suitable emergency and other management
arrangements in the event of their absence.

Reason: to safeguard the health, safety and well-being of occupants in the
event of temporary absence of persons in control.

16. Compliance inspections

The Licence holder shall allow the Council to undertake Licence compliance checks.
Council officers will give the Licence holder at least 24 hours’ notice of these checks and
produce valid authorisation at the time of the visit.

Reason: To ensure that the property complies with the Housing Act 2004 and
Licence conditions.

Page32304




APPENDIX 4

EXEMPTIONS
Properties that are exempt from requiring a licence are those that are:

1. Subject to a Prohibition Order, under Section 20 of the Housing Act 2004, that has not been
suspended.

2. Business premises.
3. Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) that require a statutory HMO licence.
4. Tenancies for agricultural land/holdings.

5. Controlled by a local housing authority, Police authority, Fire and Rescue authority or a Health
Service body.

6. Occupied solely by students undertaking a full-time course of further or higher education, and
where the person managing or in control of it is the educational establishment.

7. Tenancies granted for more than 21 years and the agreement does not allow the landlord to
end the tenancy earlier than the term of the lease (the property must be occupied by the
original person who was granted the tenancy or members of their family).

8. The tenant is a member of the landlord’s family. (The house must be the occupier’s main
residence. The person granting the occupancy must be the freeholder or leaseholder, which
is for a period of more than 21 years. This lease must not contain a provision allowing the
landlord to end the tenancy earlier than the term of the lease);

9. Tenancies or licenses granted for the occupancy of a holiday home.

10.Accommodation that the occupier shares with the landlord or licensor or a member of the
landlord or licensor’s family.

Pagqe 205



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

FEE STRUCTURE

Fee and charging structure for the implementation of Selective Landlord Licensing in a
phase 2 of the Newport ward.

Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004 enables the Council to require the application for a Licence to be
accompanied by a fee fixed by the Council.

The Council is not permitted to make a profit from the introduction of a Selective Landlord
Licensing scheme and any surplus must be ring-fenced to the scheme. The fees should,
however, take account of all costs incurred in carrying out all duties under this part of the Act.

Licence Fees
To meet the costs involved in running the Newport Phase 2 Selective Landlord Licensing Scheme
it is proposed to charge fees of:

= £760 per Single Occupancy Household Unit

= £20 per Fit and Proper Person Check — in respect of the proposed Licence Holder and
the proposed manager (if a different person from the Licence Holder)

This fee has been calculated based on the cost to run the various elements of work needed to administer and
enforce the scheme; the number of officers required to fulfil these tasks and the officer time needed to complete
them were identified and then costed.

Where a licence is refused or revoked, the applicant or licence holder will not be entitled to any
refund of fees and will be required to pay any outstanding charges linked to the application.

Applications resulting from a change in ownership of a licensed property will be charged the full
standard fee.

Owners should give careful consideration to the person designated as Licence holder as
licences run for a maximum of 5 years and are non-transferable. If the licence holder changes
for any reason, the full licence fee is payable by the first licence holder and the new licence
holder will also need to pay the full standard fee. The new licence holder will not incur a
penalty charge as long as the application form, fees and documentation are received within
three months of the change of ownership/manager.

Applications for licences in the last six months of the designation will be eligible for a reduced
fee of 50%, where properties have not been licensable prior to the 6 month deadline.

The Council will look to recoup its additional costs where landlords fail to come forward during
the licensing timescales or provide incomplete applications which requires additional work from
the team.

Licence Fees by Instalments

Payment of the fee by instalments. This has been requested by some landlords in previous
schemes. The fee is paid in two parts and it is proposed that Instalment arrangements could only
be applied to the second part of the fee, the initial payment covers the cost of administering the

Page 207



application process. Itis proposed that fees could be paid over a term of between 6 and 12 months
depending on the number of properties to be licensed. Terms would be applied and to cover the
cost of administering this a fee of £100 is proposed. Any landlord who defaults on payments
would not be offered payment by instalments for subsequent licenses.

Method of Payment

This fee is divided into two payments the second only becoming payable when it is decided the
landlord is fit and proper to be issued with the licence. The first £380 + £20, will be used to
administer the application and fit and proper process. The second £380 will be used for the
ongoing administration and the enforcement of the legislation associated with the scheme.

Page32608



DRAFT

SELECTIVE LANDLORD LICENSING NORTH ORMESBY SCHEME

EVALUATION REPORT 2020

CONTENTS
Introduction
1. Aim of the evaluation
2. Methodology

Policy background and project set up

3. Background to Selective Landlord Licensing

4. The introduction of Selective Licensing in North Ormesby
5. Selective Landlord Licensing fees

Performance
6. Low Demand
6.1 House prices
6.2 Turnover of tenants
6.3 Empty properties & long term empties (more than 6 months)
7. Property Conditions
7.1 Improving housing standards
7.2 Housing disrepair
8. Management Standards
8.1 Tenancy referencing
9. Antisocial Behaviour & Early Help
9.1 Antisocial behaviour
9.2 Early help
10. Environmental nuisance
11. Application Process
11.1 Applications Received
11.2 Licences issued
11.3 Licences issued to interested parties
12. Enforcement
12.1 Enforcement for non-compliance
12.2 Partnership working

Scheme Audits and Evaluations

13. External and Internal Evaluations/audits of the scheme

13.1 MHCLG Independent Review of SLL schemes

13.2 Middlesbrough Council scrutiny panel review

13.3 Middlesbrough Council internal audit

14. Conclusion

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Map of designated area
Appendix 2 — Fit & proper person check
Appendix 3 — Licence conditions
Appendix 4 - Exemptions

Appendix 5 — Fee Structure

Appendix 6 — Case Studies

Appendix A — Proposal document

Page 209



INTRODUCTION
1. Aim of the evaluation

Middlesbrough Council currently operates two Selective Landlord Licensing (SLL) schemes set up under
Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004.

Under the terms of the Act, each scheme runs for five years, with an evaluation required before the end
of that period to assess its impact and to contribute to the decision whether it should be continued or
ended.

The North Ormesby scheme, five-year period during which the locality is designated for Selective
Licensing ends in December 2020. The designation on the Council’s second Selective Licensing scheme
within a part of Newport ward ends on 12" June 2024.

The aim of this report is to present the findings of an evaluation of the Selective Licensing scheme within
North Ormesby ward.

Using guidance from Local Government Regulation, the evaluation seeks to identify the effectiveness of
Selective Licensing in:

- reducing anti social behaviour attributable to the private rented sector;

- improving management standards in the private rented sector;

- increasing housing demand;

- improving the environment; and

- contributing to the effectiveness of partnership working to improve the quality of life.

2. Methodology

The methodology used for this evaluation of the Selective Licensing scheme within North Ormeshy
consists of:

e Analysis of data from Middlesbrough Council and other stakeholders collected during the 2016 -
2020 licensing period;

e Case studies, including descriptions of the housing market and details on how the Selective
Licensing scheme has been managed;

e Interpretation of opinions expressed by managing agents, landlords and stakeholders operating
in the Selective Licensing area.

The evaluation has also taken account of findings from an Independent Review of the Use and
Effectiveness of Selective Licensing was carried out by Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG June 2019, Updated September 2019).

This report also sets out the policy background to Selective Licensing and describing the situation at
North Ormesby. The report summarises the performance outputs of the North Ormesby scheme
including costs and concludes with a review of options and recommendations. Various further details are
contained in appendices.

POLICY BACKGROUND AND PROJECT SET UP

3. Background to Selective Licensing

Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004 provides that a Council (i.e. the Local Housing Authority) may declare a
licensing scheme for privately rented accommodation if the following conditions are met: -

o that the area s, or is likely to becomﬁ)gaaereﬁfaow housing demand; and;



o that the area is experiencing a significant and persistent problem caused by anti-social
behaviour;

Selective Licensing requires that any person wishing to rent out a property in a designated area must
first obtain a licence from the Council. In order to grant such a licence the Council must be satisfied that
the landlord is a “fit and proper” person with satisfactory management arrangements in place to deal with
any anti-social behaviour caused by their tenants. Selective Licensing applies only to private landlords,
not to social landlords.

Selective Licensing is intended to be just one of many tools available to the Council to address low
demand and anti-social behaviour, it is not a stand-alone panacea for every issue affecting a
neighbourhood. Therefore, the 2004 Act requires the Council to identify how Selective Licensing will
work alongside other measures by showing how it forms part of an overall strategic approach,
contributing to existing policies and underpinning future plans for the area.

A full public consultation must be carried out before a decision can be made to introduce a Selective
Licensing scheme. This should include consultation with local residents, including tenants, landlords and
managing agents, and other members of the community who live, run businesses or provide services in
the area proposed for designation. Those outside of the designation who will be affected should be
included too.

When the North Ormesby Selective Licensing scheme was introduced in 2015, Secretary of State
approval was required to designate an area. However, since April 2010 this power has been delegated
to local authorities, who must still meet all the other requirements of the 2004 Act to ensure that a
scheme is legally enforceable.

4. The introduction of Selective Licensing in North Ormesby
North Ormesby faced significant major social and economic challenges as summarised below:

e between 2007 and 2010 the North Ormesby ward had the most significant increase in deprivation
across the whole town;

e the private rented sector increased by 118% (2001-10) and owner occupation dropped by 18%;
and

e poorly managed properties has continued to feed a concentration of anti-social behaviour and
crime, confirmed by the Big Local survey which confirmed it as a key concern for local residents.

As a consequence of this concentration of issues a broad range of social problems have manifested
themselves, from drug and alcohol abuse to domestic violence. The transient nature of households has
also increased the turnover of the area with the local primary school seeing only 50% of those children
who start the school at Reception year staying on until Year 6.

North Ormesby had become the destination for those people with limited housing choices. In some
cases, those with the most chaotic lifestyles, and a range of social, health and welfare problems that
require extensive public sector support, had become concentrated in North Ormesby and other inner
areas. A proactive and preventative approach was needed to manage this structural imbalance or the
Council and other public sector bodies will continue to pick up the service demands and costs generated
by individuals and families. Typically the inner area demonstrated:

a) High crime rates;

b) Poor health outcomes;

c) High levels of social care needs;
d) Educational under achievement;
e) Low employment levels;

f) Benefit dependency; and,

g) Disconnection from the job market.

Page 211



Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD).
The IMD identifies areas of multiple deprivation for each local authority area as a whole and also for
smaller areas within each local authority known as Lower Layer Super Output Areas (LSOAS).

The IMD is a relative measure of deprivation and is based on a variety of indicators. Each of the 32,482
LSOAs in England are assigned a score based on deprivation levels, and also a rank based on each of
the scores. Rankings for the 326 English districts and boroughs are also calculated. Middlesbrough has
a rank of average score of 8 meaning it is the 8th most deprived local authority area in England.

In 2010 the 2 LSOAs for North Ormesby were in the 10% most deprived nationally being ranked 326 and
328 of 32,482 LSOAs. Both LSOAs had declined since 2007 with one showing the biggest decline in
Middlesbrough, falling by 1,172 places.

The North Ormesby and Brambles Farm ward was the third most deprived ward in the town, and had
declined since 2004.

The Housing Act 2004 gives Local Authorities the power to introduce Selective Licensing for privately
rented properties in areas experiencing low housing demand and/or significant and persistent
anti-social behaviour. The purpose of the Selective Licensing scheme is to improve standards of
property management in the private rented sector, over a five year period of designation which,
when combined with other measures, should lead to improved social and economic conditions.

The area of North Ormeshy was designated for Selective Landlord Licensing in September 2015 and this
came into force on the 1st January 2016. Every landlord who privately rents a property in the designated
area of North Ormesby is required to apply for a licence to do so.

5. Selective Licensing Fees

The Housing Act 2004 gives the Council the power to charge landlords a fee for all costs it incurs
carrying out its Selective Licensing functions. The Act also allows the Council to take into account costs
incurred in carrying functions in relation to Interim and Final Management Orders (so far as they are not
recoverable under that part of the Act).

The licensing fee in the North Ormesby scheme was set at £580 per property, plus a £20 Fit & Proper
Fee per licence holder. The fee was calculated by estimating the number of licensable properties, and
the anticipated staffing costs required to carry out the functions of the scheme (4.5 FTEs and an
Apprentice). The payment was split in to two parts with £290 + £20 Fit and Proper Fee payable at the
time of the application and £290 payable at the Notice of Intention stage.

With 550 licensable properties originally identified in the North Ormesby Selective Licensing area, an
income of £319,000 was predicted from the scheme. The actual income has exceeded expectations as
the number of licensable properties has changed over the five years of the scheme due to exemptions,
sales of properties and changes in tenure. To date 934 properties have been licensed and generated
fees of £608,896. This figure is made up of licence fees, part licensed properties and late fee charges.
Income from the licence fees is ring fenced meaning that it can only be used for the delivery of the SLL
scheme. North Ormesby fees pay for the following SLL staffing: Manager, SLL Officer, SLL
Neighbourhood Safety Officer, SLL Assistant, Apprentice and Tenancy Relations Officer.

PERFORMANCE

Throughout the period of the North Ormesby SLL scheme a series of performance measures have been
monitored to track the progress and outcomes of the scheme.

6. Low Demand for Housing

The Council introduced Selective Licensing in North Ormesby on the basis that there was compelling
evidence of low housing demand. In line with legislation and guidance the Council considered the
indicators of low housing demand such turnover, low property prices, a transient tenant population and

high proportion of empty properties.
Page 212



6.1 House Prices

Prior to the introduction of SLL:

With average sales prices in North Ormesby at £48,000 (Land Registry sold prices between August
2013 and July 2014), they were amongst the lowest in the town. (The average house price for
Middlesbrough at this time was £124,000). Performance baseline figures the year prior to the scheme
(2015) using Land Registry sold prices show house prices at £41,000.

Prices ranged from £25k-£30k up to £55k dependent on the location within the ward. Those purchasing
properties in North Ormesby were predominantly investors looking to buy to rent.

After the introduction of SLL over the 5 year period:

House Prices

£43,000
£42,000
£41,000
£40,000
£39,000
£38,000
£37,000
£36,000
£35,000
£34,000

£33,000
Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data source: HM Land registry Open data https://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/standard-reports/report-design

Conclusion: This clearly shows that house prices in North Ormesby are starting to increase. During the
designation period observations have indicated that there has also been an increase in the number of
renovations of properties.

6.2 Turnover of tenants

Prior to the introduction of SLL:

Council Tax records provide a guide as to the proportion of properties experiencing turnover in
occupancy in the North Ormesby ward. Of the 1,791 Council Tax accounts in 2013/14 a change
occurred in 72.8% of them, requiring a new account to be created, affecting 705 properties (39%). In the
preceding year a change requiring a new account to be created occurred on 85.8% of accounts,
affecting 870 properties (50%).

After the introduction of SLL over the 5 year period:

Page 213



Turnover

900
800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: Middlesbrough Council, Council Tax records.

Conclusion: Prior to the SLL scheme North Ormesby had a more transient population
typically housed in privately rented accommodation which can have a negative impact
on the stability and desirability of an area. It can also affect community integration and
investment and affect school performance negatively. Following the designation of the
SLL scheme it can be seen that the turnover of properties has decreased each year
which indicates that properties are not changing hands as much and there is a more
static population contributing to improved community cohesion.

6.3 Empty Properties and Long Term Empties (More than 6 Months)

The problems empty properties cause for local communities are well known, but in summary they:

deny homes to those in need;

attract vermin, crime, arson, vandalism, fly-tipping and anti-social behaviour;
are a source of anxiety for owners and neighbours;

reduce the value of neighbouring properties; and as a consequence,

are a drain on public services and budgets.

Empty properties which become open for access due to vandalism or criminal damage are subject to
legal notices which require the owner to secure the property. This action is taken by officers in the
Public Protection Service and this has not changed throughout the life of the scheme

Prior to the introduction of SLL:

At the end of September 2014, according to Council Tax records, there were 68 long-term empty
properties in North Ormesby, which equates to 3.9% of total stock. North Ormesby had the second
highest proportion of long term empty properties than other areas in Middlesbrough. This position
contributed to a negative image causing uncertainty for established residents and making it hard to
attract people to the area.

After the introduction of SLL over the 5 year period:

Page 214



Empty Properties

250

200
150
100
50
O

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018

Data Source: Middlesbrough Council, Council Tax records

Baseline 2019

Long Term Empties (More than 6 Months)

120

100

80
60
10
20

0

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018

Data Source: Middlesbrough Council, Council Tax records

Conclusion: Even with the introduction of Middlesbrough Council’s Rent & Refurb
Scheme and Thirteen purchasing properties in the area, there has been a fluctuation in
the numbers of empty properties throughout the five year of the scheme. Whilst the
number of empty properties remain high, there has been a very distinct decline in the
number of long term empty properties which are the most problematic in terms of
attracting anti social behaviour, damage and contribute to lack of confidence in safety in
the community.

Recommendation for future SLL scheme: To continue with the delivery of the current
scheme’s approach to dealing with vacant properties. It is proposed that the SLL team
will be given additional responsibility to serve legal notices to secure empty properties
which become open for access. This could potentially increase the efficiency of
securing properties in a shorter timescale.

7. Property Conditions

Baseline 2019

Middlesbrough’s Private Sector Stock Condition Survey (PSSCS) 2008 identified North Ormesby as

having the highest proportion of non-decent dwellings in Middlesbrough at 60.5%.

North Ormesby also recorded the highest non-decency remedial cost score by area (£40.3m and an

average of £3,685, per non decent dwelling).

Page 215



North Ormesby was also found to have by far the highest proportion of homes with a Category 1 hazard
(37 8%). Examples of Category 1 hazards include:
inadequate heating
» absence of working fire alarms
» |eaking roofs
= broken rail on a steep stairway
» lack of physical security, such as doors and windows not closing or locking properly.

7.1 Improving housing standards

Non-decent homes do not meet current statutory minimum standards, are not in a reasonable state of
repair, do not have reasonably modern facilities and fail to provide a reasonable degree of thermal
comfort.

Middlesbrough’s Private Sector Stock Condition Survey (PSSCS) 2008 identified North Ormesby as
having the largest proportion of vulnerable households (74.2%) living in non-decent homes.

7.2 Housing disrepair

Prior to the introduction of SLL:

The Council received 145 complaints of housing disrepair in private rented property in North Ormesby
between 2011/12 and 2013/14, this equates to 8.4% of the private rented properties in North Ormesby,
the town average being 3.4%.

= The Council issued 41 pre-formal schedules of work to landlords in North Ormesby between 2011/12
and 2013/14 (2.4% of private rented housing in the area) with the town average being 0.6%.

= The Council served 9 statutory housing repair notices on landlords in North Ormesby between
2011/12 and 2013/14

= Baseline figures for the scheme show that in the year prior to the introduction of the SLL Scheme 6
housing standards inspections were carried out in North Ormesby following complaints from their
tenants. The inspections identified 2 category 1 Hazards and 21 Category 2 hazards

After the introduction of SLL over the 5 year period:

The graphs below show the number of rented properties in NO which have been inspected throughout
the course of the SLL to ensure they met housing standards. Generally, residents in the private rented
sector do not complain about standards in their property, for a wide range of reasons, which is evident in
the low number of complaints in 2014. The incorporation of housing standards inspections into the SLL
scheme has resulted in improved housing conditions for residents. The majority of the inspections were
completed in 2016/17 (the first two years of the scheme) with the number of inspections declining in
2018/19 due to the reduced numbers of properties requiring inspections which is reflected in the figures.

Number of SLL Inspection Visits Completed

Page 216



Number of SLL Inspection Visits Completed

300
250
200
150
100

50

0]
Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: Selective Licensing Spreadsheet

Conclusion: It was originally intended that a 100% of the licence
properties in North Ormesby would be inspected in the first 2 years.
However, it became evident that due to the nature and chaotic lifestyles of
the tenants access to the properties was often difficult and on some
occasions it took 3 and 4 attempts to be able to carry out the inspection.
In addition, if a property was licensed but was vacated before the
inspection was carried out, it would be delayed until the property was
tenanted. It was also evident over the course of the SLL scheme that new
properties became licensable and required an inspection. The graph
above shows the extended timescale required to complete the housing
inspection.

The figures for the housing inspections also provide the numbers of multi-
agency visits made to each property to offer wider support, including the
Tenancy support for vulnerable residents.

Category 1 hazards detected

Category 1 hazards detected

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

0 I

Data Source: FLARE data system
Category 2 hazards detected

Page 217



Category 2 hazards detected

&00
500
400
300
200

100

0 |

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018

Data Source: FLARE data system

Conclusion: Category 1 hazards are those where the most serious harm outcome is
identified, for example, those hazards which may cause death, permanent paralysis,
and permanent loss of consciousness, loss of a limb or serious fractures. There is a
legal duty to take action when category 1 hazards are identified, and a power to
enforce against category 2 hazards. The baseline data shows the low number of
tenants which were coming forward to report poor housing conditions. The proactive
housing inspections incorporated into the SLL scheme has resulted in a significant
increase the number of properties with poor housing conditions in NO and a
significant improvement in housing conditions. Without the SLL scheme these
improvements would not have been achieved.

Recommendation for future SLL scheme: To maintain a multi-agency approach to
property visits and housing standards inspections as a requirement of the SLL
scheme.

Properties safe without CAT1 and CAT2 Hazards

Baseline 2019

Properties safe without CAT1 and CAT2 Hazards

90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018

Data Source: FLARE data system

Baseline 2019

The above graph shows the number of properties safe without Catl and CAT 2 hazards. As with the
previous graph the majority of the inspections were completed in 2016/17 (the first two years of the
scheme) the number of inspections declined in 2018/19 due to the lower number of inspections required

to be completed which is reflected in the fig'ﬁﬁge 218



Interior of good standard

Interior of good standard

20
S0
FO
a0
50
<0
30

20
10
N — ]

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Enforcement action taken in respect of serious disrepair issues

Enforcement action taken in respect of serious
disrepair issues

160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system
Case studies are provided to support the above (Appendix 6 — Case study 1 & 2.)

Landlord Testimonial (Nigel Fick) — “In a perfect world there would be absolutely no need for Selective
Licensing. There would be no anti-social behaviour, all tenants would conduct their tenancies
immaculately and private landlords would be aware of their responsibilities both to tenants and the public
and share the information they have.

Regrettably that is not the world we live in. By definition, any area that is subject to Selective Licensing
will have poor standards of private housing and higher than normal instances of anti-social behaviour
and it is therefore essential that private landlords behave responsibly which is clearly not always the
case.

Page 219



If we are to have Selective Licensing it is of fundamental importance that the local authority team
charged with the task does so with understanding and professionalism but also be firm enough to punish
landlords who demonstrate an unwillingness to ‘ play ball “.

| would like to thank you and your team for being so helpful with our licence applications, with on-going
advice and support, with helpful information and a
boot up the backside when needed”.

8. Management Standards

By introducing selective licensing the Council is fully utilising the suite of tools introduced by the Housing
Act 2004 to address management standards and property conditions within the private rented sector. As
part of a coordinated approach, Selective Licensing compels landlords to maintain good standards and
raise the profile of problem properties. Through the increased awareness amongst the community and
across agencies, Selective Licensing has become a valuable mechanism for identifying and dealing with
bad practice amongst private landlords.

Whilst reputable landlords are provided assurance with a Selective Licensing scheme in place, those
landlords whose business practices did not meet the required minimum standards are encouraged and
supported to improve their management standards. Landlords who were not willing to work with the
Council could face being refused a licence and ultimately having a Management Order imposed against
the property which removes it from their control.

8.1 Tenancy Referencing

The Tenancy Referencing Service offers a free service to member landlords which allows them to make
informed choices about prospective tenants when letting properties in the Middlesbrough area.

A traffic light system is used to explain the results of the reference check. This lets landlords make an
informed choice about whether or not to allocate a tenancy.
e Green: indicates no issues.
e Amber: may indicate that there has been no previous tenancy held, or there may have been
some minor tenancy issues or rent arrears.
¢ Red: indicates evidence of eviction, anti-social behaviour, or high rent arrears.

Prior to the introduction of SLL:
Landlord referencing existed but it was discretionary for landlords to join and use the service.

After the introduction of SLL over the 5 year period:

When SLL was introduced tenancy referencing became a mandatory condition of the licence, in addition
to conditions requiring landlords to provide a copy of a tenancy agreement, up to date gas safety
certificate and an anti-social behaviour plan.

Landlords/managing agents joining tenancy referencing

Page 220



Landlords/managing agents Joining tenancy
referencing

1

o

OkRrNWBBOUONE KW

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Landlords/managing agents using tenancy referencing

Landlords/managing agents using tenancy
referencing

350

300

250

200

150

100

. I
O

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Conclusion: A licence condition of the scheme is that all landlords need to
reference their tenants before placing them in a tenancy but can use any
referencing service they choose. The graphs show that during the course
of the scheme landlords have not only joined but are using the service.
Recommendation for future SLL scheme: It is proposed that a mandatory
condition is introduced for landlords to use Middlesbrough Council FREE
referencing service as this is a robust service which is broader that the
current scheme as it also looks at antisocial behaviour in previous
tenancies.

Landlord Testimonial (Paul Norman) - “For many years | prevented my clients (investors) and myself
from purchasing /working in this area and told anyone who asked where to buy, not North Ormesby!
Since Selective licensing has been rolled out my attitude to the area has changed dramatically due to the
efforts by the team at the hub.

Page 221



| can see, personally, the difference to the area and the type of tenants. | see a lot more builders vans
here than | have ever seen in the street (we did have a few we managed and maintained before my
change of heart). Houses look better generally, and it seems a concerted effort to remove the stigma
from “Doggy” is slowly being removed for the landlords. As a comparison, to show our faith in the
improvement, we are currently working on 8 refurbishment programmes in the area. In Middlesbrough,

just 11,

The referencing is very good, | am an Accredited Landlord with the NLA, their referencing costs me £24
per time. It does not, however, tell me their history at previous address’s, nor their conduct, whether they
have issues with housing benefits and rent etc. The service is much more beneficial to prospective and

established landlords.

In my opinion, Selective Licensing has changed North Ormesby and it was much needed”.

Landlords issuing tenancy agreements

Landlords issuing written tenancy agreements

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Conclusion: When landlords apply for a selective licence it is mandatory
that they must upload a copy of the current tenancy agreement along with
the application form. The decrease in numbers throughout the scheme is
due to the number of applications received.

Fire Safety Checks & Smoke Alarm referrals made by team following property inspection

Fire Safety Checks & Smoke Alarm referrals

250

200

150

100

50

0]

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system & Selective Licensing Spreadsheet

Conclusion: It is a mandatory condition that smoke alarms are fitted at each
floor level within a property. At the start of the tenancy it is the landlord’s
responsibility to ensure alarms are fitted, during the tenancy it is the tenant’s
responsibility to ensure the alarms stay in a working condition. On each
housing inspection every tenant is offered a home fire safety check with the
fire brigade and if smoke alarms are not present or found to be not working

foun
rPage 222



new smoke alarms are requested. If these visits were not carried out there
would a larger number of properties without adequate smoke and fire
protection.

Landlords/managing agents engaging in plans ASB/vulnerability

Landlords/managing agents engaging in plans
ASB/vulnerability

30
25
20
15
10
. In
o ]

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system
9. Antisocial Behaviour & Early Help

9.1 Antisocial Behaviour

Anti-social behaviour and crime can have a devastating effect on individuals and communities. It
describes a wide range of everyday nuisance, disorder and crime from graffiti and noisy neighbours to
harassment and street drug dealing. It is sometimes dismissed as trivial, but anti-social behaviour has a
huge impact on victims' quality of life and it is often the public's number one priority when it comes to
local concerns.

The types of anti-social behaviour that the Council’'s Community Safety Team regularly deals with
includes:

. Vandalism, graffiti, and other deliberate damage to property or vehicles
. Teenagers hanging around on the streets

. Rubbish or litter lying around

. Drug use and dealing

. Drunk or rowdy behaviour

. Chaotic families.

Prior to the introduction of SLL:

In Middlesbrough between 2011/12 and 2013/14 there was a total of 1,917 complaints of anti-social
behaviour received by the Council’s Private Housing Enforcement and Anti-Social Behaviour Teams, an
increase over that period of 67.9%.

Between October 2013 and September 2014, Cleveland Police also dealt with 732 cases of anti-social
behaviour in North Ormesby. This was the second highest rate per population in the town. The ward
with the highest rate was Middlehaven, which includes town centre related anti-social behaviour e.g.
reports of drunk/rowdy behaviour, often handled by Street Wardens.

After the introduction of SLL over the 5 year period:

Page 223



Number of early interventions offered to tenants

Early interventions are offered to tenants

500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
O

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system
Early interventions are: referrals into other services for support.

Number of low level interventions

Low level interventions
1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
A00

200

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Low Interventions are: cases open/closed, telephone call/e-malil, letter drop, diary sheets received,
initial warning letters, motorbike warning letter, site meetings and joint patrols.

Number of medium interventions

Page 224



Medium interventions

500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
0O

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Medium Interventions are: second warning letter, final warning, ABC issued, ABC breached, joint
interviews and tenancy breach interview.

Number of High level interventions

High level interventions

0]
Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system
High level interventions are: Criminal Behaviour Orders, Civil Injunction, House Closures (all for high

levels of persistent antisocial behaviour and a last resort after all low and medium level interventions
have been exhausted).

Conclusion: It should be noted that in 2018 in line with Community Safety
Neighbourhood Safety officers, the categories for the codes for early, low, medium
and high interventions were reviewed. This resulted in a number of the previous
early and medium interventions being moved into the low category which explains
the discrepancy in figures.

The figures demonstrate the wide range of interventions delivered as part of the SLL
scheme to tackle antisocial behaviour.

Page 225



Landlords following correct possession proceedings (6)

Landlords following correct possession
proceedings (6)

S ¥ <

'_\

. 1N

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system
A Case Study is provided to support the above in Appendix 6 — Case Study 5

Landlords following correct possession proceedings are: Landlord’s serving section 8 or section 21
notices.

Personal & Nuisance ASB incidents reduce (Police Data)

Nuisance & Personal ASB incidents reduce
200
700
600
500
400
300
200
100

8]
Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: police analyst data systems provided by Middlesbrough Council Data Analyst

The personal and nuisance ASB incidents in North Ormesby (Police data) has reduced by 19%
between 2015 and 2019.

9.2 Early Help

Page 226



It was originally planned to offer Early Help interventions supported by Children’s Centre colleagues as
part of the SLL intervention. A multi-agency/disciplinary team visit was made to each property which
incorporated the housing standards inspection. This team was made up of representation from SLL
team, Neighbourhood Safety Officer, Early Help Practitioners, Environmental Health Officer and Police, if
required. It became apparent during the course of the scheme that the most vulnerable people requiring
support were single lone adults with complex needs. The delivery of the scheme was amended to
include a Tenancy Relation’s Role.

The inspection process is now carried out by the Selective Licensing Tenancy Relations Officer and
Environmental Health Officer. This approach is to ensure that as well as checking compliance with the
licence conditions, the tenants are helped and supported with any issues they may be facing. Issues
may include substance misuse, parenting skills, unemployment; the team make referrals to relevant

agencies and follow-up any actions. The services offered through the inspection team are of benefit to
landlords, tenants and the wider community to help to reduce the turnover of tenants.

Post Tenancy Visits Arranged (New Tenancy Relations Officer Role 2017)

Post Tenancy Visits Arranged (New Role 2017)

120
100
80
60
10

20

0
Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Post tenancy Visits Completed (New Role 2017)

Page 227



Post tenancy Visits Completed (New Role 2017)

20
20
FO
60
50
40
30
20

O

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018

Data Source: FLARE data system

Conclusion: Post tenancy visits are carried out on all new tenancies. Part of
the Tenancy relations officer role is to carry out a post tenancy visit
approximately 4 weeks after the new tenancy has commenced to ensure that
the tenant have settled into their new home and to discuss any
concerns/issues they may have. If there is and history of previous anti-social
behaviour this visit is conducted jointly with the Neighbourhood Safety
Officer. A post tenancy visit appointment letter is normally sent (Post
tenancy visits arranged figure) however some visits are not prearranged for
example if a complaint is made. This explains why the number of post
tenancy visits completed is greater than those arranged.

Number of Tenants Signposted to Services

Number of Tenants Signposted

50
a5
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018

Data Source: FLARE data system

Conclusion: During inspection and post tenancy visits the tenancy relations
officer discusses the tenant’s needs and referrals into other services such as

access may be delayed. The SLL scheme has provided support to tenants
over the scheme. It is not clear why the number of people supported dipped
in 2018.

Mental Health, substance misuse and debt services. Without this SLL
intervention these tenants may not access the services they require or

Number of Tenants supported with Tenancy/Housing Issues

Page 228

Baseline 2019

to Services

Baseline 2019



Number of Tenants supported with
Tenancy/Housing Issues

40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5 —
o

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system
Number of Tenants given Information Advice and Guidance

Number of Tenants given Information Advice and
Guidance

180
160
140
120
100
80
&0
40
20
0

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Conclusion: During inspection and post tenancy visits tenants are given
information, advice and guidance on any matters arising, these can be tenancy
issues, antisocial behaviour, information on refuse/recycling days, alley gates and
more. These types of intervention assist in tackling anti social behaviour.

Case Study 3

Landlord Testimonial — “l would like to take this opportunity to thank the Selective Licencing Team for
their continued help and support for the excellent service you provide. Personally | think the scheme has
been a huge success and | can certainly see a lot of improvements in North Ormesby since the scheme
began. It is reassuring for landlords that the team are on hand for help and advice when needed. The
tenancy referencing is an excellent tool for landlords to have. | wish that more landlords would embrace
the scheme as | am sure that if they did then together we could improve the environment for our tenants
and also restore the slump in property values.

| sincerely hope that the scheme continues in the future as | feel that if it is stopped then standards

would fall which would be detrimental to residents of North Ormesby and the reputable landlords who
want to provide good quality housing in a safe environment”.

Page 229



10. Environmental Nuisance

Environmental nuisance and fly-tipping was an issue in North Ormesby especially in and at the entrance
to alleys.

After the introduction of SLL over the 5 year period:

Environmental ASB incidents reduce

Environmental ASB incidents reduce

16

14
12
10

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

S N B O W

Data Source: police analyst data systems provided by Middlesbrough Council Data Analyst
Reduced incidents with rubbish bins/ refuse left in alleyways

Reduced incidents with rubbish bins/ refuse left
in alleyways
200
800
700
600
500

400
300

100
o — ] .

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: Street scene operative’s data into Microsoft Access report

Environmental issues reported to the contact centre

Page 230



Environmental issues reported to the contact
centre

60
50
40
30
20

. L
-

0
Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Conclusion: The Selective licensing team conduct daily walkabouts in the area and
introduced a multi-agency walkabout fortnightly to address the issue. Any fly-
tipping or rubbish identified by the team is reported to Middlesbrough Council
contact centre. The walkabouts identify hotspots and problem areas an can
implement early intervention to remove waste and to attempt to prevent further
dumping. The figures show a reduction in the number of reported incidents of
dumped waste and environmental issues reported to the contact centre.

11. Application Process

11.1 Applications Received

Within the designated area of North Ormesby all privately rented properties need a licence to operate.
The owner of the rented property needs to make an application to the Council. The Council must be
satisfied that of all the person with an interest in the property, the most appropriate person is the licence
holder, this would usually be the property owner.

The licence is valid for a maximum of 5 years. Failing to apply for a licence could lead to prosecution and
an unlimited fine. If prosecuted, this would lead to the licence holder no longer being classed as ‘fit and
proper’ and would mean they would need to find someone else to hold their licence and undertake the
management of the property.

At the start of the scheme it was estimated that 550 properties would require licences, to date 934
properties have been licensed.

Number of properties applications

Page 231



Number of properties applied

600
500
400
300

200

” I
o ]

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

Conclusion: The number of properties applying for the scheme have decreased
over the course of the SLL scheme as most landlords have complied with the
requirement to licence introduced in 2016. Applications have been received
throughout the duration of the scheme due to the sale of properties and changes
in tenure.

11.2 Licences issued

Once a landlord has applied for a licence, the application is then checked and a notice of intention (draft
licence sent including second payment link, once the second payment has been received the licence is
issued.

Licences Issued to Licence Holders

Licences Issued to Licence Holders

450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
- m
(9]
Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system
11.3 Licences issued to interested parties

If the property has an interested party in the property i.e. a mortgage company then we also issue a copy
of the licence to the interested party.

Licences Issued to Interested Parties

Page 232



Licences Issued to Interested Parties

300
250
200
150
100

50

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system

12. Enforcement

Failing to apply for a licence could lead to prosecution and an unlimited fine. In addition to the fine the
Council can apply for a Rent Repayment Order which allows amounts paid in connection with a tenancy
or licence to be recovered for the period that the property should have been licensed.

12.1 Enforcement for non-compliance

Landlords are given adequate time and support to apply for a Selective licence. They are sent an initial
notification letter, giving 4 weeks to apply. If no application is received they are then sent a reminder
letter incurring a £100 late fee and giving a further 14 days to apply for a licence. If an application is still
not received we then pursue the landlord and take enforcement action for non-compliance with the
scheme. Under the Housing Act 2004 a person commits an offence if he is a person having control of or
managing a house which is required to be licensed under this Part (see section 85(1)) but is not so
licensed.

Prior to the introduction of SLL:
No enforcement was taken against landlords in the North Ormesby ward.

After the introduction over the 5 year period:

Number of Prosecution Files Progressing to Legal Services

Number of Prosecution Files Progressing to Legal

12

10

Baseline 2015 Baseline 2016 Baseline 2017 Baseline 2018 Baseline 2019

Data Source: FLARE data system & Selective Licensing Legal Data spreadsheet

Conclusion: The number of prosecution files shown were submitted to Legal
Services for non-compliance with the scheme. Some laglloAls responded at
| g £OO




the summons stage and applied for a licence therefore the case did not
progress to a hearing. The low number of cases indicate that most landlords
have complied with the SLL scheme.

There have been 7 prosecution and the results of some of the legal proceedings are summarised
below:

e 1 landlord pleaded guilty, fined £6000 (£500 per property) + £1000 costs. Landlord applied for
licences after prosecution;

o 1 landlord found guilty in his absence, fined £5,500 (£500 per property) + £775 costs. The
landlord still hadn’t applied for licences so we applied for a Rent Repayment Order from the date
of the offence he was convicted (it was successful and he was required to pay back 5 Months
(£20,000) housing benefit payments).

e 3 further cases resulted in 2 successful prosecutions (1 fined £926 & 1 fined £2,546) and 1
landlord applying.

¢ 7 landlords were summonsed but applied for licences before the court date, and after liaison with
Legal Services and it was decided that it was not in the public interest to continue with these
prosecutions

Case study provided to support the above in Appendix 6 — Case Study 4

12.2 Partnership working

The SLL team work in close partnership with other services and agencies to maximise the impact of the
scheme, service include police, fire brigade, community groups, youth groups and other council’s
services such as street warden service and environmental services. It was initially planned that SLL
would be a multi-agency team and include Police, Fire Service and Social Care (similar to the place
based working) and working together with landlords. It is envisaged that this multi-agency approach will
be achieved through the delivery of the Locality based working arrangement proposed for North
Ormesby and SLL will work closely alongside the other agencies as part of this set up, benefiting from
the close ground level working.

Police Testimonial (Inspector Snaith) - “I would publically say that both | and Cleveland Police fully
support Selective licensing. It is an excellent process that supports the interests of the landlords, ensures
safe and suitable accommodation for tenants and also helps to improve the quality of the broader
community.

| would fully support its expansion into other areas within Middlesbrough.

| think there is an excellent working relationship with the Police and following our meeting last week, we
will continue to improve this relationship”

13. Scheme Audits and Evaluations

13.1 MHCLG Independent Review of Selective Licensing schemes

An Independent Review of the Use and Effectiveness of Selective Licensing was carried out by Ministry
of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) in June 2019 and was updated in September
20109.

The survey results indicated that the most common reasons for the introduction of a SLL scheme are:
e poor housing conditions
e pervasive anti-social behaviour
e deprivation, and
e low demand.

When the London boroughs are excluded from the calculation, low demand as a reason for the
introduction of selective licensing is relatively common.

Page 234




With only one exception, all local housing authorities with schemes in operation considered their
schemes to be at least “fairly effective” in tackling one or more of the issues licensing was introduced to
address. 41% of local authorities reported their schemes were “very effective”, 51% were “fairly effective”
and only 9% were “fairly ineffective” or “very ineffective”. This clearly indicates that the local authorities
currently operating SLL schemes find it to be an effective policy tool.

The review overall indicates that SLL is effective policy tool with many schemes achieving demonstrable
positive outcomes. This study also finds that schemes appear to be more successful as part of a wider,
well planned, coherent initiative with an associated commitment of resources, as opposed to those
schemes implemented in isolation which have more limited outcomes. This finding entirely consistent
with the aims of the Housing Act.

13.2 Middlesbrough Council Scrutiny Panel Review

In 2018 Middlesbrough Council Scrutiny Panel reviewed the North Ormesby scheme. The Panel were
extremely supportive of the scheme:

e They recognised the achievements made through SLL in the North Ormesby ward, including
improving community confidence which has led to increased reporting of anti-social behaviour
and crime to the SLL team.

e They were extremely complimentary of the work achieved, and applauded the Selective
Licensing Team for their efforts.

e They Panel also learned that in November 2017, the team had been awarded Outstanding
Contribution to Prevention at the Cleveland Community Safety Awards.

Throughout the investigation, the Panel made reference to the issues within Gresham and University
wards and the increasing number of private rented housing properties. The Panel were of the opinion
that the excellent work achieved since the introduction of Selective Licencing in North Ormesby and
hoped that any future schemes would mirror this model.

Members asked about the potential for a Selective Landlord Licensing town wide scheme which they
considered would have benefits across the whole town. However, many of the wards in Middlesbrough
do not meet the legislative criteria to introduce a SLL scheme such as that the area is, or is likely to
become, an area of low housing demand; and; that the area is experiencing a significant and persistent
problem caused by anti-social behaviour; and would put the Council at risk of legal challenge.

Additionally, if rolled out on an Early Help basis, it would almost certainly be cost prohibitive. If it was run
more simply, as a licensing regime, it is unlikely to have significant impacts on supporting residents’
needs”.

13.3 Middlesbrough Council Internal Audit

An internal audit of the SLL scheme in North Ormesby was carried out in January 2019, prior to the
implementation of the Newport SLL scheme. The audit found that the scheme has strong control
measures, there were no recommendations and had exceeded the Council’'s expectations.

CONCLUSION

In accordance with the guidance from Local Government Regulation, the effectiveness of the NO
Selective Landlord Licensing has been measured against the following:

- reducing anti social behaviour attributable to the private rented sector;

- improving management standards in the private rented sector;

- increasing housing demand,;

- improving the environment; and

- contributing to the effectiveness of partnership working to improve the quality of life.

The above evaluation of outcomes and performance have demonstrated that Selective Landlord
Licensing in North Ormesby has resulted in a wide range of positive outcomes and benefits to the
community, landlords, tenants and owners, both directly and indirectly, including:

Page 235



e Improved management and condition of privately rented accommodation.

e Supported landlords in dealing with anti-social tenants.

e Educating tenants about their responsibilities and their impact of their behaviour on the community
and neighbours.

e Encouraged tenants to recognise when properties are of a sub-standard condition and what options
are available to them.

e Promotion of landlord aspiration to let property to a higher standard and to act in a professional

manner.

Encouragement of landlords not to take tenants with a poor reference.

Improvement of the image and desirability of the area.

Improved values of property in the area.

Encouraging a change to the tenure mix of the area. Protect investment in the area.

Working with those landlords who are not providing good quality accommodation or managing their

tenancies effectively and removing “rogue landlords” altogether.

e Reduced tenant turnover leading to sustainable communities, creating communities where tenants
want to remain.

¢ Encouraged the use of reputable managing agents when landlords are inexperienced or “absentee”.

e Raising community confidence through the appropriate use of enforcement powers against landlords
who are failing to comply with the provisions of the Housing Act 2004.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Map of designated area

ISOL RE

==

rial
te

LI
~7 SN

7l S, =~ +

v

DSKK
77 U”Ng T \ IO
.; ”c-‘_» =N\
& S\ m Z
O30 ‘\’%‘; T 3
SN ,.,‘0 :
o, <
SR BX

Allotment
Gardens

Pipeline StJoseph’s

Cemetery ’
..

—‘-‘ \v”’i\}‘\ <X

Appendix A — Proposal Document

Page 236



Appendix 2 - Fit & Proper Person Check

FIT AND PROPER PERSON CHECKS

LIST OF CONVICTIONS, CAUTIONS, REPRIMANDS OR WARNINGS

CATEGORY 1 OFFENCES
A conviction for these offences will usually result in the Licence application being rejected.

Offences of Fraud or other dishonesty

Benefit fraud (offences under ss111A and 112 of the Social Security Administration Act
1992)

Theft

Forgery

Burglary

Conspiracy to defraud

Obtaining money or property by deception

People trafficking

Offences of violence

Murder
Manslaughter
Arson
Malicious harm (s20 Offences against the Person Act 1861)
Possession of a firearm
Possession of an offensive weapon
Actual bodily harm (s47 Offences Against the Person Act 1861)
Grievous bodily harm (s18 Offences Against the Person Act 1861)
Robbery
Riot
Page 237




Affray

Any racially aggravated offence (Crime and Disorder Act 1988)
Common assault

Common assault which is racially aggravated

Assault occasioning actual bodily harm

Offences relating to drugs
e Possession of class a drugs
e Supply of drugs

Sexual and indecency offences

e Rape

Soliciting

Indecent assault

Indecent exposure

Any other offence under Schedule 3 of the Sexual offences act 2003

Housing Act Offences

e Protection from Harassment Act 1997

e Protection from Eviction Act 1977

e Any conviction for failure to comply with the licensing regime as set out in the Housing Act
2004 (s95)

Provision of false or misleading information (s238 of Housing Act 2004)

Obstruction (s2410f the Housing Act 2004)

Failure to comply with a licence condition (s95 of the Housing Act 2004)

Failure to hold a relevant licence (s72 of the Housing Act 2004)

Breach of improvement notices and prohibition orders (s35.6 s32.2b of the Housing Act
2004)

Public Health Acts of 1936 and 1961

The Building Act 1984

Environmental Protection Act 1990

Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Acts of 1982 and 1976

Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996

Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Housing Act 2004

CATEGORY 2 OFFENCES

A conviction for these offences will be viewed seriously and, following further
investigation, could result in the licence application being rejected.
Alternatively a one year Licence may be issued.

Offences of dishonesty
e Handling or receiving stolen goods
e Theft

Offences of violence

e Violent disorder

e Police assault

e A caution, reprimand or warning for any Category 1 offences will be classed as a Category 2

offence. Pag e 238



CATEGORY 3 OFFENCES

A conviction, caution, reprimand or warning for these offences may also be taken into
account and further information will be requested in order to determine the relevance of
these offences. If deemed to be relevant or sufficiently severe, these offences could
result in the licence application being rejected. Alternatively a one year Licence may be
issued.

Offences of violence

e Common assault

e Criminal damage

e Obstruction

e All other offences relating to dishonesty, drugs, sexual and indecency, Housing and Landlord
and Tenant.

e A caution, reprimand or warning for any Category 2 offences will be classed as a Category 3
offence.

Appendix 3 — Licence Conditions

Mandatory Conditions Schedule 4 Housing Act 2004

1. Gas

If gas is supplied to the house, the Licence holder shall provide to Middlesbrough
Council a Gas Safety Certificate issued within the previous 12 months at the time of
the application and thereafter annually.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act
2004.

2. Electrical appliances

The Licence holder shall keep all electrical appliances and furniture supplied in a safe
condition and must provide a declaration as to their safety at the time of application
and thereafter on demand.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act
2004.

3. Furniture and furnishings

The Licence holder shall ensure that furniture and furnishings supplied by them are
compliant with the Furniture and Furnishings (Fire) (Safety) Regulations 1988 (as
amended 1989 and 1993) and must provide a declaration as to their safety at the
time of application and thereafter on demand.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act

2004.
Page 239



4. Smoke alarms

The Licence holder shall ensure that smoke alarms are installed in the property and
kept in proper working order and provide a declaration as to their condition and
positioning to Middlesbrough Council on demand.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act
2004 and to comply with minimum fire safety standards LACORS.

5. Tenant references

The Licence holder shall request references for prospective tenants, subject to
condition number 7.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act
2004

6. Terms of occupation

The Licence holder shall supply to the occupiers of the house a written statement of
the terms on which they occupy the property. A copy of the terms will be provided
to the Council on demand.

Reason: Mandatory condition required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act
2004

Additional Conditions of Licence imposed by
Middlesbrough Council

The Licence holder must ensure that the premises fully comply with
the conditions set out below unless notified otherwise

7. Tenant references

The Licence holder shall obtain references for prospective tenants via the Council’s
Tenant Referencing Service.

Reason: To reduce anti-social behaviour.

8. Number of occupiers

The Licence holder shall ensure that the number of occupants in the property does
not cause overcrowding.

Reason: To ensure that the premises comply with Middlesbrough’s space

and amenity standards.
Page 240




9. Heating and Insulation/Energy Efficiency

The Licence holder shall provide a copy of a valid Energy Performance Certificate.
Also, when requested during the period of the Licence, to complete and return to the
authority, an energy efficiency assessment questionnaire of the licensed property.

Reason: To safeguard the health and well-being of the occupants with
regards to the reduction of fuel poverty and national energy efficiency
measures and to be aware of the statutory requirements for Energy
Performance Certificates (EPCs).

10. Property management

The Licence holder shall ensure that:

a) all repairs to the house or any installations, facilities or equipment within it are
carried out by competent and suitably qualified persons, for example Corgi
registered operatives for gas appliances and an electrical contractor who is a
member of an approved scheme, such as NICEIC, BSI, NAPIT, ELECSA or BRE.

b) all occupants of the house receive written confirmation detailing arrangements in
place to deal with repairs and emergencies and report nuisance and anti-social
behaviour;

c) if accommodation is provided on a furnished basis and includes electrical
appliances, copies of user manuals or equipment provided as part of the
agreement for the occupation of the house;

d) all occupiers are made aware of the licence and conditions.

Reason: To safeguard the health, safety and well-being of occupants.

11. Fire safety

The Licence holder shall produce a Fire detection and alarm certificate on request,
where the property in a House in Multiple Occupation.

Reason: To safeguard the health, safety and well-being of occupants in the
event of fire. The Fire Safety Guidance is provided by LACORS, see

www.lacors.gov.uk.
http://www.lacors.qgov.uk/lacors/upload/19175.pdf

12. Carbon Monoxide

The Licence holder shall install and maintain in good working order a carbon
monoxide detector to the property.

Reason: To ensure a safe living environment for tenants. There are
approximately 50 deaths per year in the UK due to carbon monoxide

Page 241



http://www.lacors.gov.uk/
http://www.lacors.gov.uk/lacors/upload/19175.pdf

poisoning, including one case in Middlesbrough.

13. Security

The Licence holder shall ensure that:

a) the security provisions for the access to the dwelling (including but not limited to
locks, latches, deadbolts and entry systems) must be maintained in good working
order at all times;

b) where window locks are fitted, keys are provided to the relevant occupant;

c) where previous occupants have not surrendered keys, a lock change is
undertaken prior to new occupants moving in; and,

d) where alley gates are installed to the rear of the licensed property, tenants are
aware of how to obtain a key.

Reason: To safeguard the health, safety and well-being of occupants.

14. External areas, refuse and waste

The Licence holder shall ensure that:

a) the exterior of the property is maintained in a reasonable decorative condition
and state of repair, including the removal of graffiti;

b) the tenants are instructed in their responsibilities to maintain at all times any
garden, yard and other external areas within the curtilage of the house, and
ensure they are kept in a reasonably clean and tidy condition;

c) the tenants are instructed in their responsibilities in respect of refuse storage and
disposal, to include details of what day refuse collections take place and what
type of receptacle to use for household waste and recycling;

d) where they are aware of a pest problem or infestation at the property, they will
take steps to ensure that a treatment program is carried out to eradicate it.
Records shall be kept of such treatment programs and these shall be provided to
the Council on demand;

€) access is available at all times to adequate, external, refuse storage.

Reason: To ensure that the domestic hygiene and condition of the licensed
property is maintained.

15. Training

The Licence holder and/or Manager shall undertake property management training
courses or information days, where required to do so by the Council. The
training/information days will be provided by Middlesbrough Council.

Page 242




Reason: To enable the Council to provide licence holders with the
knowledge and expertise to improve the management of their properties.

16. Management / Anti-social behaviour

The Licence holder shall take reasonable and practical steps to reduce or prevent
anti-social behaviour by persons occupying or visiting the house and the use of
premises for illegal purposes.

The Licence holder shall:

a)

b)

g)

h)

)

provide a written action plan to Middlesbrough Council outlining procedures for
dealing with anti-social behaviour at the time of application. This must be
reviewed annually and  submitted on request;

obtain tenant references prior to granting a tenancy as to previous tenancy
conduct, including behaviour of that of the proposed occupier and household;

provide the local authority, upon request, the full names and dates of birth of
each occupant of the property;

if he/she receives a reference request for a current or former tenant he must
refer the matter to Middlesbrough Council's tenancy referencing service who will
carry out the reference on their behalf;

cooperate with Middlesbrough Council, Cleveland Police and other agencies in
resolving complaints of anti-social behaviour or criminal activity. The Licence
holder and/or their nominated Managing Agent must not ignore or fail to take
action against any complaints regarding their tenants. Written records of action
taken, if any, shall be maintained and made available for inspection by an
authorised officer of Middlesbrough Council on request;

ensure that the appropriate authorities (namely Middlesbrough Council and
Cleveland Police) are informed, where they have reason to believe that their
tenant's behaviour involves criminal activity;

contact the tenant within 14 days if a complaint is received, or criminal or anti-
social behaviour is discovered. The tenant must be informed of the allegations of
their behaviour in writing and of the consequences of its continuation. The
Licence holder should maintain contact with the Council's Neighbourhood Safety
Team in order to monitor complaints and take appropriate action;

endeavour to attend home visits, interviews, multi-agency meetings or case
conferences arranged by the Council or Police as and when necessary;

make regular (at least quarterly) inspections of the property to ensure that the
property is in a decent state of repair and that the occupiers are not in breach of
tenancy terms and conditions. Written records of inspections made, conditions
noted and actions taken as a result shall be maintained and made available for
inspection by an authorised officer of Middlesbrough Council;

ensure that each tenant is made aware that they are responsible for their own

Page 2435




k)

behaviour and the behaviour of other occupiers and visitors. Tenants shall be
made aware that if they, other occupiers, or their visitors: engage in criminal
activity within the locality, or cause nuisance or annoyance to neighbours; or use
abusive or threatening language or behaviour to neighbours; fail to store or
dispose of refuse properly; or cause damage to fixtures, fittings, fire prevention
or alarm equipment or installations, or to the fabric of the premises; or fail to
give access to the landlord or his agent for the purpose of maintaining communal
areas or, upon reasonable notice, to inspect or undertake works within their
accommodation. They will be liable to enforcement action which may include
possession proceedings either under the terms of the tenancy, pursuant to
Section 21 of the Housing Act 1988 or pursuant to Grounds 13 or 14 of
Schedule 2 to the Housing Act 1988;

ensure that the occupants of the property are aware of the services available to
them and how they can report nuisance and anti-social behaviour to the local
authority.

Reason: To safeguard the well-being of occupants, persons visiting the
premises and persons in the immediate locality.

17. Notification / consultation of changes

The Licence holder and Managing Agent shall consult with Middlesbrough Council
before making any material changes to the layout, amenity provision, fire
precautions or occupation of the house. They must inform Middlesbrough Council of:

a)

b)

d)

details of any unspent convictions not previously disclosed to the local authority
that may be relevant to the Licence holder and/or the property manager and
their fit and proper person status and in particular any such conviction in respect
of any offence involving fraud or dishonesty, or violence or drugs or any offence
listed in Schedule 3 to the Sexual Offences Act 2003;

details of any finding by a court or tribunal against the Licence holder and /or the
manager that he/she has practiced unlawful discrimination on grounds of sex,
colour, race, ethnic or national origin or disability in, or in connection with, the
carrying on of any business;

details of any contravention on the part of the Licence holder or manager of any
provision of any enactment relating to housing, public health, environmental
health or landlord and tenant law which led to civil or criminal proceedings
resulting in a judgment or finding being made against him/her;

information about any property the Licence holder or manager owns or manages
or has owned or managed for which a local housing authority has refused to
grant a licence under Part 2 or 3 of the Act, or has revoked a licence in
consequence of the Licence holder breaching the conditions of his/her licence;

information about any property the Licence holder or manager owns or manages
or has owned or managed that has been the subject of an Interim or Final
Management Order under the Housing Act 2004;

Page 244




f) the property becoming empty;

g) changes to liability insurance;

h) notification of repossession/foreclosure;

i) successful claims against the Licence holder for default of tenancy deposits;
j) change in managing agent or the instruction of a managing agent;

k) the undertaking of substantial works to the property, including conversions and
modernisations or emergency problems relating to fire, flood or disaster and the
tenants are made temporarily homeless.

Reason: To safeguard the health, safety and well-being of occupants in the
event of changes during the period of the Licence.

18. Absence

The Licence holder shall have in place suitable emergency and other management
arrangements in the event of their absence. The name and contact details of the
Licence holder and/or manager must be supplied to each occupier and must also be
on display in a prominent place.

Reason: to safeguard the health, safety and well-being of occupants in the
event of temporary absence of persons in control.

19. Compliance inspections

The Licence holder shall allow the Council to undertake Licence compliance checks.
Council officers will give the Licence holder at least 24 hours notice of these checks
and produce valid authorisation at the time of visit. If the inspection is because the
Council suspects there has been a breach of Licence conditions then no notice period
will be provided.

Reason: To ensure that the property complies with the Housing Act 2004
and Licence conditions.

Page 245




Appendix 4 — Exemptions

Properties that are exempt from requiring a licence are those that are:

1.

Subject to a Prohibition Order, under Section 20 of the Housing Act 2004, that has not been
suspended.

. Business premises.

. Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) that require a statutory HMO licence.

Tenancies for agricultural land/holdings.

. Controlled by a local housing authority, Police authority, Fire and Rescue authority or a

Health Service body.

. Occupied solely by students undertaking a full-time course of further or higher education,

and where the person managing or in control of it is the educational establishment.

. Tenancies granted for more than 21 years and the agreement does not allow the landlord to

end the tenancy earlier than the term of the lease (the property must be occupied by the
original person who was granted the tenancy or members of their family).

. The tenant is a member of the landlord’s family. (The house must be the occupier's main

residence. The person granting the occupancy must be the freeholder or leaseholder, which
is for a period of more than 21 years. This lease must not contain a provision allowing the
landlord to end the tenancy earlier than the term of the lease);

. Tenancies or licences granted for the occupancy of a holiday home.

10.Accommodation that the occupier shares with the landlord or licensor or a member of the

landlord or licensor’s family.

Page 246



Appendix 5 - Fee Structure

Fee and charging structure for the implementation of Selective Licensing in North
Ormesby.

Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004 enables the Council to require the application for a Licence to be
accompanied by a fee fixed by the Council.

The Council is not permitted to make a profit from the introduction of a Selective Licensing
scheme and any surplus must be ring-fenced to the scheme. The fees should, however, take
account of all costs incurred in carrying out all duties under this part of the Act.

Standard Fees
To meet the costs involved in running the North Ormesby Selective Licensing Scheme it is
proposed to charge fees of:

= £580 per Single Occupancy Household Unit

= £20 per Fit and Proper Person Check — in respect of the proposed Licence Holder and the
proposed manager (if a different person from the Licence Holder)

Where a licence is refused or revoked, the applicant or licence holder will not be entitled to any
refund of fees and will be required to pay any outstanding charges linked to the application.

Applications resulting from a change in ownership of a licensed property will be charged the full
standard fee.

Owners should give careful consideration to the person designated as Licence holder as
licences run for a maximum of 5 years and are non-transferable. If the licence holder
changes for any reason, the full licence fee is payable by the first licence holder and the
new licence holder will also need to pay the full standard fee. The new licence holder will
not incur a penalty charge as long as the application form, fees and documentation are
received within three months of the change of ownership/manager.

Applications for licences in the last six months of the designation will be eligible for a reduced
fee of 50%, where properties have not been licensable prior to the 6 month deadline.

Multiple unit charges?

=  Fee per property up to and including 5 units - £605

» Fee for each additional unit over 5 within the same building under the same control as
proposed licence holder - £20

The Council wants a Selective Licensing fee structure that rewards landlords who
comply in a timely manner and will also look to recoup its additional costs where
landlords fail to come forward during the licensing timescales or provide incomplete
applications which requires additional work from the team.

The Council also recognises the current economic climate for landlords and is
therefore willing to consider, a 12 month payment plan, by direct debit terms, for
landlords. The Council will welcome views from landlords on a final fee structure
via the consultation process.

Page 247



Method of Payment

Full amount to accompany the application, or 12 monthly Direct Debit payment set up for full
amount. Payments other than Direct Debit can be made in full by cheque, debit or credit card.
A charge of 2.5% will be added to your payment if you use a credit card.

If any changes, or default, are made on a direct debit agreement, this will breach licence
conditions and impair any discounts offered on the standard fee.

Page 248



Appendix 6 — Case Studies

Case Study 1 - HHSRS - The SLL Team had arranged numerous inspection visits to a property
but the tenant repeatedly wouldn’t allow access. An evening visit was made and the tenant
finally opened the door. The tenant was initially angry as he was confused as to who his
managing agent was as they kept changing. The tenant agreed for officers to carry out the
inspection which highlighted at least four Category 1 (most serious) Hazards in the property.
These included; no boiler, no heating, no hot water, the bathroom roof falling in (which was
propped up with pole), the kitchen was inaccessible and had no cooking facilities. Due to the
condition of the property and the hazards identified, a Prohibition Order was served. The
Landlord has since installed a new boiler, new kitchen (including cooking facilities), new
bathroom roof, bathroom suite, new rear windows downstairs and a new back door. The
landlord has also informed the tenant that he is going to supply new carpets in the property
downstairs.

Before and after photographs:

Case Study 2 - Inspection Visits - Prior to inspection visits to a landlords three properties we
completed checks on the Gas Safe register to make sure that the Gas Engineer who completed
the Gas Safety Checks on all three properties was registered as Gas Safe, however he was not
found.

Page 249



During the visits we made the landlord aware of this issue, the landlord was concerned and tried
to contact the Engineer but he would not answer his phone. The Engineer has carried out work
for the landlord for many years, and had become like a friend.

The landlord phoned the Gas Safe register and they advised him the engineer was not
registered.

The Environmental Health Officer who was present on the inspection spoke to the landlord
about his concerns and advised he would report this.

It turns out the engineer was registered but was suspended in 2014 for not allowing an engineer
from the Gas Safe Register to inspect his work, and the engineer should not have issued the
certificate for the three properties, and an investigation will be carried out by the gas safe
register.

Case Study 3 - Tenancy Relations - During a tenancy inspection visit with a landlord, it was
identified that the tenant was struggling with his mental health issues due to spiralling debts.
Whilst at the property a debt enforcement agency arrived to reclaim goods to the value of the
debt. Both the Officer and landlord negotiated on the tenant’s behalf, providing evidence that
the property was a furnished tenancy and that his only belongings were his clothing and
toiletries. The SLL Officer arranged an appointment for the tenant to attend Citizens Advice and
also made a referral to Firmer Foundations (mental health support). During the Citizens Advice
appointment the tenant disclosed significant debts therefore a Debt Relief Order was applied for
(due to his severe mental health issues) and a food bank voucher was issued. The tenant has
now applied for different benefits and is receiving the much needed support he required.

Case Study 4 - Housing Benefit Fraud - A role within the Selective Licensing scheme is to
investigate any landlord who fails to comply with the Selective Licensing Scheme. On one
particular occasion we investigated a landlord who had active benefit claims for two of the
properties they owned and managed in North Ormesby. As part of the investigation we were
required to go door knocking and try to speak to the tenants so that we could build a better
picture. However after speaking to the tenants neighbours it was established despite the fact
the landlord had active claims for both of these properties, one of the properties had been
empty for over 6months and the second property had been empty for over 3 years meaning the
landlord had been claiming up to 3 years’ worth of benefits. This information was passed onto
the Benefits Fraud team who are investigating this matter. If this had not been investigated as
part of Selective Licensing then maybe this landlord would still be claiming fraudulently.

Case Study 5 - Neighbourhood Safety Officer - A tenant who had been housed by a landlord
after a referral from the mental health team had sustained his tenancy for 18 months but after
support was withdrawn from mental health services he became involved in antisocial behaviour
in the house and visitors took advantage of him. There were allegations of noise disturbance,
shouting, fighting and drug misuse at the property and also criminal damage to the house.
Visitors were climbing in and out of windows and dealing drugs in the back alley.

The Neighbourhood Safety officer (NSO) liaised with residents and obtained evidence of these
incidents and residents completed diary sheets. The NSO contacted the landlord who was
willing to work with the scheme to resolve the problem. The tenant had had warnings but took
no notice. The landlord served a section 21 but the tenant would not leave when he was
supposed to. The NSO contacted the homeless and housing advice team and arranged for the
tenant to present himself with the relevant documentation to obtain support and he was offered
new accommodation with support. He has now moved and residents nearby report it is quiet.
The landlord has agreed to reference any new prospective tenants once the house has been
refurbished.

Page 250



Appendix A — Proposal document

I\/\iddlestﬁgtlgh

moving forward

Proposal by Middlesbrough Council to introduce
Selective Licensing in North Ormesby

Page 251



CONTENTS
Page number
About this consultation ......ccicviiirsisnrs s 2

Challenges facing North Ormesby ........ccccicriiiinrsrsrsn s s rans 2

Low demand hOUSING ...iuierereimimsrsraramsnsimmarasssssssnssarsssssssssasasasassssasasasassssssasasas 3
Tenure mix

Empty properties

Property values

Turnover

Housing stock condition

Housing disrepair

Illegal eviction/harassment

Anti-social behaviour

Crime

Wider indicators ....ccicvcriiimiimiirrrra s s s s s sasasasasa s ssnnannnnnans 5
e Index of multiple deprivation
e Unemployment
e Fuel poverty

How the proposed selective licensing scheme will work ..........ccciiviiieiierenans 6
e Licence application

Fit and proper person test

Licence conditions

Refusal to grant a licence

Failure to apply

Exemptions

Inspection programme

Licence fees

Potential benefits of the Selective Licensing scheme ..........c.coicvmirininennneinan, 7

How Selective Licensing will support strategies for the area ..............coveveueies 8
e Mayor’s Vision and Council’s Change Programme

Health and wellbeing

Private rented sector

Anti-social behaviour

Prevention of Homelessness Strategy

Empty homes

The BIG Local and North Ormesby Neighbourhood Action Plan

Alternative remedies and why the Council considers they are insufficient ....... 10
e Accreditation

Enforcement of housing standards

Management Orders

Private Sector Leasing Scheme

Alternative approaches — summary

Consultation: opportunities to engage and respond .......c.corererereimraresnnnranans 12
e Methods of consultation
e How to respond to the consultation

Page 1252



ABOUT THIS CONSULTATION

The Housing Act 2004 gives the Council powers
to introduce Selective Licensing for privately
rented properties in areas experiencing low
housing demand and/or significant and persistent
anti-social behaviour. The purpose of such
schemes is to improve standards of property
management in the private rented sector. The
Council can make the ‘designation’ if it believes
this will, when combined with other measures,
lead to improved social and economic conditions
in the area.

The Council proposes to introduce Selective
Licensing in North Ormesby, as outlined on the
map at Appendix 1. The Council’s proposal is
made on the grounds that North Ormesby is an
area of low housing demand.

This document explains why the Council believes
Selective Licensing is needed in North Ormesby,
how it will operate alongside and complement
other measures, the improvements it will bring
about and why alternative remedies are
insufficient.

The Council wants to hear from those who are
likely to be affected by the proposed scheme,
including local tenants, landlords, managing
agents and other members of the community
who live or operate businesses or provide
services within the proposed designation. This
includes local residents and those who operate
businesses or provide services in the surrounding
area outside of the proposed designation who
are likely to be affected. This wider consultation
area is also outlined on the map at Appendix 1.

Details of how to respond to the consultation are
set out from page 12.

The consultation will last for a period of 10
weeks, starting on 12 January 2015 and closing
on 23 March 2015. After this time the results will
be published, including a summary of the
responses received and how these have either
been acted on or not, giving reasons in each
case.

The Council will make a final decision on Selective
Licensing after it has fully considered the
responses to the consultation.

Should the Council decide to introduce a scheme
then all affected parties will be formally notified 3

months in advance of it coming into operation.
CHALLENGES FACING NORTH ORMESBY

North Ormesby is experiencing major challenges
associated with social and economic decline:

. between 2007 and 2010 the area showed
the most significant increase in deprivation
across the whole town;

. a burgeoning private rented sector with
evidence to suggest poorly managed
properties are feeding a concentration of
anti-social behaviour and crime in the area,
borne out by the BIG Local whose survey has
confirmed it as a key concern for residents;

. equivalent crime levels to Gresham (the
area with the highest recent crime levels in
the town);

= high levels of social isolation particularly
amongst older people; and,

= low levels of resilience to welfare reform
impacts.

A significant and concerning pattern of housing
and subsequent social decline in parts of North
Ormesby can be identified:

= the older terraced properties are no
longer the first time buyers *house of choice’
they have been in previous generations;

] the low demand for two bedroom
terraced properties has led to private sector
landlords purchasing properties at relatively
cheap prices;

= some, but by no means all, of these
landlords have housed tenants who have
gone on to present a wide range of problem
behaviours further fuelling low demand

levels;

] there are a high number of empty
properties in the area; and

= this concentration of issues has seen a

broad range of social problems manifest
themselves from drug and alcohol abuse to
domestic violence and high crime levels.

Whilst North Ormesby may not always be
recognised as the most disadvantaged area
against every statistical measure, the rate of its
decline, it's vulnerability in terms of crime, social
isolation, and the impact of welfare reform
provides a particularly compelling picture of
chronic need — especially in conjunction with the
apparent housing market failure. If not

Page 253



addressed, this decline could threaten the long-
term stability of the area.

Page 254



LOW HOUSING DEMAND

The Council is looking to introduce Selective
Licensing in North Ormesby on the basis that
there is compelling evidence of low housing
demand. In line with legislation and guidance
the Council has considered the indicators of low
housing demand described in the following
section. The evidence points to an area with a
high incidence of private renting, low property
prices, a transient tenant population and high
proportion of empty properties.

Tenure mix

North Ormesby has a disproportionately high
level of private rented properties and very low
levels of owner occupation. It consists of
approximately 1,750 properties, of which 38%
are privately rented. Approximately 39% are
owner-occupied and 18% are social rented.

The level of private renting in North Ormesby
contrasts markedly with the rest of the town
and the national rate of 16.8%.

In the 10 year period between 2001 and 2011,
North Ormesby has seen a major change in its
tenure mix.2 Owner occupation decreased by
17.7%, the social rented sector decreased by
16.9%, in contrast the private rented sector
increased by 118.2%.

Empty properties

The problems empty properties cause for local
communities are well known, but in summary
they:

e deny homes to those in need;

e attract vermin, crime, arson, vandalism, fly-
tipping and anti-social behaviour;

e are a source of anxiety for owners and
neighbours;

e reduce the value of neighbouring properties
and,

e as a consequence, are a drain on public
services and budgets.

At the end of September 2014, according to
Council Tax records, there were 68 long-term
empty properties in North Ormesby, which
equates to 3.9% of total stock. North
Ormesby has the second highest proportion of
long term empties than other areas in
Middlesbrough. This position contributes to a

4

negative image causing uncertainty for
established residents and making it hard to
attract people to the area.

Property values

With average sales prices in North Ormesby at
£48,0003, they are amongst the lowest in the
town. Gresham'’s property value are of a similar
price £47,400 where the average price in other

town centre wards are higher (£64,000 in
Middlehaven and £98,000 in University). The
average house price for Middlesbrough is
£124,000). A number of factors are at play,
including the disproportionate levels of private
rented properties when compared with other
parts of the town, high levels of crime, anti-social
behavior and deprivation, and empty properties.
These older terraced properties are no longer the
first time buyers ‘house of choice’ they have
been in previous generations.

Anecdotal evidence has been obtained from local
estate agents who were asked about the price of
properties, location and length of time on the

market. Their responses are summarised below.

Prices range from £25k-£30k up to £55k
dependent on the particular location. Those
purchasing properties in North Ormesby tend
to be investors looking to buy to rent.
Properties can be well kept/decorated to a
good standard but the location is the issue
and limits the selling price. Sales can take
from three to eight months.

Prices are dropping and interest is from
investors only not first or second time buyers.
Two bedroom properties are selling for £25k
to £40k, with three bedroom properties
selling for £30k to £50k . Prices have halved
in the past three to four years. The condition
is not an issue and the sale is completed
based on price. There has been a rise in
repossessions, or simply moving out of the
area.

Sale price is very much dependent on the
location within North Ormesby. Properties
around the Beaumont Road area are the ones
that sell for very low prices with investor
interest and selling for around £22k-£25k.

Turnover
The presence of a more transient population
typically housed in privately rented

3 Land Registry, Sold Prices, August
2 National Statistics, Household Tenure QS405EW (2001 &2011)Pa962é§§ to July 2014.



accommodation can have a negative impact on
the stability and desirability of an area. It can
also affect community integration and investment

Page 256



and affect school performance negatively.
Transience can also attract disadvantaged people
to the area, which in turn can lead to increased
social deprivation.

Concentrations of one and two person younger
adult households are associated with the private
rented sector in North Ormesby along with a
higher level of turnover of tenancies. In North
Ormesby 25.7% of the resident population is
aged between 20 and 34 compared to 21.5%
across Middlesbrough. Population turnover rates
from the Office for National Statistics (2009-
2010) identified that the Middle Super Output
Area for North Ormesby had one of the highest
rates of inflow of people aged 25 to 64 in
Middlesbrough.

Council Tax records provide a guide as to the
proportion of properties experiencing turnover in
the North Ormesby area. Of the 1,791 Council
Tax accounts in 2013/14 a change occurred in
72.8% of them, requiring a new account to be
created, affecting 705 properties (39%). In the
preceding year a change requiring a hew
account to be created occurred on 85.8% of
accounts, affecting 870 properties (50%).

Housing stock condition

Middlesbrough’s Private Sector Stock Condition
Survey (PSSCS) 2008 identified North Ormesby
as having the highest proportion of non-decent
dwellings in Middlesbrough at 60.5%. Non-
decent homes do not meet current statutory
minimum standards, are not in a reasonable
state of repair, do not have reasonably modern
facilities and fail to provide a reasonable degree
of thermal comfort.

North Ormesby also recorded the highest non-
decency remedial cost score by area (£40.3m
and an average of £3,685, per non decent
dwelling).

The same survey identified North Ormesby as
having the largest proportion of vulnerable
households (74.2%) living in non-decent homes.

North Ormesby was also found to have by far the
highest proportion of homes with a Category 1
hazard (37.8%). Examples of Category 1
hazards include:

» inadequate heating
= absence of working fire alarms
» leaking roof

= broken rail on a steep stairway
= lack of physical security, such as doors and
windows not closing or locking properly.

North Ormesby also had the lowest SAP rating
(40) — this compares the energy performance of
different homes and is measured on a scale of 1
to 100. The higher the rating the lower the fuel
costs.

Housing disrepair

The Council received 145 complaints of housing
disrepair in private rented property in North
Ormesby between 2011/12 and 2013/14, this
equates to 8.4% of the private rented properties
in North Ormesby, the town average being 3.4%.

The Council forwarded 41 pre-formal schedules
of work to landlords in North Ormesby between
2011/12 and 2013/14 (2.4% of private rented
housing in the area) with the town average being
0.6%.

The Council served 9 statutory repair notices on
landlords in North Ormesby between 2011/12
and 2013/14.

Illegal eviction/harassment

Between 2011/12 and 2013/14 there were 16
complaints of illegal eviction and harassment in
North Ormesby, which is the highest rate in the
town within the private rented sector.

Anti-social behaviour

Anti-social behaviour and crime can have a
devastating effect on individuals and
communities. It describes a wide range of
everyday nuisance, disorder and crime from
graffiti and noisy neighbours to harassment and
street drug dealing. It is sometimes dismissed as
trivial, but anti-social behaviour has a huge
impact on victims' quality of life and it is often
the public's number one priority when it comes
to local concerns.

Anti-social behaviour that the Council’s
Community Safety Team regularly needs to deal
with includes:

Vandalism, graffiti, and other deliberate
damage to property or vehicles
Teenagers hanging around on the streets
Rubbish or litter lying around

Drug use and dealing

Drunk or rowdy behaviour

Chaotic families.

Page 257



There was a total of 1,917 complaints of anti-
social behaviour received by the Council’s Private
Housing Enforcement and Anti-Social Behaviour
Teams, an increase over that period of 67.9%.

Between October 2013 and September 2014,
Cleveland Police also dealt with 732 cases of
anti-social behaviour in North Ormesby. This is
the second highest rate per population in the
town. The ward with the highest rate was
Middlehaven, which includes town centre related
anti-social behaviour e.g. reports of drunk/rowdy
behaviour, often handled by Street Wardens.

Crime

North Ormesby is experiencing some of the
highest levels of criminal activity in
Middlesbrough. Between October 2013 and
September 2014 there were 716 crimes reported
in North Ormesby. Middlehaven has the highest
rate, however, this area includes crime
associated with town centre retail and the
nighttime economy.

WIDER INDICATORS

Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD)
The IMD 2010 identifies areas of multiple
deprivation for each local authority area as a
whole and also for smaller areas within each
local authority known as Lower Layer Super
Output Areas (LSOAs).

The IMD is a relative measure of deprivation and
is based on a variety of indicators. Each of the
32,482 LSOAs in England are assigned a score
based on deprivation levels, and also a rank
based on each of the scores. Rankings for the
326 English districts and boroughs are also
calculated. Middlesbrough has a rank of average
score of 8 meaning it is the 8th most deprived
local authority area in England.

In 2010 the 2 LSOAs for North Ormesby were in
the 10% most deprived nationally being ranked
326 and 328 of 32,482 LSOAs. Both LSOAs had
declined since 2007 with one showing the
biggest decline in Middlesbrough, falling by 1,172
places.

The North Ormesby and Brambles Farm ward is
the third most deprived ward in the town, and

has declined since 2004%.

Unemployment

Benefit dependency is a major concern with over
30% of the North Ormesby and Brambles Farm
working age population claiming at least one of
the key out of work benefits compared to 19.2%
in Middlesbrough.

The North Ormesby and Brambles Farm ward
has the highest rate of youth unemployment in
the town (14.0%), and the fourth highest rate
of long-term unemployment (3.6%), compared
to Middlesbrough as a whole (6.7%) and (1.8%)
respectively.®

Fuel poverty

Fuel poverty in England is measured by the Low
Income High Costs indicator, which considers a
household to be in fuel poverty if they have fuel
costs that are above average, and if they were to
spend that amount they would be left with an
income below the official poverty line.

The key drivers behind fuel poverty are: the
energy efficiency of the property, the cost of
energy, and the household income.

North Ormesby has a rate (30.9%)°® of its
households living in fuel poverty, almost three
times the national rate (10.4%).

4

www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/index.aspx
?articleid=2135
5 Tees Valley Unlimited, Ward Statistics, September 2014.

6 Gov.UK Fuel poverty: sub-regional data under low income high

Page 25 t indicator, 2012.
7



HOW THE PROPOSED SELECTIVE
LICENSING SCHEME WILL WORK

Licence application

Within the designated area all privately rented
properties will need a licence to operate. The
owner of the rented property will need to make
an application to the Council. The Council must
be satisfied that of all the person with an interest
in the property, the most appropriate person is the
licence holder, this would usually be the property
owner.

The licence will be valid for a maximum 5 years,
although the Council has discretion to grant the
licence for a shorter period of time where there
are problems with the application such as
evidence of insufficient management. Failing to
apply for a licence could lead to prosecution and
a fine of up to £20,000. If prosecuted, this
would lead to the licence holder no longer being
classed as ‘fit and proper’ (see below) and would
mean they would need to find someone else to
hold their licence and undertake the
management of the property.

Fit and Proper Person test

As part of the application process, proposed
licence holders and managers will be required to
prove that they are “fit and proper persons” and
that they have satisfactory management
arrangements in place, including those for dealing
with anti-social behaviour. A plan for how they
will handle complaints of anti-social behaviour will
need to be submitted with the application.

When deciding whether a landlord and/or
managing agent is “fit and proper” the Council
will look at whether they have:

e Committed any serious criminal offences
(fraud, violence, drugs or sexual offences)

e Discriminated illegally against anyone

e Breached laws that relate to renting property.

To check this, all applications will require
detailed information from the landlord and any
relevant managers. Any significant and relevant
convictions, cautions, reprimands and warnings
will not necessarily mean that an application for
a Licence will be refused. Offences have been
allocated into categories 1, 2 and 3, with
Category 1 being regarded as the most serious
(Appendix 2). Where the Council has concerns,
applicants will be required as part of the licence
conditions to seek a Disclosure Scotland.

There will be a fee to cover the Council’s costs of
carrying out the fit and proper person checks,
which will be £20.00 per person. Landlords with
multiple properties will only be required to pay
this fee once, if it is the same owner and
manager.

Licence conditions

The license holder will have to satisfy a number of
conditions. Breaches of these licence conditions
could lead to prosecution and a fine of £5,000.

Mandatory conditions relate to the following
requirements:

e a landlord must obtain references from all
persons wishing to occupy the property;

e landlords must produce gas certificates;

e electrical appliances must be kept safe;

e the property must have working smoke
alarms; and,

e each tenant must be provided with a written
tenancy agreement.

The Council is proposing to include a number of
discretionary conditions which relate to the
management of the property, including: ensuring
the number of occupiers does not cause
overcrowding with the property, to supply a copy
of the Energy Performance Certificate to the
Council, to fit carbon monoxide detectors to the
property, and have a suitable anti-social behavior
plan in place. The proposed licence conditions
are attached to this document at Appendix 3.

Refusal to grant a licence

If the licence application is refused, and there is
no reasonable prospect of the property being
licensed in the near future, the Council can apply
for an Interim Management Order to take over
the management of the property for up to one
year or until such time as the owner is able to
rectify the reasons for the licence being refused.
If the owner is unable to rectify the problems
then the Council can apply for a Final
Management Order to take on the management
for up to 5 years.

In some circumstances rather than refuse the
licence, it may be possible for the owner to apply
for a temporary exemption notice. This allows 3
months for the owner to take such steps as are
necessary so the property no longer requires a
licence e.g. the property has been sold to an
owner-occupier.

Page 259



Failure to apply
Failing to apply for a licence could lead to
prosecution and a fine of up to £20,000.

In addition to the fine the Council can apply for
a Rent Repayment Order which allows amounts
paid in connection with a tenancy or licence to
be recovered for the period that the property
should have been licensed.

Exemptions

There are certain properties that are exempt
from applying for a licence, they are detailed at
Appendix 4.

Inspection programme

The Council will inspect all private rented
properties within the area. High risk properties
that are known to be problematic will be
prioritised. The inspection programme will check
for compliance with selective licensing conditions
including:

e the working order and positioning of smoke
alarms;

e carbon monoxide detector;

e tenancy agreements supplied to the tenant;

e property management arrangements.

Compliance action will be taken against landlords
who breach licence conditions. Landlords will
not be deemed to be *fit and proper’ if housing
offences are proven against them in the courts.

The inspections will be on a multi-
agency/disciplinary team, this could include a
Licensing Officer, Police, Neighbourhood Safety
Officer and Social Care Early Help Practitioners.
This approach is to ensure that as well as
checking compliance with the licence conditions,
the tenants are helped and supported with any
issues they may be facing. Issues may include
substance misuse, parenting skills,
unemployment; the team will make referrals to
relevant agencies and follow-up any actions. It
must be stressed that only the time of the
licensing officer checking compliance with the
licence conditions will be charged to the licence
fee.

The other services offered through the Early Help
Team will be of benefit to landlords, tenants and
the wider community to help to reduce the
turnover of tenants.

License fees

The Housing Act 2004 gives the Council the
power to charge landlords a fee for all costs it
incurs carrying out its Selective Licensing
functions. The Act also allows the Council to
take into account costs incurred in carrying
functions in relation to Interim and Final
Management Orders (so far as they are not
recoverable under that part of the Act).

The Council proposes to charge a basic fee of
£580.00 for a licence.

The proposed fee structure is set out in detail at
Appendix 5. The Council aims to reward
landlords, who come forward to comply in a
timely manner. The Council is also proposing to
look at payment plans over twelve months, by
direct debit.

Income from the licence fees is ring fenced
meaning that it can only be used for this project
and not for any other reason. It is anticipated
the scheme will require 4.5 FTEs and an
Apprentice to operate.

POTENTIAL BENEFITS OF THE SELECTIVE
LICENSING SCHEME

It is anticipated that introducing this scheme in
North Ormesby will have a number of benefits to
the community, landlords, tenants and owners,
both directly and indirectly, including:

e Improved management and condition of
privately rented accommodation.

e Support for landlords in dealing with anti-
social tenants.

e Reductions in levels of anti-social behaviour.

e Educating tenants about their responsibilities
and their impact of their behaviour on the
community and neighbours.

e Encouraging tenants to recognise when
properties are of a sub-standard condition
and what options are available to them.

e Promotion of landlord aspiration to let
property to a higher standard and to act in a
professional manner.

e Encouragement of landlords not to take
tenants with a poor reference.

e Improvement of the image and desirability of
the area.

e Improved values of property in the area.

e Encouraging a change to the tenure mix of
the area. Protect investment in the area.

Page 9260



e Working with those landlords who are not
providing good quality accommodation or
managing their tenancies effectively and
removing “rogue landlords” altogether.

e Reduced tenant turnover leading to
sustainable communities, creating
communities where tenants want to remain.

e Encourage the use of reputable managing
agents when landlords are inexperienced or
“absentee”.

e Raising community confidence through the
appropriate use of enforcement powers
against landlords who are failing to comply
with the provisions of the Housing Act 2004.

The Council aims to build better working relations
with landlords in the area and concentrate
resources on eradicating bad practice by some
landlords.

License conditions will help to ensure that
vulnerable tenants are living in accommodation
where the management is capable of dealing with
their needs.

It will also help the Council to better target
resources in dealing with anti-social tenants and
enforce against unprofessional landlords.

Selective Licensing will seek to develop a more
consistent level of property management services
among all private landlords in the area, thus
assisting prospective private tenants in making a
positive, confident choice about their next home.

Reputable landlords can be assured that if a
Selective Licensing scheme were in place, those
landlords whose business practices do not meet
the required minimum standards would be
encouraged and supported to improve their
management standards. Landlords who are not
willing to work with the Council could face being
refused a licence and ultimately having a
Management Order imposed against the

property.

HOW SELECTIVE LICENSING WILL
SUPPORT STRATEGIES FOR THE AREA

Housing plays a fundamental role in delivering
sustainable communities, facilitating social and
environmental improvements and promoting
economic growth. The Council believes that
Licensing has an important role to play and offers
valuable support to existing initiatives to tackle

empty homes, prevent homelessness, create
sustainable, high quality neighbourhoods and
reduce anti-social behaviour.

Mayor’s Vision and the Council’s Change
Programme

The proposal for North Ormesby clearly links to
the Mayors Vision in terms of its contribution to a
learning town, in which families and communities
thrive, and a town that continues to transform.
It contributes directly to a number of the Change
Programme outcomes, specifically:

e Providing services and support to
communities such that people have more
fulfilling lives, feel safe and their need for
support services reduces.

e Achieving longer and healthier lives, reducing
health inequalities and protecting the local
population from environmental hazards and
incidents.

e Providing support to help families and adults
in need and, maximise their independence
such that dependency on services reduces.

Health and well-being

Housing has an important impact on health and
well-being: good quality appropriate housing in
places where people want to live has a positive
influence on reducing deprivation and health
inequalities by facilitating stable/secure family
lives. This in turn helps to improve social,
environmental, personal and economic well-
being. Conversely, living in housing which is in
poor condition, overcrowded or unsuitable will
adversely affect the health and well-being of
individuals and families.

As mentioned, the Licensing Team will promote
multi-agency case intervention strategies where
problems are identified.

Private rented sector

Many properties in the sector provide decent
accommodation and are well managed by
landlords. Selective licensing will be a vital tool
in driving up standards. It will reduce the
negative impact on neighbourhoods of poor
landlords and encourage greater awareness and
a sense of responsibility in landlords and tenants
alike.

The Council’s Housing Enforcement team will
continue to employ a wide range of tools to
tackle poor property condition, inadequate
tenancy management and improve conditions in

Pal%e 261



the private rented sector. These tools include:

Mandatory HMO Licensing

Tenant Referencing

Empty Property Enforcement

Housing Health and Safety Rating System
(HHSRS)

By introducing selective licensing the Council is
fully utilising the suite of tools introduced by the
Housing Act 2004 to address management
standards and property conditions within the
private rented sector. As part of a coordinated
approach, Selective Licensing will compel
landlords to maintain good standards and raise
the profile of problem properties. Through the
increased awareness amongst the community
and across agencies, Selective Licensing will
become a valuable mechanism for identifying
and dealing with bad practice amongst private
landlords.

Anti-social behaviour

Selective Licensing will help to ensure that
landlords meet their statutory duties regarding
tenancy management and will encourage and
assist them to deal with issues of anti-social
behavior by taking appropriate and effective
action where they receive a complaint about
their tenants.

There is a range of other initiatives that are
targeted at reducing crime and anti-social
behaviour operating across the North Ormesby
area and the Selective Licensing team will work
in close partnership with other services and
agencies to maximise the impact and contribute
to improved community safety.

The Licensing Team will promote multi-agency
case intervention strategies where problems are
identified, which can include actions for the
Police, the Youth Offending Team, ASB, and
Housing Enforcement teams. Landlords will be
offered support and advice to help tackle anti-
social behaviour from their tenants.

Prevention of Homelessness Strategy

The private rented sector has a central role to
play in offering a decent alternative to owner-
occupation or social rented housing. The sector
makes a significant contribution to meeting the
housing needs of vulnerable people and in many
cases has prevented homelessness and
minimised the use of temporary accommodation.
The Council continues to work in partnership

with the private rented sector and Selective
Licensing will strengthen this partnership by
increasing the number of landlords working with
the Council with well-managed, good quality
accommodation.

By strengthening the partnership between
landlords and the Council, Selective Licensing can
contribute to the prevention of homelessness
through effective tenancy management that
minimises ASB, tackles rent payment issues in a
timely and constructive manner and offers a
housing option for some of the most vulnerable
households in need of a home.

The Localism Act 2011 enabled the use of
suitable offers of accommodation in the private
rented sector and allowed this sector to be used
to discharge the main homelessness duty.
Against the backdrop of high demand but a
shortage of accessible, affordable social housing,
the sector has increasingly become a valuable
resource for offering a range of more easily
accessible housing solutions for homeless
households, but elements of poor management
contribute to repeat homelessness. Licensing
has the potential to effect long term positive
change in the sector and to provide considerable
benefits to homeless households.

It is anticipated that the Selective Licensing
scheme will help achieve a long-term reduction in
the culture of ‘tenancy hopping’, i.e. the practice
of households who are frequently homeless due
to anti-social behaviour, and who may be aided
by rogue landlords to move around the sector,
which prevents underlying behavioural issues
from being tackled and which blights local
communities.

Empty homes

In Middlesbrough there were 657 private
homes empty for six months or more in
September 2014. The Council has already
begun to tackle this issue and to date has,
amongst other things, secured funding from
the Homes and Communities Agency and
adopted an Empty Homes Action Plan to bring
empties back into use.

An important part of the strategy to tackle
empty homes is actively targeting owners and
providing them with information on the
incentives available and the reasons why
empty properties are a poor financial option.
A range of promotional and marketing
measures will be introduced.

Page 12162



In some cases encouraging owners will not be
enough and the Council will need to take
strong enforcement action. It is anticipated
that Selective Licensing will help strengthen
the partnership between landlords and the
Council and the benefits Licensing will deliver
to the area will contribute to tackling problem
empty properties in North Ormesby.

The BIG Local and North Ormesby
Neighbourhood Action Plan

The BIG Local is a community structure based in
North Ormesby and formed through a £1m
Lottery grant. They recently completed (August
2013) a community survey with over three
hundred and fifty residents of the area. The
three clear priorities which emerged during that
consultation were:

o problems associated with the private
rented sector;

o anti-social behaviour;

. street condition.

The Council has concluded there is an urgent
need to take strong and immediate action to halt
the slide of the area. However, it has also
recognised that traditional forms of public sector
intervention are no longer applicable and there is
a need to re-focus interventions around
supporting communities to practice greater levels
of self-management, by focusing on
strengthening those activities and structures
which underpin that ability. In light of this it has
agreed to formulate a comprehensive response
to address the social and economic issues arising
in North Ormesby and endorsed the
implementation of an eighteen month strategic
intervention in the area.

Selective Licensing will have an important role to
play given the priorities identified by the
community and the fact that it responds to the
need to develop a more radical partnership
response to the problems in the area.

ALTERNATIVE REMEDIES AND WHY THE
COUNCIL CONSIDERS THEY ARE
INSUFFICIENT

The Council has considered whether there are
any other courses of action available that might
provide an effective method of achieving the
objectives that the designation is intended to
achieve.

The following paragraphs consider other
powers and projects that are available to the
Council and why they could not replace the
proposed Selective Licensing Designation in
North Ormesby.

Accreditation

Accreditation is @ mechanism for helping
landlords or agents to meet agreed standards of
competence, skills and knowledge about the
business of owning, managing or letting a
private rented home.

Accreditation is supported nationwide by a wide
range of stakeholders, including the
Government, landlord associations, local
authorities, Shelter, the National Union of
Students and the Chartered Institute of
Environmental Health. It can aid the supply of
good-quality, well-managed homes.

Accreditation attracts a limited number of
landlords, mainly those already providing
appropriate management standards and who
are motivated to improve the reputation of the
private rented sector. Such schemes do not
have an intensive impact in any one area, nor
do they tackle the worst privately rented
properties, as due to the voluntary nature the
worst landlords will not engage with the Council
or join the scheme.

Experience shows that it is resource intensive to
encourage the poorer landlord to join
accreditation and when asked to make
improvements due to its voluntary nature many
landlords fail to comply showing that
accreditation cannot tackle the worst standards
of property condition and management
practices.

Enforcement of housing standards

The Housing Act 2004 introduced the Housing
Health and Safety Rating Scheme (HHSRS)
which allows local authorities to inspect
privately rented properties to ensure the
condition of that property does not have an
adverse effect on the health, safety or welfare
of tenants or visitors to that property. Where
necessary the Council will serve statutory
enforcement notices to ensure the condition is
improved.

The current service is in the main reactive - a
complaint will be made and an inspection will
determine whether action needs to be taken.

Page 263



Whilst this approach does improve property
conditions it does not have a concentrated
impact in one area. In addition this power
does not tackle property management
standards. Through the selective licensing
designation and associated training advice and
support, landlords will recognise what
improvements need to be made to their
properties reducing the need for action under
the HHSRS.

In addition the Council will continue to
undertake proactive property inspections in the
designation area, offering advice and where
necessary taking enforcement action to
improve property conditions. Improved
property conditions will assist in retaining
tenants and attracting occupants to the area
assisting in tackling low demand.

Management Orders

Part 4 of the Housing Act 2004 introduced the
use of Management Orders. The general effect
of a Management Order is that the Council
takes control of the property, although legal
ownership does not transfer from the landlord.
There are two forms of Management Order,
interim and final. Interim lasts for a period of 12
months which can then be followed by a final
Management Order which lasts for a maximum
of 5 years.

Once a Management Order is in place the
Council takes over the management of the
property. The occupiers pay their rent to the
Council and any repair costs such as routine
repairs or building insurance are taken from the
rent before any surplus is given to the owner
(landlord).

This power only deals with individual properties
and is resource intensive.

This approach does not present a long term
solution to address poor management of
privately rented stock as the property is
returned to the original owner who may not
necessarily have improved their management
standards in the interim.

The Council will use Management Orders in
the designation area as a last resort to deal
with landlords who fail to comply with
selective licensing and improve their
management standards.

Private Sector Leasing Scheme

A Private Sector Leasing Scheme is where the
Council takes out a lease, normally 3 to 5
years in duration, from a private owner or
landlord on their property. The Council then
uses the property to provide affordable
accommodation for homeless families.

There is no guarantee that landlords,
especially the worst, will join the scheme and
the Council cannot compel them to do so. As
with Management Orders the scheme does
not address poor management practices as
the landlord does not gain experience, advice
or training during the lease meaning that once
handed back management standards will
once again be unsatisfactory.

In summary the alternative options to selective
licensing would require some, if not all, of the
finance from the Council, which in turn comes
from everyone paying Council Tax.

Selective Licensing will be self-financing,
paid for by the licence applicants and not
the community.

Alternative approaches — summary
There is no single solution and each
alternative will have its limitations. No single
intervention, including Selective Licensing,
can solve the problem and therefore a co-
ordinated strategy is required which links a
full range of agencies and services using
various interventions.

Problems relating to the use of the
alternatives to Selective Licensing can
include the following:

e They are expensive and there is the
likelihood that some of the finance
required would need to be collected from
Council Tax. This seems unjust when
many of the problems are caused by the
lack of effective tenancy management.
Selective Licensing will be self-financing,
paid for by landlords.

e  The use of Management Orders on all
problematic properties would be neither
appropriate nor feasible, given the number
of properties. The Council must act in a
proportionate manner and a heavy handed
approach would undermine efforts to work
with landlords to improve standards.
Selective Licensing provides an opportunity

Page 12364



to continue to forge partnerships with otherwise anonymous private landlords
and provide training and support, where the use of these orders does not.

e Alternatives do not adequately tackle the private tenant’s behaviour. This could
result in the same “problem” tenant being left to float within an area without
any real targeted tenancy enforcement and where required, supported tenancy
referral. The proposed Selective Licence conditions include a requirement for
the landlord to seek references when allocating the property and to deal with
any complaints of anti-social behaviour from their tenants (and/or their
visitors/children).

e None of these tools provides a long-term solution to the training of
inexperienced landlords whose business would benefit, either because they
are not fit, or because of their poor management arrangements.

e  Whilst Selective Licensing is only to be used in areas where authorisation is
sought and given, many private landlords have properties across the entire
town and indeed across local authority borders. Therefore, improvements
attained in management standards will have a trickledown effect and will
benefit tenants and communities across wider areas.

CONSULTATION — OPPORTUNITIES TO ENGAGE & RESPOND

The consultation is being carried out over a 10 week period, and will be widely
publicised using various channels of communication.

The consultation will start on 12 January 2015 and close on 23 March 2015.

Once the consultation has been completed the results will be published and made
available to the local community.

The Council is required to consult with local residents, including tenants, landlords,
managing agents and other members of the community who live or operate
businesses or provide services within the proposed designation and those in the
surrounding area which is shown on the map at Appendix 1.

Everyone who responds to this consultation will have their views fully considered.
A comprehensive engagement and consultation process with partners,
stakeholders and customers will include:

Private landlords

Private tenants

Local communities

Tenant and resident associations
Landlord associations
Citizens Advice Bureau
Registered Social Landlords
Local community committees
Locally elected members
Local businesses
Middlesbrough Police

Other Council service areas.

0
Page 265



Methods of consultation
Consultation will be taking place using the following methods:

Direct mail to landlords and residents.

Direct mail to local community groups.

Press release to local media/press.

Information on Middlesbrough Council’s website.

Drop-in sessions for landlords, tenants, other residents, businesses and
other agencies (details will be included in letters posted to all consultees).

Email to all Ward Councillors.

Email to all relevant Council service areas.

How to respond to the consultation

A guestionnaire will be available to complete on the Council’s website, a paper
version of which can be downloaded from the website. It will also be available to
collect from the receptions of the Civic Centre, Town Hall and Middlesbrough
House.

All questionnaires and comments should be returned to: Housing Service,
Middlesbrough Council, P.O. Box 504, Civic Centre, Middlesbrough, TS1 9FY.

If you would like any further information about the Selective Licensing proposals
please contact: Michael Quinn, Principal Housing Needs & Enabling Officer.

Page 266



Appendix A

I\/\iddles@cﬁjgh

moving forward

Proposal by Middlesbrough Council to
designate the area identified as Newport 2 for
Selective Landlord Licensing

Middlesbrough Council
PO Box 504

Civic Centre
Middlesbrough

TS1 9FY

Page 267



CONTENTS Page number

About this consultation 3
Challenges that Newport face 5
Wider indicators 6
e Index of multiple deprivation
Low housing demand 7
o Tenure mix
e Empty properties
e Property values
e Turnover
e Housing stock condition 9
e Housing disrepair
Anti-social behavior and Crime
e Antisocial behavior
e Crime
How the proposed selective licensing scheme will work 12
e Licence application
e Fit and proper person test
e Licence conditions
e Refusal to grant a licence
e Failure to apply
o Exemptions
e Inspection programme
e Licence fees
Potential benefits of the Selective Licensing scheme 15
o Case Studies
e Testimonials
e Evaluation of current scheme
How Selective Licensing will support strategies for the area 18
e Mayor’s Vision and Council’s Change Programme
e Health and wellbeing
e Private rented sector
e Antisocial behaviour
e Prevention of Homelessness Strategy
e Empty homes
e Neighbourhood Action Plan
e Place Based Working
Alternative remedies and why the Council considers they are insufficient 21
e Accreditation
e Enforcement of housing standards
e Management Orders
e Private Sector Leasing Scheme
e Alternative approaches — summary
Consultation: opportunities to engage and respond 23
e Methods of consultation
e How to respond to the consultation
Appendices 25

Page 2268




ABOUT THIS CONSULTATION

The Housing Act 2004 gives the Council powers to introduce Selective Licensing for privately rented
properties in areas experiencing low housing demand and/or significant and persistent anti-social
behaviour. The purpose of such schemes is to improve standards of property management in the private
rented sector. The Council can make the ‘designation’ if it believes this will, when combined with other
measures, lead to improved social and economic conditions in the area.

The Council proposes to introduce Selective Licensing in the Newport 2 area, as outlined on the map at
Appendix 1. This is the area of Newport ward which is not currently included in the Newport 1
designation. The Council’s proposal is made on the grounds that the Newport ward is an area of low
housing demand with significant levels of antisocial behaviour.

Newport 1 scheme was implemented on the 13" June 2019. Since the implementation of the scheme a
residents survey has been completed in November 2021 which showed an increase in the percentage of
residents who responded that they felt fairly or very safe in the ward. The figure for residents who felt
fairly or very safe during the day rose from 35.48% in March 2021 to 68.65% in November 2021. The
figure on an evening rose from 12.9% in March 2021 to 48.98% in November 2021. Although these
results are promising and show that the approach we are taking is having a positive impact, we are
committed to continuing to improve residents feelings of safety within the ward, we know there is still a
lot more work to do but by working together we are confident we can make greater improvements.

This document explains why the Council believes Selective Licensing is needed in Newport 2, how it will
operate alongside and complement other measures, the improvements it will bring about and why
alternative remedies are insufficient. This proposal presents information on a full Newport ward basis,
were we have been able to present granular data for the smaller Newport 2 area we have used it.

The Council wants to hear from those who are likely to be affected by the proposed scheme, including
local tenants, landlords, managing agents and other members of the community who live or operate
businesses or provide services within the proposed designation. This includes local residents and those
who operate businesses or provide services in the surrounding area outside of the proposed designation
who are likely to be affected. This wider consultation area is also outlined on the map at Appendix 1.

Details of how to respond to the consultation are set out from page 12.
The consultation will last for a period of 10 weeks, starting on (to be added) and closing on (to be
added.) After this time the results will be published, including a summary of the responses received and

how these have either been acted on or not, giving reasons in each case.

The Council will make a final decision on Selective Licensing after it has fully considered the responses to
the consultation.

Should the Council decide to introduce a scheme then all affected parties will be formally notified 3
months in advance of it coming into operation.

Page 269



Progress of the delivery of the Newport 1 SLL scheme.

It is too early in the delivery of the Newport 1 SLL to carry out a full evaluation, however the main
outcomes to date are summarised below:

e House prices in the designated area have started to increase slightly with the overall
average price of £48,585 (89 sales) in 2019 and the overall average price of £49,903 (115
sales) in 2021.

« 301 private rented properties have been inspected and housing conditions have improved.
167 serious housing hazards were identified (category 1 & 2) in properties and have been
addressed to protect tenants. 50 properties were safe without any Cat1 & Cat 2 Hazards.
Smoke alarms checks have been carried out on all housing inspections to ensure they are
provided in properties.

» 410 reports made to the contact centre in regard to the number of environmental antisocial
behaviour incidents with rubbish bins/refuse left in alleyways.

e 69 post tenancy visits have been carried out to provide support to the tenant on a wide
range of issues including substance misuse, parenting skills, unemployment;

« There has been a relatively low number of legal cases taken against landlords for not
licensing their properties, as those landlords who received notice to prosecute applied for
their licence after receiving their court summons.

e Support for landlords — the scheme in Newport has supported landlords in the following
ways:
e Free empty property advertising;
o Dedicated Neighbourhood Safety Officer;
« Dedicated tenancy relations officer;
« Housing and tenancy support/advice;
« Referencing;
« Post tenancy visits for new and existing tenancies.

« Anti-social behaviour has been tackled through a wide range of interventions by the SLL
team;

o 3610 low Interventions. These include telephone call/e-mail, letter drop, diary sheets
received, site meetings, joint patrols and referrals into other services for support

e 43 medium interventions. These include warning letters, final warnings, ABC issued,
ABC breached, joint interviews and tenancy breach interviews.

e 79 high level interventions. These include Criminal Behaviour Orders, Civil Injunction,
House Closures (all for high levels of persistent antisocial behaviour and a last resort
after all low and medium level interventions have been exhausted).

« There has been a reduction in personal & nuisance antisocial behaviour incidents from
1377 in 2018 to 884 in 2021 (-64%)

« Through our joint approach with Cleveland Police we have established working groups and
an approach that has resulted in 10 Premises closure orders taking place and an increase
in the execution of drug warrants across the ward. We have also worked with landlords to
serve section 8 & 21 notices.

« Aresidents survey completed November 2021 showed an increase in the percentage of
residents who responded that theylfpgéaé'rlé?rd/ery safe in the ward. The figure for
4



residents who felt fairly or very safe during the day rose from 35.48% in March 2021 to
68.65% in November 2021. The figure on an evening rose from 12.9% in March 2021 to
48.98% in November 2021. Although these results are promising and show that the
approach we are taking is having a positive impact, we are committed to continuing to
improve resident’s feelings of safety within the ward, we know there is still a lot more work
to do but by working together we are confident we can make greater improvements.

e The same resident survey showed the following results:

Pl Name Start Value | Most up to date Pl Value
Percentage of people indicating crime and 80.65% 44.29% **
ASB is a big or fairly big issue

Percentage of people satisfied with their 55.91% 67.85%
home as a place to live

Increase in percentage of people 19.35% 65.1%
interested in volunteering

Percentage of people indicating they 39.79% 87.23%
intend to live in the ward (over 3 years)

Percentage of people indicating gang 64.51% 36.91% **
nuisance is a big or fairly big issue

** Note. This indicator shows the percentage of respondents who advised that this issue was a big or fairly,
big problem. Desired outcome, reduction in percentage.

CHALLENGES THAT NEWPORT CONTINUES TO FACE
Newport ward experiences major challenges associated with social and economic decline. This includes:

high levels of crime and antisocial behaviour;

high levels of private rented properties and poor living conditions;
high levels of empty properties; and,

a transient population.

In addition to this there has been significant investment in the physical regeneration of Middlesbrough
and social regeneration is a key priority for the Council

A significant and concerning pattern of housing and subsequent social decline in parts of Newport can
be identified:

e the older terraced properties are no longer the first time buyers ‘house of choice’ as they have been
for previous generations;

¢ the low demand for two bedroom terraced properties has led to private sector landlords purchasing
properties at relatively cheap prices;

e some, but by no means all, of these landlords have housed tenants who have gone on to present a
wide range of problem behaviours, further fueling low demand levels;

e this concentration of issues has seen a broad range of social problems manifest themselves from drug
and alcohol abuse to domestic violence and high crime levels.

Whilst Newport may not always be recognised as the most disadvantaged area against every statistical
measure, the rate of its decline, it's vulnerability in terms of crime, social isolation, and the impact of
welfare reform provides a particularly compelling picture of chronic need — especially in conjunction with
the apparent housing market failure. If not addressed, this decline could threaten the long-term stability
of the area.

Page 271



WIDER INDICATORS
Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD)

J2019 2015
Category Rank Category Rank
National) (National)

IIMD Deprivation P6 IMD Deprivation 30
Ilncome 18 Income 29
IEmponment 116 Employment 58
‘Education, Skills and Training 57 Education, Skills and Training 32
‘Health Deprivation and Disability 84 Health Deprivation and Disability | 8

The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) is used to provide a set of relative measures of deprivation (ranks)
for small geographical areas (Lower-layer Super Output Areas (LSOA)). Movement in ranks between the
IMD in 2015 and 2019 does not necessarily imply that an LSOA has improved or declined between the
reporting periods, rather it may imply that other LSOAs have improved/declined at a greater rate. The
ranks are only in relation to each other. The IMD is derived from seven different domains, based on data
from a multitude of sources, from the most recent time point available (e.g. population data from August
2012 for the 2015 IMD and from August 2015 for the 2019 IMD). It is not possible to access all the data
sources for raw data, therefore this report is based on data from the IMD websites and, where possible,
supplemented with data from other sources.

The LSOAs used to calculate the ward based estimates rank between 51st most deprived and 3,285th most
deprived in the Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2019, with almost 33,000 LSOAs in England, all seven in
Newport ward are within the most deprived 10% in England. Three LSOAs in Newport have seen an
improvement in their ranking since IMD 2015, whilst the remaining four have worsened. The LSOA
comprising of the Cannon Park to Union Street area (E01012041) has consistently been one of only five
nationally which have been in the 100 most deprived LSOAs in all IMD’s since 2004.

In 2015, out of 7,219 wards, Newport was the 26th most deprived ward in the country, and remains at the
26th most deprived ward at IMD 2019. Newport is ranked as the fourth most deprived ward in
Middlesbrough.

The rank changes below show that the increase in deprivation has been largely driven by low income and
high crime rates, both of which have a causal effect on the Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index
(IDACI) and Income Deprivation Affecting Older People Index (IDAOPI). In contrast, there has been a
significant improvement in Barriers to Housing and Services of 5,674 positions between 2015 and 2019.

Page 6272



Newport Ward Rankings

:H[ﬁ Overall M6 M2 56 °
gé Income 047 1198 151 Q
( g Employment 2283 2184 +99 °
@ Education, Skills and Training 1647 1400 +248 °
” Health Deprivation and Disability 1534 1528 +5 °
L’E Crime 1449 3101 -1652 Q
.‘E Barriers to Housing and Services 24684 19009 +5,674 o
Living Environment 8795 8043  +752 (A)
Y¥  Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) 764 866 -102 o
M] Income Deprivation Affecting Older People (IDAOPI) 2423 2817 -394 °

LOW HOUSING DEMAND

The Council is looking to introduce Selective Licensing in the Newport 2 area on the basis that there is
compelling evidence of low housing demand. In line with legislation and guidance the Council has
considered the indicators of low housing demand described in the following section. The evidence
points to an area with a high incidence of private renting, low property prices, a transient tenant
population and high proportion of empty properties.

Tenure mix

The Newport ward has an area of 229 hectares which represents 4.25% of the total area of
Middlesbrough with a resident population of 11,440 which represents 8.27% of the total Middlesbrough
resident population of ~138,000.

The 2015 election ward of Newport had 5,006 households, which represents 8.75% of Middlesbrough’ s
57,203 households. The proposed area of Newport 2 will represent 2617 properties.

The largest number of households was ‘private landlord or letting agency accommodation’ at 40.7%.
That compared with 15.1% for Middlesbrough as a whole, 23.7% for North East Region and 13.6% for
the whole of England.

The second largest number of households was ‘owned outright accommodation” at 17.7%. That
compares with 30.6% for Middlesbrough as a whole, 27.1% for North East Region and 34.5% for the
whole of England.

Empty properties
The problems empty properties cause for local communities are well known, but in summary they:

deny homes to those in need;

attract vermin, crime, arson, vandalism, fly-tipping and anti-social behaviour;
are a source of anxiety for owners and neighbours;

reduce the value of neighbouring properties; and,

as a consequence, are a drain on public services and budgets.

At the end of June 2022 there were 199 propert"gsdfén'é:@?%been empty for greater than 6 months



in Newport, which is 3.7% of the Newport housing stock. There were 323 empty properties in total
which is 5.9% of the wards stock. Newport is the second highest ward in Middlesbrough behind North
Ormesby and just ahead of Brambles & Thorntree and Central.

Long term empty properties in Newport account for 30.8% of the total long term empty properties in
Middlesbrough, and the total empty properties in Newport account for 18% of the total number of
empty properties in all of Middlesbrough.

Empty Properties

1,400.00
1,200.00
1,000.00
800.00
600.00
400.00

200.00

Q12020-21Q22020-21Q3 2020-21Q4 2020-21Q1 2021-22Q2 2021-22Q3 2021-22 Q4 2021-22 Q1 2022-23

s Middlesbrough Lt 6+ s Newport Lt 6+

--------- Linear (Middlesbrough Lt 6+) «<------- Linear (Newport Lt 6+)

Property values
Properties in Newport had an overall average price of £102,241 over the last year.

The majority of sales in Newport during the last year were terraced properties, selling for an average
price of £91,224. Semi-detached properties sold for an average of £115,181, with detached properties
fetching £141,995.

Overall, sold prices in Newport over the last year were 7% up on the previous year and 2% down on the
2019 peak of £104,110.

House Prices in Newport (rightmove.co.uk)

There are a number of potential factors are at play which may affect the value of properties which
include the disproportionate levels of private rented properties when compared with other parts of the
town, high levels of crime, anti-social behavior, deprivation, COVID and the number and impact of
empty properties.

Turnover

The presence of a more transient population typically housed in privately rented accommodation can
have a negative impact on the stability and desirability of an area. It can also affect community
integration and investment.

Transience can also attract disadvantaged people to the area, which in turn can lead to increased social
deprivation.

The Newport Ward has a culturally diverse community with over 45 languages being used within the
ward. This brings significant benefits to the local area i.e. many migrants have settled in the ward and
established new businesses, contribute to the local economy and support the population levels. The local

Page 8274



community hub supports both the settled and migrant community however some tensions currently exist.

Council Tax records provide a guide to the proportion of properties experiencing turnover in the Newport

area.
New occupations (accounts)
Rate for

Properties | Accounts | Accounts |Rate for all| Properties | Properties | Rate for all

at1Jan in year Count | Properties Count Count Properties
2017 1673 2908 660 39.5% 122.2% 540 32.3%
2018 1674 2787 636 38.0% 127.5% 499 29.8%
2019 1670 2729 640 38.3% 121.2% 528 31.6%
2020 1670 2597 593 35.5% 120.8% 491 29.4%
2021 1665 2426 513 30.8% 121.0% 424 25.5%

Housing stock condition

Middlesbrough’s Private Sector Stock Condition Survey (PSSCS) 2008 identified Newport as having the
second highest proportion of non-decent dwellings in Middlesbrough at 49.3%. Non-decent homes do not
meet current statutory minimum standards, are not in a reasonable state of repair, do not have reasonably
modern facilities and fail to provide a reasonable degree of thermal comfort.

The survey also recorded a non-decency remedial cost score as (£40.3m and an average of £3,685, per
non decent dwelling).

The same survey identified Newport as having the second largest proportion of vulnerable households
(50.1%) living in non-decent homes.

Newport was also found to have the second highest proportion of homes with a Category 1 hazard
(23.1%). Examples of Category 1 hazards include:

Damp and mould
Excess cold

Falls on stairs
Hot surfaces
Falls on the level
Fire

Newport also had the second lowest SAP rating (42) — this compares the energy performance of different
homes and is measured on a scale of 1 to 100. The higher the rating the lower the fuel costs.

Housing disrepair
The Council received 629 complaints of housing disrepair in private rented property in Middlesbrough
between 2018/19 and 2019/20, 156 (24.8%) of these complaints were in Newport ward.

The Council forwarded 38 pre-formal schedules of work to landlords in Middlesbrough between 2018/19
and 2019/20, 15 (39.5%) of these complaints were in Newport ward.

The Council served 131 statutory repair notices on landlords in Middlesbrough between 2018/19 and
2019/20, 75 (57.3%) of these complaints were in Newport ward.

CRIME AND ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

Crime
During the period 1st February 2018 to 31st January 2020, Newport ward had the second highest rate of
Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), racially motivated crime and other crime in Middlesbrough. During this period

Page 275



there were 2,499 ASB reports, 123 racially motivated crimes, 311 fires and a total of 5,906 crime reports.

Police-reported Crime

30.00
25.00
20.00
15.00
10.00
5.00
o o o (=) o o o o o i i - - i i = i - - - o o o o o
Bamaial 6 ol 6 g g 6 g q g g q o g g 6 Gl G U
b= > c = T} Q. t,' > o c L0 3 3 > = = oo Q ‘0’ > o = 0 :6 =
T £$3z28382388egs32s32>2802a882¢822%
Middlesbrough rate e \ oW port rate Baseline rate
Linear (Middlesbrough rate) ««««--- Linear (Newport rate)
Crime:

The financial year (20-21) shows the impact COVID-19 had on crime levels across all Middlesbrough. Prior
to this and afterwards crime was on a continuing increase, but declined during this financial year.

The increase in crime across Middlesbrough since 2018-19 can be seen below — total number of crimes in
Middlesbrough for the last 4 financial years. As discussed the trend is an upwards trajectory and looking

at the peaks in financial year 2019-20 compared to 2021-22 the peaks in the last financial year were
higher.

Total Middlesbrough Crime Offences

Oct

Page12076



Total Middlesbrough Crime Offences

With the financial year of 2020-21 (COVID-19) included, this graph also shows the increase in crime. With
the rising crime numbers in each financial year, the yearly average number of crimes committed each
month has increased, in 2018-19 the average was 1834, in 2019-2020 this rose to 1922, this dropped in
the pandemic to 1647, and so far this financial year is at an average of 2079 crimes per month. This can
be seen on the monthly graph by observing the red average bar in each financial year moving higher up
the scale.

Antisocial behaviour

Antisocial behaviour and crime can have a devastating effect on individuals and communities. It
describes a wide range of everyday nuisance, disorder and crime from graffiti and noisy neighbours to
harassment and street drug dealing. It is sometimes dismissed as trivial, but anti-social behaviour has a
huge impact on victims' quality of life and it is often the public's number one priority when it comes to
local concerns.

The types of anti-social behaviour which the Council’s Neighbourhood Safety Officers regularly respond
to with includes:

Vandalism, graffiti, and other deliberate damage to property or vehicles
Teenagers hanging around on the streets

Rubbish or litter lying around

Drug use and dealing

Drunk or rowdy behaviour

Chaotic families.

A total of 1334 complaints of anti-social behavior were received by the Council’s Public Protection and
Community Safety teams in 2018. As you can see in the table below, there had been a slight decrease in
2019, followed by a sizable increase in 2020 and 2021. For 2021 the total number of complaints received
were 28.6% higher than the reported levels in 2018.

Year Council complaints
2018 1334
2019 1312

2020/21 1716

Page 277



In 2021 Cleveland Police recorded 915 incidents of ASB in Newport ward, a decrease of 37.6% on the
previous year (the figures for 2021 are also lower than 2019 and 2018). Newport has the second highest
number of reports per ward (Central ward has the highest.) In terms of rate per population, Newport has

the fourth highest rate of antisocial behavior per population of any ward in Middlesbrough, behind North
Ormesby, Hemlington, and Central wards.

Police-reported ASB

25.00
20.00
15.00

10.00

5.00

O O O O O 0O 0 0 O «wH ™« «=H =@ ™=@ =A@ «=H «=H «H «d «=H =H N o o~
B o § g & g g oA g g g g ol ol ol e
S > c S W oo+ > 0 c 0 S & > c S5 wooao s > 0 c o s
2 ©® 5 2 5 o 2 0 9 ©& 0o & 2 ®m 5 2 53 0 2 o0 9 & 0o & o
< s = I w O 2z o - o S < s = I »w O zZz o - & S <

Middlesbrough rate

e N ewport rate
Linear (Middlesbrough rate) ««+e«---

Baseline rate
Linear (Newport rate)

ASB during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Over the last 4 financial years ASB in Middlesbrough has been declining, however in 20-21, COVID-19
year, there was a significant rise. In 18-19 the average number of ASB offences per month was 877

occurrences, this decreased to 718 in FY19-20, but then increased back to 849 occurrences. In FY21-22
this average has remained at 587 which is lower than pre-COVID-19 years.

Total ASB incidents In Middlesbrough.

2021-22

How SLL contributes to the reduction in Anti-social Behaviour.

Under the Selective landlord licence there are mandatory conditions in place which aim to address anti-
social behavior. These mandatory conditions require

« the licence holder to take reasonable and practical steps to reduce or prevent anti-social behaviour
by persons occupying or visiting the house and the use of premises for illegal purposes.

Page 12278



e a written action plan to be provided to Middlesbrough Council outlining procedures for dealing
with anti-social behaviour at the time of application. This must be reviewed annually, tenants
made aware of it and submitted on request;

e to provide to the local authority, upon request, the full names and dates of birth of each
occupant of the property;

e cooperation with Middlesbrough Council, Cleveland Police and other agencies in resolving
complaints of anti-social behaviour or criminal activity. The Licence holder and/or their
nominated Managing Agent must not ignore or fail to take action against any complaints
regarding their tenants. Written records of action taken, shall be maintained and made available
for inspection by an authorised officer of Middlesbrough Council on request;

e the appropriate authorities (namely Middlesbrough Council and Cleveland Police) are informed,
where they have reason to believe that their tenant's behaviour involves criminal activity;

e regular (at least quarterly) inspections of the property to ensure that the property is in a good
state of repair and that the occupiers are not in breach of tenancy terms and conditions. Written
records of inspections made, conditions noted and actions taken as a result shall be maintained
and made available for inspection by an authorised officer of Middlesbrough Council;

e that each tenant is made aware that they are responsible for their own behaviour and the
behaviour of other occupiers and visitors.

HOW THE PROPOSED SELECTIVE LICENSING SCHEME WILL WORK

Licence application

Within the designated area all privately rented properties will need a licence to operate. The owner of the
rented property will need to make an application to the Council. The Council must be satisfied that of all
the person with an interest in the property, the most appropriate person is the licence holder, this would
usually be the property owner.

The licence will be valid for a maximum 5 years, although the Council has discretion to grant the licence
for a shorter period of time where there are problems with the application such as evidence of insufficient
management. Failing to apply for a licence could lead to prosecution and an unlimited fine. If prosecuted,
this would lead to the licence holder no longer being classed as ‘fit and proper’ (see below) and would
mean they would need to find someone else to hold their licence and undertake the management of the

property.

Fit and Proper Person test (Appendix 2)

As part of the application process, proposed licence holders and managers will be required to prove that
they are “fit and proper persons” and that they have satisfactory management arrangements in place,
including those for dealing with anti-social behaviour. A plan for how they will handle complaints of anti-
social behaviour will need to be submitted with the application.

When deciding whether a landlord and/or managing agent is “fit and proper” the Council will look at
whether they have:

(a) They have committed any offence involving fraud or other dishonesty, or violence or drugs, or any
offence listed in Schedule 3 to the Sexual Offences Act 2003 (c. 42) (offences attracting notification
requirements);

(b) Practised unlawful discrimination as defined in the Equality Act 2010 on the grounds of sex, sexual
orientation, gender reassignment, age, race, religion or belief, marital status, pregnancy,
maternity, or disability in, or in connection with, the carrying on of any business; or

(© Contravened any provision of the law relating to housing or landlord and tenant law.

To check this, all applications will require detailed information from the landlord and any relevant
managers.

Page 279



A criminal conviction or evidence of unlawful discrimination or breaches of housing or landlord and tenant
law doesn't necessarily mean that a landlord won't pass the test. The Council will have to look at every
case individually and weigh up all the circumstances when making a decision. For example, the Council
will have to think about:

What the conviction was for;

The circumstances of the case;

How long ago it was and whether it is spent or not;

Whether or not it will affect the person's ability to be a good landlord;

The risk of the same thing happening again and whether that would affect the person's duties as
a Licence Holder.

Where the Council has concerns, applicants will be required as part of the licence conditions to seek a
Disclosure Scotland.

There will be a fee to cover the Council’s costs of carrying out the fit and proper person checks, which will
be £20.00 per person. Landlords with multiple properties will only be required to pay this fee once, if it is
the same owner and manager.

Licence conditions
The licence holder will have to satisfy a number of conditions. Breaches of these licence conditions could
lead to prosecution and a fine of £5,000.

Mandatory conditions relate to the following requirements:

. a landlord must obtain references using Middlesbrough Council’s FREE referencing service from all
persons wishing to occupy the property;

) landlords must produce gas certificates;

. electrical appliances must be kept safe;

. the property must have working carbon monoxide alarms in any room in the house which is used
wholly or partly as living accommodation and contains a solid fuel burning combustion appliance;

. the property must have working smoke alarms; and,

. each tenant must be provided with a written tenancy agreement.

The Council is proposing to include a number of discretionary conditions which relate to the management
of the property, including: general property management, security, management of antisocial behaviour
and external refuse and waste. The proposed licence conditions are attached to this document at
Appendix 3.

Refusal to grant a licence

If the licence application is refused, and there is no reasonable prospect of the property being licensed in
the near future, the Council can apply for an Interim Management Order to take over the management of
the property for up to one year or until such time as the owner is able to rectify the reasons for the licence
being refused. If the owner is unable to rectify the problems then the Council can apply for a Final
Management Order to take on the management for up to 5 years.

In some circumstances rather than refuse the licence, it may be possible for the owner to apply for a
temporary exemption notice. This allows 3 months for the owner to take such steps as are necessary so
the property no longer requires a licence e.g. the property has been sold to an owner-occupier.

Failure to apply
Failing to apply for a licence could lead to prosecution and an unlimited fine.

In addition to the fine the Council can apply for a Rent Repayment Order which allows amounts paid in
connection with a tenancy or licence to be recovered for the period that the property should have been
licensed.

Page 1%80



Exemptions
There are certain properties that are exempt from applying for a licence, they are detailed at Appendix
4.

Property Inspection programme

The Council will inspect all private rented properties within the area of the scheme. High risk properties
that are known to be problematic will be prioritised. The inspection programme will combine a housing
standards inspections (Housing Health and Safety Rating Scheme) and also check for compliance with the
selective licensing conditions including:

the working order and positioning of smoke alarms;
carbon monoxide detector;

tenancy agreements supplied to the tenant;
property management arrangements.

Compliance action will be taken against landlords who breach licence conditions. Action will taken where
issues of non-compliance with the HHSRS standard are identified. Landlords will not be deemed to be *fit
and proper’ if housing offences are proven against them in the courts.

The inspections will be completed by a multi-agency/disciplinary team, this could include a Licensing
Officer, Neighbourhood Safety Officer, Tenancy Relations Officer and an Environmental Health Officer
(when non-compliance with HHSRS standards are identified). This approach is to ensure that as well as
checking compliance with the licence conditions, the tenants are helped and supported with any issues
they may be facing. Issues may include substance misuse, parenting skills, unemployment; the team will
make referrals to relevant agencies and follow-up any actions.

The other services offered through the tenancy relations support will be of benefit to landlords, tenants
and the wider community to help to reduce the turnover of tenants. The licence holder must demand and
obtain references for all prospective occupiers of the house to enable the licence holder to make an
informed decision regarding occupancy of the property.

All references shall be obtained by the licence holder via the FREE Middlesbrough Council, tenant
referencing service.

The licence holder must retain all references obtained for occupiers for the duration of this licence and
must provide Middlesbrough Council, upon demand and within 14 days of that demand, a copy of pre-let
reference checks along with full names and dates of birth of each occupant.

Licence fees

The Housing Act 2004 gives the Council the power to charge landlords a fee for all costs it incurs carrying
out its Selective Licensing functions. The Act also allows the Council to take into account costs incurred
in carrying functions in relation to Interim and Final Management Orders (so far as they are not recoverable
under that part of the Act).

The Council proposes to charge a basic fee of £760.00 for a licence.

The Council will split the licence fee payment into two instalments, one payment to be made upon
application for a licence, with the other payment to be made upon the licence being granted.

The proposed fee structure is set out in detail at Appendix 5.

Income from the licence fees is ring fenced meaning that it can only be used for this project and not for
any other reason. It is anticipated the scheme will require 7 FTEs to operate.

Page 281



POTENTIAL AND PROVEN BENEFITS OF THE SELECTIVE LANDLORD LICENSING SCHEME

Introducing Selective Licensing in both North Ormesby and part of Newport ward has shown a number of
benefits to the community, landlords, tenants and owners, both directly and indirectly, including:

Improved management and condition of privately rented accommodation;

Support for landlords in dealing with anti-social tenants;

Reductions in levels of anti-social behaviour;

Educating tenants about their responsibilities and their impact of their behaviour on the community

and neighbours;

. Encouraging tenants to recognise when properties are of a sub-standard condition and what
options are available to them;

. Promotion of landlord aspiration to let property to a higher standard and to act in a professional

manner.

Encouragement of landlords not to take tenants with a poor reference.

Improvement of the image and desirability of the area.

Improved values of property in the area.

Encouraging a change to the tenure mix of the area. Protect investment in the area.

Working with those landlords who are not providing good quality accommodation or managing

their tenancies effectively and removing “rogue landlords” altogether.

) Reduced tenant turnover leading to sustainable communities, creating communities where tenants
want to remain.

. Encourage the use of reputable managing agents when landlords are inexperienced or “absentee”.

. Raising community confidence through the appropriate use of enforcement powers against
landlords who are failing to comply with the provisions of the Housing Act 2004.

o Free property advertising of empty properties.

The Council aims to build better working relations with landlords in the area and concentrate resources
on eradicating bad practice by some landlords.

Licence conditions help to ensure that vulnerable tenants are living in accommodation where the
management is capable of dealing with their needs.

It also helps the Council to better target resources in dealing with anti-social tenants and enforce against
unprofessional landlords. Selective Licensing seeks to develop a more consistent level of property
management services among all private landlords in the area, thus assisting prospective private tenants
in making a positive, confident choice about their next home.

Reputable landlords can be assured that where Selective Licensing schemes are in place, those landlords
whose business practices have not meet the required minimum standards have been encouraged and
supported to improve their management standards._Landlords who are not willing to work with the Council
could face being refused a licence and ultimately having a Management Order imposed against the

property.

Case Studies from current and previous Schemes

Tenant Support: During a tenancy inspection visit with a landlord, it was identified that the tenant was
struggling with mental health issues due to spiraling debts. Whilst at the property a debt enforcement
agency arrived to reclaim goods to the value of the debt. Both the Officer and landlord negotiated on the
tenant’s behalf, providing evidence that the property was a furnished tenancy and that their only
belongings were clothing and toiletries. The Tenancy Relations Officer arranged an appointment for the
tenant to attend Citizens Advice and also made a referral to Firmer Foundations (mental health support).
During the Citizens Advice appointment the tenant disclosed significant debts; therefore a Debt Relief
Order was applied for (due to severe mental health issues) and a food bank voucher was issued. The
tenant has now applied for different benefits and is receiving the much needed support they required.

Property Conditions: The SLL Team had arranged numerous inspection visits to a property but the

Page 12682



tenant repeatedly wouldn't allow access. An evening visit was made and the tenant finally opened the
door. The tenant was initially angry as they were confused as to who their managing agent was as they
kept changing. The tenant agreed for officers to carry out the inspection which highlighted at least four
Category 1 (most serious) Hazards in the property. These included: no boiler, no heating, no hot water,
the bathroom roof had fallen in (which was propped up with pole), the kitchen was inaccessible and had
no cooking facilities. Due to the condition of the property and the hazards identified, a Prohibition Order
was served. The Landlord has since installed a new boiler, new kitchen (including cooking facilities), new
bathroom roof, bathroom suite, new rear windows downstairs and a new back door. The landlord has
also informed the tenant that he is going to supply new carpets in the property downstairs.

Landlord Support:

The Selective Licensing team have assisted landlords with difficult housing benefit claims and successfully
helped landlords receive payments for housing benefits, even after they have been determined as closed.
A recent claim dating back more than 8 months was paid after intervention from the team. This claim
amounted to more than £3000 and prevented tensions arising between the tenant and the landlord and
ultimately a possible eviction.

Testimonials from North Ormesby Scheme

“For many years I prevented my clients (investors) and myself from purchasing /working in this area and
told anyone who asked where to buy, not North Ormesby! Since Selective licensing has been rolled out
my attitude to the area has changed dramatically due to the efforts by the team at the hub.

I can see, personally, the difference to the area and the type of tenants. I see a lot more builders vans
here than I have ever seen in the street (we did have a few we managed and maintained before my
change of heart). Houses look better generally, and it seems a concerted effort to remove the stigma
from “Doggy” is slowly being removed for the landlords. As a comparison, to show our faith in the
improvement, we are currently working on 8 refurbishment programmes in the area. In Middlesbrough,
just 1!

The referencing is very good, I am an Accredited Landlord with the NLA, and their referencing costs me
£24 per time. It does not, however, tell me their history at previous address"s, nor their conduct, whether
they have issues with housing benefits and rent etc. The service is much more beneficial to prospective
and established landlords.

In my opinion, Selective Licensing has changed North Ormesby and it was much needed”.
Landlord Paul Norman

“Cleveland Police fully support Selective licensing. It is an excellent process that supports the interests of
the landlords, ensures safe and suitable accommodation for tenants and also helps to improve the quality
of the broader community. I would fully support its expansion into other areas within Middlesbrough. I
think there is an excellent working relationship with the Police”.

Inspector D Snaith
Evaluation of the first North Ormesby scheme

An evaluation of the North Ormesby Selective Landlord Licensing Scheme was undertaken in June 2020
using guidance from Local Government Regulation, prior to the re-designation of the area June 2021. The
evaluation sought to identify the effectiveness of Selective Licensing in:

- reducing anti-social behaviour attributable to the private rented sector;

- improving management standards in the private rented sector;

- increasing housing demand;

- improving the environment; and

- contributing to the effectiveness of partnership working to improve the quality of life.

Page 283



The evaluation also took into account findings from an Independent Review of the Use and Effectiveness
of Selective Licensing which was carried out by Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG June 2019, Updated September 2019).

In summary, the main findings of the evaluation report were:

e House prices in the North Ormesby Selective Landlord Licensing area had started to increase.
In 2016 the average house price plummeted to £36,000 and had since increased by 17% to
£42,000.

e The turnover of tenants had reduced by 50% resulting in a more static population.

e The overall number of empty properties had fluctuated throughout the life of the scheme,
however there had been a considerable reduction in the number of long term empty properties
which are often the more problematic for residents. Further work is needed to reduce the
overall numbers.

e The number of private rented properties which have been inspected had increased and housing
conditions have improved. Prior to the introduction of the scheme only 8.4% of the properties
had been inspected on complaints from tenants regarding their housing conditions. In 2020
760 properties have been inspected. Serious housing hazards were identified on 1,692
(category 1 & 2) properties and have been addressed to protect tenants. Smoke alarms checks
have been carried out on all housing inspections to ensure they are provided in properties.

e There had been a relatively low number of legal cases taken against landlords for not licensing
their properties, 4 resulting in court hearings and 8 landlords applying for their licence after
receiving their court summons.

e Support for landlords — the scheme in north Ormesby had supported landlords in the following
ways:

Free empty property advertising;

Dedicated Neighbourhood Safety Officer;
Dedicated tenancy relations officer;

Housing and tenancy support/advice;

Rent recovery in excess of £5,000;

Referencing;

Post tenancy visits for new and existing tenancies.

0O 0O 0O O O O O

The Evaluation Report recognised that the Selective Landlord Licensing scheme had made a major
contribution to the achievements in North Ormesby working together with key partners. It is also
recognised that the strong community infrastructure in the area had played a significant role in delivering
the outcomes i.e. North Ormesby benefits from a number of community organisations working together
with local schools, businesses, and key partners and this had been supported by significant financial
investment from national charitable organisations. It should also be noted that the intensive approach to
delivering services in North Ormesby from a number of agencies and partners is considered one of the
key factor in its success.

The full Evaluation Report is available upon request.

HOW SELECTIVE LICENSING WILL SUPPORT STRATEGIES FOR THE AREA

Housing plays a fundamental role in delivering sustainable communities, facilitating social and
environmental improvements and promoting economic growth. The Council believes that Licensing has an
important role to play and offers valuable support to existing initiatives to tackle empty homes, prevent
homelessness, create sustainable, high quaIIi:t)ya neieghBCéuArrhoods and reduce anti-social behaviour.

18



Middlesbrough Council Strategic Plan
The proposal for Newport clearly links to the strategic plan in terms of its contribution to people and place.

It contributes directly to a number of the outcomes, specifically:

e We will tackle crime and anti-social behavior head on, working with our partners to ensure local
people feel safer

e We will work to address the causes of vulnerability and inequalities in Middlesbrough and safeguard
and support those made vulnerable.

Health and well-being

Housing has an important impact on health and well-being: good quality appropriate housing in places
where people want to live have a positive influence on reducing deprivation and health inequalities by
facilitating stable/secure family lives. This in turn helps to improve social, environmental, personal and
economic well-being. Conversely, living in housing which is in poor condition, overcrowded or unsuitable
will adversely affect the health and well-being of individuals and families.

As mentioned, the Selective Licensing Team will promote multi-agency case intervention strategies where
problems are identified.

Private rented sector

Many properties in the sector provide decent accommodation and are well managed by landlords.
Selective licensing is a vital tool in driving up standards. It reduces the negative impact on neighbourhoods
of poor landlords and encourages greater awareness and a sense of responsibility in landlords and tenants
alike.

The Council’s Private Rented Sector Housing Team will continue to employ a wide range of tools to tackle
poor property condition, inadequate tenancy management and improve conditions in the private rented
sector. These tools include:

e Mandatory HMO Licensing
e Empty Property Enforcement
e Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS)

By designating the area for selective licensing the Council is fully utilising the suite of tools introduced by
the Housing Act 2004 to address management standards and property conditions within the private rented
sector. As part of a coordinated approach, Selective Licensing compels landlords to maintain good
standards and raise the profile of problem properties. Through the increased awareness through tenancy
referencing, amongst the community and across agencies, Selective Licensing has become a valuable
mechanism for identifying and dealing with bad practice amongst private landlords.

Anti-social behaviour

Selective Licensing helps to ensure that landlords meet their statutory duties regarding tenancy
management and encourages and assists them to deal with issues of anti-social behaviour by taking
appropriate and effective action where they receive a complaint about their tenants.

There is a range of other initiatives that are targeted at reducing crime and anti-social behaviour operating
across the Newport ward and the Selective Licensing team work in close partnership with other services
and agencies to maximise the impact and contribute to improved community safety.

The Selective Landlord Licensing Team promote multi-agency case intervention strategies where problems
are identified, which can include actions for the Police, the Youth Offending Team, ASB, and Housing
Enforcement teams. Landlords are offered support and advice to help tackle anti-social behaviour from
their tenants.

Page 285



Prevention of Homelessness Strategy

The private rented sector has a central role to play in offering a decent alternative to owner-occupation
or social rented housing. The sector makes a significant contribution to meeting the housing needs of
vulnerable people and in many cases has prevented homelessness and minimised the use of temporary
accommodation.

The Council continues to work in partnership with the private rented sector and Selective Licensing
strengthens this partnership by increasing the number of landlords working with the Council with well-
managed, good quality accommodation.

By strengthening the partnership between landlords and the Council, Selective Licensing can continue to
contribute to the prevention of homelessness through effective tenancy management that minimises ASB,
tackles rent payment issues in a timely and constructive manner and offer a housing option for some of
the most vulnerable households in need of a home.

The Localism Act 2011 enabled the use of suitable offers of accommodation in the private rented sector
and allowed this sector to be used to discharge the main homelessness duty. Against the backdrop of
high demand but a shortage of accessible, affordable social housing, the sector has increasingly become
a valuable resource for offering a range of more easily accessible housing solutions for homeless
households, but elements of poor management contribute to repeat homelessness. Licensing has the
potential to effect long term positive change in the sector and to provide considerable benefits to homeless
households.

It is anticipated that this Selective Licensing scheme will help achieve a long-term reduction in the culture
of ‘tenancy hopping’, i.e. the practice of households who are frequently homeless due to anti-social
behaviour, and who may be aided by rogue landlords to move around the sector, which prevents
underlying behavioural issues from being tackled and which blights local communities.

Empty homes

In Middlesbrough there were 1254 homes empty for six months or more (1%t October 2021.) The Council
has already begun to tackle this issue and to date has, amongst other things, secured funding from the
Homes and Communities Agency and adopted an Empty Homes Action Plan to bring empties back into
use.

An important part of the strategy to tackle empty homes is actively targeting owners and providing them
with information on the incentives available and the reasons why empty properties are a poor financial
option. In some cases encouraging owners will not be enough and the Council will need to take strong
enforcement action. Selective Licensing has helped strengthen the partnership between landlords and the
Council and the benefits Licensing delivers to the area contributes to tackling problem empty properties,
as has been seen in North Ormesby.

Place Based Working

The locality based working approach in Newport is a strategic priority. It aims to build on the intensive
targeted delivery of services working in partnership and the Selective Licensing team is an integral part of
this.

Locality working involves a system change to the current operational delivery model across Council
services. It seeks to achieve joined-up systems and reconfigure relationships between statutory
organisations, partners and the community. It involves developing collaborative approaches to address
the underlying causes of community problems and build capacity within the community in order for
residents to take charge of their own future, to have a strong voice and to build social capital and
connections within the community. Locality Working commenced with two pilots in North Ormesby and
Newport.

Evidence shows that having multi-agency teams working together from one location brings benefits. It
reduces the need for referrals when a quick conversation with a member of the team can identify the most

Page 22086



appropriate course of action. Through better information sharing it also provides an opportunity to identify
support needs early and proactively intervene to prevent crisis.

ALTERNATIVE REMEDIES AND WHY THE COUNCIL CONSIDERS THEY ARE INSUFFICIENT

The Council has considered whether there are any other courses of action available that might provide an
effective method of achieving the objectives that the designation is intended to achieve.

The following paragraphs consider other powers and projects that are available to the Council and why
they could not replace the proposed Selective Licensing Designation in Newport.

Accreditation
Accreditation is a mechanism for helping landlords or agents to meet agreed standards of competence,
skills and knowledge about the business of owning, managing or letting a private rented home.

Accreditation is supported nationwide by a wide range of stakeholders, including the Government, landlord
associations, local authorities, Shelter, the National Union of Students and the Chartered Institute of
Environmental Health. It can aid the supply of good-quality, well-managed homes.

Accreditation attracts a limited number of landlords, mainly those already providing appropriate
management standards and who are motivated to improve the reputation of the private rented sector.
Such schemes do not have an intensive impact in any one area, nor do they tackle the worst privately
rented properties, as due to the voluntary nature the worst landlords will not engage with the Council or
join the scheme.

Experience shows that it is resource intensive to encourage the poorer landlord to join accreditation and
when asked to make improvements due to its voluntary nature many landlords fail to comply showing that
accreditation cannot tackle the worst standards of property condition and management practices.

Traditional interventions do not provide the level of engagement with landlords necessary for the desired
improvements. Landlord take up of previous accreditation schemes have been very low, they tended to
only engage with responsible landlords who saw a value in being part of a scheme. An example of a non-
mandatory scheme is the Stockton Pluss model which is run by landlords. Stockton Council figures show
that they had 80 members for this scheme with 539 properties and not all landlords who opposed their
SLL scheme joined the accredited scheme.

Enforcement of housing standards

The Housing Act 2004 introduced the Housing Health and Safety Rating Scheme (HHSRS) which allows
local authorities to inspect privately rented properties to ensure the condition of that property does not
have an adverse effect on the health, safety or welfare of tenants or visitors to that property. Where
necessary the Council will serve statutory enforcement notices to ensure the condition is improved.

The current service is in the main reactive - a complaint will be made and an inspection will determine
whether action needs to be taken.

Whilst this approach does improve property conditions it does not have a concentrated impact in one area.
In addition this power does not tackle property management standards.

Through the selective licensing designation, proactive inspection of private rented sector properties against
the HHSRS standards will be undertaken. The associated training, advice and support, will enable landlords
to recognise what improvements need to be made to their properties, reducing the need for action under
the HHSRS.

Enforcement action will be taken to improve property conditions, where necessary. Improved property

conditions will assist in retaining tenants and attracting occupants to the area assisting in tackling low
demand.

Page 287



Management Orders

Part 4 of the Housing Act 2004 introduced the use of Management Orders. The general effect of a
Management Order is that the Council takes control of the property, although legal ownership does not
transfer from the landlord. There are two forms of Management Order, interim and final. Interim lasts for
a period of 12 months which can then be followed by a final Management Order which lasts for a maximum
of 5 years.

Once a Management Order is in place the Council takes over the management of the property. The
occupiers pay their rent to the Council and any repair costs such as routine repairs or building insurance
are taken from the rent before any surplus is given to the owner (landlord).

This power only deals with individual properties and is resource intensive.

This approach does not present a long term solution to address poor management of privately rented
stock as the property is returned to the original owner who may not necessarily have improved their
management standards in the interim.

The Council will use Management Orders in the designation area as a last resort to deal with landlords
who fail to comply with selective licensing and improve their management standards.

Private Sector Leasing Scheme

A Private Sector Leasing Scheme is where the Council takes out a lease, normally 3 to 5 years in duration,
from a private owner or landlord on their property. The Council then uses the property to provide
affordable accommodation for homeless families.

There is no guarantee that landlords, especially the worst, will join the scheme and the Council cannot
compel them to do so. As with Management Orders the scheme does not address poor management
practices as the landlord does not gain experience, advice or training during the lease meaning that once
handed back management standards will once again be unsatisfactory.

Alternative approaches — summary

In summary the alternative options to selective licensing would require some, if not all, of the finance from
the Council. Selective Licensing will be self-financing, paid for by the licence applicants and not through
the Council.

Problems relating to the use of the alternatives to Selective Licensing can include the following:

. They are expensive and there is the likelihood that some of the finance required would need to be
collected from Council Tax. This seems unjust when many of the problems are caused by the lack
of effective tenancy management. Selective Licensing will be self-financing, paid for by landlords.

. The use of Management Orders on all problematic properties would be neither appropriate nor
feasible, given the number of properties. The Council must act in a proportionate manner and a
heavy handed approach would undermine efforts to work with landlords to improve standards.
Selective Licensing provides an opportunity to continue to forge partnerships with otherwise
anonymous private landlords and provide training and support, where the use of these orders does
not.

. Alternatives do not adequately tackle the private tenant’s behaviour. This could result in the same
“problem” tenant being left to float within an area without any real targeted tenancy enforcement
and where required, supported tenancy referral. The proposed Selective Licence conditions include
a requirement for the landlord to seek references when allocating the property and to deal with
any complaints of anti-social behaviour from their tenants (and/or their visitors/children).

. None of these tools provides a long-term solution to the training of inexperienced landlords whose
business would benefit, either because they are not fit, or because of their poor management
arrangements.

. Whilst Selective Licensing is only to be used in areas where authorisation is sought and given,

many private landlords have properties across the entire town and indeed across local authority

Page 22288



borders. Therefore, improvements attained in management standards will have a trickledown effect
and will benefit tenants and communities across wider areas.

There is no single solution and each alternative approach has its limitations. No single intervention,
including Selective Licensing, can solve the issues identified in Newport and therefore a co-ordinated
strategy is required which links a full range of agencies and services using various interventions.

CONSULTATION — OPPORTUNITIES TO ENGAGE & RESPOND
The consultation is being carried out over a 10 week period, and will be widely publicised using various
channels of communication.

The consultation will start on (to be added), 9am and close on (to be added), 12 Noon.

Once the consultation has been completed the results will be published and made available to the local
community.

The Council is required to consult with local residents, including tenants, landlords, managing agents and
other members of the community who live or operate businesses or provide services within the proposed
designation and those in the surrounding area which is shown on the map at Appendix 1.

Everyone who responds to this consultation will have their views fully considered.

A comprehensive engagement and consultation process with partners, stakeholders and customers will
include:

Private landlords

Private tenants

Local communities

Tenant and resident associations
Landlord associations
Citizens Advice Bureau
Registered Social Landlords
Local community committees
Locally elected members
Local businesses
Middlesbrough Police

Other Council service areas.

Methods of consultation
Consultation will be taking place using the following methods:

Direct mail to landlords and residents.

Direct mail to local community groups.

Press release to local media/press.

Information on Middlesbrough Council’s website.
Email to all Ward Councillors.

Email to all relevant Council service areas.

How to respond to the consultation
A questionnaire will be available to complete on the Council’s website, a paper version of which can be
downloaded from the website.

All questionnaires and comments should be returned to: Selective Landlord Licensing, Middlesbrough
Council, P.O. Box 504, Civic Centre, Middlesbrough TS1 9FY.

If you would like any further information about the Selective Licensing proposals please contact the

Page 289



Selective Landlord Licensing Consultation Team on 01642 728100.

Or please email the team on:
licensing consultation@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 2%90



Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 291



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 307



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Apologies for Absence
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes - Executive - 6 September 2022
	Minutes

	4 50 Futures Expansion
	Appendix 1 - Success Stories
	Appendix 2 - Marketing Campaign Samples
	Appendix 3 - Participant-Provider Journey

	5 Poole Hospital Definitive Map Modification Order
	Appendix 1 - Order Plan
	Appendix 2 - Legal Options
	Appendix 3 - Evidence Bundle

	6 Financial Recovery Plan 2022-23
	Appendix 1 - Proposed Fees and Charges Increase
	Appendix 1

	Appendix 2 - Impact Assessment

	7 Town Centre Strategy
	Appendix A - Crime and ASB Action Plan
	Action Plan
	E&CS
	Reg & Culture
	ASC & HI
	Children's Services
	Leg & Gov


	8 Final Report of the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel - Tough Enough? Enforcement in Middlesbrough and its Impact on Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour - Service Response
	Appendix 1 - Scrutiny Panel Final Report
	Appendix 2 - Action Plan

	9 Designation of the Newport 2 Ward Area for a Selective Landlord Licensing Scheme
	Appendix 1 - Map of Designated Area and Wider Consultation
	Appendix 2 - Fit and Proper Test
	Appendix 3 - Licence Conditions
	Appendix 4 - Exemptions
	Appendix 5 - Fee Structure
	Appendix 6 - North Ormesby Evaluation
	Appendix A - Newport Proposal Document

	12 Exempt - Dealing with Major Vacant Town Centre Properties
	Appendix 1- Impact Assessment




